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United States District Court Western District of

Washington Northern Division November

Term, 1941

No. 45646

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

CHARLES T. TAKAHASHI, EDWARD Y.

OSAWA, M. IKUTA, KOH KOHNO, alias

Willie Chang, M. H. KIANG,
Defendants.

INDICTMENT

Vio. Section 88, Title 18, U. S. C. (Conspiracy to

violate Paragraph 6 of the Executive Order

approved by the President March 15, 1941, and

effective April 15, 1941, pursuant to the pro-

visions of Sec. 99, Title 50, U. S. C, and Sec.

80, Title 18, U. S. C.) ; Paragraph 6 of the

Executive Order approved by the President

March 15, 1941, and effective April 15, 1941,

pursuant to the provisions of Section 99, Title

50, U. S. C; Section 80, Title 18, U. S. C.

United States of America

Western District of Washington

Northern Division—ss

:

The Grand Jurors of the United States of Amer-

ica being duly selected, impaneled, sworn and

<3harged to inquire within and for the Northern



vs. United States of America 3

Division of the Western District of Washington,

ni)()n their oaths prc^sent

:

COUNT I.

That (v^harles T. Takahashi, Edward Y. Osawa,

M. Ikuta, Koh Kohno alias Willie Chang, and M.

H. Kiang, whose true and full names are to the

grand jurors unknown, and each of them, hereto-

fore and within one year prior to the 2nd day

of November and continuing to and including the

2nd day of November in the year of our Lord

one thousand nine hundred and forty-one, then and

there being, at Seattle, in the Northern Division

of the Western District of Washington, and within

the jurisdiction of this Court, at Washington in

the District of Columbia, at Tokyo in Japan, at

Shanghai in [2] China and divers other places to

the grand jurors unknown, did then and there

knowingly, Avilfully, imlawfully and feloniously

combine, conspire and confederate and agree to-

gether and with each other, and with divers other

persons to the grand jurors unknown, to commit

divers offenses against the United States, to-wit,

violations of Pai-agraph 6 of the Executive Order,

prescribing regulations, approved by the President

March 15, 1941, effective April 15, 1941, providing

as follows:

"6. The country designated on the application

for license as the country of destination shall in

each case be the country of ultimate destination.

If the goods to be exported are consigned to one

country with the knowledge tliat they are intended



4 Charles T. Takahashi, et al

for transhipment thence to another country, the

latter country shall be named as the country of

destination."

pursuant to the provisions of Section 99, Title 50,

U. S. C. in the following manner and particulars,

it being then and there the plan, purpose and ob-

ject of the said conspiracy and the object of the

said persons so conspiring together as aforesaid,

to knowingly, wilfully, unlawfully and feloniously

export military equipment, munitions, component

parts thereof, machinery, tools, materials and sup-

plies necessary for the manufacture, servicing and

operation thereof, prohibited by and curtailed by

the Proclamation of the President of the United

States, by virtue of Proclamations of the Presi-

dent dated July 2, 1940 and December 10, 1940,

the Executive Order of the President of March 15,

1941, and Export Control Schedule No. 1 issued

March 15, 1941, in that the object of said persons

so conspiring together was to cause to be designated

on an application for license for the export of three

complete new steel dismantled storage tanks and

acesssories for erection purposes, a countrs^ as the

country of designation, to-wit, China, other than

the country of ultimate destination, to-wit, Japan,

as they and each of them well [3] knew, and fur-

ther, it being then and there the plan, purpose and

object of the said conspiracy and the object of

the said persons so conspiring together as afore-

said to violate the provisions of Section 80, Title

18, U.S.C., by knowingly, wilfully, unlawfully and

feloniously making and catise to be made false and
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fraudulent statements and representations in an

application to export articles and materials (other

than arms, anmmnition, and implements of war and

tin-plate scrap) designated by the President as

necessary to the national defense pursuant to Sec-

tion 6 of the Act of Congress approved July 2,

1940, then and there knowing said application con-

tained false, fraudulent and fictitious representa-

tions and statements, being then and there a mat-

ter within the jurisdiction of a department and

agency of the United States, to-wit, the Depart-

ment of State, contrary to the form of the statute

in such case made and provided, and against the

peace and dignity of the United States of America.

And the Grand Jurors upon their oath afore-

said, do further ])resent that after the formation

of the aforesaid conspiracy and in pursuance there-

of and in order to etfect the object of the aforesaid

conspiracy and for the purpose of executing said

unlawful conspiracy and agreement, the herein-

after parties did certain overt acts, that is to say:

[4]

1.

That the defendants Charles T. Takahashi and

Edward Y. Osawa on or about the month of De-

cember, 1940, at Seattle, Washington, ordered three

complete new steel dismantled storage tanks and

accessories for erection purposes.

2.

That on or about the months of November and

December, 1940, the defendants Charles T. Taka-
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liasbi, Edward Y, Osawa, M. Ikuta and Koh Kohno

at Seattle, Washington, and at Tokyo in Japan,

agreed to furnish the Japanese army with three

complete new steel dismantled storage tanks and

accessories for erection purposes through Mikuni-

Shoko Co., Ltd. of Tokyo, Japan

3.

That on or about the month of March, 1941, the

defendant Edward Y. Osawa at Seattle, Washing-

ton departed on a vessel for Japan.

4.

That the defendant M. Ikuta of Mikuni-Shoko

Co., Ltd. on or about June 27, 1941 at Tokyo in

Japan sent a telegram in code addressed to C. T.

1'akahashi & Co., Seattle, under the individual pro-

prietorship of Charles T. Takahashi.

5.

That on or about and between June 27, 1941 and

November 2, 1941 at Seattle, Washington, the de-

fendant Charles T. Takahashi received a confirma-

tion of telegram from Mikuni-Shoko Co., Ltd., in

code and translation, addressed to C. T. Taka-

hashi & Co., Seattle, Washington, U.S.A.

6.

That the defendant M. Ikuta of Mikuni-Shoko

Co., Ltd. on or about June 28, 1941, at Tokyo in

Japan sent a telegram in code addressed to the

defendant Charles T. Takahashi under [5] the code

symbols N EW Y R, Seattle, Wash., U.S.A.
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7.

That on or about and Ix'tween June 28, 1941 and

November 2, 1941, at Seattle, Washington, the de-

fendant Charles T. Takahashi received a confirnia-

tion of telegram from JMikuni-Shoko ('o., Ltd., in

code and translation, addressed to N EW Y R.

8.

M'hat on or about July 4, 1941, the defendant

M. H. Kiang, as manager of Jua Hsin Company,

at Shanghai in China, wrote a letter to China Im-

port and Export Company, 212 5th Ave. So., Seat-

tle, Washington, U.S.A.

9.

That the defendant M. Ikuta of Mikuni-Shoko

Co., Ltd. on or about July 5, 1941, at Tokyo in

Japan sent a telegram in code addressed to the

defendant Charles T. Takahashi under the code

symbols NEWYR, Seattle, Wash., U.S.A.

10.

That on or about and between July 5, 1941 and

November 2, 1941, at Seattle, Washington, the de-

fendant Charles T. Takahashi received a confirma-

tion of telegram from Mikuni-Shoko Co., Ltd., in

code and translation, addressed to N E W Y R.

11.

That on or about July 5, 1941, the defendant

Edward Y. Osawa at Tokyo wrote a letter ad-

dressed to the defendant Charles T. Takahashi at

Seattle.
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12.

That the defendant Charles T. Takahashi re-

ceived a letter from Edward Y. Osawa, at Seattle,

Washington, on or between the dates of July 5,

1941 and November 2, 1941. [6]

13.

That the defendant M. Ikuta of Mikuni-Shoko

Co., Ltd. on or about July 8, 1941, at Tokyo in Japan

sent a telegram in code addressed to the defendant

Charles T. Takahashi under the code symbols

NEWYR, Seattle, Wash., U.S.A.

14.

That on or about and between July 8, 1941 and

November 2, 1941, at Seattle, Washington, the de-

fendant Charles T. Takahashi received a confirma-

tion of telegram from Mikuni-Shoko Co., Ltd., in

code and translation, addressed to N EW Y R.

15.

That the defendant Edward Y. Osawa on or about

July 15, 1941, at Tokyo in Japan sent a letter to

the defendant Charles T. Takahashi at Seattle,

Washington.

16.

That the defendant Charles T. Takahashi re-

ceived a letter from Edward Y. Osav/a, at Seattle,

Washington between the dates of July 15, 1941

and November 2, 1941.
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17.

That tlie defendant M. Ikuta on or about July

16, 194J at '^Fokyo in Japan, wrote a letter ad-

dressed to C. T. Takahashi Company, 212 5th Ave-

nue Soutli, Seattle, Wash., U.S.A.

18.

That the defendant Charles T. Takahashi at Seat-

tle, Washington, between the dates of July 16, 1941

and November 2, 1941, received a letter from the

defendant M. Ikuta of Mikuni Shoko Company
Ltd., dated July 16, 1941.

19.

That on July 12, 1941, the defendant Edward
Y. Osawa at Tokyo in Japan, wrote a letter to

the defendant Charles T. Takahashi. [7]

20.

That the defendant Charles T. Takahashi at Seat-

tle, Washington, between the dates of July 12, 1941

and November 2, 1941, received a letter from the

defendant Edward Y. Osawa.

21.

That the defendant Charles T. Takahashi at Seat-

tle, Washington, on or about ^n]y 16, 1941, pre-

pared an a|)plication for license to export articles

and materials (other than arms, ammunition and

implemeiits of war and tin-plate scrap) designated

by the President as necessary to the national de-

fense pursuant to Section 6 of the Act of Con-
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gress approved July 2, 1940, a copy of said appli-

cation for license is attached to this indictment

marked Exhibit "A" and incorporated by this ref-

erence as a part of this overt act and this count

as if fully set forth herein.

22.

That the defendant Edward Y. Osawa at Seattle,

Washington, on or about November 2, 1941, had in

his possession a letter from the defendant M. H.

Kiang, as manager of Hua Hsin Company, Shang-

hai, China, dated July 4, 1941, addressed to Messrs.

China Import and Export Company, 212 5th Ave.

So., Seattle, Washington, U.S.A.

Contrary to the form of the statute in such case

made and provided, and against the peace and dig-

nity of the United States of America.

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, upon their

oaths aforesaid, do further present:

COUNT XL

That Charles T. Takahashi, Edward Y. Osawa,

M. Ikuta, Koh Kohno alias Willie Chang, and

M. H. Kiang, whose true and full names are to

the grand jurors unknown, and each of them, on

or about the 16th day of July, 1941, in the [8]

City of Seattle, in the Northern Division of the

Western District of Washington, and within the

jurisdiction of this court, then and there being,

did then and there knowingly, wilful ty, unlawfully

and feloniously violate the provisions of Paragraph

6 of the Executive Order, prescribing regulations,
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approved l)y the i^rcsidcnt Mareh 15, 1941, ('ffec-

tive April 15, 1941, providing as follows; to-wit:

'^6, The couritry designated on the applica-

tion for license as the ^^tountry of destination

shall in each case he the country of ultimate

destination. If the goods to he exported are

consigned to one country with the knowledge

that they are intended for transhipment thence

to another country, the latter country shall

be named as the country of destination.''

by virtue of Proclamations of the President dated

July 2, 1940 and December 10, 1940, all pursuant

to the provisions of Section 99, Title 50, U.S.C.,

in the followiniz," manner and particulars, to-wit,

the aforesaid defendants and each of them in an

appli<^ation entitled

:

"Application for license to export articles

and materials (other than arms, ammunition,

and implements of war and tin-plate scrap)

designated by the President as necessary to

the national defense pursuant to Section 6 of

the Act of Congress approved July 2, 1940'*

a copy of which said application is attached to this

indictment marked Exhibit "A" and incorporated

as a part of this coimt by this reference as if fully

set forth herein, did designate on the application

for license aforesaid for the export of three com-

plete new steel dismantled storage tanks and ac-

cessories for erection purposes, a country as the

comitry of designation, to-wit, China, other than

the country of idtimate destination, to-wit, Japan,
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as the defendants and each of them then and there

well knew, contrary to the form of the statute and

regulations in each such case made and provided,

and against the peace and dignity of the United

States of America. [9]

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, upon their

oaths aforesaid, do further present:
,

COUNT III.

That Charles T. Takahashi, Edward Y. Osawa,

M, Ikutu, Koh Kohno alias Willie Chang, and M.

H. Kiang, whose true and full names are to the

grand jurors unknown, and each of them, on or

about the 16th day of July, 1941, in the City of

Seattle, in the Northern Division of the Western

District of Washington, and within the jurisdiction

of this court, then and there being, did then and

there knowingly, wilfully, unlawfully and felon-

iously make and cause to be made false and fraudu-

lent statements and representations in an applica-

tion entitled:

"Application for license to export articles

and materials (other than arms, amnumition,

and imjjlements of war and tin-plate scrap)

designated by the President as necessary to

the national defense pursuant to Section 6 of

the Act of Congress approved July 2, 1940"

then and there knowing said application contained

false, fraudulent and fictitious statements and rep-

resentations being then and there in a matter within

the jurisdiction of a department and agency of the
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Uiiitod States, to-\vii, the Dej)artmen1 of State, in

the following manner and particulars, to-wit, the

aforesaid defendants and eadi of tlicin in an ap-

plication entitled as aforesaid, a cojiv of which

said application is attached to this indictment

marked Exhibit "A'' and incorporated as a part

of this count by this reference as if fully set forth

herein, did designate on the application for license

aforesaid for the export of three complete new

steel dismantled storage tanks and accessories for

erection purposes, a country as the country of des-

ignation, to-wit, China, other than the country of

ultimate destination, to-wit, Japan, as the defen-

dants and each of them, then and [10] there well

knew, contrary to the form of the statute in such

case made and provided, and against the peace and

dignity of the United States of America.

(Signed) J. CHARLES DENNIS
United States Attorney

(Signed) GEKALD SHUCKLIN
Assistant U. S. Attorney

[Endorsed] : A true bill, A. S. Nordquist, Fore-

man.

J. CHARLES DENNIS

Presented to the Court by the Foreman of the

Grand Jury in open Court, in the presence of the

Grand Jury, and Filed in the V. S. I)istri(*t Court

Jan. 28, 1942

MILLARD P. THOMAS. Clerk

By J. MORTON ARNOLD, Deputy.

[11]
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United States of America

Department of State

[Stamped] : Division of Control. Department of

State. Jul 23, 4 :30 p. m. '41.

[Stamped] : Division of Control. Department of

State. Jul 22, 1941.

Application for license to export articles and mate-

rials (other than arms, ammunition, and imple-

ments of war and tin-plate scrap) designated

by the President as necessary to the national

defense pursuant to Seption 6 of the Act of

Congress approved July 2, 1940.

(Application to be made in duplicate)

DUPLICATE

(Insert here name of country of destination)

License No
(For official use only)

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

(a) One duplicate application should be made for

each complete shipment to any one consignee,

and it may not include more than one com-

modity nor shipments to more than one coun-

try.

(b) Applications should be typewritten, with the

exception of signature, but will be considered

if w^ritten legibly in ink.
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(c) Articles and materials appearing under (7)

below should he dc^signatcnl elearly and spe-

ciiically, the type and model designation being

included whenever api)licable.

(d) Values listed should represent the selling price

only of the articles exported, and should not

include such supplementary costs as inutk'mg,

freight, etc,

(e) Specify under paragraph (9) the name and

address of the producer or manufacturer in the

United States of each article and material to

be exposed or, if obtained outside of the Unit-

ed States, the name and address of the person

from whom procured.

(f) Unsigned applications or applications which

omit essential information called for in the

numbered spaces will be returned.

(g) When countersigned and impressed with the

seal of the Department of State, this appli-

cation becomes a license.

(h) Any attempt to export a commodity differing

in any way from that licensed, or any altera-

tion of a license, except by a duly authorized

officer of the Government, is punishable under

appropriate acts of Congress. Changes in the

information set forth in licenses which have

been issued under the seal of the Secretary of

State can be effected by amendments which

can be made only by the Department of State,



16 Charles T. TakaJiasJii, et al

or by collectors of customs or postmasters act-

ing under the specific instructions of the De-

partment of State.

Department of State,

Washington, D. C.

(1) Date of application July 16, 1941

(2) Applicant's reference No

The undersigned hereby applies for license to ex-

port the commodity described below and warrants

the truth of all statements and answers herewith

made regarding it.

(3) Name of applicant China Import & Export

Company

By (Sgd) LEO NYE SING
(To be signed in ink)

(4) Consignee in foreign country

Name Hua Hsin Company

Address—Street 320 Szechuen Road

City Shanghai

Nationality—Chinese

State or Province

Country China

(5) Purchaser in foreign country

Name Hua Hsin Company
Address—Street 320 Szechun Road

City Shanghai

Nationality—Chinese '

State or Province

Country China
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(6) Number of units
or weight ( whicli-
ever is applicable). (7) Description of articles (8) Approxi-
If weight is given or materials to mate net
in tons, specif}' be exported value
whether long or
short tons

3 Complete New Steel Dis-

mantled Storage Tanks $29,500.00

(each tank weighs and accessories for erec- f.o.b.

about 270 long tion purposes Seattle

tons) per tank

APPLICATION REJECTED

Aug. 1, 1941 The Administrator of Export Control has

determined that this proposed exportation

would be contrary to the interest of the

National Defense.

REJECTION NO. HT-26-R

(9) Source of material to be exported (see para-

graph (e) above)

:

Graver Tank Company, (Name) East Chi-

cago, Indiana (Address)

(10) State the specific purpose for which the ar-

ticles or materials are required and tlie name

and address of the ultimate consumer in the

foreign country:

Storage purposes

Hua Hsin Company, 320 Szechueii Road,

Shanghai, Oliiiia.

(11) License to be sent to

Name China Import & Export Company

Address: Street 212 Fifth Ave. So. City Se-

attle. State Washington.
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(12) Consignor in United States

Name China Import & Export Company. Na-

tionality United States.

Address: Street 212 Fifth Ave. So. City, Se-

attle. State Washington.

(13) Seller in United States

Name China Import & Export Company. Na-

tionality United States.

Address: Street 212 Fifth Ave. So. City Se-

attle. State Washington.

Nature of business Importers & exporters.

(14) Port of exit in the United States from which

it is proposed to export the shipment Seattle,

Wash.

License is hereby granted to the applicant men-

tioned herein to export from the United States of

America to Shanghai, China the articles or mate-

rials described and in the quantity given, on the fol-

lowing terms and conditions

:

This license is not transferable and is subject to

revocation without notice.

Shipment must be made from port of exit within

1 year from date of this license as given below under

the seal of the Department.

Export licenses must be filed with the collector

of customs at the port from which the shipment is

departing from the United States prior to the pro-

posed departure.
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FOU C0LLEC1Y)KS OF CUSTOMS AND
POSTMASTERS

This license! sliould be returned to the Secretary

of State at the end of the month during which the

last article of the shipment described therein was

exported, or during which notice has been given that

the remaining balance will not be shipped, or dur-

ing which the license has been revoked or has ex-

pired. When the entire shii)ment has been exported,

the license should be marked "COMJ^LETED";
otherwise the returned license should bear a nota-

tion statini? the reason for its return and the (pian-

tity and value of the articles actually shipped.

Collectors of customs or postmasters will endorse

in the following spaces information concerning ship-

ments made under this license:

[Printer's Note: Ruled form here has no en-

tries, consequently is not reproduced.]

Date of license

(For official use only)

(When countersigned and impressed with the seal

of the Department of State, this application be-

comes a license.)

For the Secretary of State:

By
(For official use only) [12]
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District Court of the United States

Western District of Washington

Northern Division

No. 45646

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

CHARLES T. TAKAHASHI,
EDWARD Y. OSAWA,

VERDICT
Defendants.

We, the jury in the above-entitled cause, find the

Defendant, Charles T. Takahashi is guilty as

charged in Court I of the Indictment filed herein;

is guilty as charged in Count II of the Indictment

filed herein ; is guilty as charged in Coimt III of the

Indictment filed herein ; and we further find the de-

fendant, Edward Y. Osawa is guilty as charged in

Count I of the Indictment filed herein; is guilty as

charged in Count II of the Indictment filed herein;

is guilty as charged in Count III of the Indictment

filed herein.

DOUG. F. MAWER
Foreman

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 7, 1942. [88]
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In the Disti-ict Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington Northern Di

vision.

No. 45646

UNirED SlWrES OP AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

V.

CHARLES T. TAKAHASHI, EDWARD Y.

OSAWA, et al..

Defendants.

JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE

Comes now on this 19th day of April, 1943, the

said defendant Charles T. Takahashi into open

Court for sentence, and being informed by the Court

of the charges herein against him and of his convic-

tion of record herein, he is asked whether he has

any legal cause to show why sentence should not be

passed and judgment had against him, and he noth-

ing says, save as he before hath said.

Wherefore, by reason of the law and the premises,

and the verdict of the jury finding the defendant

guilty on Counts I, II and III of the indictment, it

is

Considered, Ordered and Adjudged by the (Vnirt

that the defendant Charles T. Takahashi is guilty

as charged in Counts I, II and III of the indict-

ment, and that he be committed on Count I of the

Indictment to the custody of the Attorney CleneiAiI

of the United States for imprisonment in such peni-
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teutiary, or in such other like institution, as the

Attorney General of the United States or his auth-

orized representative may by law designate, for the

period of two (2) years. It is further

Considered, Ordered and Adjudged by the Court

that the said defendant Charles T. Takahashi on

Count II of the indictment be committed to the

custody of the Attorney General of the United

States for imprisonment in such [95] penitentiary,

or in such other like institution, as the Attorney

General of the United States or his authorized rep-

resentative may by law designate for the period of

two (2) years; Provided, however, that the execu-

tion of the sentence on said Count II shall run con-

currently with and not consecutively to the execu-

tion of the sentence imposed on Count I of the In-

dictment. It is further

Considered, Ordered and Adjudged by the Court

that the said defendant Charles T. Takahashi on

Count III of the Indictment be committed to the

custody of the Attorney General of the United

States for imprisonment in such penitentiary, or in

such other like institution, as the Attorney General

of the United States or his authorized representa-

tive may by law designate for the period of five (5)

years ; Provided, however, that the execution of the

sentence on said Count III shall rim concurrently

with and not consecutively to the e:.v.^cution of the

sentence imposed on Counts I and II of the Indict-

ment.

And the said defendant is hereby remanded into

the custody of the United States Marshal for this
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District for delivery to the Warden, Superintendent

or Keeper of such penitentiary, or such otlier like

institution, as the Attorney General of the United

States or his authorized representative may hy law

designate, for the purpose of exectuing said sc-n-

tence. This judgment and sentence for all purposes

shall take the place of a commitment, and be recog-

nized by the Warden, Superintendent or Keeper of

an}^ Federal Penal Institution as such.

Done in open Court this 19th day of April, 194o.

LLOYD L. BLACK
United States District Judge

Presented by:

J. CHARLES DENNIS
United States Attorney

Violation: 18 USCA 88

[Endorsed] : Filed April 19, 1943. [96]
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In the District Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision

No. 45646

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

V.

CHARLES T. TAKAHASHI, EDWARD Y.

OSAWA, et al..

Defendants.

JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE

Comes now on this 19th day of April, 1943, the

said defendant Edward Y. Osawa into open Court

for sentence, and being informed by the Court of

the charges herein against him and of his convic-

tion of record herein, he is asked whether he has

any legal cause to show why sentence should not be

passed and judgment had against him, and he noth-

ing says, save as he before hath said.

Wherefore, by reason of the law and the premises,

and the verdict of the jury finding the defendant

guilty on Counts I, II and III of the indictment,

it is

Considered, Ordered and Adjudged by the Court

that the defendant Edward Y. Osawa is guilty as

charged in counts I, II and III of the indictment,

and that he be committed on Count I of the indict-

ment to the custody of the Attorney General of the

United States for imprisonment in such peniten-
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tiary, or m sucli (jthcr like institution, as the Attor-

ney General of the United States or his authorized

representative may by law designate, for the period

of two (2) years. It is further

Considered, Ordered and Adjudged by the Court

that the said defendant Edward Y. Osawa on Count

II of the Indictment be committted to the custody

of the Attorney General [97] of the United States

for imprisonment in such penitentiary, or in such

other like institution, as the Attorney General of

the United States or his authorized representative

may by law designate for the period of Two (2)

Years; provided, however, that the execution of the

sentence on said Count II shall run concurrently with

and not consecutively to the execution of the sentence

imposed on Count I of tlie indictment. It is further

Considered, Ordered and Adjudged by the Court

that the said defendant Edwai'd Y. Osawa on Count

III of the Indictment be committed to the custody of

the Attorney General of the United States foi* im-

prisonment in such penitentiary, or in such other like

institution, as the Attorney General of tJie United

States or bis authorized representative may by law

designate for the period of five (5) years; provided,

however, that the execution of the sentence on said

Count III shall run concurrently witli and not con-

secutively to the execution of the sentence imposed

on Counts I and II of tlie indictment.

And the said defendant is hereby remanded into

the custody of +he United States Marshal for this

District for delivery to the Warden, Superinten-

dent or Keeper of such penitentiary, or such other
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like institution, as the Attorney General of the

United States or his authorized representative may

by law designate, for the purpose of executing said

sentence. This judgment and sentence for all pur-

poses shall take the place of a commitment, and be

recognized by the Warden, Superintendent or Keep-

er of any Federal Penal Institution as such.

Done in open Court this 19th day of April, 1943.

LLOYD L. BLACK
United States District Judge.

Presented by:

J. CHARLES DENNIS,
United States Attorney

Violation: 18 USCA 88

[Endorsed] : Filed April 19, 1943 [98]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Name and Address of Appellant

:

Charles T. Takahashi

Hunt, Idaho (W. R. A.)

Name and Address of Appellant's Attorney:

Samuel B. Bassett

811 Alaska Building

Seattle, Washington

Offense

:

Conspiracy to violate Title 50 U. S. C, Section

99 and Title 18 U. S. C, Section 80; and for
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violation of Title 50, U. S. C, Section 99 and

Title 18, U. S. C. Section 80.

Date of Judgment: Ajnil 19, 1943.

Brief Description of Judgment or Sentence: Com-

mitted to the Attorney General of the United

States for imprisonment five years under conspir-

acy indictment and two years each for violation of

Title 50 U. S. C, Section 99 and Title 18 U. S. C.

Section 80; sentences to run concurrently and not

consecutively.

Name of Prison Where Now Confined, if not on

Bail: On bail.

I, the above named appellant hereby appeal to

the United States Circuit CJourt of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit from the judgment above men-

tioned on the grounds set forth below.

CHARLES T. TAKAHASHI
Appellant

Dated April 19, 1943.

Copy rec'd April 19, 1943.

J. CHARLES DENNIS
U. S. Atty. [99]

GROUNDS OF APPEAL

I.

That the Court erred in refusing to suppress cer-

tain documents and evidence taken forcibly from

the person of the defendants, and each of them, or

or about November 2nd, 1941.
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II.

That the Court erred in refusing to return to the

defendants their private papers and documents for-

cibly and wrongfully seized by agents of the Gov-

ernment on or about the 2nd day of November,

1941.

III.

That the court erred in refusing to quash the in-

dictment on the defendants' motion.

IV.

That the Court erred in overruling defendants'

demurrer to the indictment, and each count thereof.

V.

That the Court erred during the trial of said

cause in receiving certain documentary evidence

consisting of private papers wrongfully taken from

the person of the defendants, and each of them, on

or about November 2nd, 1941.

VI.

That the Court erred in the trial of said cause

in his comments and instruction to the jury during

the progress of said trial and at the close of all of

the evidence.

VII.

That the Court commented during said instruc-

tion making an argument favorable to the plaintiff

and unfavorable to this defendant,—did not review

the evidence fairly or impartially, to all of which

this defendant duly excepted. [100]
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VIII.

That the Court improperly instructed tlie jury to

the prejudice of this defendant by improperly re-

fusing to give instructions requested by said de-

fendant, to all of which this defendant duly ex-

cepted on each ^^round.

IX.

That the Court improperly instructed the jury at

the close of all of the evidence to the prejudice of

this defendant, to which said defendant duly ex-

cepted.

X.

That the Court erred in overruling this defendant

on his motion for a directed verdict after a chal-

lenge to the sufficiency of the evidence at the close

of pin in tiff's case.

XI.

That the Court erred in failing to direct the jury

to grant a verdict for this defendant upon this de-

fendant's motion at the close of all of the evidence.

XII.

That the verdicts rendered and a<?cepted by the

Court were not supported by any evidence in the

case and are contrary to the evidence.

XIII.

That there w^as no material basic evidence in said

cause to warrant submitting the cause to the jury

and said cause was erroneously submitted to the

jury on surmise, suspicion, speculation, presumption

and inference on inference onlv.
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XIV.

That the Court erred in refusing to grant this

defendant's motion for a mistrial during the prog-

ress of the <;ause, to which this defendant duly ex-

cepted. [101]

XV.

That the Court erred on the voir dire examina-

tion of the jury, in that the Court denied this de-

fendant's challenge for cause to two jurors.

XVI.

That the Court erred in denying the motion of

this defendant for new trial and in arrest of judg-

ment.

XVII.

That the Court erred in resentencing this defend-

ant after the original sentence was duly imposed.

[Endorsed] : Filed April 19, 1943. [102]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Name and Address of Appellant

:

Edward Y. Osawa,

Hunt, Idalio (W. R. A.)

Name and Address of Appellant's Attorney.

Tracy E. Griffin

1107 American Bldg.,

Seattle, Washington

Offense: Conspiracy to violate Title 50 U. S. C,

Section 99 and Title 18 U. S. C, Section 80;
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and for violation of Title 50, U. 8. C, Section

99 and Title 18 V. S. (\, Section 80.

Date of Judi^nient : Api'il 19, 1943.

Brief I)eserif)tion of Jnd^^ent or Sentence:

Committed to the Attorney General of the United

States for imprisonment five years under consipracy

indictment and two years each for violation of Title

50 U. S. C, Section 99 and Title 18 U. S. C. Sec-

tion 80; sentences to run concurrently and not

consecutively.

Name of Prison Where Now Confined, If Not on

Bail : On bail.

1, the above named appellant hereby appeal to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit from the judgment above mentioned

on the grounds set forth below.

EDWARD Y. OSAWA
Appellant

Dated April 19, 1943.

Copy rec'd April 19, 1943

J. CHARLES DENNIS
U. S. Atty. [103]

GROUNDS OF APPEAL

I.

That the court erred in refusing to suppress

certain documents and evidence taken forcibly from

the person of the defendants, and each of them,

on or about November 2nd, 1941.
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II.

That the Court erred in refusing to return to

the defendants their private papers and documents

forcibly and wrongfully seized by agents of the

Grovernment on or about the 2nd day of Novem-

ber, 1941.

III.

That the court erred in refusing to quash the

indictment on the defendants' motion.

IV.

That the Court erred in overruling defendants'

demurrer to the indictment, and each count thereof.

V.

That the Court erred during the trial of said

cause in receiving certain documentary evidence

consisting of private papers wrongfully taken from

the person of the defendants, and each of them,

on or about November 2nd, 1941.

VI.

That the Court erred in the trial of said cause

in his comments and instruction to the jury during

the progress of said trial and at the close of all

of the evidence.

VII.

That the Court commented during said instruc-

tion making an argument favorable to the plaintiff

and unfavorable to this defendant,—did not review

the evidence fairly or impartially, to all of which

this defendant duly excepted. [104]
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VIII.

'J'hat the Court improperly intructed the jury

to the prejudiee of this defendant by improperly

refusing to give instructions requested by said de-

fendant, to i\]] of wliicli this defendant duly excepted

on each ground.

IX.

That the Court improj)er]y instnicted the jury

at the close of all the evidence to the prejudice of

this defendant, to which snid defendant duly ex-

cepted.

X.

That the Court erred in overruling this defen-

dant on his motion for a directed verdict after a

challenge to the sufficiency of the evidence at the

close of plaintiff's case.

XI.

That the Court erred in failing to direct the

jury to grant a verdict for this defendant upon this

defendant's motion at the close of all of the evi-

dence.

XII.

That the verdicts rendered and accepted by the

Court were not supported by any eviden(^e in the

case and are contrary to the evidence.

XIII.

That there was no material basic evidence in said

cause to warrant submitting the cause to the jury

and said cause was erroneously submitted to the

jury on surmise, suspicion, speculation, presiunp-

tion and inference on inference onlv.
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XIV.

That the Court erred in refusing to grant this

defendant's motion for a mistrial during the prog-

ress of the cause, to which this defendant duly

excepted. [105]

XV.
That the Court erred on the voir dire examina-

tion of the jury, in that the Court denied this de-

fendant's challenge for cause to two jurors.

XVI.

That the Court erred in denying the motion of

this defendant for new trial and in arrest of judg-

ment.

XVII.

That the Court erred in resentencing this de-

fendant after the original sentence was duly im-

posed.

[Endorsed) : Filed April 19, 1943. [106]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK TO RECORD ON"

x\PPEAL

I, Judson W. Shorett, Clerk of the United States

District Court for the Western of Washington,

do hereby certify that the foregoing typewritten

transcript of record, consisting of pages numbered

from 1 to 112, inclusive, is a full, true and com-

plete copy of so much of the record, paxjers and
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other proceedings in th(^ above and foregoing en-

titled cause, as is required by amended stipulation

re desiy/gnatioii of contents of record on appeal

filed and shown herein, as the same remain of

record and on file in the office of the Clerk of

said District Court at Seattle, and that the same

constitute the record on appeal herein from the

judgments of said United States District Court

for the Western District of Washington to the

ITnited States Circuit Court of A7)peals for the

Ninth Circuit.

I further certify that I transmit herewith as

part of the record on appeal in this cause the

original Bill of Exceptions and Assignments of

Error filed in the cause,

I further certify that the following is a true

and correct statement of all expenses, costs, fees

and charges incurred in my olBfice by or on behalf

of the appellants for making record, certifi-

cate or return to the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, to-wit:

Clerk's fee's (Act of Feb 11, 1925) for

making record, certificate or return,

105 folios at 15c 15.75

164 folios at 5c 8.20

Appeal fee 10.00

Certificate of Clerk to Transcript 50

Certificate of Clerk to Original Exhibits ... .50

Total $34.95
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I hereby certify that the above amount has been

paid to me by the attorneys for the appellants.

In Witness Whereof I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the official seal of said District

Court at Seattle, in said District, this 9 day of

September, 1943.

[Seal] JUDSON W. SHORETT,
Clerk of the United States

District Court for the West-

ern District of Washington

By TRUMAN ECGER,
Chief Deputy

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ASSIGNMENT OR ERRORS

The defendants, Charles T. Takahashi and Ed-

ward Y. Osawa, and each of them, hereby assign

the following errors on appeal:

I.

The Court erred in denjdng the petition of

Charles T. Takahashi for the return of private

papers forcibly taken from his person, in violation

of his rights under the Fourth and Fifth Amend-

ments to the Constitution of the United States.

II.

The Court erred in denying the petition of

Edward Y. Osawa for the return of private papers

forcibly taken from his person, in violation of
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his rights iiMdei- tho Foui-tli and F'iftli Amend-

ments to the Constitution of the United States.

III.

The Court erred in denying the motion of de-

fendants, Cliarles '1'. Takaliashi and p]dward Y.

Osawa, to quash the indictment herein.

IV.

The Court erred, during the trial of said cause,

in refusing to suppress and in admitting in evidence

private papers and letters forcibly taken from the

person of tl>e defendant, Charles T. Takaliaslii. on

or about November 2, 1941, in violation of his

rights under the Fourth and Fifth Amendments

to the Constitution of the United States.

V.

The Court erred, during the trial of said cause,

in refusing to suppress and in admitting in e\i-

dence private papers and letters forcibly taken from

the person of the defendant, Edward Y. Osawa, on

or about November 2, 1941, in violation of his

I'ights under the Fourth and Fifth Amendments

to the Constitution of the United States.

VI.

The Court erred in denying the motion made on

behalf of the defendants, and each of them, to

dismiss the indictment at the end of the Govern-

ment's ease, on the ground that the evidence was in-

sufficient, as a matter of law, to sustain any count

in the indictment.
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VII.

The Court erred in denjdng the motion made by

the defendants, and each of them, at the close of

all the evidence to dismiss the indictment and for

a direction of verdict of not guilty on each and

every count of the indictment.

VIII.

The Court erred in instructing the jury, because

the following portions of the charge exceeded the

bounds of fair comment and was highly prejudicial

in that it was a biased, luifair and one-sided anal-

7v^pis of ihe evidence and was argumentative

:

"In this case it is my recollection that Mr. Osawa

testified that while he was in Tokio, Japan, exhibit

9,—which he says he brought with him from Tokio,

Japan, to Seattle on November 2nd—was handed to

him by someone, from Mikuni-Shoko Company Lim-

ited of Tokio, Japan. He says that he received

that letter, as I remember it. That letter recites

from the beginning, quote,—it is addressed to

"Messrs. China Import and Export Company. As

a consequence of our long business discussion with

your representative, Mr. W. L. Chang, we

wish ". Now, in the light of all of the evi-

dence of this case, if you believe that Mr. Osawa

honestly believed that Mr. W. L. Chang was the

business representative of the China Import and

Export Company; in the light of all of the evi-

dence that you have heard, do you believe that

Mr. Osawa believed the statement in the last of

that letter that the tanks were imported for local

storage purposes in Shanghai?
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In coiJiH'cti'.ii willi tliat letter and in <'(^iiiie''-

tion with all of the evidence in the case, if Mr.

Osawa believed that the letter of July 4, 1941,

signed by Hua Hsin Company was an honest order

for the shipment of these tanks to Shanghai, do you

reasonably think that he would have written on

July 15 to Mr. Takahashi to this effect: '*We sure

are on a spot on the three tanks. I doubt if a day

goes by that they don't call us or say something

about them. If we could only get those three

tanks out it would be a life saver and they would

do almost anything for us."

And you are entitled in the light of your exper-

ience and your common sense to determine if Mr.

Osawa honestly believed that the Hua Hsin Com-

pany was purchasing these tanks, if he wouldn't

have made a statement in this communication to

Mr. Takahashi to the effect that lie was not williiig

to approve the credit account of $71,700 claimed

in the Hua Hsin Company.

And you have a right in the light of all of the

testimony to determine whether or not Mr. Osawa

thought any portion of that letter of Julv 14, 1941,

was an honest letter.

As I remember the testimony, Mr. Osawa testi-

fied that while this plaintiff's exhibit 9 was brought

to him by someone from the Mieoni Shoko Company,

that he never saw either of the letters—I would like

to find exhibit 17—dated July 16, 1941, addressed

by Mieoni Shoko Company Limited of Tokio, Japan,

also to Seattle, Washington, but to the name Taka-

hashi, instead of Chinese Import Company.
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In the light of all of the evidence that you have

heard in this case and of the exhibits, do you

believe that if the Mikuni-Shoko Company would

take to Mr. Osawa this exhibit 9, instead of mailing"

it to the China Import Company at Seattle, that

they wouldn't also take to Mr. Osawa exhibits

17 and 18? If you read exhibits 17 and 18, as I

know 3^ou will, it will be for you to determine

whether or not those two letters do not show that

it was the plan of the Mikuni-Shoko Company
Limited or of Mr. Ikuta, its director, to merely

use the Hua Hsin Company as a pretense.

It will be for you to determine if the Mikuni-

Shoko Company wished Mr. Osawa to have the one

letter, why they wouldn't want him to have the

other two letters.

It is also for you to consider in the evidence

—

I would like to see the telegraph exhibits 10 to

13, inclusive—it is also for you to consider, in the

light of all of the evidence, whether a business

man of the experience of Mr. Takahashi, receiving

these telegrams, under date of June 27 in code

duo and private, under date of Jime 28th in code

duo, and under date of July 5th under code duo,

code inverted and under date of July 8. 1941, under

code duo, without realizing what the purpose of

Mikuni-Shoko Company was, as you tmd from the

evidence in the light of exhibits 17 and 18.

Do you think it is reasonable that if a man with

the experience of Mr. Takahashi, under date of

June 27th, received a telegram from a company

in Tokio, which included this language, ''Do utmost
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to ari'tUigc earliest possible slii}>in(i!l hy every ])f»s-

sible means oil tanks and tubes. Our customers

desire additional oil tanks. Telegraj)!) prosi)ect."

And if on or about the next date, by a telegram

from the same Tokio ComX)any, dated June 28,

1941, he was advised as follows: "Decided today

name of firm is Hua Hsin Company, address 320

Szechnen Road, Shanghai, China," whether or not he

would think that that was an honest sale to the Una

Hsin Company in Shanghai, China, or whether

those telegrams would give any possible inference

except that Mr. Takahashi was advised that the

Mikuni-Shoko Company was telling him that they

had decided to use the name of Hua Hsin Com-

pany*?

In the light of your experience, do you think

that if this was an honest sale that the Mikuni-

Shoko Company would not have used the words,

"Tanks have been sold to the Hua Hsin Company"

instead of telegraphing Mr. Takahashi, "Decided

today name of firm is Hua Hsin Company" and

the other language set forth in this telegram?

My recollection of the evidence in this case is that

Mr. Takahashi admitted that he had these four

telegrams before he handed Mr. Leo Nye Sing the

application of July 16, 1941. From the light of your

experience and from the light of what Mr. Leo

Nye Sing did in connection with this transaction

with Hua Hsin Compam^, do you think that if Mr.

Takahashi had deemed that that transaction was

honest, that he would have agreed to pay three per-

cent of any percent for someone to sign his name?
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It is for you to determine in the light of your

experience whether, if Mr. Takahashi was endeav-

oring to sell these three tanks other than in the

Orient at time when he understood he would be

unable to ship them to the Orient, if that were any

different than anyone would do ; whether they were

honest or dishonest, if they were not able to have

tanks shipped to the Orient, when they had been

ordered from that location.

Under the evidence, as I remember it, the Mexico

transaction, as far as the contract is concerned, in-

volved used plates, used steel plates.

Under the evidence, as I remember it, the Mexico

company executed an affidavit before a Mexican

notary public and someone as a vice consul signed

a certificate to the effect that such Mexican notary

public was a notar}^ public. It is for you to deter-

mine in the light of all of the evidence whether

actually that affidavit was true.

That evidence has been introduced hy the de-

fendants upon the ground that it shows such good

faith on the part of the defendants that they

wouldn't be willing to ^dolate any other law in the

light of their action in that connection. You have a

right in connection with the Mexican transaction to

read and consider what Mr. Takahashi wrote as to

the Mexican situation.

It is also for you to determine whether or not

the Mexican transaction shows such good faith that

anyone acting as Mr. Takahashi did would not vio-

late any other law or whether it shows, or whether

you may reasonably infer that it shows that when
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the blacklisted iirin was unable to I'eceive any more

steel plates, for whatever purpose it wished to re-

ceive them, that Mr. Takahashi cancelled the con-

tract after it had been suspended by the Mexico

Company.

In testing the evidence of the case, you have a

right and should consider all of the statements

and all of th(i exhibits 19, and 21 and 29, relative

to these tanks. You have a right to determine

whether the defendant Takahashi or the defendant

Osawa was honest in stating the specific purpose of

the article and the address of the ultimate con-

sumer in a foreign country.

In the light of all of the evidence, do you believe

that in exhibit 21, the application of July 16, 1941,

that Mr. Takahashi believed that the specific pur-

j)ose and the address of the ultimate consumer for

storage purposes was Hua Hsin Company, Sliang-

hai, China '?

With respect to exhibit 19, the application of

April 16, 1941, it is for you to determine whether

or not it was honestly believed by Mr. Takahashi

the purpose of the articles and the name of the

ultimate consumer for storage purposes by Miconi

Shoko Company. In that connection you may con-

sider that in exhibit 20 signed by Mr. Leo Nye Sing

it was stated that the consignee was [Illegible] Com-

pany, Mukden, China. And that the purpose was to

be used on horse-drawn cooley wagons and carts,

$25,000, 50,000 pieces of automobile loUer bearings.

The Kono and Companv as the '^ ultimate con-
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sumer to ])e sold to the trade as above explained".

Tn tlie light of that statement that those articles

were to be sold to the trade as above explained, it

is for you to determine whether or not the defend-

ant Takahashi was frank and open with the Gov-

ernment in not stating, instead of the purpose of

the ultimate consumer being storage purposes by

Miconi Shiko Company—for sale by Miconi Shoko

Company to the Japanese Army or Navy."

At the trial of the defendants, and each of them,

objected to tJie foregoing instructions on the follow-

ing gi'ounds and took the following exceptions:

Mr. Griffin (Counsel for defendant Osawa) ex-

cepted on the following grounds:

The Court then advised the jury, in effect, that

he was permitted to comment upon the evidence,

and the Court did comment upon the evidence, but

the comment of the Court, to which the defendant

Osawa excepts, was not unbiased, was not fair, was

not met by the Court with any favorable comment

of any kind in behalf of the defendant Osawa, but

the comment was unfair, biased, prejudicial, with-

out any endeavor at all to equalize the force of the

comment, but made directl}^ and with emphasis for

the purpose of advising the jury that the Court,

irrespective of what the Court said in the general

instruction, that they should take nothing from it,

to advise the jury that the Court desired a verdict

of guilty in this case. Considering the comment

m.ade by the Court upon the evidence, an exception

is taken to each and every comment made by the

Court in that particular. I desire to point out that
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liaviiig so commented, tlie (Icfcndants were entitled

to have an equal fair eomment in so far as their

rights were concerned, to suggest to the; Court

this: While tlie Court by its comment has sought

a conviction, because the defendants are charged

with desiring to transliip tliree tanks, from Shang-

hai, China, to Japan, the jury were entitled U* be

told that they also should consider this—tliere is

no evidence in the case that Jai)an required these

three tanks in Japan. The evidence is that at the

time in question Japan controlled not only the port

of Shanghai but all the ports of China. The evi-

dence is with that situation existing, the United

States goverimient denied the application, that the

jury has an absolute right to infer, even if the

shipments were direct to tlie Japanese Army, that

those storage tanks might be and would be as use-

ful in Shanghai, China, where its armies were em-

ployed, as it would be to ship them to Japan and

transport oil from Japan, 1500 miles to Shanghai.

The Court : It is understood and the Coui*t rules

that each exception taken by Mr. Griffin on behalf

of Mr. Osawa shall be deemed t-aken by Mr. Bas-

sett in behalf of Mr. Takahashi.

Mr. Bassett (Counsel for defendant Takahashi)

:

Thank you. In addition to what counsel has said in

taking an exception to the Court's commenting on

the evidence, I wish to add that the comments were

not only biased and prejudicial and unfair, and

one-sided, but they were argumentative as well.

The Court: I imagine that you W(nild like all

of the exceptions which Mr. Bassett has taken?
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Mr. Griffin: Yes. I was just going to suggest

that would round it out, then.

The Court: You may.

IX.

The Court erred in instructing the jury as fol-

lows, concerning evidence of defendants' good char-

acter and reputation:

^^ There has been evidence introduced in this

case as to the good reputation,—that is, what

people say as to the honesty or integrity of the

defendants,—and you shall give such testimony

that weight as you believe it entitled to re-

ceive in determining whether or not the de-

fendants are guilty as charged. But the jury

will recognize that many men have born good

reputations, sometimes over many years, and

have later been convicted of an offense which

has existed for the same many years during

which everyone thought they had a good repu-

tation. And in this case, if you are convinced

beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendants,

or either of them, by the evidence, are guilty

of the three counts or any of them, it is your

duty and obligation to find said defendants or

such one guilty, regardless of how good their

reputation may have been".

At the trial the defendants, and each of them,

objected to the foregoing instruction on the follow-

ing grounds and took the following exceptions:

Mr. Griffin (Counsel for defendant Osawa) : The

Court said further and, by his instructions, wiped
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out all ()( the law of good reputation and lionor, so

far as the defendants are concerned, by liis in-

struction that the jury could consider tlie re])uta-

tion for what it is worth, but—as the jury knows,

said the Court—people with good reputations are

guilty and in this case so and so and so and so.

The Court: It is understood and the Court rules

that each exception taken by Mr. Griffin on behalf

of Mr. Osawa shall be deemed taken by Mr, Bassett

in behalf of Mr. Takahashi.

Mr. Bassett: Thank you.

The Court: T am going to give some additional

instructions, in the light of the exceptions you

have taken, and if you wish, it may be understood

you will have the right of exception to each one

without the necessity of expressly taking them.

Whereupon the Court further instructed the jury

concerning evidence of defendants' good character

and reputation as follows:

'•Members of the jury, supplementing the

instructions on the law, that you must accept

as the law, I wish to say this to you: Tn addi-

tion to what r have said with respect to the

testimony in the case regarding the reputation

of the defendants or either of them, the jury

are instructed that if, in the light of all of the

testimony and in the light of the reputation

testimony, they believe the defendants or either

of them are not guilty, they have a right to

base that verdict upon their interpretation of

the testimony, together with reputatii^u testi-
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monj, if in tlie jury's opinion such satisfies

them that the defendants are not guilty."

The Court: Do you wish to note any exeep

tions—though I have in mind what has been said

—do you wish to except to each and everything

that I have said to the jury at this time?

Mr. Griffin: I so understood.

Mr. Bassett: Yes.

Mr. Crandell: Yes.

X.

The Court erred in overruling the motion of the

defendants, Charles T. Takahashi and Edward Y.

Osawa, for a new trial and in arrest of judgment

based upon the foregoing assignments of error.

XI.

The Court erred in entering judgment of convic-

tion against the defendant, Charles T. Takahashi,

and in sentencing him.

XII.

The Court erred in entering judgment of con-

viction against the defendant, Edward Y. Osawa,

and in sentencing him.

By reason of the foregoing manifest errors the

defendants, and each of them, pray that the judg-
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merits of conviction he set aside and that they be

discharged from custody.

TRACY E. GRIFF JN
SAMUEL B. BASSETT

Attorneys for Defendants,

Charles T. Takahashi and

Edward Y. Osawa.

Received a copy of the within Assignment of

Errors this 13 day of Aug. 1943.

J. CHARLES DENNIS
Attorney for U. S.

[Endorsed]: Filed Aug. 13, 1943.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

BILL OF EXCEPTIONS

Be It Remembered that after return of the indict-

ment herein, and a long time before trial, the de-

fendant Charles T. Takahashi, on the 27th day of

April, 1942, served and filed in the above entitled

cause his duly verified petition for the return of

certain private papers, books, money and other prop-

erty forcibly taken by Federal agents from his per-

son and from his office in violation of his rights un-

der the Fourth and Fifth Amendments to the Con-

stitution of the L^nited States. Copy of said peti-

tion follows:
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

Comes now the defendant, Charles T. Takahashi,

and respectfully represents to the Court:

I.

That at all of the times herein allged he was and

now is a citizen of the United States and a citizen

and resident of the State of Washington and the

City of Seattle.

II.

That on or about the 2nd day of November, 1941,

certain ofl&cers of the United States Government,

whose true names are to the petitioner unknown,

without cause or reason therefor, in Seattle, Wash-

ington, restrained your petitioner, [1*] forcibly

took from the person of your petitioner certain pa-

pers, including letters, telegrams, certificates, memo-

randa and money, without having a search warrant

or ^vithout any authority in law, in violation of the

Fourth and Fifth Amendments to the Constitution

of the United States.

III.

That upon demand for return of said papers, in-

cluding letters, telegrams, certificates, memoranda

and certain money, said officers returned to peti-

tioner a certain certificate and the money so unlaw-

fully seized, but refused and still refuse to return

to petitioner said letters, telegrams, papers and

memoranda. That the said letters, telegrams, pa-

pers and memoranda consist of the following, to-wit:

*Page numbering appearing at foot of page of original Bill of
Exceptions.
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1. Tolo^ram in code transmittod by M. Ikuta of

Mikiini-Shoko Co., Ltd., on or about June 27, 1941

at ^rokyo in Japan, addressed to C. T. Takahashi &
Co., Seattle, VVasliin^ton, beinj^ the jjroperty of

C. T. Takahashi.

2. A letter dated July 5, 1941, addressed to Ed-

ward Y. Osawa at Tokyo, Japan, and addressed to

your petitioner.

o. I setter from Mikuni-Shoko Co., Ltd., in. con-

firmation of telegram, addressed to N E W Y R.

4. Letter written by Edward Y. Osawa, dated

July 15, 1941, at Tokyo, Japan, sent to Charles T.

Takahashi, petitioner.

5. Letter dated July 16, 1941, written by M.

Ikuta, Tokyo, Japan, written to C. T. Takahashi &
Co.

(). Letter dated July 12, 1941, written by Edward

Y. Osawa, Tokyo, Japan, and addressed to peti-

tioner, C. T. Takahashi.

IV.

That there is now overdue an income tax report

to the [2] Federal Government for petitioner's in-

come for 1941, but that the plaintiff above named,

by its officers, have possession of all of the records

and books of petitioner, and have in their possession

all of his funds and money, and petitioner has no

record or means of compiling his income report,

which under the laws of the United States will con-

stitute a penalty.
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V.

That all of said jjapers are the personal property

of your petitioner. That in violation of the Fourth

and Fifth Amendments to the Constitution of the

United States, and in violation of petitioner's rights,

the said papers, letters and telegrams so unlawfully

possessed by the said representatives if the Govern-

ment, were delivered to the United States Attorney

for the above entitled district, and by said United

States Attorney wrongfully and unlawfully pre-

sented to the Grand Jury and used.

VI.

That to wit, on or about the 3rd day of November,

1941, and thereafter up to and including December

7, 1942, certain officers of the United States Govern-

ment, whose names are unknown to petitioner, but

are known to the above named plaintiff, wrongfully

and unlawfully, and without search warrant, and

v/itl:Out authority therefor, took possession of and

searched petitioner's office at 212 5th Avenue South,

Seattle, Washington, and wrongfully and unlaw-

fully, and in violation of the Constitution of the

United States and especially of the Fourth and

Fifth Amendments thereof, took possession of the

papers, documents, books, records, and all of the

property belonging to petitioner in said office. [3]

VII.

That on said 3rd day of November, 1941, without

authority therefor, said officers of the United States

Government, whose names are unknown to the peti-
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tionor, hut known to the, plaiiitJiT in tlic above en-

titled action, took possession of the plaintiff's prop-

erty, consisting- of apartment hous(;s, places of busi-

ness, and together with certain cash on deposit in the

National Bank of Commerce, the property of peti-

tioner, and continue to hold said pi'opei-ty in viola-

tion of petitioner's rights, and that said officers and.

the Deputy United States District Attoi-ney pur-

poses to use said letters, books, records, telegrams,

papers and documents at the trial of the above en-

titled cause, and by reason thereof and the facts set

forth above, petitioner's rights guaranteed under

the said Fourth and Fifth Amendments to the Con-

stitution of the United States have been and will be

violated unless the court order the return of said

property.

Wherefore, petitionei' prays that said District At-

torney, and said Government officials be required to

forthwith return all of said property, including said

letters, telegrams, papers, documents, books, I'ecords

and money to the said defendant, and youi* peti-

tioner will ever pray.

C. T. TAKAHASHI
Petitioner

SAMUEL B. BASSETT
GEO. H. CRAXDELL

Attorneys for Petitioner

(Verification)

On the same day, April 27, 1942, the defendant

Edward Y. Osawa served and filed a similar petition
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for the return of a certain briefcase and certain

private papers forcibly taken by Federal agents

from his person, in violation of his rights under the

Fourth and Fifth Amendments to the Constitution

of the [4] United States. A copy of said petition

follows

:

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

Comes now the defendant, Edward Y. Osawa, and

respectfully represents to the court

:

I.

That at all of the times herein alleged he was and

now is a citizen of the United States and a citizen

and resident of the State of Washington and the

City of Seattle.

II.

That on or about the 2nd day of November, 1941,

certain officers of the United States Government,

whose true names are to petitioner unknown, with-

out cause or reason therefor, in Seattle, Washington,

restrained your petitioner, forcibly took from the

person of your petitioner one brief case and papers,

without having a search warrant, or without any

authority in law, in violation of the Fourth and

Fifth Amendments to the Constitution of the United

States.

III.

That upon demand for the return of said papers

and brief case said officers refused and still refuse

to return to petitioner said papers and brief case.
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IV.

'I^bat all of said papers and said brief case an; the

personal property of yonr petitioner. That in viola-

tion of the Fourth and Fiftli Amendments to the

Constitution of the United States, and in violation

of jDetitioner's rights, said papers and brief case so

unlawfully possessed by the said representatives of

the Government, were delivered to the tJnited States

Attorney for the above entitled district, and by said

United States Attorney wrone^fully and unlawfully

presented to the Grand Jury and used. [5]

Wherefore, petitioner prays that said District At-

torney, and said Government officials be required to

forthwith return said papers and brief case to peti-

tioner, and your petitioner will ever pray.

EDWARD Y. OSAWA
Petitioner

SAMUEL B. BASSETT
GEO. H. CRANDELL

Attorneys for Petitioner.

(Verification)

And on the same day, Ai)ril 27, 1942, both of said

defendants joined in a motion to quash the indict-

ment herein upon the ground and foi* the reason

that the private papers and property so taken had

been submitted by the United States District Attor-

ney to the Grand Jury and had become the basis for

the indictment. A copy of said motion follows:



56 Charles T. Takaliashi, et al

[Title of District Couii: and Cause.]

Come now the above named defendants, Charles

T. Takahashi and Edward Y. Osawa, and move the

court on the files and records herein, and on the affi-

davit of Geo. H. Crandell hereto attached, and the

petitions of the defendants, for an order quashina:

the indictment herein, and both counts thereof, upon

the ground and for the reason that the United States

District Attorney and his assistants, submitted to

the Grand Jury which returned said indictment a

large number of records, memoranda, letters, tele-

grams unlawfully seized from the person of Charles

T. Takahashi and Edward Y. Osawa, and from the

office of Charles T. Takahashi, and that the evidence

so obtained and submitted to the Grand Jury, as

aforesaid, became the basis for the indictment

herein, and both counts thereof, without which the

United States District Attorney cannot successfully

prosecute the same. That all of said matters have

been done in [6] violation of the defendants' rights

under the Fourth and Fifth Amendments to the

Constitution of the United States ; and that the Gov-

ermnent ought not to be subjected to further dis-

credit and expense, nor the defendants subjected to

further expense, vexation and contumely by the

prosecution of a bill of indictm.ent so founded.

SAMUEL B. BASSETT
GEO. H. CRANDELL

Attorneys for Defendant

This motion to quash was supported by affidavit

as follows:
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[Title of l^istrict Court and Cause.]

United StaUvs ol' America

Western District of Washington

Northern Division—ss.

Geo. H. Crandell, being first duly sworn on oath

deposes and says: That he is one of the attorneys

for the defendants, Charles T. Takahashi and Ed-

wai'd Y. Osawa, and makes this affidavit in support

of a motion to quash the indictment herein. AfHant

says that on to wit, the 2nd day of November, lf)41,

in the City of Seattle, that certain officers of the

Treasury Depai'tment of the United States known

to the plaintiff and unknown to said defendants,

wrongfully and unlawfully arrested and restrained

the defendants, Charles T. Takahashi and Edward

Y. Osawa, and each of them, and while so restrained

and under arrest, wrongfull}^ and unlawfully took

from said defendants certain papers and documents,

which said papers and documents were used by the

United States Attorney before the Grand Jury, and

by the use of which the indictment herein was re-

turned. That thereafter, without authority, on to

wit, the 3rd day of November, 1941, the said officers

of the Treasur}^ Department of the United States,

wdiose true names are known to the plaintiff but

unknown to the defendant, unlawfully [7] and with-

out authority, took possession of the offices of the

defendant, Charles T. Takahashi, searched the same

and unlawfully procured papers, documents and

records in violation of the Fourth and Fifth Amend-

ments to the Constitution of the United States and
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the rights of the defendants herein. That said docu-

ments and papers were used by the United States

Attorney and his assistants to i:>rocure the indict-

ment herein.

GEO. H. CRANDELL
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 27th day

of April, 1942.

KENNETH DURHAM
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Seattle

In resistance to these petitions for return of pri-

vate papers and motion to quash the plaintiff, on

the 2nd day of May, 1942, served and filed six affi-

davits (stapled together and filed as one document),

the same being the affidavits of A. S. Atherton, A. D.

Richards, J. W. Stanton, A. J. Frankel, A. H.

Koons and Roy L. Ballinger. The affidavit of A. S.

Atherton reads as follows:

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

United States of America

Western District of Wash.

Northern Division—ss.

A. S. Atherton, being first duly sworn, on oath

deposes and says

:

That he is a United States Customs Agent sta-

tioned at Seattle, Washington, and was such officer

at all times during the year 1941 and at all times

since

;

That on or about October 15, 1941, he received an

instruction from the Bureau of Customs to investi-
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t?ate C. T. [<S] Takaliashi as a suspected violator of

tlie FoTeiftii Funds Control Act;

That together with Customs Agent A. 1). Jtichards

he commenced this investigation in the latter pai-t

of the month of October, 1941

;

That on November 2, 1941, he was at the Great

Noi'thern Dock in Seattle, Western District of

Washington, Northern Division, and at that time

the Japanese M/S Hikawa Maru was there, having

arrived at that place from Japan tliat date;

That he saw Edward Y. Osawa, who had just

arrived from Jajaan on that vessel, in the Customs

baggage enclosure on that dock;

That he did not know- Osawa but the latter was

pointed out to him by another officer who described

him as C. T. Takahashi's manager;

That he then saw another man talking to Osawa

in the Customs baggage enclosure who was pointed

out to him by another officer as C. T. Takahashi

;

That he knew by reference to the passenger list of

the above-named vessel, that C. T. Takahashi was

not a passenger arriving thereon, and, by his knowl-

edge of the rule that onl}^ arriving passengers were

allowed in the Customs enclosure, that C. T. Taka-

hashi had no right to be therein;

That he saw Edward Y. Osawa holding a paper

in his hand, but could not see, owing to the piles of

baggage and the crowed of people moving about,

whether C. T. Takahashi gave the paper to Edward
Y. Osawa;
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That Customs Agent A. D. Richards showed hini

a letter with the statement that he had, that date,

received the [9] letter from the hands of Chief Cus-

toms Inspector A. H. Koons, and this letter, a photo-

stat of which, marked "Exhibit A", is attached to

this affidavit and made a part thereof, was in an

envelope addressed, "Miss Chisato Koitabashi, c/o

Mr. Ed Osawa", and noted from a reading of the

letter, which was dated October 19, 1941, that the

w^riter thereof was sending merchandise to the ad-

dressee through Ed Osawa and appeared to express

a fear of detection although chancing the outcome

of the effort to send merchandise into the United

States past the Customs, and describing the mer-

chandise and stating its value

;

That this circumstance, together with that of a

close contact of Edward Y. Osawa by C. T. Taka-

hashi, and the fact that the said Takahashi had been

ascertained not to have been a passenger arriving

on that ship, led to the belief that a plan was afoot

in his presence to violate the laws of the United

States and that C. T. Takahashi was as liable to

suspicion in connection therewith as was Edw^ard Y.

Osawa who was specially named;

That upon ascertaining that Edward Y. Osawa

desired that this baggage be removed to the United

States Appraiser's Store for examination at a later

date, he observed Osawa and C. T. Takahashi to-

gether start to leave the Customs baggage enclosure,

at which time, with Customs Agent A. D. Richards,

he introduced himself to Osawa and Takahashi as a

United States Customs Agent, exhibited to them thf?
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ba(l<^e of sucli agent, and diiected them to enter the

adjoining waiting room for seareli

;

That with Customs Agent Richards lie searched

Edward Y. Osawa in the wash room adjoining the

waiting room, and took from him a brief case con-

taining various papers, in- [10] eluding one letter on

the letterhead of the Hua Hsin Company, dated at

Shanghai, July 4, 1941, addressed to the China Im-

port and Export Company, 212 Fifth Avenue South,

Seattle, Washington and signed for the Hua Hsin

Company by M. H. Kiang, manager;

That said letter contained a reference to the sum

of $71,700.00, described therein as a deduction to be

made by the China Import and Export Company

from the Hua Hsin Company's credit account, and

knowing that the China Import and Export Com-

pany was but another name for C. T. Takahashi,

whom he had under investigation as a suspected

violator of the Foreign Funds Control Act, he took

and held that letter from Takahashi 's employee,

Edward Y. Osawa, as an instriunentality of the

crime of violating the Foreign Funds Control Act,

and held the other papers as having a bearing on and

contributing to the transaction described in the

above-mentioned Hua Hsin letter.

That he then, together with Customs Agent A. I).

Richards, searched the person of C. T. Takahashi in

the washroom adjoining the waiting room on the

Great Northern Dock, and removed from his person

:

1. Telegram in code transmitted by Mikuni-

Shoko Company, Ltd., on or about Juno 27, 1941, at
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Tokyo, Japan, addressed to C. T. Takahashi and

Company, Seattle, Washington.

2. Letter dated July 5, 1941, addressed by Ed-

ward Y. Osawa, at Tokyo, Japan, to C. T. Taka-

hashi.

3. Letter from Mikuni-Shoko Company, Ltd., in

confirmation of telegram addressed to NEWYR.
4. Letter written by Edward Y. Osawa, dated

July 15, 1931, at Tokyo, Japan, and sent to Charles

T. Takahashi. [11]

5. A letter dated July 16, 1941, written by M.

Ikuta, Tokyo, Japan, to C. T. Takahashi and Com-

pany.

6. Letter dated July 12, 1941, written by Edw^ard

Y. Osawa, Tokyo, Japan, and addressed to C. T.

Takahashi. together with other papers, all of which

related to the matter of steel storage tanks to be

shipped to the Hua Hsin Company, and the pay-

ment for which was the $71,700.00 under investiga-

tion as foreign funds of China or Japan and Na-

tionals thereof;

In addition he took from C. T. Takahashi U. S.

Customs pass or permit No. 1075 which permitted

C. T. Takahashi to board vessels, after Customs

boarding, but specifically denied him entrance to the

Customs enclosure;

That on November 3, 1941, at 212 Fifth Avenue

So., Seattle AYashington, w^hich is the place of busi-

ness of C. T. Takahashi, and of the China Import

and Export Company, he received from C. T. Taka-

hashi several rejected applications for licenses to
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€X])Uft articles and rriateiials (Icsignalcd by the

President as necessary to the national defense pur-

suant to Section 6 of the Act of Congiess ap[)roved

July 2, 1940;

That these rejected applications were freely of-

fered by C. T. Takahashi with the consent of his

attorney at law who was then and there present and

not by reason of any search, seizure or unlawful

action

;

That neither on November 3, 1941, December 7,

1941, nor at any other time did he take possession

of the property of C. T. Takahashi consisting of

apartment houses, places of business, cash bank de-

posits or anything else.

A. S. ATHERTON

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 1 day of

May, 1942, [12] at Seattle, Washington

E. M. ROSSER
Deputy Clerk, United States

District Court, Western Dis-

trict of Washington

Attached to said affidavit and made a part thereof

was a photostat copy of a letter, marked "Exhibit

A", and shown following: [13]
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Th(! affidavit oi' A. S. Kicliavds reads as follows:

[Title of Distriet Coui*t and Cause.]

United States of America

Western District of Wash.

Northern Division—ss.

A. D. Ricliards, being first duly sworn, on oath

deposes and says:

That he is a (Jhief Warrant Officer in the United

States Coast Guard stationed at Poi-tland, Oregon.

Further that from October 1, 1941, to April 14,

1942, that he was a United States Customs Agent

stationed at Seattle, Washington;

That on or about October 15, 1941, he received an

instruction from the Bureau of Customs to investi-

gate C. T. Takahashi as a suspected violator of the

Foreign Funds Control Act;

That together with Customs Agent A. S. Atherton

he commenced this investigation in the latter pai-t

of the month of October, 1941

;

That on November 2, 1941, he w^as at the Great

Northern Dock in Seattle, Western District of

Washington, Northern Division, and at that time

the Japanese M/S Hikawa Maru was there, liaving

arrived at that place from Japan that date

:

That he saw^ Edward Y. Osawa, wdio had just ar-

rived from Japan on that vessel, in the Customs

baggage enclosure on that dock;

That he did not know Osawa but the latter was

pointed out to him by another who described him as

C. T. Takahashi 's manager:
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That he then saw another man talking to Osawa

in the Customs baggage enclosure who Avas pointed

out to him by [15] another officer as C T. Taka-

hashi

;

That he knew, by reference to the passenger list

of the above-named vessel, that C. T. Takahashi was

not a passenger arriving thereon, and, by his knowl-

edge of the rule that only arriving passengers were

allowed in the Customs enclosure, that C. T. Taka-

hashi had no right to be therein;

That he saw Edward Y. Osawa and C. T. Taka-

hashi exchanging papers during their conversation

at a point on the pier where Edward Y. Osawa 's

baggage was placed;

That he was too far away at that time to be able

to identify just what papers had been exchanged be-

tween Osawa and Takahashi;

That Chief Customs Inspector A. H. Koons had

given him a letter with a statement that he had this

date received this letter from a Customs Inspector,

and this letter, a photostat of which, marked '^Ex-

hibit A", is attached to this affidavit and made a

part thereof, was in an envelope addressed, "Miss

Chisato Koitabashi, c/o Mr. Ed Osawa", and noted

from a reading of the letter, which was dated Octo-

ber 19, 1941, that the writer thereof was sending

merchandise to the addressee through Ed Osawa

and appeared to express a fear of detection although

chancing the outcome of the effort to send merchan-

dise into the United States past the Customs, and

describing the merchandise and stating its value

;
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That this circiinistaiu'c, t().i;eth(n- with that of the

close contact of Edward Y. Osawa by C T. Taka-

hashi, and i\w fa('t that the said Takahaslii had been

asccrtaini'd not to have been a passenger arriving

on that ship, led to the belief that a plan was afoot

in his presence to violate the laws [Ifi] of the United

States and that C. T. Takahashi was as liable to sus-

picion in connection therewith as was Edward Y.

Osawa who was specially named;

That upon ascertaining that Edward Y. Osawa

desired that his baggage be removed to the United

States Appraiser's Store for examination at a later

date, he observed Osawa and C. T. Takahashi to-

gether start to leave the Customs baggage enclosure,

at wdiicli time, with Customs Agent A. S. Athertoii,

he introduced himself to Osawa and Takahashi as a

United States Customs Agent, exhibited to them the

badge of such agent, and directed them to enter the

adjoining waiting room for search

;

That with Customs Agent Atherton he searc</ed

Edw^ard Y. Osawa in the wash I'oom adjoining the

waiting room, and took from him a brief case con-

taining various papers, including one letter on the

letter-head of the Hua Hsin Compan}', dated at

Shanghai, July 4, 1941, addressed to the China Im-

port and Export Company, 212 Fifth Avenue South.

Seattle, Washington, and signed for the Hua Hsin

Company by M. H. Kiang, manager

;

That said letter contained a reference to the sum

of $71,700.00, described therein as a deduction to be

made by the China Import and Export Company
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from the Hua Hsin Company's credit accomit, and

knowing that the China Import and Export Com-

|)any was but another name for C. T. Takahashi,

whom he had under investigation as a suspected

violator of the Foreign Funds Control Act, he took

and held that letter from Takahashi 's employee,

Edward Y. Osawa, as an instrumentality of the

crime of violating the Foreign Funds Control Act,

and held the other papers as having a bearing on

and contributing to the transaction described [17]

in the above-mentioned Hua Hsin letter.

That he then, together with Customs Agent A. S.

Atherton, searched the person of C. T. Takahashi

in the wash room adjoining the waiting room on the

Great Northern Dock, and removed from his person

:

1. Telegram in code transmitted by Mikuni-

Shoko Company, Ltd., on or about June 27, 1941, at

Tokyo, Japan, addressed to C. T. Takahashi and

Company, Seattle, Washington.

2. Letter dated July 5, 1941, addressed by Ed-

ward Y. Osawa, at Tokyo, Japan, to C. T. Taka-

hashi.

3. Letter from Mikuni-Shoko Company, Ltd., in

confirmation of telegram addressed to NEWYE.
4. Letter written by Edward Y. Osawa, dated

July 15, 1941, at Tokyo, Japan, and sent to Charles

T. Takahashi.

5. A letter dated July 16, 1941, written by M.

Ikuta, Tokyo, Japan, to C. T. Takahashi and Com-
pany.

6. Letter dated July 12, 1941, written by Edward
Y. Osawa, Tokyo, Japan, and addressed to C. T.
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Takaliashi, together with otiier papers, all of" wliieli

related to the matter of steel storage tanks to hf

shipped to th(^ Ilua Hsin Company, and the ])a\TT)ent

for which was the $71,7()().(){) under investigation as

foreign funds of China oi' Jaj)an and Naticmals

thei'eof

;

In addition he took from C. T. Takahashi U. S.

Customs pass or permit No. 1075 which permitted

C. T. Takahashi to board vessels, after Customs

boarding, but specifically denied him entrance to the

Customs enclosure;

That on November 3, 1941, at 212 Fifth Avenue

So., Seattle, Washington, which is the place of busi-

ness of C. T. Takahashi, and of the China Import

and Export Company, [18] he received from C. T.

Takahashi several rejected applications for licenses

to export articles and materials designated by the

President as necessary to the national defense pur-

suant to Section o of the Act of Congress appi'oved

July 2, 1940;

That these rejected applications were freely of-

fered by C. T. Takahashi with the consent of his

attorney at law who was then and thei'e present and

not by reason of any search, seizure or unlawful

action

;

That neither on November 3, 1941, December 7,

1941, nor at any other time did he take possession

of the property of C. T. Takahashi consisting of

apartment houses, places of business, cash l)ank

deposits or anything else.

A. D. RICHARDS
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 2nd day

of May, 1942, at Seattle, Washington.

E. R. ROSSER
Deputy Clerk, United States

District Court, Western Dis-

trict of Washington.

Attached to said affidavit of A. D. Richards was a

similar photostat copy of the same letter attached

to the affidavit of A. S. Atherton, but to avoid repeti-

tion is omitted here.

The affidavit of J. W. Stanton reads as follows

:

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

United States of America

Western District of Texas

El Paso Division—ss.

J. W. Stanton, being first duly sworn, on oath

deposes and says: That he is an Inspector in the

Bureau of Entomology and Plant Quarantine and

was such officer on November 2, 1941, on which date

he was stationed at Seattle, Western District of

Washington, Northern Division

;

That on November 2, 1941, pursuant to his official

[19] duties as such Inspector, he went on board the

Ja];)anese M/S Hikawa Maru at the Great North-

ern Dock, Seattle, Washington, which vessel had

arrived there that date from Japan;

That his duties on board that vessel consisted of

inspecting the ship for plants and fruits from

Japan, and insect life that might be present therein

or, thereon

;
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That to fully jX'iTorni this duty it was necessary

to seai-ch staterooms and receptacles, including

wastebaskets, therein

;

That in one stateroom on board that vessel, that

date, he found in a wastebasket therein a lettei- in

an opened envelope addressed "Miss Chisato Koita-

bashi, C/o Mr. Ed. Osawa";

That upon reading this discarded lettei', which

was dated Oct. 19, 1941, and noting that the writer

thereof stated that certain merchandise was bein^-

sent to the addressee through one Ed Osawa and also

the intimation or apprehension that the merchandise

referred to might be taken from the bearer by the

Customs, and it appearing to him that the informa-

tion in the letter disclosed a plan to smuggle mer-

chandise into the United States, he delivered the

said letter and its envelope to Customs Inspector

A. J. Frankel that date;

That the attached photostat, marked "Elxhibit

A", is a true picture of the letter and envelope

therein described.

J. W. STANTON
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29th day

of April, 1942, at El Paso, Texas.

MAXEY HART
Clerk, United States District

Court, Western District of

Texas

By FLORA L. LINKER,
Deputy Clerk [20]
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Attached to said affidavit of J. W. Stanton was a

similar photostat copy of the same letter attached

to the affida^^t of A. S. Atherton, but to avoid

repetition is omitted here.

The affidavit of A. J. Frankel reads as follows:

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

United States of America

Western District of Washington—ss.

A. J. Frankel, being first duly sworn, on oath

deposes and says: That he is an Inspector of

Customs stationed at Seattle, Washington, and was

such officer on November 2, 1941, on which date he

was at the Japanese M/S Hikawa Maru which was

moored at the Great Northern Dock at Seattle,

Western District of Washington, Northern Divis-

ion.

That he then and there received from J. W.
Stanton, an Inspector in the Bureau of Entomology

and Plant Quarantine, a letter in an envelope ad-

dressed, "Miss Chisato Koitabashi, c/o Mr. Ed
Osawa '

'.

That upon reading this letter, which was dated

October 19, 1941, and noting that the writer thereof

stated that certain merchandise was being sent to

the address through one Ed Osawa and also the

intimation or apprehension that the merchandise

referred to might be taken from the bearer by the

Customs, and it appearing to him that the infor-

mation in the letter disclosed a plan to smuggle

merchandise into the United States, he delivered
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the said letter and its envelope to <^'hief InHpecAor

of Customs A. PI. Koons that date.

That the attached photostat, marked "Exhibit

A", truly depicts the letter and envelope herein

described.

A. J. FRANKEL

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29th day

of April, [21] 1942, at Seattle, Washington.

E. M. ROSSER
Deputy Clerk, United States

District Court, Western Dis-

trict of Washington

Attached to said affidavit of A. J. Frankel was

a similar photostat copy of the same letter at-

tached to the affidavit of A. S. Atherton, but to

avoid repetition is omitted here.

The affidavit of A. H. Koons reads as follows:

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

United States of America

Western District of Washington—ss.

Northern Division

A. H. Koons, being first duly sworn, on oath de-

poses and says:

That he is Chief Inspector of Customs stationed at

Seattle, Washington, and was such officer on Novem-

ber 2, 1941, on which date he was at the Japanese M/S
Hikawa Maru which was moored at the Great

Northern Dock at Seattle, Washington, Western

District of Washington, Northern Division.

That he then and there received from Inspector
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of Customs A. J. Frankel, a letter in an envelope

addressed, "Miss Chisato Koitabasiii, c/o Mr. Ed
Osawa".

That upon reading this letter, which was dated

October 19, 1941, and noting that the writer thereof

stated that certain merchandise was being sent to

the addressee through one Ed Osawa and also the

intimation or apprehension that the merchandise

referred to might be taken from the bearer by the

Customs, and it appearing to him that the informa-

tion in the letter disclosed a plan to smuggle mer-

chandise into the United States, he delivered the

said letter and its envelope to Customs Agent A. D.

Richards that date.

That the attached photostat, marked "Exhibit

A", truly [22] depicts the letter and envelope here-

in described.

A. H. KOONS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 28th day

of April, 1942, at -Seattle, Washington

TRUMAN EGGER
Dei3uty Clerk, United States

District Court, Western Dis-

trict of Washington.

Attached to said affidavit of A. H. Koons was a

similar photostat copy of the same letter attached

to the affidavit of A. S. Atherton, but to avoid

repetition is omitted here.

The affidavit of Roy L. Ballinger reads as fol-

lows:
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[Title of District. Court and Cause]

United States of America

Western District of Wasii.—ss.

Northern Division

Roy L. J3allinger, hein^ first duly sworn, on oath

deposes and says

:

That he is Assistant Collector of United States

Customs at Seattle, Washington, and was such of-

ficer on July 1, 1940, and at all times cinse;

That on July 1, 1940, he issued, on Customs Form

3127, Permit to Enter Customs Lines, No. 1075, to

C. T. Takahashi to be in effect for a period of six

months

;

That this period was later extended to June 30,

1941, and again extended to December 31, 1941;

That a carbon copy of this permit, No. 1075, has

been and is now on file in the office of the Collector

of Customs at Seattle, Washington;

That the authority for the issuance of this permit

is contained in Art. 106(k), Customs Regulations of

1937;

That this permit was limited to boarding vessels

after Customs boarding formalities had been con-

cluded, and specifically denied the holder permission

to enter the Customs [23] enclosure;

That Customs enclosures are areas on piers and

docks designated as areas for the examination of

persons and their effects when such persons and

effects are landed from a vessel arriving from a

foreign port or place;

That such Customs enclosure had been designated

on the Great Northern Dock at Seattle, November



76 Charles T. Tahaliashi, et al

2, 1941, and the entrances tliere to and exists there-

from were yarded by Customs officers, which he

had caused to be placed there that date

;

That on November 2, 1941, there was in effect

Bureau of Customs Circular Letter No. 2015, dated

October 19, 1939, containing rules for the enforce-

ment of the Neutrality Laws of the United States,

Par. 11 of which specified the circumstances under

which special passes might be issued for entrance

into the Customs enclosure;

That he has examined the files of his office and

finds no evidence therein of any such special pass

ever having been issued to C. T. Takahashi.

ROY L. BALLINGER

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 1st day

of May, 1942, at Seattle, Washington

E. M. ROSSER
Deputy Clerk, United States

District Court, Western Dis-

trict of Washington

Thereafter, on the 4th day of May, 1942, the

plaintiff also served and filed the affidavit of Ronald

T. Symms in resistance to defendants' petitions for

return of private papers, etc. This affidavit reads

as follows

:

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

United States of America

Western District of Washington—ss.

Northern Division [24]

Ronald T. Symms, being first duly sworn, on oath
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deposes and says: Tliat he is the Assistant Man-

ager of the Seattle Branch of the Federal Reserve

Bank of San Franciseo, Fiscal Agent of the United

States, and that this affidavit is made in resistance

to defendants' Petition for return of y)apers, etc.

and Motion to Qnash.

That on November 3, 1941, acting under instruc-

tions from the Secretary of the Treasury of the

United States and under the authority of the Exe-

cutive Order of the President of the United States,

No. 8389, issued April 10, 1940, as amended, by vir-

tue of and pursuant to the authority vested in the

President of the United States by Section 5(b) of

the Act of October 6, 1917 (40 Stat. 415), as amend-

ed, and acting as an authorized officer of the Fed-

eral Reserve Bank of San Francisco, Fiscal Agent

of the United States, he ordered anyone having

property of C. T. Takahashi, C. T. Takahashi &

Company and the China & Export Company to

block it.

That on the evening of December 7, 1941, by vir-

tue of the authority aforesaid, he ordered the office

of C. T. Takashahi & Company and the China Im-

port & Export Company at 212—5th Avenue South,

Seattle, Washington, to be closed and to be placed

in the custody of the United States Treasuiy De-

partment through William R. Jarrell, Supervising

Agent for the United States Secret Service, Treas-

ury Department, and Coordinator of Treasury En-

forcement Agencies located at Seattle, Washington.

The said William R. Jarrell was instructed by af-

fiant to retain possession of the office of said C. T.
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Takahaslii, C. T. Takaliaslii & Company and the

China Import & Export Company and the control

thereof until further orders from the United [25]

States Treasury Department through said Federal

Reserve Bank of San Francisco or otherwise.

The said instructions were issued by reason of the

fact that on the 7th of December, 1941, and there-

tofore, in the opinion of the authorized officers and

agents of the United States Treasury Department

and the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco

acting in its capacity as Fiscal Agent of the United

States, there was and had been reasonable cause

to believe that said C. T. Takahashi, C. T. Takaha-

shi & Company and the China Import & Export

Company were acting and purporting to act directly

and indirectly for the benefit of and on behalf of a

national of a blocked foreign country, to-wit, a na-

tional of the Government of Japan.

RONALD T. SYMMS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day

of May, 1942.

E. M. ROSSER
Deputy Clerk, U. S. District

Court, Western District of

Washington

On the 5tli day of May, 1942, the plaintiff served

and filed a supplemental affidavit of Ronald T.

Symms as follows:
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

United States of America

Western District of Washington

Northern Division—ss.

Ronald T. Symms, being first duly sworn, on oath

dei)oses and says: That he is the Assistant Man-

ager of the Seattle Branch of the Federal Reserve

Bank of San Francisco, Fiscal Agent of the United

States, and that this supplemental affidavit is made

in resistance to defendants' Petition for return of

papers, etc. and Motion to Quash.

That on x\pril 28, 1942, the defendant Charles T.

[26]

Takahashi made an application to the Federal Re-

serve Bank of San Francisco under Section 130.3,

Regulations undei- Executive Order No. 8389, as

amended, for license to either liquidate and/or re-

move for storage for the duration from the premises

of C. T. Takahashi & Company, 212 5th Avenue

South Seattle, all office equipment, furniture, and

ILxtures. Proceeds from the liquidation of any of

the above equipment to be deposited in blocked ac-

count with the National Bank of Commerce, Seattle.

RONALD T. SYMMS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ntli day

of May, 1942.

E. M. ROSSER
Deputy Clerk, United States

District Court, Western Dis-

trict of Washington
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And on the same day, Ma}^ 5, 1942, the plaintiff

served and filed the affidavits of John A. McNeill

and John P. Hausman in resistance to said peti-

tions and motion to quash as follows:

[Title of District Conrt and Cause.]

United States of America

Western District of Washington

jSTorthern Division—ss.

John A. McNeill, being first duly sworn, on oath

deposes and says: That he is a Deputy Collector

of Customs, Seattle, Washington; that plaintiff's

"Exhibit A" was made after the baggage declara-

tion was filed as required by Customs Regulations

by the defendant Osawa; that the said Exhibit is

an official record of the United States Customs

Service at Seattle.

JOHN A. McNeill

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 5th day

of May, 1942.

TRUMAN EGGER
Deputy Clerk, U. S. District

Court, Western District of

Washington [27]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

United States of Ameiica

Western District of Washington

Northern Division—ss.

John P. Hausnian, })eing first duly sworn, on oath

deposes and says: That he is President of Geo.

S. Bush & Co., Inc., Customs Broker, and that this

affidavit is made in resistance to defendants' Peti-

tion for return of i)apers, etc. and Motion to Quasi).

That plaintiff's Exhibit #2 is a consumption en-

try, United States Customs Service which was

signed by Edward Y. Osawa, also known as Yoshi-

mi Osawa, before me as Notary Public in and for

the State of Washington; that said Exhibit was

prepared under direction of the affiant from defen-

dant's Exhibit '*A", being the baggage declaration

and entry of the above named Osawa ; that said con-

sumption entry was to be filed in the Custom House

at Seattle and is a sunmiary of all the articles with

the respective values of all of the articles as listed

in the baggage declaration and entry and was pre-

pared on Novem.ber 12, 1941.

JOHN P. HAUSMAN
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 5th day

of May, 1942.

TRUMAN EGGER
Deputy Clerk, U. S. District

Court Western District of

Washington

Plaintiff's Exliibit #2, referred to in the affidavit

of John P. Hausman follows: [35]
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Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 2— (Continued)

Customs Form 3297

TREASURY DEPARTMENT

Art. 410, C.R. 1931

Feb. 1934

Declaration for the Free Entry of Articles Taken

Out of the United States By the Importer and

for Articles Acquired Abroad l>y Returning Resi-

dents of the United States

(To be used when articles do not accompany the

passenger and were not listed on a baggage decla-

ration and entry)

United States Customs Service

District No. 30, Port of Seattle, Wash., Nov. 10,

1941

I, Yoshimi Osawa, declare under oath that I am
a resident of Seattle, State of Washington; that I

last departed from the United States in the Jap

M/S "Hikawa Maru" on or about the 7th day of

(Vehicle or carrier)

March, 1941, from the port of Seattle; that I ar-

rived in the United States on my return at the

port of Seattle, Wash, on or about the 2nd day of

November, 1941, in the Jap. M/S "Hikawa Maru"
(Vehicle or carrier)

from Yokohama, accompanied by; that, except such

as are hereinafter enumerated, all the articles now
(Wife, child, maid, etc)

imported by me in the "Hikawa Maru" from Japan

(Me or us) (Vehicle or carrier)
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Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 2— (Continued)

arriving on or about Nov. 2, 1941, consist of wear-

ing apparel or personal or household effects taken

abroad by me, or by those members of my family

now accompanying me, for personal use; and that

no repairs or alterations were made to such articles

abroad, except as follows:

(If any repairs or alterations were made abroad,

describe the articles and state the cost of repair's or

alterations, and the character thereof. If none were

made, so state)

Name of articles

Description of repairs

Cost or value of repairs

I further declare that the following-described ar-

ticles were acquired abroad for personal or house-

hold use, or as souvenirs or curios, and that none of

these was bought or otherwise acquired on commis-

sion, or is intended for sale

:

Description

8 items listed on consumption entry

Cost or value

Yen 428.00

(If no such articles were acquired abroad, so

state)

I further declare that I have not during the past

30 days preceding my arrival alcove referred to

received an exemption from duty such as is allowed

a returning resident of the United States, except as

follows

:

I further declare that the following-described ar-
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Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 2— (Continued)

tides were acquired abroad on a commission for other

persons, or are intended for sale:

Description

Cost or value

(If no such articles were acquired abroad, so

state)

(Signature) YOSHIMI OSAWA
Declared to under oath before me this 8 day of

Nov., 1941.

(Name) JOHN P. HAUSMAN
(Official title) Notary Public.

(Note.—This declaration must be made before

some person duly authorized to administer oaths. If

a family has been traveling abroad, it may be made

for the family by the principal member thereof) [37]
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Plaiiitifrs Exhibit No. 2— (Contiuued)

Customs Form 7551

Treasury Department

Arts. 260, 270, 272, 289, 299, 300, 314, 354, 412,

482, 497, 553, 574, 591, 625, 633, 697, 770, 795, 910,

1254 C. R. 1937; T. D.'s 45474, 49658 June 1939

No. 950

UNITED STATES CUSTOMS SERVICE
SINGLE CONSUMPTION ENTRY BOND

(To redeliver merchandise, to produce documents,

to perform conditions of release, such as to label, hold

for inspection, set-up, etc. To be taken in all cases

when release is requested prior to inspection, exam-

ination, or liquidation).

Know All Men By These Presents, That* Yoshimi

Osawa of Seattle, Washington, as principal, and*

Fidelity & Deposit Co. of Md., of Baltimore, Md.

and , of

as sureties, are held and firmly bound unto the

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA in the sum of

Eight Hundred dollars ($800.00) for the payment

of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, ad-

ministrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and

severally, firmly by these presents.

Witness our hands and seals this 12th day of

November, 1941

Whereas, certain articles have been imported at

the port of Seattle, Wash, and entered at said port

for consumption on entry No. 950 dated Nov. 12,

1941, and described therein and

Whereas, the said principal desires release of said
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PlaintifE's Exhibit No. 2— (Continued)

articles prior to the ascertainment by customs offi-

cers of the quantity and value thereof, and of the

full amount of the duties and charges due thereon,

and prior to the decision by the proper officer as

to the right of said articles to admission into the

United States:

Now, Therefore, the Condition of This Obligation

is Such, That

—

(1) If the above-bounden principal shall rede-

liver or cause to be redelivered to the order of the

Collector of Customs, when demanded by such col-

lector (the said demand to be made not later than

twenty (20) days after the appraiser's report), such

of the merchandise as was not sent to the public

stores, and also shall redeliver to the collector, on

demand by him, in accordance with law and regula-

tions in effect on the date of the release of said art-

icles, any and all merchandise found not to comply

with law" and regulations in effe^ct on the date of the

release of said articles, any and all merchandise

found not to comply with the law" and regulations

governing its admission into the commerce of the

United States, and if the said principal shall mark,

label, clean, fumigate, destroy, export, and do any

and all other things in relation to said articles that

may be lawfully required, and shall hold the same

for inspection and examination; or if, in the event

of failure to comply with any or all of the condi-

tions hereinabove referred to, he shall pay the said

collector an amount equal to the value of said art-
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Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 2— (Continued)

ieles as set forth in said entry, plus the duty there-

on;

(2) And if the above-bounden principal shall de-

liver to the said t'olleetor such consular invoices, de-

clarations of owners or consignees, certificates of

origin, certificates of exportation, and other declara-

tions, certificates, and documents as may be re-

quired by law 01" regulations in connection with the

entry of said articles, and in the form and within

the time required by law or regulations, or any law-

ful extension thereof, or in the event of failure to

comply with any or all of the conditions of this

section shall pay to said collector such amounts as

liquidated damages as may be demanded by him in

accordance with the law and regulations, not ex-

ceeding the penal sum of this ol^ligation for any

breach or breaches thereof;

Then this obligation to be void; otherwise to re-

main in full force and effect.
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Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 2—(Continued)

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of

—

S. DUSTEIN
Seattle, Wn.

H. B. WESLEY
Seattle, Wn.

S. DUSTEIN
Seattle, Wn.

H. B. WESLEY
Seattle, Wn.

YOSHIMI OSAWA
(Principal)

FIDELITY & DEPOSIT CO.

OE MD.
By JOHN P. HAUSMAN [Seal]

Attorney-in-Fact

*If the principal or surety is a corporation, the

name of the State in which incorporated should

also he shown. [47]
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On the 4t]i day of May, 1942, the defendant,

Charles T. Takashashi, served and filed his affidavit,

in reply to jDlaintiff's affidavits, as follows:

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

Charles T. Takahashi, being first duly sworn, de-

poses and says: That he has read the affidavit of

Roy L. Ballinger together with the affidavits of A.

D. Richards and A. S. Atherton with reference to

permit issued to affiant to meet passengers arriving

on ship board from Japan and accompanying them

through the Customs. That on the second day of

November, 1941, afiiant in possession of said pass

met and went aboard the Japanese ship Hikawa

Maru and accompanied Edward Y. Osawa through

the Customs openly and in the presence of a num-

ber of Customs officials not including, however, A.

S. Atherton or A. D. Richards. That affiant accom-

panied the said Edward Y. Osawa w^ith the knowl-

edge and consent of Customs officers whose names

are unknown to affiant. That affiant had for a num-

ber of years followed that said practice without ob-

jection or interference on the part of the Customs

officers stationed in Seattle, and that affiant at all

times was within his rights and was not guilty of

an}" violation of any Federal law.

CHARLES T. TAKAHASHI
Subscribed and sworn to before me May 4, 1942.

GEO. H. CRANDELL
Notary Public
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And ou the same day, May 4, 1942, the defendant,

Edward Y. Osawa, served and tiled his affidavit, in

reply to phiintiff's affidavits, as follows:

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

Edward Y. Osawa, heing duly sworn, deposes and

says : That he has read the affidavits of A. S. Ath-

erton, A. I). Richards, A. J. Praukel, and A. H.

Koons with reference to the letter attached to the

affidavits of said officers, [51] which letter is marked

Exhibit A, and with reference thereto affiant alleges

that on to-wit: the second day of November, 1941,

while he was a passenger on the steamship Hikawa

Maru and before said ship had docked at Seattle,

affiant prepared an itemized list of all the articles

ill his possession, and that on said list the six pairs

of silk stockings referred to in said letter marked

Exhibit A were mentioned and declared, and that

said list was caused to be delivered to a Customs

officer who had boarded said ship, the delivery hav-

ing been made to said officer before the ship docked.

EDWARD Y. OSAWA

Subscribed and sworn to before me May 4, 1942.

GEO. H. CRANDELL
Notary Public

On May 5, 1942, the defendant, Charles T. Taka-

hashi served and filed a further reply affidavit as

follows:
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

Charles T. Takahashi, being first duly sworn, de-

poses and says

:

That he has read the affidavit of Edward Y.

Osawa, and that the statements therein contained so

far as they pertain to the conduct of affiant are sub-

stantially true. That at no time while passing

through the Customs were there papers of any kind

exchanged between said Edward Y. Osawa and affi-

ant other than the mutual examination of a list of

rticles contined in Mr. Osawa 's luggage, which was

mutually consulted from time to time by both affiant

and the said Edward Y. Osawa. That affiant met

the ship [52] on the second of November in re-

sponse to a telegram received via Western Union

requesting affiant to bring $200.00 in American

money to pay tariff or customs fees. That continu-

ally from the time affiant reached the dock until the

search was made affiant was in the immediate pres-

ence of the said Edward Y. Osawa and customs of-

ficers other than A. S. Atherton and A. D. Richards

and was engaged in conversation with the said offi-

cers almost continually.

CHARLES T. TAKAHASHI

Subscribed and sworn to before me May 5, 1942.

GEO. H. CRANDELL
Notary Public

On the same day, May 5, 1942, the defendant, Ed-

ward Y. Osawa, filed a further reply affidavit as

follows

:
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[Title of District ("oint and Cause.]

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

Edward Y. Osawa, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says: That tlie sliip Hikawa Maru upon which

he sailed from Japan to the United States, reaching

here on November 2, 1941, docked between eight A. M.

and nine A.M. on said date. That on the thirty-first

day of October, two days before the ship reached

Seattle, affiant iirepared a written d^aration con-

taining a list of all of the articles which affiant was

bringing into the United States, which written dec-

laration is Exhibit marked Number One, together

with a duplicate thereof. That on the evening of

November first affiant delivered the original of said

declaration to the ship's purser for delivery by the

purser to the United States Customs Agent who

boarded the ship at Vancouver. B. C. on said first

day of November. That affiant is in- [53] foiTued

and believes that the declaration was delivered by

the ship's purser to the United States Customs Offi-

cer immediately after the ship left Vancouver, B. C.

on the evening of November first. That on Novem-

ber second the said ship berthed at Seattle, Wash-
ington, between eight and nine o'clock A.M. That

affiant had abandoned his stateroom on said ship

before said stateroom was visited by J. W. Stan-

ton, inspector in the Bureau of Entomology and

Plant Quarantine. That about nine forty-five

Charles T. Takahashi met affiant pursuant to a tele-

gram which affiant sent said Charles T. Takahashi
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from Vancouver, B. C. requesting that the said

Charles T. Takahashi meet affiants at the ship with

$200.00 in American money for the purpose of pay-

ing duty on the articles which affiant was bringing

into the United States. That said Charles T. Taka-

hashi was in the immediate presence of affiant from

about nine forty-five until after affiant in company

with said Charles T. Takahashi left the dock, which

was approximately eleven-thirty A. M. That at no

time was there an exchange of papers between affi-

ant and said Charles T. Takahashi while affiant and

said Charles T. Takahashi were on the dock or in

the customs. That the only paper that affiant had

during said time was a copy of the list of articles

contained in the declaration, which was consulted

from time to time by said Charles T. Takahashi in

an attem})t to locate said lost items of luggage. That

said list was arranged and classified according to

the luggage or package in which said articles were

contained. That considerable time was consumed by

reason of the fact that part of the packages were

missing, and that a diligent search was made by

affiant in company with said Charles T. Takahashi

and certain [54] customs officei's whose names are

unknown to affiant. That at about eleven A.M. one

of the customs officers whose name is unkno^\^l to

affiant first suggested and then directed that affi-

ant's luggage would be sent to the United States

Appraiser's Office and there released and directed

that affiant could take his brief case and any per-

sonal effects that he desired and leave the dock.

That up until this time affiant had not seen or had
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he been in tlie innnediatc presence of either United

States Customs Officers A. S. Atherton or A. D.

Richards. That when ad\ised by customs officers

that affiant might leave, affiant and said Charles T.

Takahashi proceeded to leave the dock, affiant carry-

ing- his brief case. That tlien for the first time affiant

saw and was restrained by said officer's Atherton

and Richards and by them taken into custody and

searched as described in detail in an affidavit here-

tofore made by affiant. That affiant and the said

Charles T. Takahashi finally left the dock at ap-

proximately eleven-thirty A.M.

P^UWARD Y. OSAWA

Subscribed and sworn to before me May 5, 1942.

GEO. H. CRANDELL
Notary Public

That on the 6th day of May, 1942, the aforesaid

petitions of the defendants, Charles T. Takahashi

and Edward Y. Osawa, for the return of their pri-

vate papers, etc., and their said motion to quash the

indictment came on for hearing before the (/<inrt

upon the showing and countershowing hereinabove

set forth, and the Court having read and considered

the same, and having listened to the arguments of

counsel, took said matters under advisement, [55]

and at the same tune granted leave to counsel for

defendants to file additional showing as to where

said defendants were when they met at the time of

thhe arrival of the ship Hikawa Maru.

Accordingly, thereafter, on the 8th day of May,

1942, said defendants served and filed two addition-



126 Charles T. Takahashi, et al

al affidavits, one by defendant Takahashi and one

by defendant Osawa and submitted the same to the

Court, the same being as follows

:

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

Charles T. Takahashi, being first duly sworn, on

oath deposes and says:

That on the morning of November 2, 1941, at no

time did affiant board the ship Hikawa Maru, That

when affiant reached the dock at which said ship

was berthed, Edward Y. Osawa had left the ship

and was on the dock.

CHARLES T. TAKAHASHI

Subscribed and sworn to before me May 8, 1942.

GEO. H. CRANDELL
Notary Public

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

Edward Y. Osawa, being first duly sworn, on oath

deposes and says •

That on the morning of November 2, 1941, affi-

ant had left the ship Hikawa Maru before Mr.

Charles T. Takahashi met him. That affiant and the

said Charles T. Takahashi met on the dock and were

in each other's immediate company until the search
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was made b}^ the officers A. S. Athertoii and A. D.

Richards.

EDWARD Y. OSAWA [56]

Subscribed and sworn to before me May 8, 1942.

GEO. H. CRANDELL
Notary Public

Thereafter, on the 15th day of May, 1942, after

considering the two additional afiS.davits of said de-

fendants, together witli the previous showing made

by both parties, the Court denied each of said peti-

tions and defendants' motion to quash, and entered

the following orders thereon:

[Title of District ('oui-t and Cause.]

This matter having coine on for hearing on the

6th day of May, 1942, the defendant being present

in open Court and represented by his counsel

George H. Crandell and Samuel B. Bassett, the

Court having heard argument and being fully ad-

vised ill the premises, it is hereby

Ordered, adjudged and decreed that the petition

is overruled and denied.

Done in open court this 15th day of May, 1942.

LLOYD L. BLACK
United States District Judge

Presented by:

GERALD SHUCKLIN
Assistant U. S. Attorney
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[Title of District Court and Cause]

This matter having come on for hearing on the

6th day of May, 1942, the defendant being present

in open Court and represented by his counsel

Geoorge H. Crandell and Samuel B. Bassett, the

Court having heard argument and being fully ad-

vised in the premises, it is hereby
,

Ordered, adjudged and decreed that the petition

is overruled and denied.

Done in open court this 15th day of May, 1942.

LLOYD L. BLACK
United States District Judge

Presented by:

GERALD SHUCKLIN
Assistant U. S. Attorney [57]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

This matter having come on for hearing on the

6th day of May, 1942, the defendants being present

in open Court and represented by their counsel

George H. Crandell and Samuel B. Bassett, the

Court having heard argument and being fully ad-

vised in the premises, it is hereby

Ordered, adjudged and decreed that the defend-

ants' motion to quash indictment be, and it hereby

is, overruled and denied.

To all of which defendants except.

Exception allowed.
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Done in open court this 15tb day of May, 1942.

LLOYD L. BLACK
United States District Judge

Presented by:

GERALD SHUCKLIN
Assistant U. S. Attorney

TRIAL

Be it further rememl^ered that on the 29th day of

September, 1942, at the hour of 10:00 a. m., the

above entitled and numbered r-ause came regularly

on for trial in the above entitled court before the

Honorable Llovd L. Black, one of the Judges of the

above entitled Court, sitting with a ^nrj.

The plaintiff appeared by J. Charles Derniis,

Esq., United States District Attorney, and Thomas

Durham, Esq., Assistant ITnited States Attorney,

its attorneys and counsel

;

The defendant Charles T. Takahashi ap])eared

by George H. Crandell, Esq., and Samuel B. Bas-

sett, Esq., his attorneys and counsel

;

The defendant Edward Y. Osawa appeared by

Tracy E. Griffin, Esq., his attorney and counsel.

[58]

All parties having signified their readiness to pro-

ceed, a jury was duly impanelled and sworn.

Mr. Dennis, for the plaintiff, made an opening

statement to the jury.

Mr. Crandell followed with an opening statement

for defendant Takahashi.
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Mr. Griffin followed with an opening statement

for defendant Osawa.

It was orally stipulated between all the parties

that the testimony given upon the previous trial of

the cause by Francis Hoague, Fred G. Heins and

Frederick Wilhelm, for the Government, and of

Mrs. S. Kawaguchi, for the defendants, may be

read to the jury on the present trial in lieu of

them being present.

ALBERT D. RICHARDS,

a witness called on behalf of the Government, after

having been first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Dennis:

My occupation before April 15, 1942, was Cus-

toms Agent in the United States Treasury Depart-

ment. I was stationed in Seattle and had been in

the Customs service a little better than eleven years.

I was such Customs Agent on November 2, 1941,

and acting in course with my duty. On that date I

saw the defendant Takahashi and the defendant

Osawa. I was at the Great Northern pier on the ar-

rival of the Japanese Steamship Plikawa Maru. An-

other Customs agent, Mr. Atherton, was with me
and was with me all that day. I saw Mr. Osawa

shortly after nine o'clock on the morning of Novem-

ber 2. Mr. Atherton and I were working together

within speaking distance and sight of each other.
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It was at the Great Northern pier that I saw Mr.

Osawa.

Q. Now, then, explain what a Custom's baggage

enclosure is?

A. For the convenience of Custom's inspection^

examining baggage of incoming persons from for-

eign countries, they set up what is known as an en-

closure or baggage enclosure for Custonis purposes.

All personal baggage is taken from the ship and

stacked [59] in tiers under their initials on the pier,

and the inspectors in turn take the baggage separ-

ately and go the place where the baggage is stacked,

inspect it and then put a stamp on it so that can

be passed from the baggage enclosure, so that the

guard on the gate will know the baggage has been

inspected.

Inspectors from other Government agents and

incoming passengers and persons who have a spe-

cial permit are allowed within the baggage enclo-

sure. I saw defendant Takahashi within the Cus-

tom's enclosure. He was not a passenger on the

ship. He was with Mr. Osawa. It was about ten

o'clock when I saw Mr. Takahashi and Mr. Osawa
together. They were in the baggage enclosure close

to the i)1ace whei'c Mr. Osawa 's baggage had been

stacked up on the pier. I was standing close to the

door of the reception room, which is in the baggage

enclosure, on the pier. Mr. Atherton was either

standing with me or close by. I saw Mr. Takahashi

and Mr. Osawa carrying on a conversation and then

pass some paper back and forth bt^tween them. I
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don't know what the paper was. I kept Mr. Taka-

hashi in my vision, watched him the rest of the time

he was on the pier. After Mr. Osawa had arranged

for his baggage to be shipped, Mr. Takahashi start-

ed to leave the pier. I stopped him, the two men,

identified myself as a Custom's agent and requested

them to come into the reception room. After going

into the reception room I took Mr. Osawa into the

washroom, where I searched him, took his briefcase

which he was carrying, took certain papers from

him, and after I had completed that search I took

Mr. Osawa back and took Mr. Takahashi into the

washroom where he was likewise searched and cer-

tain papers taken away from him at that time. Mr.

Atherton was wdth me.

Q. What did you find in the briefcase? What
briefcase was that?

Mr. Crandell: Just a minute. We object to that

as incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial, it being

a violation of the Constitution.

The Court: Do I understand that you, as attor-

ney for Mr. [60] Takahashi, can object to what was

found in Mr. Osawa 's briefcase?

Mr. Crandell : I am objecting to the introduction

of any evidence for which I made a motion myself.

I think I have that right.

The Court: Are you attorney for Mr. Osawa or

not for Mr. Osawa?

Mr. Crandell : I am not.

The Court: The objection is overruled.
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Mr. Griffin: The defendant Osawa objects to tlie

testimony along that line, as to the particular case,

as to what he found in the briefcase, on the same

ground.

The Court : He may without saying what was in

it, the contents, he may merely identify what was

found.

Mr. GriflS^n: May I present one point further.

The objection is made upon the ground heretofore

presented as to the constitutional rights of the de-

fendant Osawa.

The Court: The objection is overruled, Init the

witness is directed merely to identify by general

description, without setting forth what the contents

were, further than a mere general identification.

A. Thei'e were a number of files in the briefcase

and letters addressed to C. T. Takahashi & Com-

pany.

Q. (By Mr. Deimis) : Now then did you find

certain papers in the possession of Mr. Takahashi

at that time?

Mr. Crandeli: To which the defendant Taka-

hashi objects as incompetent and immaterial, being

personal papers the taking of which was violative

of the lights of the defendant Takahashi.

Mr. Griffin: And the defendant Osawa objects

upon the same ground, inasmuch as I must assume

the papers to identify his part in a conspiracy, in

which Mr. Osawa is named as a party.

Mr. Crandeli : My authorities are those presented

at the [61] time of the motion.
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The Court : You, as attorney for Mr. Osawa, are

objecting to what was found on Mr. Takahashi ?

Mr. Grif&n: Yes, your Honor.

The Court : The objection of Mr. Osawa is over-

ruled. The objecion of Mr. Crandell is likewise

overruled.

Mr. Crandell : Excej)tion.

The Court : Exception allowed.

Mr. Griffin: In each instance?

The Court : The same.

Q. (By Mr. Dennis) : Eeferring to plaintiff's

Exhibit #1—
Mr. Griffin: That would be for identification, I

take it.

Mr. Dennis : I am using, may it please the Court,

the same numbers as in the previous trial.

The Court : Will it be for identification.

Mr. Dennis: Yes, of course, but I am using the

same numbers.

The Court: Exhibit #1 for identification.

Q. (By Mr. Dennis) : I will ask you where you

found that if you did find it?

A. I don't recognize that. I don't believe I ever

saw that before.

Q. Referring to plaintiff's #1, #2, #3, #4,

^5, #6, #7 and #8, I will ask you if you have

seen any of them before?

Mr, Crandell: I object to that, and especially to

Exhibit #1. The witness says he never saw Ex-

hibit #1.
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The Court: Objection overruled.

Mr. Crandell: Exception.

A. I don't recall seeing any of these Exhibits.

Mr. Dennis: Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit

#10.

Mr. Griffin: I take it, Mr. Dennis, you are still

referring to Exhibit #10 for identifiation ? [62]

The Court: It will be understood that all of

these exhibits are for identification until the Court

admits them in evidence.

Q. (By Mr. Dennis) : I will ask you if you

have ever seen them before?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will ask you where you saw them?

A. Those I took from the person of Mr. Taka-

hashi at the time I searched him, November 2.

Mr. Crandell: The same objection. I wonder if

we may not have an objection with an exception to

all reference to these items without making it spe-

cifically?

The Court: It may be imderstood that all of the

papers which Mr. Richards may testify he took

from Mr. Takahashi on the pier are inquired of

over your objection that you are taking exception to

the admission of any of the—well we will not tackle

the admission but it will be understood that you

are taking exception to any questions and to the

allowance of the witness to answer.

Mr. Crandell : It will save interruption.

The Court: When the oxhil)its are offered in



136 Charles T. Tahahaslii, et al

(Testimony of Albert D. Richards.

)

evidence, if they are, then you mil be required to

object and except.

Mr. Crandell: I will do that.

Mr. Grifi&n: May I be considered to be in the

same position? I am objecting on the part of Mr.

Osawa.

The Court: It will be understood that you are

objecting. The Court is not implying that Mr.

Osawa has any right to object to what may have

been found upon Mr. Takahashi. Your objection will

be assumed to run to all of this line of questioning.

Mr. Dennis: Now, may I get the answer?

A. That is one of the papers I found in Mr.

Takahashi 's pocket at the time I searched him on

November 2 at the pier. [63]

Exhibits #11, #12, #13, #14, #15, #16, #17
and #18 are papers that I took from Mr. Taka-

hashi 's pocket on November 2 on the pier. At a later

date I had a further conversation with defendant

Osawa. It was at the King County jail, Seattle,

Washington, and I had plaintiff's Exhibits #14,

#15 and #16 with me. I asked Mr. Osawa if he

had written these letters, and a number of other

letters I had in my jDOSsession at that time; and

when he admitted that he had written them I asked

him where he was at the time he had written them

and he said he was in Tokyo, Japan. I asked him

if he had ever been in Shanghai on the trip he re-

turned from. He said ''no"; he had intended to

go to Shanghai to book passage to return that way,

])ut being unable to do that, he stayed in Tokyo and
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had never been to Shanghai during the trip and he

returned these letters to Tokyo. He said he mailed

the letters to Mr. Takahashi as a progress report.

Mr. Dennis: At this time, may it please the

Court, I offer this Exhibit #10 in evidence. I will

offer them all in evidence at the same time or each

separately, whatever is best to do.

Mr. Griffin: It would save time to offer them

#10 to #18.

Mr. Dennis: I offer these Exhibits #10, #11,

#12, #13, #14, #15, #16, #17 and #18.

Mr. Crandell : To which the defendant, C. T.

Takahashi, makes the basic objection.

Mr. Griffin: To which the defendant Osawa

makes the basic objection as well as an objection

upon the groimd and for the reason that the indict-

ment does not state facts constituting a crime and

particularly with reference to Exhibits #14, #15
and #16, being letters dated July 5, July 12 and

July 15, upon the ground and for the reason that

they are incompetent, irre- [64] levant and inmia-

terial and inadmissible as proving, or tending to

prove, a conspiracy as charged in the indictment,

a conspiracy made the year 1940 at a time when

there was not in existence any administrative rule

having the effect of law.

The Court: #14, #15 and #16 dated in July,

1941, under the testimony admitted to have been

written by Mr. Osawa, the defendant, under the

testimony, returned months after the regulation

went into effect, are admitted, and the objections
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of Mr. Osawa are overruled. The objection of Mr.

Takahashi is overruled.

Mr. Griffin: Exception.

Mr. Crandell: Exception.

The Court: The other Exhibits, #10, #11, #12,

#13, #17 and #18 are admitted in evidence. The

objection of Mr. Takahashi is overruled.

Mr. Crandell: Exception.

The Court: The objections of Mr. Osawa are

overruled. The exception to each defendant and

to each ruling and as to each exhibit are allowed.

I think I have covered all the offers.

The Court: So there will be no question, Ex-

hibits #10 to #18 inclusive are admitted in evi-

dence and the objections are overruled and the ex-

ceptions allowed.

Various letters marked Plaintiff's Exhibits

#10 to #18 inclusive admitted in evidence.

The letters of July 5 and July 12, 1941, were

read to the jury.

The witness, Mr. Richards, is temporarily with-

drawn.

E. R. STINE,

a witness called on behalf of the Government after

having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

[65]

Direct Examination

I am Superintendent of the Western Union Tele-

graph Company in Seattle.



vs. United States of America 139

(Testimony of E. R. Stine.)

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #22, tliat is a

record of cable registration for C. T. Takahashi &

Company. The word "N E W Y R" on one corner

is a contraction that is used as a cable address by

C. T. Takahashi & Company. By "cable address"

is meant a code address that they register with us

and we have the key to that code address so that

anything that reaches Seattle addressed to

"N E W Y R" would be delivered to C. T. Taka-

hashi & Company.

Exhibit #22 admitted in evidence without objec-

tion.

Record of cable registration admitted in evi-

dence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit #22.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #23, that is a

record of cable registration for China Import and

Export Company, Seattle. It is a code letter mean-

ing any cables addressed to "C I E C O" here would

be delivered to China Import and Export Comi)any.

Exhibit #23 offered in evidence.

Mr. Crandell : When was this authorized?

A. The first registration was October 15, 1927.

Plaintiff's Exhibit #23 admitted without objec-

tion.

The code registration admitted in evidence

and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit #23.

Q. (By Mr. Dennis) : Referring to plaintiff's

Exhibit #5, what is that?

A. That is the original of a cable delivered to us

in San Francisco, addressed to "N E W Y R", Se-
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attle, originating in Tokyo. It was sent June 27

and was delivered by our office to [66] C. T. Taka-

liashi & Company on the morning of June 28.

Referring to jjlaintiif 's Exhibit #6, that likewise

is the original of a cable turned over to us by the

RCA in San Francisco from Tokj^o, addressed

'^N E W Y R", which is C. T. Takahashi & Com-

pany, Seattle. It was delivered by our office to

C. T. Takahashi & Company on June 28.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #7, that is a

cable from Tokyo, sent on July 5 to C. T. Takahashi

& Company, Seattle, and delivered on July 5.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #8, that is a

cable from Tokyo, sent on July 8 to C. T. Takahashi

& Company, Seattle, and delivered to them on

July 8.

Plaintiff's Exhibits #5, #6, #7 and #8 offered

in evidence.

Mr. Griffin: The defendant Osawa objects as in-

competent, irrelevant and immaterial and so far as

he is concerned there is no evidence in this case that

any of these exhibits were sent from Tokyo by the

defendant Osawa or that he had any knowledge

thereof.

The Court: The objections are overruled.

Mr. Griffin: Exception.

Cablegrams previously identified admitted in

evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibits #5^

#6, #7 and #8.
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Cross Examination

By Mr. Bassett

:

In reference to Exhibits #22 and #23,

"N E W Y R" is the code name of C. T. Takahashi

& Company, and "C I E C O" is the code name for

the China Import and Export Company. It is not

uncommon for firms engaojed in the import and

export business to employ code names of that type.

The purpose of using code names [67] is to keep

down expenses.

By Mr. Griffin:

Code books are published like dictionaries. We
do not carry all of the code books. There are prob-

ably fifteen such books in general use and we have

probably five or six. Anyone having a book con-

taining the code used can decipher the cablegrams.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Dennis

:

These codes are also found in the library.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #24, that is an

after-hour delivery in.struction from the China Im-

port and Export Company, also the C. T. Takahashi

Company.

Exhiliit #24 admitted in evidence.

After-hour delivery instructions of China Im-

port and Export Company and C. T. Takahashi

& Company admitted in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit #24.

(Witness excused.)
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Mr. Bassett: Mr. Dennis and I have stipulated

that the word "gunbu" means military authorities.

The Court : The jurj^ will understand that in the

letters that they have heard the word "gunbu" is

used, that that means "military authorities".

Mr. Dennis: I will read the letter of July 16,

1941.

(Thereupon Mr. Dennis read the exhibit to

the jury.)

Mr. Dennis then read to the jury the translation

of the confirmation of telegrams from Mikuni Shoko

Company Limited to '^N E W Y E", C. T. Taka-

hashi & Company, Seattle, Washington, being Ex-

hibit #10. [68]

Mr. Dennis then read Exhibit #11, being a trans-

lation of telegram sent June 28, 1941, by Mikuni

Shoko Company Limited, Tokyo, Japan.

Mr. Dennis then read Exhibit #12, being con-

firmation of telegram Mikuni Shoko Company Lim-

ited, Tokyo, Japan, to "N E W Y R" Seattle, sent

July 5, 1941.

Mr. Dennis then read Exhibit #13, dated July 8,

1941, to "N E W Y R", Seattle.

ALBERT D. RICHARDS,

recalled after having been previously sworn, testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination

Mr. Dennis: I will ask you what Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit #9 is, and where you found it?
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A. This is a letter which was taken from a brief-

ease carried by Mr. Osawa at the time he was

searched on the morning of November 2 at the pier.

After the search Mr. Takahashi and Mr. Osawa were

allowed to proceed from the pier. I next saw Mr.

Takahashi about ten o'clock on the evening of No-

vember 2 at his place of business, 212 Fifth Avenue

South, Seattle. At this time Mr. Osawa was with

Mr. Takahashi and Mr. Atherton accompanied me
to this place of business. I asked Mr. Takahashi if

he would come over to the office of the Supervising

Custom's Agent, where Mr. Atherton and I would

like to talk to him. He stated that he would, and he

and Mr. Osawa came to the office of the Supervising

Custom's Agent at 217 Federal Office Building. Mr.

Osawa was not present at the time we talked to Mr.

Takahashi. Only Mr. Atherton, Mr. Takahashi and

myself were present.

Q. What was said by Mr. Takahashi and what

w^as said by you, and what was said by Mr. Osawa

and Mr. Atherton?

Mr. Griffin: I object as incompetent, irrelevant

and immaterial and not binding on the defendant

Osawa. [69]

The Court: The jury will be instructed that any

conspiracy that existed terminated on the dock at

the time of the search on November 2, 1941, and

therefore any conversation by any defendant will be

considered by the jury as against that particular

defendant. And so any statement by Mr. Takahashi



144 Charles T. Takaliaslii, et al

(Testimony of Albert D. Richards.)

after the morning of November 2, 1941, made in the

absence of Mr. Osawa is only to be considered as

against Mr. Takahashi.

The jury will be further instructed that a con-

spiracy is a charge of a criminal partnership; and

if the jury is convinced, after it has heard all the

evidence, beyond a reasonable doubt that a con-

spiracy did exist as charged in the indictment, and

is further convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that

the defendants, or either of them, were members of

that conspiracy, then any statements made by any

member of the conspiracy, even in the absence of

such defendant, would be binding upon the defend-

ant, upon the theory that one is a member of a part-

nership he is liable for what the partner says or

does.

Mr. Griffin: I will take an exception, if I may,

for the last portion of your Honor's statement as to

the binding effect of any statement after the separa-

tion in time, the absence of the alleged co-conspira-

tor.

The Court: The jury will further understand

that if conversations take place with one defendant

in the presence of another, after the search on No-

vember 2, 1941, then the jury will be later instructed

as to what the rule is as to such conversations.

Mr. Takahashi said that he was in the import and

export business and that the main commodities that

he had exported were scrap steel, scrap rubber, scrap

bags and used oil tanks to the Orient. I asked him
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at that time if he had ever had applications for ex-

port licenses rejected and he said he had a [70]

number rejected. 1 asked him where these applica-

tions were and he said in his office at 215 Fifth Ave-

nue South, and he agreed at that time to get me the

rejected applications the next day.

I asked him also why he used the name of China

Import and Export Company as well as C. T. Taka-

hashi & Company. He stated that in doing busi-

ness with China or any persons who might be prej-

udiced against the Japanese, that he would use the

name of China Import and Export Company, there-

by getting around the name "Takahashi" which was

Japanese.

To the best of my recollection there was no men-

tion made of the three oil tanks on the night of No-

vember 2. He did mention that he shipped a nmn-

ber of used oil tanks prior to that time, to Japan.

The next tune I saw Mr. Takahashi was about ten

o'clock on the morning of November 3. There was

present Mr. Atherton, Mr. Takahashi and Mr. Ma-

suda, who was Mr. Takahashi 's attorney.

Q. AVhat conversation did you have at that time ?

Mr. Griffin: Same objection.

The Court : Same ruling.

A. I asked Mr. Takahashi at that time if I

might see the rejected export applications which he

had told me the night before were in his office. He

brought out a group of rejected applications for

various types of merchandise and among the ap-
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plications I saw one dated April 16 for three new,

dismantled steel 80,000-barrel storage tanks, and

another one dated on July 16 for three dismantled

storage tanks, the one on Aj)ril 16 headed the con-

signee as Mikuni-Shoko Company of Tokyo, Japan,

and the one on July 16 headed the Hua Hsin Com-

pany of Shanghai, China, as consignee.

I asked Mr. Takahashi if these were the same

three tanks [71] in the rejected application of April

16 and the rejected application of July 16, and he

stated that they were; that at the time the applica-

tion had been rejected by the State Department he

had gotten a new customer in China, the Hua Hsin

Company, and he had resold the tanks to the Hua
Hsin Company, and that there was no connection

between the Mikuni-Shoko Company and the Hua
Hsin Company of Shanghai.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #21, that is one

of the rejected applications given me by Mr. Taka-

hashi on the morning of November 31, 1941.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #19, that is the

rejected application of C. T. Takahashi & Company

for pennit to export three dismantled steel storage

tanks and accessories for re-erection purposes, given

me by Mr. Takahashi on the morning of the 3rd of

November.

Plaintiff's Exhibit #19 offered in evidence.

Mr. Griffin: The defendant objects on the ground

that the same is incompetent, irrelevant and imma-

terial and has no tendency to prove, as shown on the

face of the document itself, any connection of the
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defendant Osawa with any charge laid in any count

of the indictment.

The Court: Objection overruled.

Exhibit #19 is admitted.

The application admitted in evidence and

marked Plaintife's Exhibit #19.

Mr. Dennis : I now offer in evidence at this time

#21.

Mr. Griffin : I have the same objection to #21 as

just stated to #19.

The Court: Objection overruled and Exhibit

#21 is admitted.

Mr. Griffin: Exception to this ruling, please.

The Court: Exception allowed.

Application admitted in evidence and [72]

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit #21.

Mr. Dennis: Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit

#19, I will ask you if anything was said in regard

to certain writing then, at that time?

A. Yes. In looking over this application, after

the name of the applicant on Exhibit #19, which is

typewritten in "C. T. Takahashi" there is written

in pencil a change in there and where the name

Mikuni-Shoko Company is on the application. The

writing is rather dai-k. I asked Mr. Takahashi why

the pencil notation all the way through,—he stated

after that application had been rejected and he got

the new customer in Shanghai he used the applica-

tion of April 16 as a guide and had his stenographer

write in the name of the purchaser and the new ad-
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dress on this application ; that she took the new

application and filled it out accordingly using pencil

notation rather than the typewritten notation.

Q. And referring to the one at the top of the

page there was that mentioned?

A. He stated the reason he had written "China"

in typewriting in—inserting the name of the coun-

try of destination in the first application in type-

writing "Japan" he stated the new application was

in China so therefore he had to put in the w^ord

"China" in the new application when it was made

out.

(Thereupon Mr. Dennis read Exliibit #19 to

the jury.)

Q. Was there any talk with Mr. Takahashi in

regard to the application for the license dated July

16, 1941?

A. Yes. One of the main things that I talked to

him about was why Leo Nye Sing had signed the

application rather than Takahashi. He stated that

his new customer was in China and that he had

taken for granted, since the State Department had

rejected his application of April 16, that the United

[73] States had embargoed all tank shipments to

Japan, so he got this customer in China and asked

Leo Nye Sing, who is known by the American name

Willie Leo to sign the application to make it look

thoroughly Chinese. He said the new customer was

Hua Hsin Company, Shanghai, China, and he said

Leo Nye Sing was a Chinese friend of his, that he
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had known him for a long time and that he had him

sign this particular application. He said that the

application, Exhibit #21, had been rejected by the

State Dei)aitment, and Exhibit #19 had also been

rejected Iw the State Department.

I had another conversation with Takahashi, one

on the 3rd of November in the presence of M:-. Ath-

erton and Mr. Masuda, relative to this application.

Mr. Atherton, Mr. Takahashi, Mr. Masuda and my-

self were present.

Q. I will ask you what was said to Mr. Taka-

hashi and what he said to you?

Mr. Griffin : The same objection as heretofore.

The Court: The same ruling.

Witness continuing: At that time I asked Mr.

Takahashi if there was any connection between the

Mikuni-Shoko Company of Tokyo, Japan, and Hua
Hsin Company of Shanghai, China, and if the three

tanks in both api)lications were identical. He stated

there was absolutely no connection between the Hua
Hsin Company in China and the Mikuni-Shoko

Company of Tokyo. He volunteered at that time

the information that he did quite a bit of his busi-

ness with Japan by long distance telephone, that it

cost $8.00 a minute to talk to Japan, and it took so

long to get over the Japanese formalities before get-

ting down to business on his own that his telephone

bills would run as high as $1,000.00 a month long

distance to Japan. He stated that he had shipped

to Mikuni-Shoko Company prior to that time some

thirty- [74] five dismantled used oil storage tanks to
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Japan, that the only business he had ever done with

Mikuni-Shoko Comj^any was in oil, steel and tanks.

To the best of my recollection, I believe he stated

he received the order for the new steel storage tanks

the 1st of December, 1940, and at that time the order

was for eleven storage tanks but due to priorities on

steel and other obstacles he was able only to place

the order for three tanks and that he had placed this

order through the Sonken Galamba Supply Com-

pany of Kansas City, Kansas, who in turn had

placed the order with the Graver Tank Company of

East Chicago, Indiana. I asked him how the tanks

were to be paid for and he stated through a letter

of credit which he had received from Mikuni-Shoko

Company in payment of the thirty-five used stor-

age tanks; that he had accumulated a surplus of

some $71,000.00, which was to be applied on the pay-

ment of the three new storage tanks. I do not

recall having had any conversation with Edward Y.

Osawa other than the one on the pier. I asked Mr.

Takahashi to allow me to see some correspondence.

That was on the next occasion between November 3

and the latter part of November. He handed me

certain correspondence. The correspondence was

taken to my office, where photostats were made and

the corresx)ondence was returned to Mr. Takahashi.

Mr. Dennis: These may be identified as plain-

tiff's Exhibit #34 for identification.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #34, I have

never seen the originals. The original is in Japan
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presumably and this is a photostat copy of the copy

of the original letter which was in the files given to

me by Mr. Takahashi. I received the carbon copy

from the files and had that photostated.

Referring to Government's Exhibit #35, this is a

photostatic copy of the carbon copy of a letter re-

ceived from one of the [75] files given me by Mr.

Takahashi at his office. After the photostatic copies

were made the oi'iginals wei-e returned to Mr. Taka-

hashi.

Plaintiff's Exhibits #34 and #35 admitted in

evidence.

The letters admitted in evidence and marked

Government's Exhibits #34 and #35.

(Thereupon Exhibits #34 and #35 were

read to the jury by Mr. Dennis.)

Mr. Dennis : May it please the Court, may I say

this it has been agreed that the two words which

appear in these letters have certain meaning. It is

stipulated between the Government and defendants

that the word "Chigun", however it is pronoimced,

stands for "Navy" and the word "Rikugun", how-

ever it is pronounced, means "Army".

Mr. Crandell : That is the stipulation.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Crandell

:

When I talked with Mr. Takahashi I asked him

if the three tanks which were described in Exhibit

#19 were the same identical tanks as described in

Exhibit #21 and he said that they were the same
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tanks, and I investigated and found that he had told

the truth. I also asked him about where these tanks

were manufactured and he told me it was bv the

Graver Tank Company, East Chicago, and I in-

vestigated and found that was true. He told me
that the tanks had been ordered through the Sonken

Galamba Supply Company, Kansas City, Kansas,

and I investigated that and found it was true. He
told me that he had previously been engaged in the

export and import business for along time and I

investigated and found that was the truth. He told

me that he had rather recently an order for some

thirty-two or [76] thirty-five tanks and I investi-

gated that statement and found it was true.

Referring to Exhibit #19, when I saw the word

'"China" written in pencil I was naturally curious.

Exhibit #19 handed to the jury for scrutiny.

When I asked Mr. Takahashi regarding the pencil

marks he assured me that this was a form he had

used in a former application that had been rejected

and that he had taken this rejected form and told

his girl in his office what changes to make in pre-

paring a new application.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Griffin:

I never met or talked to Mr. Osawa prior to No-

vember 2, 1941. On November 2 and on November

3 I met with Mr. Takahashi and his attorney, Mr.

Masuda, in Takahashi 's office. He there advised me

that he had had several applications rejected by the
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State Department. I inquired for, and he brought

out, his files. He had a gToup of ten or twelve re-

jected applications which he gave me. He con-

sulted with his attorney before he gave them to me
and his attorney, Mr. Masuda, told him he saw no

objection in allowing me to take the apjjlications.

No threat had been made by me at this time. It was

some time between Novembei- 3 and November 15

that Exhibits #34 and #35 were delivered to me.

I refer, of course, to carbon copies from which these

photostats were made. There were no threats on

my part at that tmie. In addition to these Exhibits

#34 and #35 there was also given to me three files,

which I took to my office and examined, and certain

papers in those files were photostated. I inquirisd

from Mr. Takahashi why he had used the name

"China Import and Export Company", and was

curious why they had not used the name "C. T.

Takahashi & Company". [77]

Referring to Exhibit #19, Mr. Takahashi ex-

plained that the name "Ewers" on it was an attor-

ney in Washington, D. C, who had drawn the appli-

cation. I did not check that statement, because I

believed it was true. I investigated and found that

Mr. Takahashi had been using the name "China Im-

port & Export Company" since January 20, 1927, on

which date he had registered it in the Clerk's office

of the Superior Court of the State of Washington

for the Count.y of King, as by law required.

(Witness excused.)
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WILLIE LEO,

a witness called on behalf of the Government, after

having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Dennis

:

Q. What is your name, please?

A. Willie Leo; Leo Nye Sing, the Chinese name.

Q. Your Chinese name is what ?

A. Leo Nye Sing.

I was in the import and export business from 1935

up to the time of the war. I ceased that business

the first of this year. From April 1 to August 31 I

rented a service station. Now I am a coppersmith

trainee. The name of my import and export busi-

ness was ^' China Mutual Importing Company". It

has no connection with the China Import and Ex-

port Company. I had known the defendant Taka-

hashi since between 1925 and 1926.

Referring to Exhibit #21, that looks like my sig-

nature. I have no recollection of any dealing in

steel tanks. I have never had any dealings with

Hua Hsin Company, 320 Szechuen Road, Shanghai,

and don't know of them. I had no dealings with

three complete new steel dismantled storage tanks

and accessories for [78] erection purposes to be

shipped to the Hua Hsin Company, and don't know

anything about it. I am not a member of the China

Import and Export Company. There were some

arrangements made between Mr. Takahashi and my-

self on a commission basis, but not in regard to these

three tanks. I only remember of signing one appli-
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cation for Mr. Takahashi, which consisted of 25,000

ball bearings.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #20, that is the

application that I remember signing. That was des-

tined for Shanghai instead of Manchuria, as I recol-

lect. When I signed the application Mr. Takahashi

and I were both busy and I was told by Mr. Taka-

hashi that it was to be destined to Shanghai. I had

a conversation with Mr. Takahashi about how much

I was to receive. It was three per cent of the net

profits.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Crandell

:

It was about 1937 that I made the first arrange-

ment with Mr. Takahaslii to take part in his China

export business. Exhibit #20 bears my signature.

I would say that I am positive that it is my signa-

ture.

I would also say that Exhibit #21 also bears my
signature, but I have no recollection of signing it.

Q. Then why did you say it was your signature,

if you can't remember?

A. Well, I don't remember such items.

Q. You don't remember such an item?

A. That is signing such an item.

Q. You mean yoTi don't remember of a transac-

tion involving the sale of three tanks'?

A. That is right.

Q. Three tanks that are valued at about $90,-

000.00, where [79] you were to get three per cent
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commission on the transaction"? You don't remem-

ber that at all? A. No, I don't.

At the time of defendant's arrest I was inter-

viewed by officers Atherton and Richards in their

office. Mr. Atherton did not tell me at that time

that if I were a party to that transaction I would be

arrested. I believe it was a little bit later that he

told me that I would be implicated in a consjDiracy

case. I don't remember whether they said I would

be involved at the same time they were showing me

the application (Exhibit #21) or not. I didn't be-

lieve the officers when they told me, in substance,

that if I were involved in this transaction relating

to the three tanks I would be involved in a con-

spiracy charge. I thought they were fooling. I

didn't exactly deny to the officers that I ever seen

Exhibit #21. I said to both Mr. Atherton and Mr.

Richards that it was my signature. I did not say

to them that I had signed it without knowing what

it was. I told them that it looks like my signature,

but I didn 't recall signing for an application for

three tanks.

(Witness excused.)

Mr. Dennis: The next will be the reading of

these depositions of these former witnesses.

The Court : All right. You may proceed. I sug-

gest for the ease of reading, you may make some one

a substitute for the witness. It will be easier for

the jury to follow.

The jury may be advised that this is a typewritten
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copy of the testimony of the witness Francis Hoagiie

previously taken in this case. Francis Hoague ap-

parently is not available and it has been stipulated

between the parties that such testimony may be read

at this time. Mi-. Durham will impersonate Francis

Hoague. The jury will understand, I guess, what

that means. [80] They are to try to imagine that

Mr. Durham is Francis Hoague.

(The deposition, in the nature of testimony given

at the former trial, was then read as follows:)

FRANCIS HOAGUE

was called as a witness on behalf of the Plaintiff,

being first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

My name is Francis Hoague. I reside at Arling-

ton, Virginia. 1 am in the Office of the Information

Section of the Board of Economic Warfare. I have

brought with me certain official files and records of

my department. These records formerly belonged

to the Department of State, and on September 25

were transferred to the Board Defense Board.

Plaintiff's Exhibit #29, parts 1 to 5, are official

records of the Board of Economic Warfare.

I brought records concerning the China Export

and Import Company and C. T. Takahashi & Com-

pany.

Mr. Dennis: I offer Exhibit #29 in evidence

upon the present trial.
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The Court: Parts 1, 2 and 3 of Exhibit #29 are

admitted. Parts 4 and 5 are rejected.

I brought with me in relation to the China Export

and Import Company only the application for an

export license to ship three tanks, and also the ap-

plication of C. T. Takahashi to export tanks to

Japan.

The Court: The jury will now understand that

Mr. Durham has become someone else, Fred G.

Heins.

(The testimony of Fred C Heins was read to the

jury as follows:)

FRED G. HEINS,

was called as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff,

being first [81] duly sworn, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

My name is Fred G. Heins and I reside in Wood
Acres, Maryland. I am at the present time Acting

Assistant Chief of the Commodity License Division

of the Board of Economic Warfare. I was for-

merly in the State Department, Head of the Iron

and Steel Section in the Division of Controls. My
duty was to examine applications for licenses to ex-

port iron and steel and to take action thereon.

Referring to part #1 of Exhibit #29, I acted on

that application. Referring to S3rmbols HT-26-R,

HT is the symbol for the tanks, 26 i« the number for

that particular rejection, and the R indicates it was
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a rejection. The initials "FGH" indicated that I

rejected it.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Crandell:

The rejection is dated July 25, 1941, and at that

time we did issue permits to export similar products

to China.

Referring back to April 24, when there was a re-

jection for a permit to ship to Japan, I cannot say

whether at that time we did issue permits for the

shipment of similar products to Japan to other

American concerns, because I was not employed in

the Department until about May 1.

Exhibits #1, #2, #3 and #4 were offered in evi-

dence.

The Court : Exhibits #1, #2, #3 and #4, if not

already admitted, are now admitted.

(Witness excused.)

Cablegrams admitted in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibits #1, #2, #3 and #4.

A. S. ATHERTON,

a witness called on behalf of the [82] Government,

after- having been first duly sworn, testified as fol-

lows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Dennis

:

Mv name is A. S. Atherton. T am a United States
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Customs Agent, and was such on November 2, 1941,

located in Seattle.

On the morning of November 2, 1941, I was on the

Great Northern dock in Seattle. At that time I saw

defendants Charles T. Takahashi and Edward Y.

Osawa. I saw OsUwa and found that he was a pas-

senger coming in on that ship, the Japanese Motor-

ship "Hikawa Maru", which had arrived here that

morning. A little while after I saw him I observed

the defendant Takahashi in the baggage enclosure

on the dock in company with Osawa. They were

talkmg together. I observed them for some time

thereafter, and about 10:30 or a quarter to eleven

they started to leave the dock. That morning I was

accompanied by Customs Agent Richards. When
the two defendants started to leave the dock we

stepped up and introduced ourselves as Customs

Agents, and took them into the waiting room, which

adjoins the baggage enclosure. At that time Mr.

Takahashi told us his name and the fact that he was

the proprietor of C. T. Takahashi & Company and

also the China Import and Export Company, and

said that he had come down to meet Mr. Osawa, who

was his Manager, and who had returned on this ship.

We left Mr. Takahashi in the waiting room and

took Mr. Osawa into the adjoining washroom, where

he was searched. And after we searched Mr. Osawa,

he was taken out in the waiting room and Mr. Taka-

hashi was taken into the washroom and searched.

The City of Seattle was the port of entry of the

boat to the United States.
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Upon the search of Mj*. Osawa I found some doen-

ments on his [S3] jierson. Exhibit #9 was taken

from IMr. Osawa 's briefcase.

Exhibit #9 was offered in evidence.

Mr. Grifiin: To which the defendant Osawa ob-

jects, and particularly upon the basic objection here-

tofore made upon the constitutional grounds.

Mr. Crandell: Our objection would be the fact it

was not a matter that was in our possession or that

we can ))e charged with. In other words, they took

something off a stranger to us.

The Court: After argument, the Court will re-

serve a ruling as to Exliibit #9.

The Clerk: Government's Exhibit #36 marked

for identification.

Mr. Dennis: Referring to Government's Exhibit

#36, I will ask if you have seen that before?

A. That was in Mr. Osawa 's briefcase at the time

I have described, and obtained by me at that time

during my search.

Mr. Deimis : I offer Exhibit #36 in evidence.

Mr. Griffin: The defendant Osawa objects iipon

the basis of the objection heretofore made; and,

second, that it is hearsay so far as he is concerned.

The Court: The ruling will be reserved.

Q. (By Mr. Dennis) : Referring to plaintift"s

Exhibit #10, I will ask you if you have seen that

before i

A. Yes. This was taken from the defendant

Takahashi November 2.

Q. And referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #11?
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A. The same answer.

Q. Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #12?
A. The same.

Q. Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #13?
A. The same. [84]

Q. Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #14?
A. The same answer.

Q. Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #15?
A. The same.

Q. Referring to Plaintiff's Exhibit #16?
A. The same answer.

Q. Plaintiff 's Exhibit # 17 ? A. The same.

Q. And plaintiff's Exhibit #18?
A. The same answer.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibits #10, #11, #12
and #13, I consulted a code book, the duo code and

looked up the code words listed on these exhibits,

and I found the translation to be as given on these

code exhibits.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #15, I had a con-

versation in regard to that with Edward Y. Osawa

in the King County jail. And also in regard to

plaintiff's Exhibits #16 and #14. And at that

time I asked him if he had written these letters and

he said that he had. Mr. Richards was with me,

and I asked him where he was when he wrote them

and he said he was in Tokyo, Japan. We asked

him to whom he had sent them and he said to C. T.

Takahashi at Seattle. After we had searched the

defendants and had the conversation on the dock

we removed several letters from the pocket of the
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defendant Takahasbi and from the person of the

defendant Osawa, as well as letters from his brief-

case, and aftei- some little talk on the pier, then left

the dock.

Q. And when did you next see the defendant

Takahashi ?

A. Accompanied by Mr. Richards, I saw both

defendants again that day about ten o 'clock at night

at the office of C. T. Takahashi, which was at 212

Fifth Avenue South, in this City. At that time we

requested them to accompany us to our office [85]

in the Federal Office Building, which they did. And

upon arrival there Mr. Osawa was set in one room

while we talked with Mr. Takahashi in another

room, not within the hearing of Mr. Osawa. We
asked Mr. Takahashi regarding his imports and

exports, and among other things he told us that he

had been engaged in the business of exporting com-

modities consisting of machinery, tanks, some lum-

ber, gunny sacks, old rubber tires, old automobile

bearings and some other things. We asked him in

regard to the China Importing and Exporting Com-

pany. He stated that he normally did business

under the name of C. T. Takahashi and Company,

but whenever he dealt with any one who might have

a projudice against a Japanese name, he employed

the other title of China Import and Export Com-

l^any; and at times w^hen using that name, he would

secure a friend of Chinese descent named Willie Leo

to sign papers for him. In regard to some of his

exports he stated that there had been rejections of



162 Charles T. TakahasM, et al

(Testimony of A. S. Atlierton.)

A. The same answer.

Q. Referring to plaintife's Exhibit #12?
A. The same.

Q. Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #13?
A. The same. [84]

Q. Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #14?
A. The same answer.

Q. Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #15?
A. The same.

Q. Referring to Plaintiff's Exhibit #16?
A. The same answer.

Q. Plaintiff's Exhibit #17? A. The same.

Q. And plaintiff's Exhibit #18?
A. The same answer.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibits #10, #11, #12
and #13, I consulted a code book, the duo code and

looked up the code words listed on these exhibits,

and I found the translation to be as given on these

code exhibits.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #15, I had a con-

versation in regard to that with Edward Y. Osawa

in the King County jail. And also in regard to

plaintiff's Exhibits #16 and #14. And at that

time I asked him if he had written these letters and

he said that he had. Mr. Richards was with me,

and I asked him where he was when he wrote them

and he said he was in Tokyo, Japan. We asked

him to whom he had sent them and he said to C. T.

Takahashi at Seattle. After we had searched the

defendants and had the conversation on the dock

we removed several letters from the pocket of the
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defendant Takaliashi and from the jjerson of the

defendant Osawa, as well as letters from his brief-

case, and after some little talk on the pier, then left

the dock.

Q. And when did you next see the defendant

Takahashi?

A. Accompanied by Mr. Richards, I saw both

defendants again that day about ten o 'clock at night

at the otfice of C T. Takahashi, which was at 212

Fifth Avenue South, in this City. At that time we

requested them to accompany us to our office [85]

in the Federal Office Building, which they did. And
upon arrival thei-e Mr. Osawa was set in one room

while we talked with Mr. Takahashi in another

room, not within the hearing of Mr. Osawa. We
asked Mr. Takahashi regarding his imports and

expoi'ts, and among other things he told us that he-

had been engaged in the business of exporting com-

modities consisting of machinery, tanks, some lum-

ber, gunny sacks, old rubber tires, old automobile

bearings and some other things. We asked him in

regard to the China Importing and Exporting Com-

pany. He stated that he normally did business

under the name of C. T. Takahashi and Company,

but whenever he dealt with any one who might have

a projudice against a Japanese name, he employed

the other title of China Import and Export Com-

pany; and at times when using that name, he would

secure a friend of Chinese descent named Willie Leo

to sign papers for him. In regard to some of his

exports he stated that there had been rejections of
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some of his applications for a license to export. We
asked him if he had those rejections and he said that

he had a tile of them. ^Ir. Richards and I asked

him if we might see that file. He said if we would

come to his office the next morning, November 3,

1941, he would show the file to us. The next morn-

ing we went to his office and at that time he was

accompanied by Mr. Thomas Masuda, who was then

his attorney. The four of us had some discussion.

Q. (By Mr. Dennis) : Referring to plaintiff's

Exhibits #19, #20 and #21, I will ask if you

have seen those before?

A. They were contained among other rejection

applications for licenses for export. I made a re-

quest to take them and Mr. Takahashi acceded to

the request.

With reference to plaintiff's Exhibit #21 and

#19, we had a conversation with C. T. Takahashi

at the same time in regard to these two exhibits.

Mr. Richards asked Mr. Takahashi if the [86] tanks

listed on Exliibit #21 were the same three tanks

as those listed on Exhibit #19, and Mr. Takahashi

said "yes, they were the same three tanks'. He
was then asked if the consignee on Exhibit #25,

which was given as Hua Hsin Company of Shang-

hai, China, had any connection with the Mikuni-

Shoko Company of Tokyo, which was given as

consignee on September 19. Mr. Takahashi said

there was no connection at all. He said that when

he had made the application on April 16, 1941,

Exhibit #19, and it had been returned from Wash-
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ington rejected he had gone out and got a new

customer, which was the Hua Hsin Company of

Shanghai, China.

With reference to plaintiff's Exhibit #21, lie

was asked who Leo Nye Sing was and lie said lie

was Willie Leo whom he had described to us the

night before in our office. As a reason for Leo Nye

Sing signing that application, he said the applicant

being named in this case as the China Import and

Export Company he had secured Leo Nye Sing to

sign it to give the appearance of a thoroughly

Chinese concern. He said nothing about compen-

sating Leo Nye Sing, except that he had done fa-

vors for Leo before. We talked with the defendant

Takahashi, with Mr. Masuda, his comisel, at his

place of business, practically every day for the

next week. We obtained no further papers from

him during that period, but in the following No-

vember we got other papers from him. I borrowed

papers at frequent intervals. I would borrow some

papers and he would give them to me and I would

take them to the office, examine them and luring

them back, and he would give me some more. That

occurred two or there times. Of some of the papers

that I thought important I had a photostat copy

made.

The Court: I am advised that Leo Nye Sing is

present and is available. [87]

Mr. Crandell: I would like to cross examine

him in reference to one thing, but I wish to dis-

close the purpose in the absence of the jury.
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The Court: The jury may be excused for this

reason.

(The following proceedings were had in the

absence of the jury) :

Mr. Crandell: It has come to my attention that

Mr. Leo Nye Sing has been registered with the

Customs Department as the agent of the China Im-

port and Export Company and I want to examine

him on that for two reasons : First to disclose that

registration; second, it goes to his credibility. That

was brought to my attention only this morning.

The Court : You may have the privilege of cross

examination.

(Thereupon the jury returned into court.)

Q. («By Mr. Dennis). Mr. Atherton, when you

met the defendant Osawa in the County jail, did

you have any talk with him about whether he had

been in Shanghai or not?

A. I asked him if he had been in China on the

trip in question and he said that he had not. He
said he left Seattle about March 7, 1941, and had

gone to Japan and from there he had made a trip

over into Manchukuo and from there back to Japan

and had returned from Japan to Seattle on the trip

in question, but he had not gone to Shanghai. Go-

ing back to Charles T. Takahashi, I talked to him

relative to telephoning. That was about November

12. Mr. Richards and I were together and Mr.

Masuda accompanied Mr. Takahashi. Takahashi

said that he had l^ought thirty-two old storage tanks
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over in Montana and these bad ])een dismantled and

he had sold them to the Mikmii-Shoko Company of

Tokyo, Japan, and had shipped them over there.

After a period of time follov^ing, along in Decem-

ber, 1940, he had received an order from the Mi-

kuni-Shoko Company for eleven [88] new storage

tanks, but that he had been unable to fill that order

by reason of the shortage of material, or possibly

priorities, or some such things, so the order had

finally gotten down to three tanks instead of eleven,

and they had given this order to the Galamba Sup-

ply Company in Kansas City, Kansas, which concern

in turn had them built by the Graver Tank Company

of East Chicago, Indiana, and that during the

negotiations for these tanks some of the correspond-

ence had been by letter with the Mikuni-Shoko

Company in Tokyo, some by cable and some over

the long distance telephone, and in that connection

he said that the toll on the long distance telephone

was $8.00 a minute and it ran the bill pretty high

on account of the people on the other end taking

so much time over the formalities before they could

get down to business, and that liis telephone bill

often was $1,000.00 a month. He also said that

prior to the completion of these three tanks he had

received through various letters of credit through

Mikuni-Shoko Company some $71,700.00 to apply

in payment of them, and that along in January or

February, at any rate prior to the completion of

the tanks in March, he had sent his Manager, Osa-

wa, to Washington, D. C. in an effort to secure a
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license to ex^^ort them, and that following his dis-

l^atch of his Manager Osawa to Washington he had

sent also a man by the name of Shenker oi Port-

land, Oregon, to Washington, on the same mission.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Crandell:

Q. Did Mr. Takahashi tell you there had been

an attempt to sell certain tank equipment in Mexi-

co ? A. Yes.

Q. And did he tell you that when he found the

Mexican firm with whom he was dealing was on

the black list of the [89] United States that he

immediately cancelled his contract with that com-

pany?

A. No. He said he had sent a telegram can-

celling that contract.

Telegram marked defendants' A-6 for identifica-

tion was offered in evidence.

Mr. Dennis: No objection whatsoever.

The telegram was admitted in evidence and

marked Defendant's A-6

(Exhibit A-6 was read to the jury by Mr. Cran-

dell).

Q. (By Mr. Crandell) You had in your pos-

session also, Mr. Atherton, the contract and letters

of credit, together with the documents, or copies

of the documents, that were sent to the State De-

partment, pertaining to this contract between Mr.

Takahashi 's Company and this Mexican Company,

didn't you? A. Yes.
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Mr. Crandell: I ask that these be marked, re-

spectively, Exhibit 3-A, 4-A and 7-A, using the same

marks as in the previous trial.

They were so marked.

Exhibit 3-A, 4-A and 7-A admitted in evidence.

The documents admitted in evidence and

marked Defendant's exhibits 3-A, 4-A and 7-A.

The documents were read to the jury by Mr.

Crandell.

Mr. Kakahashi said that he had a telegram from

the Mexican Company which caused him to cancel

the contract. I stuck that telegram in my pocket.

Q. I hand you herewith exhibit marked A-5 for

identification and ask if that is the telegram?

A. Yes. [90]

Exhibit A-5 admitted in evidence.

The telegram was admitted in evidence and

marked Defendant's Exhibit A-5.

(Exhibit A-5 was read to the jury)

I watched Mr. Osawa until he left the dock and

Mr. Takahashi as well. I was suspicious of Mr.

Osawa because that letter, Exhibit A-1, had been

called to my attention.

Exhibit marked A-1 admitted in evidence.

The letter admitted in evidence and marked

Defendant's Exhibit A-1.

I was advised that Mr. Osawa was connected with

Exhibit A-1.

(Exhibit A-1 was read to the jury by Mr. Cran-

dell)
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My suspicion of Mr. Osawa was aroused because

I found in the letter that he was bringing in six

pairs of silk stockings. When passengers arrive in

a foreign port they are required to make a declara-

tion.

Q. Now, I hand you herewith Exhibit marked

A-2 for identification and ask if that is the original

official declaration filed by Mr. Osawa declaring

goods that he brought in on that trip?

A. I know that it was made by Mr. Osawa to

the Customs office. These declarations by passengers

are usually handed to the Customs officer one or two

days before the ship lands. The date on this decla-

ration, November 2, indicates it was received that

day. These declarations are available to Customs

officers to compare with the package that comes

through.

Mr. Crandell: Defendant Takahashi offers in

evidence the exhibit marked A-2 for identification.

The paper was admitted in evidence. [91]

The paper admitted in evidence and marked

Defendants' Exhibit A-2.

The three or four small pages attached to Exliibit

A-2 constitute and ordinary list of articles declared.

On the third page of these papers of articles de-

clared on the third line is described "six pair of

silk stockings".

Recross Examination

By Mr. Griffin:

When I was shown Exhibit #19 and #21 I said
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they were delivered to me voluntarily by Mr. Taka-

hashi. It was on November 3 that he explained the

situation of using the name of C. T. Takahashi &
Company sometimes and other times China Import

and Export Company. I investigated and found that

the China Import and Export Company existed.

I found that the name was duly and regularly regis-

tered with the Coimty Clerk of the Superior Court

of the State of Washington for the County of King
on the 20th day of January, 1927. I didn't investi-

gate whether Leo Nye Sing, whose signature ap-

pears on Exhibit #21, was registered with the

United States Customs as an agent of the China

Import and Export Company. It would not sur-

prise me to know that he was. I knew as a Customs

agent that over a long period of years, constantly

in his line of business, Mr. Takahashi had been

shipping to the Orient, both China and Japan, this

same kind of material, and there was nothing il-

legal about any such arrangement until the em-

bargo went into effect.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Dennis

:

This telegram, which is Exhibit A-5 does not

refer to the three tanks, the three new tanks listed

in Exhibit #19.

(Witness excused.)

Mr. Dennis: The Court took under advisement

Plaintiff's [92] Exhibit #9 and Plaintiff's Exhibit
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#36. I offered them and the Court reserved rul-

ing.

The Court : I am assuming that the defendants

—

both defendants—are objecting to Exhibit #9?
Mr. Crandell: Just the basic objection.

The Court: And that the defendant Osawa ob-

jects to both exhibits'?

Mr. Griffin : That is right.

The Court: The ruling is again reserved.

Mr. Dennis: At this time the plaintiif rests,

your Honor.

Mr. Crandell: We would like to make some

motions.

The Court : Do you want the jury excused ?

Mr. Crandell: I think so, the Court may want

some argument.

The Court: The jury will be excused subject to

call.

(Thereupon the following proceedings were

had in the absence of the jury) :

Mr. Crandell: Shall we proceed?

The Court: Counsel, you may in the absence of

the jury make your objection. Since this case has

been tried before me before and I am familiar with

the evidence, it is not necessary to make any argu-

ments unless there is some argument that has not

been presented to me before; but any argument

that has been made I have heard and I am satisfied

with what the ruling should be.

Mr. Crandell: Then I will just make the for-

mal record.
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The Court : All right.

Mr. Crandell : The Government having rested,

the defendant Takahashi now challenges the suffici-

ency of the evidence and the sufficiency of the in-

formation to charge a crime of making a false

statement, of conspiracy or of any other oifense;

that the evidence fails to prove an offense of con-

spiracy or of stat- [93] ing in the application the

wrong destination; and we move the Court for a

directed verdict on the part of the defendant Taka-

hashi.

Mr. Griffin: The defendant, Edward Y. Osawa,

at this time demurs to the evidence introduced and

challenges the sufficiency thereof and moves for a

dismissal and a directed verdict on the ground and

for the reason that the indictment as made does

not state a crime as against this defendant on any

count, and the evidence as produced has established

affirmatively the fact that the defendant Osawa

was not a party to any such conspiracy charged

in the count and was without the jurisdiction of

the Court at the time this supposed conspiracy

could exist, and it could only exist by reason of the

passage of the act and an executive regulation under

it.

And as to Count 2, which is another conspiracy

count, that he was not a party to the application

for the license; is not a member of the Charles T.

Takahashi & Company or the China Import & Ex-

port Company, only an employee thereof. He did

not make the application for the license in question

as shown affirmatively by the evidence.

And as to Count 3, the e^ddenee affirmatively
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establishes that he was in no wise a party to any

false and fraudulent statements and representatives

made to any department of the United States Gov-

ernment on or about July 16, 1941, and it affirma-

tively establishes he was without the jurisdiction of

not only this Court, but every United States court

at the time.

Also, in addition thereto, and in preserving the

constitutional rights of this defendant as to search

and seizure, there have been introduced in evidence

certain documents taken from the person of Mr.

Takahashi ; on which it has endeavored to connect a

conspiracy count with the defendant Osawa, and

that [94] the original motion to quash and sequester

should have been allowed, and exception was pre-

served at that time as to the introduction of those

exhibits over objection, as to my client, was duly

noted.

Your Honor has heard argument heretofore on

this matter and I do not imagine I could add to

what has already been said.

Mr. Crandell: My attention has just been called

to the fact that I have not designated any Count in

the indictment, following

The Court: It will be understood your motion,

challenge and demurrer runs to the indictment as

a while, and as to any part thereof, separately.

After some argument,

The Court: The motions which have been desig-

nated as the basic motions are again denied.

The motions, and challenges, and demurrers of

each defendant as to the indictment and the evi-
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dence as to each count of the indicernent are over-

ruled and denied and exception is in each instance

allowed.

(Recess ended).

The Court : You may proceed.

(Therefore the following testimony was in-

troduced on behalf of the defendants)

:

OSCAR W. DAM

Called as a witness on behalf of the defendants,

after having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Crandell

:

My name is Oscar W. Dam. I am Deputy Col-

lector in charge of the Foreign Division of the

United States Customs. In such office we have

powers of attorney on file, which authorize ex- [95]

porters to sign certain import papers, ships export

declarations and neutrality oaths. I am familiar

with the China Import and Export Company. The

power of attorney in the files was dated May 7, 1941,

executed by C. T. Takahashi, proprietor of the

China Import and Export Company. The agent

named is Leo Nye Sing. That power of attorney

has been filed since May 7, 1941. I have refreshed

my recollection by the record of Japanese mail and

passengei- ships incoming from Tokyo from the

month of July, 1941 yo November, 1941. The Heiu

Maru arrived at this port July 7. The next ship
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was Heian Maru, which arrived July 31, and the

third was the Hikawa Maru, arrived on November

2. That is all of the regular passenger or mail

ships. The length of time between Japan and

Seattle is thirteen or fourteen days.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Dennis

:

During the period mentioned the Canadian Pa-

cific, Empress boats, also carried mail and there was

some clipper mail from the Orient by way of San

Francisco. There was airmail service between

Japan and San Francisco.

Witness excused.

C. T. TAKAHASHI

One of the defendants, after having been first

duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Crandell

:

My name is C. T. Takahashi. I am a citizen of

the United States of America, thirty-nine years old.

I was born in Seattle, Washington, of Japanese an-

cestory. My father arrived in Tacoma about 1889

and arrived in Seattle around 1892. He attended

the Pudget Sound University at Tacoma. In Seat-

tle his [96] business was importing and exporting.

He died in 1920 and after his death I continued the

business. I went to the public schools in Seattle,
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then was two years in Staunton, Virginia, in tlie

Staunton Military Academy, then returned to Seat-

tle and attended the University of Washington for

three years. At Staunton I had some military

training and later was in the Boy Scout movement

in Seattle, where I was teaching boys good citizen-

ship and the meaning of scouting, namely, to be

mentally alert, physically strong and morally

straight. It was during my scout work that I met

Mr. Osawa, and through that acquaintance he be-

came associated with me later in business. This

association started about 1929. By 1941, when this

charge was laid, he was my General Manager. My
business has been general importing and exporting

from the North American continent to the Orient,

and from China and Japan I was importing to. the

Northwest here. The products generally being im-

ported in the main were fertilizers. By that I mean

meal, linseed meal, linseed cake and meals for fer-

tilizers. Those were our largest items. We exported

a little lumber and products of the Northwest, steel,

etc., practically anything that we had a market for.

It included worn rubber tires and metal junk. Dur-

ing the latter part of 1940 and up to July 16, 1941,

there were many large firms doing the same busi-

ness and were our immediate competitors. Between

the last dates it was legal all the time so to do. My
mother is in Japan at present and unable to get

out. I have had the assistance, in an e:ffort to get

her out, of Mr. Zumwalt, an Immigration officer,
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who is to be a witness here for the defense. My
business is conducted under the name of C. T.

Takahashi & Company, and also the China Import

& Export Company. I am the sole owner and am
not incorporated. The China Import & Export

Company has been used as a trade name [97] since

about 1927. I had it registered about then.

The Declaration of Proprietorship marked De-

fendant's Exhibit A-9 for identification was handed

to the witness. That is a copy of my declaration

of proprietorship of the China Import & Export

Company, filed and prepared by me. Exhibit A-9

for identification was admitted in e\ddence.

. The Declaration of Proprietorship marked

Defendant's Exhibit A-9 for identification.

• (Exhibit A-9 read to the jury by Mr. Crandell).

' It is difficult to say what percentage of my busi-

ness was conducted under the name China Import

& Export Company. At certain periods it was

greater than half, but by 1941 it wasn't even half.

Referring to Exhibit A-4 for identification, which

is the contract with the Mexican concern, I entered

into that contract under the name China Import &

Export Company. It was not done with the pur-

pose of deceiving or misleading anyone. I have

nsed the name C. T. Takahashi & Company since

1924.

Referring to Exhibit #19, that was signed by

Iver Ewers, an attorney in Washington, D. C, who

represented us. He was engaged by Mr. Osawa or
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Mr. Shenker, who were authorized by ttjc to do so.

When it was drawn in Washington the present

pencil marks were not on the application. I dbn't

know how many copies were made of the applica-

tion, but Exhibit #19 was an original copy that

was returned to us.

Exhibit #21 is an application I made for ship-

ment to China. '

(Whereupon the jury was duly cautioned and ex-

cused until 10 :00 a.m. October 3, 1941)

.

October 3, 1941, Court convened pursuant to ad-

journment. [98]

Mr. Dennis : May it please the Court, 1 will

state I have Leo Nye Sing in court this morning,

in accordance with the request of the Court.

Mr. Crandell: Thank you. I wonder if we can

withdraw Mr. Takahashi and put Leo Nye Sing on,

and I would like also to put on Mr. Ira Bedle of

the National Bank of Commerce.

IRA W. BEDLE

A witness called on behalf of the defendants,

after having been duly sworn, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Crandell

:

My name is Ira W. Bedle. I live in Seattle and
have so lived for twenty-four years. For twelve

years before that I lived in Spokane. I am Vice

President of the National Bank of Commerce in



180 Charles T. Takahashi, et al

(Testimony of Ira W. Bedle.)

this City. I am acquainted with the defendant, Mr.

Takahashi. I have known him in a business way

about fifteen years. I know his reputation among

his business associates for being an honest law-

abiding citizen. That reputation is good. I am also

acquainted with Mr. Edward Osawa. I have known

him seven or eight years and know generally his

business associates. I know his reputation in the

community for honesty and being a law-abiding

citizen. That reputation is good.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Dennis

:

I don't know Mr. Kohno or Mr. Ikuta or any of

their associates in Japan.

(Witness excused.)

LEO NYE SING

Recalled, liaving been previously sworn, testified

as follows:

Further Cross Examination

Q. (By Mr. Crandell) : Did you go to any office,

either federal [99] federal office or state office or

any other office and register as an agent for China

Import & Export Company at any time?

A. No, sir.

(Witness excused.)
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C. T. TAKAIIASHI

Resumed the stand for furtlier

Direct Examination

By Mr. Crandell

:

Our main office was Seattle, Washington. We
had a branch office in Tokyo, Japan. We hnd in

charge of that office a man named Togo. We liad a

branch office, a representative in Vancouver, B. 0.

The Manager was Meyer Franks. We had a branch

office in Portland, Oregon, in charge of Mr. William

Shenker. I had another branch in Oakland, Califor-

nia, represented by Mr. Sali Gruenbaum. In the

Seattle office, in my importing and exporting de-

partment, I had six employees. They were all

American born of Japanese ancesjtry.

Q. Referring again to Exhibits # 19 and #21,

what use did you make of #19 in preparation of

#21?
A. I used #19 as a model in making out my

application #21. The model was made and signed

by my lawyer in his Washington office. Exhibit

#21 was made in my office. On Exhibit #19 the

pencil marks were made by my secretary, Mrs.

Kawaguchi. Upon Exhibit #19 on the line where

appeared C. T. Takahashi & Company there is a

pencil memorandum China Import & Export Com-

pany. She also wrote that. All such pencil nota-

tions were made at my direction. The pencil memo-

randa were not made for the purpose of deceiving

anyone, nor with the idea that the destination

named in #21 should be China when in fact I

meant Japan. My instructions to all members of
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my office with reference to United States govern-

ment regulations were at all times to follow all such

regulations to the exact letter. [100]

With reference to Exhibit #85, a telegram from

the Mexican company, I remember receiving it and

I immediately answered it.

Exhibit #86 is the answer. That answer was

sent cancelling my contract with the Mexican con-

cern, was sent pursuant to my policy of complying

with the Federal Government's regulations.

Mr. Crandall: If the Court please, at this time

I want—if Exhibit #9 to which the Court has

reserved a ruling, is to be accepted as an exhibit,

it is logical now for me to follow in my examination

a subject that will involve that. And if it is not

going to be introduced then I will not have to touch

upon that.

The Court: As I understand it, Mr. Crandell,

both you and Mr. Griffin, for your respective clients,

objected to Exhibit #9 for identification.

Mr. Crandell: My objection is the basic objec-

tion.

The Court : I say you objected.

Mr. Dennis: I withdraw the offer, may it please

the Court, as to Exhibit 9.

The Court: All right. That takes care of that.

The offer of Plaintiff's Exhibit #9 with-

drawn

Mr. Crandell : Handing you Government exhibits

marked #17 and #18, did you at the time the ap-

plication known as Exhibit #21 was prepared, know
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of the existence of the two letters marked Exhibits

#17 and #18?
A. I did not.

Q. I notice that Exhibit #18 and #17 are both

dated Japan, July 16. About what date did you

receive these letters?

A. Sometime, I believe, in August.

Q. I notice that your application for the sale

of these three tanks is also dated July 16, 1941.

What was the date the [101] application was made

and transmitted to the State Department?

A. July 16.

Q. So that your application here in Seattle was

prepared and transmitted to the government of the

United States on the same day that the letters, 17

and 18, appear to be dated?

A. Yes. I had no knowledge whatsoever of Ex-

hibits #17 and #18 when I made that ai^plication,

and the letters, 17 and 18, did not influence or con-

trol me or persuade me in any way in making that

application.

With reference to the three tanks, they were three

complete new tanks. Prior to this time I had

bought and sold tanks to Japan. We had sold

around thirty-two old tanks, dismantled tanks;

From the beginning of the year 1940 to about the

beginning of the fall of 1940.

Mr. Crandell: If the Court please, I now have

an exliibit, being a letter with a document attached,

which I desire to be marked as one exhibit. Letter

and document attached marked A-10 for identifica-

tion.
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Mr. Crandell: Describe briefly what they are

without telling the contents.

Objected to by Mr. Dennis and objection sus-

tained.

After further argument,

The Court: Counsel, there will be recess and I

will listen to you again. If you convince me that

I am mistaken I will reverse my ruling. If you

don't the ruling will stand.

Recess.

I had Exhibits #17 and #18, together with some

other documents that Vv^ere associated with them, in

my i^ossession on November 2, when I went to the

Great Northern dock. I went to the dock at Mr.

Osawa's request. I received a telegram from him

from Victoria, Canada, which was sent when the

boat arrived [102] there the day before, asking me
to bring $200.00 to the dock to give to him to pay

for the duty that would be charged upon presents

and things that he had. I had $200.00 with me.

I was the one who directed Mr. Osawa to go to

Japan. The main purpose was to close our Tokyo

office and settle an account of a very little busi-

ness deal that we had pending. I instructed him

about March, 1941, to go. At that time I did not

advise, suggest or authorize him to go over there

and make arrangements to make shipments to

China so that they could be transferred to Japan.

The closing of our Tokyo office meant that we were

finished there, going to abandon further operations

there.
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Mr. Crandell: Going back to Mr. Osawa's return

to Seattle, for vvbat purpose did you take tbe let-

ters, #17 and #18, to tbe boat?

A. I wanted to discuss tbem witb Mr. Osawa

at tbe very earliest possible moment. Tbe interpre-

tation tbat I made of it bere was absolutely con-

trary to tbe policy of my firm. I bad not answered

tbe letters up to tbat time and never bave answered

tbem and tbey never since bad any correspondence

witb tbe Tokyo company. I never at any time by

word of moutb or written statement suggested tbe

sbipping of any goods at any time to Cbina or any-

wbere else wbere tbey could be re-sbipped to Japan

and would not enter into sucb an arrangement.

After tbat application for license was tendered I

made furtber effort to disj^ose of tbe tanks. In

tbe spring of 1941 we tried tbrougb tbe Mexican

concern to sell tbe tbree new tanks to tbe Mexican

government, tbrougb tbeir oil department, and we

also tried tbrougb New York to sell the tbree new

tanks to tbe Britisb Buying Commission and

tbrougb my—and I sent Mr. Sbenker to tbe Britisb

Commission, located in New York, and paid bis ex-

penses and instructed bim to find a buyer. About

tbe Mexican [103] people, I asked Mr. Sbenker to

approach certain friends I bad in Mexico, besides

any tbat be bimself could find. I paid bis expenses

on a trip to Mexico and gave bim bis instructions.

At all times we were trying to sell tbe tanks in tbis

country. There was a time when I bad my man,

Mr. Strangew^ays, approach the Army depots at San
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Francisco. All my branch offices were working on

the matter. I was not trying to get them into

China so that they could be shipped to Japan. I

also made attempts to dispose of the tanks in

Canada, through my branch office in Vancouver.

We received an offer for the purchase of these

tanks by cablegram from Shanghai. The original

cablegram we attached to the aplication we made to

Washington, D. C, so that the Government now has

the original cablegram. That was not a fictitious

order. I sent that order to the Department of

Licenses in the State Department. I have never

seen it since. The tanks are now in the United

States; two of them are located on National De-

fense work and one was purchased in Portland by

the Portland Gas. Since the transaction different de-

partments of the Government have asked if we still

had the tanks and wanted to buy them. I authorized

you (Mr. Crandell) to give that information. I have

done everything I could to assist the Federal Gov-

ernment in order to see if they could purchase them

if they were available. I have never done anything

in the conduct of my business that would thwart in

any way the interests of the country.

Mr. Crandell: You may cross examine. Mr.

Tillisch is here. Have you any objection if I put

him on? He will be a short witness. He is one of

the men on the Great Northern. Pie will be a very

brief witness.

The Court : He may take the stand.
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PAUL WILLIAM TILLISCH

Called on behalf of the defendant, [104] after

having been first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination
By Mr. Crandell:

My name is Paul William Tillisch. I live at

1130—19th Avenue North, Seattle, where I have
lived for eleven years. I have been in Seattle for

twenty years. I am Chief Clerk to the General
Manager of the Great Northern Railway. Have
been such for thirty-four years and still actively

engaged in railroading. I am acquainted with Mr.
Takahashi, the defendant. I have known him since

the Fall of 1918 in a business way. I know gen-

erally Ms associates and acquaintances in the City

of Seattle. I know his reputation among fhose

people for honesty and for being a law-abiding

citizen. That reputation is good.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Dennis

:

I know nothing about his associates in Japan.

Witness excused.

Recess

C. T. TAKAHASHI
on stand.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Griffiiii:

Mr. Takahashi: In the letter, Exhibit #14,
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dated July 5, ''The trouble with mercury and tin-

plate is that the Gmibu has no direct interest in it

and the association is handling all imports of those

articles", the word "association" means something

similar to our Priority Board in this country.

Japan was using priorities before we were here, in

effect having an embargo on certain exports to this

country; that was affecting import business to this

comitry very much. Then the priorities or em-

bargoes, whatever we call it, went into effect here

on [105] certain items of export and that was

cutting our export business. Prior to the invasion

of China by Japan in 1937 we had important Chi-

nese business, but after 1937 it all disappeared; in

fact a lot of Chinese tirms themselves disappeared.

Prior to the regulations of embargo in the United

States going into effect there was considerable ac-

tivity on the part of certain associations against

the shipment of anything to Japan. When it was

first talked in the United States of an embargo we

were supplying or preparing to supply certain used

storage tanks to customers in Japan. We supplied

nothing to the Japanese government as such. When
we first started shipping used storage tanks we

were in doubt whether or not a license was required

and took the matter up with the Collector of Cus-

toms in Seattle. He was Saul Haas. We were un-

able to get definite information from him as he

wasn't sure himself. The matter was taken up with

his superiors in Washington, D. C, that is, with

the State Department, and eventually we were ad-
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vised by the Collector of Customs in Seattle that

no license was required in our exportation of these

used tanks to Japan. A letter to that effect was

given us from the Collector of Customs. Prior to

the receipt of that letter we made a formal applica-

tion. Exhibit A-10 for identification shows our

signatures to a formal application for a license.

It bears the stamp of the Department of State of

the United States. That letter is dated December

21, 1940.

Mr. Dennis: I object, and would like to ask the

witness a question. Did any of this correspondence

have to do with new tanks ?

A. No, sir.

Mr. Dennis: I object on the ground that it has

no bearing on the issues in this case, which all con-

cern new tanks. We [106] are concerned entirely

with three new tanks.

The Court: Let me see the letter. I have indi-

cated by my previous ruling that I did not consider

this material. No objection has been made to the

preceding cross examination by Mr. Grif&n. I will

let the letter go in with the preceding evidence. The

objection is overruled.

The letter is admitted in evidence and marked

Defendants' Exhibit A-10.

(Mr. Griffin read Exhibit A-10 to the jury.)

Mr. Griffin: The dismantled tanks for re-erec-
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tioii purposes were shipped pursuant to that au-

thority?

A. Yes. I complied with the Federal regulation

in every particular. There was no difference be-

tween old tanks and new, except the fact that one

had been used and the other had not. The tanks,

old and new, were storage tanks for oil. Having

made the application, Exhibit A-8, for old tanks,

then I make application to the United States gov-

ernment for license for new steel dismantled storage

tanks. That application was signed for C. T. Taka-

hashi & Company by Mr. Osawa. I sent Mr. Osawa
to Washington, D. C. to make the application. He
was there so that he could find out and conform to

everything that the United States government re-

quired. Mr. Osawa was in Washington at least a

week. It became necessary for him to employ

counsel.

Referring to Exhibit #29 and to part 2 of that

exhibit, the name there is Ira Ewers. He was the

attorney employed in Washington. This document

came back to our office at one time. There was a re-

newal for the same tanks that Mr. Osawa had made

the application for on February 8, 1941. The same

attorney who made the original application made the

second one. That application was rejected. There

was an appeal made and [107] eventually the appeal

was denied. The words used were '' appeal disap-

proved".

Mr. Griffin : Mr. Dennis and I cannot agree as to

the date written after the words ^^application re-
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jected", but it would be April or May apparently

and that is the best we can say.

Mr. Dennis: I think so.

(Noon adjournment.)

By Mr. Griffin

:

Referring to Exhibit #29, part 2, being the ap-

plication made by Mr. Ewers on April 16, 1941, with

reference to a license for these three tanks, Mr.

Osawa was in Washington. He was there in Feb-

ruary, but not in April. In April he was in the

Orient. He returned from Washington, D. C. the

early part of March. He made a report upon con-

ditions existing in Washington with reference to

shipments of material/^ generally to Japan. And I

sent him to Japan. The main purpose in sending

him was to close the office there ; another reason was

we had an account to be taken care of in connection

with that matter.

Referring to Exhibits #17 and #18, those are

letters from Mikuni-Shoko Company that I received

some time in August, 1941. The letter of July 16,

1941, Exhibit #17, which I received in August,

states with reference to advancing money "Put up

by us to you already"; I didn't have any advance

money from Mikuni.

Shenker remained for a time in Washington, D. C.

after Mr. Osawa returned. When Mr. Osawa went

to Japan for me neither then nor at any other time

did I give him any orders or directions to arrange

to violate directly or indirectly any law or regula-
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tion of the United States of America. Our branch,

office in Tokyo had no connection with Mikuni-

Shoko Company Limited. They were a customer of

ours. I am quite sure that the}' did not have any

connection with the Japanese government, [108] offi-

ciall}^ speaking. They were a recognized, standard

financial concern in Tokyo and one upon which I

would relj" upon their recommendation of the finan-

cial responsibility of another concern.

When I sent Osawa to the Orient it was contem-

plated that he should go to Shanghai. It was also

necessary for him to go to North China, called Man-

churia, where we had an account in difficulty. I

wanted him to go to Shanghai to open a chain of

connections for business mth China. I was particu-

larly interested in wood oil for import to the United

States. Wood oil is one of the most vital materials

in making paint which is used in war industries and

in aviation. He was unable to go to Shanghai.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Dennis:

Referring to defendants' Exhibit A-5, which is a

telegram, the tanks referred to therein were not the

three tanks in question. These three tanks referred

to in this telegram w^ere different tanks than the

three referred to in application, which is plaintiff's

Exhibits #19 and #21.

And referring to defendants' Exhibit A-6, that

telegram does not refer to the three new tanks.
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Referring to defendants' Exhibit A-7, that letter

has no reference to the three new tanks and the pur-

pose of the affidavit attached to defendants' Exhibit

A-7 was for the purpose of obtaining a permit.

Mr. Kono was here in Seattle for a while with me

for about four months. I believe it was during the

end of 1940 and the beginning of 1941. He was

doing business with us, representing his own firm

and not representing my firm. His headquarters

were at the Holland Hotel. He was at our office

almost every [109] day. He represented the Mikuni-

Shoko Company Limited of Tokyo, Japan. Mr.

Ikuta is a director of Mikuni-Shoko Company.

At one time my business with Japan and China

was practically 50-50. And in 1940 and 1941 it was

less than half in China to that in Japan. During

the year 1940 I did not telephone to China because

there was no telephone service there. In 1940 I

made no shipments of steel tanks to China, nor in

1941. In 1941 I received a letter from a firai in

Tientsin in North China. That is not the sum total

of the letters received. I think there was quite a bit

of correspondence, because we were trying to obtain

walnut meats, and also furs from North China. We
sent some goods to China during the years 1940 and

1941. We sent many automobile bearings; also rub-

ber tires and newspapers and machineries. The

orders came from Koman Company and also from

another firm by the name of Manchuria Heavy In-

dustries. The Koman Company is not a Japanese

concern; it is Korean. I sent no goods to Shanghai
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during the year 1940 or 1941. Prior to April of

1941 I never received any communication of any

kind from Hua Hsin Company. I have not received

any letter from them direct up to the present time.

I understand Mr. Kiang is the Manager of Hua
Hsin Company. I think his initial is M. Kono's

name is also Chang. I never received a letter from

him. The only communication that I ever received

from the Hua Hsin Company was the cablegram,

which is in Washington, D. C. The name signed to

that cablegram was Hua Hsin Company; no indi-

vidual name added. This proposition of three new

80,000-barrel storage tanks involved approximately

$88,000.00. Those tanks were already manufac-

tured, finished about March, 1941. The cost of those

tanks made at Chicago was about $60,000.00 in Chi-

cago. The $60,000.00 had been paid in December,

1940^ as a part advance payment and that money

was returned to them ; I [110] do not recall the exact

amount that was paid to us, but I think somewhere

around $55,000.00 advance money was given to us in

December, 1940.

Q. And then how much afterwards? And the

l)alance was made up by a credit arrangement for

payment of freight, and that amounted up to about

$71,000.00, as far as the credit arrangement goes,

so you have been paid in full for the manufacture

of the tanks, and then you had some advance money

for freight. That is correct, isn't it?

A. No. That was another transaction altogether
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the freight transaction, and that is how they got

additional credit up to $71,000.00.

It is difficult for me to say how much husiness

I did with Japan during the year 1940 and the year

1941, because it was quite a large business and it

all reflects on our books and I myself could not

hardly tell you. I do not know whether we shipped

to Japan over four million sacks, but we sold quite

a lot of sacks. I do not know the exact figures.

These were sold through Messrs. Mitsui & Company

Seattle, Washington. We also sold thirty-two steel

tanks through Mikuni-Shoko Company. We had

correspondence back and forth with the Mikuni-

Shoko Company and some long distance conversa-

tions with them. In 1941 we also had correspon-

dence with the Mikuni-Shoko Company and long

distance telephone conversations with them. And
when Mr. Osawa was in Tokyo I had long distance

conversations with him which continued until he

departed on the last steamer over here. I telephone

to Mr. Osawa in regard to the three steel tanks. I

never sold any tanks to the Japanese government

direct, but I sold thirty-two used tanks to the Jap-

anese government through Mikuni-Shoko Company.

Recross Examination [111]

By Mr. Griffin:

In my conversation with Mr. Osawa I told him

that the Government had rejected the application

prepared and filed by Mr. Ewers at Washington,

D. C. and that an appeal was taken on that matter
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and that the appeal had been denied and that no

shipment could be made to Japan.

When Mr. Kono was in my office in Seattle in

the winter of 1940 and 1941 he was endeavoring to

establish a connection with me as the exclusive

agency in Japan. I had no connection with him

personally different than any other customer. He
was the one referred to in one of Mr. Osawa's let-

ters as " Snickelfritz ". I think that was kind of a

joke played on him by the office force in our office

because he was running aromid so much. It was

only a nick-name.

Re-Recross Examination

By Mr. Dennis:

It is hard for me to be definite as to what month

Mr. Shenker was in Washington, D. C. He was in

Mexico in 1941 and was five or six weeks there.

Re-Re-Recross Examination

Q. (By Mr. Griffin) : Now, I was a little con-

fused from Mr. Dennis ' cross examination in regard

to the money or the $71,000 or whatever it was. At

the time that you received the order from the Hua
Hsin Company from Shanghai, China, had you

made any payment at that time for these tanks or

any portion thereof?

A. Absolutely not.

Q. Now, as I say—you answered Mr. Dennis

that at one time and I think the dates are import-

ant,—at one time you had an advance payment

from Mikuni in the sum of $60,000 for the manu-
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facture and an additional payment for freight that

[112] ran up to about $71,000. Prior to the receipt

of the Hua Hsin order in July had that money, ad-

vance payment, been refunded by you to Mikuni

and by the transfer of yen by Mr. Osawa in Japan ?

A. Yes, that had been paid back to Mikuni by

transfer of yen.

Q. So that when you received the Hua Hsin or-

der you were actually out of pocket the cost of these

tanks, of manufacture, transportation and storage

up to that timef

A. Yes, we were.

Q. And you were trying to dispose of them

wherever you could, as you stated before?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. On a direct sale to the country involved?

A. That is correct.

Q. Was it your custom in your business to deal

with letters of credit?

A. That is the absolute custom of all importing-

exporting companies, and not to—well, except from

1923 to May, 1939, the beginning of World War
#2, where all firms became very, very particular

on that point, in fact getting money in advance, be-

cause throughout the w^orld it was a chaotic condi-

tion and it was very important, and at that time a

letter of credit was in effect a guarantee by a reput-

able bank.

Q. That the customers were paid that amount of

money or should be paid by the bank? Yes, it was

a irrevocable payment by the bank.
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Exhibit A-3 is a copy of a form of letter of credit.

That was the one from Mexico. I am located now

at the Mimiedoka Relocation Proje-ct, five miles

from Eden at the fringe of the sagebrush desert in

Idaho. I am connected with the Boy Scout move-

ment in the camp and Mr. Osawa is assisting me in

that work. [113]

Re-Re-Re-Recross Examination

By Mr. Dennis:

Mr. Osawa took care of arrangements of paying

back the money to Mikuni-Shoko Company. I think

it was the early part of March that I notified him to

do so. I had yen in Japan. I instructed him to do

so just before he left here for Japan, which was

the early part of March. The application to ship

these three tanks to the Mikuni-Shoko Company

was dated April 16, 1941. At that time I do not

think' I had returned the money to Mikuni-Shoko

Company. Right now I am not exactly sure

whether the money was returned before or after the

application was denied. I discussed it with him

when he left, because that was part of the business

of cleaning up our account in Japan. When I filed

the application and when he went I did not exi3ect

to send these goods to Tokyo.

Q. Yes, and in spite of the fact that you did not

expect to send these three tanks to Japan, you in-

structed Osawa to return the $71,700.00 to the Mi-

kuni-Shoko Company? Is that what you want this

jury to understand?
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A. What I want the jury to understand is that

I had a lot of yen in Japan which I wanted to ex-

change into American funds. And whatever funds

that they had there, I wanted to exchange into their

credit account that we had here, because I did not

want to have yen in Japan. My interests and home

and everything is centered around here, and natur-

ally I wanted to protect myself first.

Q. What I am interested in, Mr. Takahashi, is

when it was that you definitely returned that money

to the Mikuni-Shoko Company?

A. That I camiot recall, the exact date.

Q. You cannot tell us whether you did that by

telephone ? [114] I will ask you if you did telephone

to Osawa to return that money to the Mikuni-

Shoko Company?

A. I think I did by cable also. You see we had

some 900,000 yen. And it was all in those moneys

that we had over there; so I cannot tell you right

now the exact time when a certain amount was

taken care of at certain times.

Q. Now then, at the time you made the applica-

tion to Washington, D. C, for these tanks to be

shipped by the China Import and Export Company,

did you have any order for any money or any letter

of credit from Hua Hsin Company?
A. No, sir, I did not. I did not need it.

Q. You were relying entirely, as a matter of

fact, on the Mikuni-Shoko Company, weren't you?

A. Well, we don't worry in our import-export

business, Mr. Dennis, because if a person does not
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send a letter of credit, even at the last minute, you

don't have to load the goods, and as long as we

have the goods we are not worried at all about

finances.

Q. So you had no letter of credit at all from

Hua Hsin Company?

A. That is correct.

Q. You were not relying on the Mikuni-Shoko

Company ?

A. If arrangements had been agreed upon, I

would have waited for a letter of credit to come

from China. If there hadn't been any letter of

credit I wouldn't ship even if the license had been

granted. I was not relying in any way on Mikuni-

Shoko Company for the funds for the proposition

from China. I would rely on them in this sense

that they would have to recommend to us some firm

of reliable financial standing.

Re-Re-Re-Re-Recross Examination

By Mr. Griffin: [115]

When Mr. Osawa returned from Washington I

definitely had the opinion that the application would

be rejected and as a result of that when I sent him

to the Orient I advised him to settle the matter with

Mikuni and get the yen out of Japan. It was in

the Spring of 1941 that I first knew that the money

had been paid to Mikuni-Shoko Company.

(Witness excused.)
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EDWARD Y. OSAWA

one of the defendants, after having been first duly

sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Griffin

:

My name is Edward Y. Osawa. I was born in

Seattle, Washington. I am forty years old, an

American citizen of Japanese ancestry. I went

through high school in Seattle. I have been mar-

ried about twelve years and my wife is an Ameri-

can citizen. My home since the date of my birth

has been in Seattle. Now I am at Eden, Idaho. I

have known Mi*. Takahashi since childhood, and

had my first business connection with him in 1929.

He was then at 212 Fifth Avenue South, Seattle,

where he is now. The name of the company was C
T. Takahashi & Company, also China Import & Ex-

port Company. The last named was being used at

the time I first entered relations with him. The

nature of the business was import and export,

whether operating as the C. T. Takahashi Company
or the China Import & Export Company. I was

general assistant to Mr. Takahashi and worked up
to general manager in 1940 and 1941. As general

manager T was familiar with the details of the busi-

ness. The bookkeeping was done by an auditor. In

those years we had branches in Portland, Vancou-

ver, Oakland and Tokyo, Japan, and different man-

agers at each place. The Tokyo office had no phy-

sical conn- [116] ection with Mikuni-Shoko Com-

pany and was a customer. We once had a consider-
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able, export and import business with China, but

it fell off prior to 1940 and 1941. The principal

break came in 1937, when Japan invaded China. At

one time we had an important account in North

China, commonly called Manchuria. The account

Was with the Kono Company. We had exported a

considerable amount of merchandise to this company,

consisting mostly of automobile bearings and tires.

We also shipped some mining machinery to another

company named Manshu Jyukogyo Company,

known over here as Manchuria Heavy Industry. We
were having difficulty with that account. I recall

the time when there was required by the United

States government a consent by way of license for

the shipment of material of the kind we were ship-

ping to the Orient. The first reaction, I believe,

came in August. 1940, and had to do with scrap

steel, to ship which a license was required by some

depai'tment of the United States government. There

was some controversy whether tanks would come

under the scrap steel requirements. At that time

we were shipping used tanks to the Orient for the

storage of oil, and there arose the question whether

they came under the heading of scrap steel.

Referring to Exhibit A-10, the second sheet, it

has a copy of my signature. At about November,

1940, I made application on behalf of C. T. Taka-

hashi & Company, to the United States of America

for license to export eighteen complete used steel

dismantled storage tanks and accessories for re-

erection purposes. I thought I was complying with



vs. United States of America 203

(Testimony of Edward Y. Osawa.)

regulations of the United States government and the

necessity, or lack of necessity, for license, referring

to Exhibit A-10, and that is where I got the direction

that no license was required. Following that we got

an order [117] for new tanks. That would come un-

der the heading of new steel. Whether new or scrap

they are used for the same purpose. I went to Wash-

ington in connection with the three new tanks in

question. In the application as ordered from Mikuni-

Shoko Company in Tokyo. Originally the order was

for eleven new tanks. We couldn't get eleven, only

three. We did not manufacture the tanks ourselves,

but had to arrange for the manufacture of them. We
placed the order with the Galamba Supply Com-

pany of Kansas City, Kansas, who in turn placed

the order with the Graver Tank Company of East

Chicago, Indiana. By February 1, 1941, the three

tanks were in process of manufacture. Then I went

to Washington. That was about the time the appli-

cation is dated. At that time I think the regula-

tion, or Presidential proclamation, was made giving

us ten days to ship all outstanding orders ; from ten

days off a license would be required. After reaching

Washington I made an application. I got the print-

ed form. The printed form was supplied through

our attorney. Such applications are made in dupli-

cate, or triplicate, I don't remember for sure. On

Exhibit #29, part 3, is my signature. That is the

application made by me on behalf of Takahashi &

Company for a permit to ship to Mikuni-Shoko
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Company at Tokyo, Japan, these new steel disman-

tled storage tanks and accessories for re-erection

purposes. That was the first application. It was

tiled through our attorney, Ira W. Ewers, an attor-

ney in Washington, D. C The Government did not

grant the permit. I left Washington and returned

to Seattle. At the time I left Washington I did not

know definitely that the permit would not be grant-

ed. When I left Washington I believed that no

license would be granted for the shipment of either

scrap or new steel to Japan. I was in Washington

about two weeks. In making the application I was

endeavoring to comply with every [118] regulation

of the United States government. In the early part

of March I sailed for Japan. The main purpose

was to close the office and to complete the transac-

tion there of money to be paid us on the mining ma-

chinery deal that we made in Manchuria. At the

time I left Takahashi had received an advance pay-

ment on these tanks from Mikuni-Shoko Company.

At that time we had considerable yen in Japan.

That is a customary condition of exporters and im-

porters to keep money in their various countries

where their offices are. I was advised that the ap-

plication was rejected and that an appeal had been

made. Some time away later we heard definitely

the appeal was rejected. I settled the account with

Mikuni-Shoko Company by an exchange of yen and

refunded them by an exchange of -credit. When I

left for Japan I contemplated going to Shanghai

and to Manchuria. I made m}^ headquarters in
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Tokyo at the Imperial Hotel. While there I closed

the Tokyo office. Mikuni-Shoko Company have no

connection with Takahashi or the China Import and

Export Company, except as a customer. When I

left the United States Mr. Takahashi instructed me
to comply with every rule, law and regulation of

the United States.

Referring to Exhibit #29, part 3, there was a

question raised about the form and a new one was

made. I was out of town when they made the new
one. Wheii I was in Washington Mr. Shenker,

manager of the Portland office, was with me. After

making the application we split up in Washington

and I went to New York. He came back to Port-

land. On my trip to the Orient I went to Manchu-

ria in connection with the settlement of the contro-

versy between our concern and the North China

concern over the shipment of machinery. It was

completed before I left Japan; so was the office

closed. I did not go to Shanghai, being unable to

do so due to restrictions in force. We were looked

upon [119] as foreigners so far as Japan is con-

cerned, that is, I am an American and restricted

as a foreigner from going to Shanghai from Japan..

When I left Seattle our company was interested in

obtaining a representative in China. We were in-

terested in importing wood oil. I wrote Exhibits

#14, #15 and #16 to Mr. Takahashi. When in Ja-

pan I contemplated leaving for the United States

about the middle of July of 1941. I didn't get the

boat. I was trying to conclude my business, and it
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was not until two days after the sailing of the boat

that I finally completed everything. I took the next

boat out, which left in the latter part of October.

That is the boat that arrived in Seattle on Novem-

ber 2. Between those two boats there were no mail-

carrying boats to Seattle from Japan.

In Exhibit #14, being a letter written by me on

July 5, 1941, ''Was quite interested in the activity

in Mexico", I refer to Mr. Takahashi sending Mr.

Shenker down to Mexico in order to obtain a lot of

second-hand machinery. Where I say: "The trou-

ble with rails, mercury and tin plate is that the

gunbu has no direct interest in it and the associa-

tion is handling all imports of these articles" the

term "gunbu" means "military party" and "asso-

ciation" is a group of buyers forming sort of a

cartel, and they in turn, say it was scrap steel, cer-

tain firms would handle all the importing of all of

that particular commodity into Japan. When in Ja-

pan I found that the governmental authorities were

limiting their operations practically to large import-

ters. They depended mostly on firms like Mitsui and

Mitsubishi, and I tried to see if there was any im-

porting business available in competition with these

firms, and I found I was being sent from one gov-

ernment agency to another but never got anywhere,

and I said "they gave us a low price to get rid of

us." In saying: "Even if you had any business,

[120] the matter of space", and so forth, "space"

means steamer space. I found that I was able to do
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business in exporting with reference to rails, mer-

cury and tin plate. The subdivision of that letter

referring to "Marmon" means Marmon trucks of

American manufacture we were trying to sell.

I was unable to go to Shanghai myself and I

went to Mikuni's office and saw Mr. Ikuta and

asked him to do me a personal favor to line up

some good Chinese firm for me. It is possible that

the Chinese firms in Shanghai at that time were

operating only subject to the right to operate of

the Japanese military that controlled the ports.

When I say "control" they dictated exactly what

these firms were to do. They knew their financial

standing and they would then compare to find what

firm was financially responsible.

Q. You say in that same letter: "In order to

make it easier for you in making application, you

can now say your representative is Willie Chang."

Had Chang been in Seattle ?

A. Yes, sir. He had no connection with Taka-

hashi Company, but was a customer. He was given

the name "Snickelfritz" by the boys in the office

as a nick-name.

Q. You say: "Mr. Ikuta went to Shanghai and

checked and found out that the wood oil at present

Is handled by Showa Tsiisho, Mitsubishi, and so

forth, so he negotiated to get this through the back

door. The arrangement is a difficult one to explain

here, but will do my best. Wood oil that came and

is coming into Shanghai is held by gunbu. They
have control of all the stock. The material mav
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cost only 10 cents in the front, but when it comes

to Shanghai it's worth a dollar". What did you

mean by "back door" and "from 10 cents to one

dollar"?

A. By "back door" I meant that Mr. Ikuta

would use his personal influence with the gunbu so

it would be possible to get [121] the supplies. I was

trying to get into that importing business of wood

oil. By "10 cents and a dollar" I meant wood oil

comes from the far interior of China in small quan-

tities, and the closer they come to the port the prices

go up because of the greater risk. I do not know

if the Military took it for their own purposes when

it reached Shanghai, but it was in there to be han-

dled as far as exporting was concerned. I was not

able to get that business of importing wood oil. I

was informed +hat the Chunking Government had

a large stock of wood oil in the United States which

they were selling over here. The quantity was un-

known. However, I surmised that no further stock

was coming out of China unless it was coming

through the Burma Eoad. Therefore, I figured it

would be a lot easier to obtain it in Shanghai and

bring it here.

"Manygo" refers to that company in Manchuria

with whom we were having difficulty.

Q. Referring to Exhibit #15, letter July 12,

you say: "It has been a long time since Kohno and

finally Ikuta went to Shanghai and was finally able

to make arrangements. In order to work progress
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better it is better that we have our own name reg-

istered there under CIECO". That means what?

A. China Import and Export Company, and is

the initial of our Seattle registered name.

Q. You say: "Kohno, known as Willie Chang,

will represent us there. That is the only way that

we will be able to work a lot of things over there

that other firms can't. For instance, wood oil is un-

der control of the gunbu and in connection with a

sort of Okurasho" What does that mean?

A. Treasury Department.

Q. What were you referring to: "Vladivostok

and Netherland East Indies is absolutely out"?

[122]

A. We were talking about a lot of coal mining

machinery just outside of Seattle. There is an aban-

doned coal mine and we were trying to sell that to

North China. About this time shipping became a

problem, so Takahashi advised me: How about

shipping it to Vladivostok or the Netherlands East

Indies, and I was advising hhn that that was out

of the question. There was no inference of violating

any rule or regulation of the United States govern-

ment.

Referring to "quicksilver" I was not able to do

anything.

Q. Referring to your letter of July 15, you say:

"On the other hand, Shokosho said that even if our

price was a little higher", what is Shokosho?

A. It is a department in the government that
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handles all imports and exports. I was endeavoring

to comply with the government regulations if we

were able to get exports out or imports in.

I did not at any time or at any place consort with

Charles T. Takahashi, M. Ikuta or Koh Kohno,

otherwise known as Willie Chang, and H. M. Kiang

or any one of them, to violate any law or regulation

of the United States of America.

With reference to the shipment of these three

tanks, I didn't intend directly or indirectly to vio-

late any law of the United States or any rule or

regulation. I was not in the United States when

application was made to the government for a li-

cense to ship these three tanks into China. I was in

Japan. Irrespective of where I was, I did not ar-

range or endeavor to arrange for the shipment of

these three tanks to China for transshipment to

Japan. I didn't at any time or place with reference

to these three tanks contemplate or make any false

statement or declaration to the United States of

America, to the Department of State, Department

of Customs or any officer thereof. [123] I did not at

any time violate, intend to violate or have a secret

or concealed intention of violating the proclamation

of the President of the United States of America

made by the President in the interest of National

Defense pursuant to section 6 of the Act of Con-

gress approved July 2, 1940. In my corresj^ondence

or telephone conversations with Mr. Takahashi

there was no intent, actual or concealed, that there

should be transshipped out of China these three
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tanks if the license was issued to sLij^ them to

China.

When I arrived in the United States about No-

vember 2, 1941, I conta-cted Mr. Takaliashi. I wired

him from Vancouver and asked him to bring $200.00

to the boat when it arrived in Seattle for the pur-

pose of paying duty on gifts and merchandise that

I got while in Japan and he met me at the boat.

Before the boat docks all passengers are required

to make a declaration of baggage, and I went to the

trouble of listing every item, showing what case or

what suitcase or what trunk they were packed in,

and I made two copies. One I turned over to the

ship who in turn turned it over to the Customs

Agent and I kept one set for identification.

Exhibit A-2 entitled "Baggage declaration and
entry'' is one of the copies prepared by me for de-

livery to the Customs Agent. I divided the item.s

and noted them in large trunk, certain articles in

wardrobe trimk, itemizing each one, certain items

in the steamer trunk, certain parcels in a suitcase,

carton, and so forth and so on.

Referring to Exhibit A-1, a letter dated October

19, 1941, which refers to six pairs of silk stockings,

these stockings were being brought in by me and
were the ones that Mr. Takahashi's sister-in-lav\-

was sending to his wife and sister-in-law in the

United States and had asked me to bring over

here for them. [124] These stockings were listed

The stockings referred to in the sheet of my listing

''3" are the silk stockings referred to in Exhibit
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A-1. I had an invoice for the stockings which car-

ried the price.

When I reached the dock and after the boat

landed I had some difficulty in locating the various

trunks, suitcases and bags. The ship gave me so

many packages and when I got down on the dock

and after the package was unloaded, according to

the ship's report I was two cases short. These were

boxes that were delivered direct to the ship from

the store, and I wasn't sure, and I was looking

around for those two. Mr. Takahashi helped me in

that search. I had with me copy of my baggage dec-

laration corresponding to Exhibit A-2, and during

that search Mr. Takahashi and I passed that docu-

ment back and forth between us or looked at it to-

gether.

(Adjournment until Tuesday, October 6,

1942).

EDWARD Y. OSAWA

a witness called on behalf of the defendants, having

been previously sworn, resumed the stand for fur-

ther examination, and testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Bassett:

I wired Mr. Takahashi from Vancouver asking

him to bring $200.00 down to the dock so I could

pay duty for gifts and presents that I had brought

back from Japan.
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Referring to Exhibit A-1, being the letter signed

by Mary and addressed to Chis and Chic, in leaving

the boat in the excitement I must have left it be-

hind. I gathered a lot of papers up and threw them

in my briefcase and a lot of scrap that I thought

was there I just threw in the basket and came [125]

along. I thought at the time this letter was in my
briefcase. I intended to deliver it. I arrived on

November 2. The Customs agent did not take any

papers from me other than what they took on No-

vember 2 at the dock, nor did they question me be-

tween that period and December 7, 1941. I was ar-

rested early morning of December 8. Mr. Taka-

hashi was arrested a few hours before. The Tokyo

office and the Mikuni-Shoko Company in Tokyo

were not connected. They were about a mile or a

mile and a half apart.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Dennis:

I was general manager for Takahashi & Com-
pany. At times I had to do wdth sales. I had a cer-

tain part in selling the thirty-two tanks. They were

purchased through Mikuni-Shoko Company for the

Japanese army and the Japanese navy. We didn't

know it at the time of the sale, but by the Fall of

1940 we knew they were intended for the Japanese

army and navy.

Referring to new storage tanks, at the start it was
eleven that they requested us to purchase. I didn't

know whether they were intended for the Japanese
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army. I didn't know that the three tanks were for

the Japanese government. So far as we were con-

cerned we were selling them to Mikuni-Shoko Com-

pany. We presumed that they might be for the Jap-

anese army, but had nothing to confirm it. I don't

think that I ever saw the original of Exhibit #35,

a letter written on November 24, 1940, because I was

out of town most of those days. I may have been in

California, New York, Washington, Kansas City

or Wyoming checking up on tanks, getting tanks to

ship to Japan. And if I was in Washington, most

likely trying to get a license. I had nothing to do

with arranging for the manufacture of the three

new tanks in question. After the order was placed

I was informed where they were being manufac-

tured and understood the [126] purchaser was Mi-

kuni, but even today I do not know whether they

were for the Japanese navy or army. In January,

1941, I can't say for sure, I might have known.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit A-10, I didn't go

to see Mr. Ballinger about that, nor anybody in

the Customs House. On February 8 I signed an

application in Washington for a license for the

three new tanks that are in question in this case

and put in the name of the consignor as C. T.

Takahashi & Company. The application was pre-

pared in my attorney's office in Washington and

presented to the Division of Controls. At that

time I learned enough to know that a license would

not be given. I was informed by our attorney

that they were rejecting practically ninety-iline per
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cent of applications, so that our chance of getting

a license was very small. They were objecting be-

cause of the national defense. The information I

had was that the Government did not want to see

any steel going out of the country at that time.

However, some licenses were granted and they said

we might be able to get it although they doubted

it, so on March 7 I presume that the attitude of

the United States government was against the shix-)-

ment of these three tanks and I conveyed that in-

formation to Mr. Takahashi. When I reached

Japan I met Kohno there. He was employed by

Mikimi-Shoko Comj^any. My main business in

going to Japan was to close our office and to clean

up the Tokyo business that we had pending there

and additional business, if we could get it directly.

Kohno 's name when he was in Shanghai was Willie

Chang, which is a Chinese name. I never met

Kiang, nor anyone connected with the Hua Hsin

Company, nor did I have any telephone communi-

cation with the Hua Hsin Company. All I knew

about the company I got from Kohno and Acuna.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #9 for identifica-

tion, I [127] first saw that in Tokyo. I think it

was delivered to me at my hotel by one of Mikuni's

men, and I brought it with me from Japan for the

purpose of showing to to Mr. Takahashi.

Mr. Dennis: I will offer plaintiff's Exhibit #9
Mr. Crandell: Our objections have been noted.

Mr. Griffin: Osawa 's objection has heretofore

been stated.
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The Court: Objection overruled. Exhibit #9
is admitted.

(Whereupon letter dated July 4, 1941, pre-

viously marked for identification as Plaintiff's

Exhibit "9", received in evidence).

(Plaintiff's Exhibit #9 read to the jury by

Mr. Dennis).

Witness continuing : The reference to Mr. Chang

in that letter was Kohno. I had never met M. H.

Kiang. Referring to "Payment: Deduct U.S.

$71,700 from our credit account", Hua Hsin Com-

pany did not have a credit account, and at this

time Mikuni-Shoko Company had no credit account.

I commented to the person handing me the letter

that the Hua Hsin Company had no credit account.

I called up Mr. Ikuta, who arranged with Hua Hsin

Company for us. I told him that this was in error

because of the fact that when Mikuni had that

credit with us I paid them back in yen. Later on

Ikuta asked me if I would give him the dollars

back and take back my yen, which I refused, so

there was no credit account of any kind, nature or

description on these three storage tanks. I do not

know whether the characters at the top of the letter

are Chinese or Japanese. I cannot read it no more

than you can.

Q. Did you ask Ikuta why that $71,700 was in

that letter.

A. Well, he told me that he had made arrange-

ments with this Hua Hsin Company who would give
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him that dollar exchange [128] provided that we

gave him the credit, and we told him that we would

not agree to those terms because we had no use for

yen in Japan ourselves.

Q. So he had agreed then, Mr. Tkuta had agreed

to put up the $71,700 for the Hua lisin Company,

hadn't he?

A. I don't think you understood my explanation

of last time. I traded him yen for these dollars they

had over here. He wanted to trade it back so that

he can have dollars in Shanghai.

Q. But Mr. Ikuta had agreed to put up the

$71,700 for the Hua Hsin Company, hadn't he?

A. No, he made arrangements for Hua Hsin

Company to give me $71,700 in dollars for which

he would give me the yen. That is the arrange-

ment that he made, but I refused it. While in

Tokyo I had telephoned Mr. Takahashi. I may

have mentioned something about these new storage

tanks in my conversations. I think the matter

about the Hua Hsin Company was cabled to me

from Mikuni's representative direct. I talked to

Mikuni before they cabled it and they told me they

had obtained this connection for me. I saw the

cable while I was in Japan.

Mr. Crandell: I have a witness here who would

like to leave. May I put him on ?

The Court : All right.
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HARRY aiVAN

a witness called on behalf of the defendants, being

first duly sworn, was examined and testified as fol-

lows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Crandell

:

My name is Harry Givan. I am in the insurance

business. I am acquainted with Mr. Takahashi and

Mr. Osawa. I have known [129] them about six

years and know their business associates generally

in the City of Seattle and vicinity. I know their

reputation among those associates for honesty and

for being law-abiding citizens. That reputation is

very good.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Dennis

I don't know their associates in Japan.

(Witness excused.)

EDWARD Y. OSAWA

a witness called on behalf of the defendants, hav-

ing been previously sworn, resumed the stand for

further examination and testified as follows:

Cross Examination

By Mr. Dennis

:

Referring to Exhibit #14, I wrote that letter and

sent it to Mr. Takahashi and the statements con-

tained therein are true.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #15, it was writ-

ten by me and mailed to the defendant Takahashi

and the statements therein contained are correct.
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Referring to plaintiff's exhibit #16, I wrote that

letter and mailed it to the defendant C. T. Takaha-

shi and the statements in that letter are correct.

In one of those letters something was said about

doing business with Mexico. Some time in July,

1941, I heard from Mr. Takahashi about doing busi-

ness in Mexico. He either wrote me or told me on

the telephone that he was trying to make connec-

tions in Mexico and had sent Mr. Shenker down

there to see if he could not do business there. I

think he said he was trying to sell these three tanks

and at the same time establish some business con-

nection in Mexico so that we could do business be-

tween Mexico and Japan. The reason he was do-

ing business in [130] Mexico was the embargo that

was on in the United States. I agreed it was good

business if we could buy things in Mexico and ship

them to Japan.

Q. Despite the fact that it was contrary to the

National Defense of the United States of America?

A. Well, the defense of the United States of

America, at that time had nothing to do with the

material in Mexico.

Q. The fact that steel was being shipped out of

Mexico to Japan had nothing whatsoever to do with

the National Defense in your opinion?

A. Well, our competitors were all doing Inisi-

ness, the Standard Oil was doing business and so

were all of the oil companies, so why shouldn't we?

Q. So you figured that if you could slip it

through, it would be all right?
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A. That was just business.

I also speak in one of those letters are Vladi-

vostok, and said it was no use to ship to Vladivostok

because the Gunbu didn't have any control there.

Gunbu is the military authority and material

couldn't be shipped from Vladivostok to Japan or

China. At this time I think it was China.

Referring now to plaintiff's Exhibit #17, I think

the first time I saw this letter was just prior to the

pre^dous trial. I never saw it in Japan or talked

with Mikuni-Shoko Company about it. I talked

with them about ^'the three new tanks, 80 's and

accessories which we ordered from you last year",

and the only information I gave on that was that

I told them "why not offer these tanks which we

have as a starter for our connection m Shanghai".

The military authorities were hounding Mikmii

every day to get these tanks. They were asking

them when they were coming, why couldn't they

get them through, and so forth, [131] and Mikuni

in turn would relate that information to me. Yes,

I wrote "Of coiu'se, they will overlook if we can

not ship because of definite embargo like our tanks

but even on tanks they are hounding us every

day", and I also wrote "we sure are on a spot on

the three tanks" and that was a fact. The military

authorities were asking Mikuni all of the time and

they were relaying that message to me.

When I was in Washington I didn't tell anyone

that the tanks were being purchased for the Gov-

ernment of Japan.
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(Photostatic copy of letter dated Ai)ril 4,

1941, marked for identification as plaintiff's

Exhibit "40")

Lieutenant Colonel Saito did not vouch for my
entrance to Japan. I never met him there or in

this country. I understood that it was Mr. Ikuta of

Mikuni who guaranteed my entrance to Japan.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Griffin:

Q. When Mr. Dennis inquires from you that

when you were in Washington in February, 1941,

you gained the impression that steel products, of

which these tanks are steel products, would not be

permitted to be shipped to Japan, did you gain the

impression they would not be permitted to be

shipped to the Orient? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you gain the impression they would not

be permitted to be shipped, however, to any port

over which the Japanese had control?

A. No, I did not.

I found that the government was permitting cer-

tain New York competitors to ship direct to Japan.

Our customer was Mikuni-Shoko and I learned that

their customer was the Japanese army or [132]

navy or the Japanese government. At the time of

the sales of the original tanks there was no regula-

tion against shipping direct to the Japanese gov-

ermnent, army or navy, but even no permit was

required. The policy of the State Department at

that time was to continue shipments to Japan. I
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brought Exhibit #9, dated July 4, 1941, with uie

upon my return from Japan.

Q. Was one of the reasons that you were bring-

ing that, and that the deal had not been consum-

mated, due to this claimed credit of $71,700'?

A. They were to give me another contract when

the actual deal was consummated, in lieu of this

one. No deal was consummated with the Hua Hsin

Company. As of July 4, 1941, I had not previously

settled with Mikuni-Shoko Company the advance

they had made upon those tanks. What they were

proposing to do was, by some credit between them-

selves and Shanghai, to re-establish this credit with

Takahashi's concern in the United States as a down

payment on the tanks. I used the term "We
wouldn't go for that'', meaning I refused to con-

summate the deal upon that basis. I was endeavor-

ing to and did exchange our yen into dollars to get

them out of Japan and get the Takahashi money

back into the United States. I did not consum-

mate any additional business while in Japan so far

as an actual shipment is concerned. Because of the

necessity for State Department permits nothing

was shipped.

(Recess.)

I made comment to Mr. Ikuta to the effecf that

I intended to comply with all of the rules and regu-

lations of the United States of America in regard to

either exports or imports. In Exhibit #9, with

reference to "For your information, we might as
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well add there that these tanks are to be imported

for the local storage purpose and will not be re-

exported to any country [133] with whom you are

not on friendly terms" that correctly stated: the

position of myself and the Takahashi Company. I

informed them from the very first that we would

not be interested in trans-shipment of any articles

to China and Japan. On July 4, 1941, there was

no country with which the United States was at war

and I was familiar with the declared neutrality

of the United States at that time. I had no idea,

in Japan or elsewhere, or impression, that even if a

permit was granted and a license granted to ship

these tanks to the Hua Hsin Company in Shanghai

that they would be reexported for any purpose

whatsoever. At that time, July 4, 1941, Japan was

in control of the port of Shanghai. I did not an-

ticipate that a license would be granted at that

time to ship to Shanghai. I did not know until

I came back to the United States what effort was

made to dispose of those tanks in the United States

at the same time this application was pending.

Recross Examination

By Mr. Dennis

:

Q. What was youi- idea in regard to shipments

to any port over which the Japanese government

had control?

A. I concluded myself—1 thought that the

United States government would not issue any per-

mit to any territory occupied by the Japanese
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forces. I told that to the Mikuni-Shoko Company.

I told them we will try but I doubt if we can get

it. By "we" I meant Takahashi and myself, and

we did try.

Referring to letter of July 4, 1941, the conversa-

tion was between Ikuta and myself.. It was not

Mr.. Ikuta who was to give me another contract.

He informed me he would get another contract from

Hua Hsin Company for me.

Mr. Crandell: We have a short deposition which

it was stipulated we could read into the record.

[134]

The Court: You may.

(Whereuj^on the testimony of Mrs. Kawagu-

chi upon the former trial was read by Mr.

Griffin and Mr. Bassett as follows:)

SWORN TESTIMONY OF MRS. KAWAOUCHI

My name is S. Kawaguchi. I lived in Seattle

until recently. I lived there all my life. I went

to the Seattle schools. I am acquainted with Mr.

Takahashi. I started to work for him in 1929 and

so continued until the time of his arrest. My
work was general secretarial work.

Referring to plaintiff's Exhibit #19, I have seen

that before.

The Court : It is the same exhibit with the i^encil

marks that we had before?

Mr. Bassett : Yes.
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(Whereupon the exhibit referred to was

passed to the jury for their inspection)

Continuing: Upon that exhibit there is type-

written "Japan" and opposite is written "China".

Down below is written in typewriting "C. T. Taka-

hashi & Company", and behind it is written "China

Imp", then "Mikuni-Shoko Company" and on the

same line is some Chinese name. These are all in

my handwriting. I re-typed this with corrections

I had made in pencil. In other words, I used #19
for a model, and with changes conforming to that

pencil writing.

(Whereupon the cross examination was read

into the record by Mr. Griffin and Mr. Bassett

as follows:)

I typed the new application in the course of my
duties as an employee of Mr. Takahashi.

Beferring to Exhibit #19, I do not remember

why I wrote [135] "leave out Sonken Galamba".

Q. Referring to another line where it says in

typing "storage purposes by Mikuni-Shoko Com-

pany", you will notice there is a parenthesis after

the word "purposes" and ending after Mikuni-

Shoko Company, and right above that are the words

in pencil "leave out", did you wi'ite that*?

A. That is my hand-writing. I am unable to say

at whose direction I did it.
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ERVIN E. NICHOLS,

a witness called on behalf of the defendants, first

duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Bassett

:

My name is Ervin E. Nichols. I live at Port

Angeles and am retired from business. I was for-

mierly in material business, contracting and mill

business. My mill was at Carlsburg, Washington.

I have known Mr. Takahashi about seven years. I

met him in a business way, and also socially. I

know his reputation for honesty and veracity in

the community in which he lives. It is very good.

'Witness excused.

JOHN H. ZUMWALT,

a witness called on behalf of the defendants, being

fir^tduly sworn, was examined and testified as fol-

lows.:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Bassett:

My name is John H. Zumwalt. I live in Seattle.

I am an Immigration Inspector, stationed in Seat-

tle. I know the defendant Edward Y. Osawa. I

talked with him prior to leaving for Japan in 1941,

with reference to the matter of leaving the [136]

country without obtaining a passport. I told him

he should not leave if he could get one. He said

he didn't have time, so I told him if he wanted to
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to go ahead without one. He could do so and prove

his citizenship upon his return to this country. He
told me that he was going to Japan to close up the

Takahashi office there.

WILLIAM SHENKER,

a witness called on behalf of the defendants, beijQg

first duly sworn, was examined and testified as fol-

lows: .. • -•. :,

Direct Examination
^

.

By Mr. Crandell

:

My name is William Shenker. I live at Portland,

Oregon, and at present I am engaged in the pur-

chase, manufacture and sale of steel tanks, I am
a native-born American. I am acquainted with Mr.

Takahashi and have known him about eleven years.

I have known Mr. Osawa a like period of time., I

represented the C. T. Takahashi Company in Port-

land as their buying agent from 1934 until about

1939. Therefore my capacity changed to that of

operating their office in Portland. M^ Takahashi

had another office in Vancouver, one in Portlajnd,

and I met the representative that operated the

Tokyo office.

I first heard of the three new tanks in question

in the Fall of 1940, when the negotiations for the

purchase of those tanks originated. The tanks

were manufactured by the Graver Tank and Steel

Company in their East Chicago, Indiana, plant.
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They were ordered through the Sonken Galamba

Supply Corporation, at their Kansas City office.

Mr. Takahashi made the arrangements. During

the year 1940 and until the office closed I was in

Seattle at least once every week, except when I

was traveling in the East or Mexico on company

business. During all of the time that I have known

Mr. Takahashi the name China Import and [137]

Export Company was in use. There was no sinister

motive in the use of that name. The general policy

of the Takahashi Company was always to comply

with all rules and regulations promulgated by the

Federal, state or other authorities. Mr. Takahashi

gave those instructions on many occasions. I was

familiar with the first application for a license to

ship these tanks to Japan which was made Febru-

ary 7, 1941. I was in Washington, D.C. in the

office of Ira S. Ewers, the attorney retained by our

firm, at the time the first application was drawn.

He drew the application and filed it. It was re-

jected with the provision that there was something

irregular on the application and a new form had to

be utilized. A new form was secured and filed

either in March or April. It was also prepared by

Mr. Ewers and it was rejected. After it was re-

jected an appeal was filed. Mr. Takahashi author-

ized the appeal and I made the arrangements with

Mr. Ewers. When I was in Washington the Divis-

ion of Controls of the Secretary of State office was

the department I was in touch with. I had infor-
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mal discussions with men in this department. 1 was

with Mr. Osawa on these occasions.

Mr. Dennis: May I ask a question of the wit-

ness'?

The Court : You may.

Mr. Dennis: What was the date of tlie rejec-

tion?

A. To the best of my recollection the rejection

was the latter part of April, Mr. Dennis.

Q. And the appeal?

A. I thought sometime in May the appeal was

rejected.

Witness continuing: Immediately following or

about that time I made an effort to sell these tanks

to the Federal authorities of the United States.

That offer was made first to an officer, I believe he

was a Colonel by the name of Scott, in [138] the

Division of Controls office in Washington, D.C. I

made the offer because I was convinced through

my conversation with him that the application for

the shipment of tanks to Japan would be rejected.

I also made an attempt to sell these tanks to the

British Buying Commission at their office situated,

I believe, in the upper floor of the Willard Hotel

in Washington, D.C. I was referred by them to

the New York office of the Commission. I gave

this information to Mr. Takahashi and he instructed

me, by tele|)hone, to offer the tanks to the British

Buying Commission in New York. That was the
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last half of April, 1941, but they were not inter-

ested in the purchase. I also went to Vancouver,

B.C. for the purpose of disposing of the tanks in

Canada. Mr. Takahashi instructed me so to do.

Then I made efforts to dispose of them in Mexico.

I went there early in May, 1941, and spent six

weeks to two months. I did not consummate a sale.

Mr. Okada came to replace me about two or three

days prior to my departure. I gave him a full oral

report of what I had done.

Referring to Exhibit A-4, entitled "contract of

sale," my attention was called to that after it was

consummated. I think there was about two-thirds

of that material furnished under those instruments.

That contract was cancelled by telegram. We re-

ceived information to the effect that the purchaser

was placed on the so-called black list by the State

Department. Exhibit marked A-5 constitutes that

information. Exhibit A-6 is the telegram used by

Takahashi & Company to cancel that contract. I

did not prepare the telegram, but it was shown to

me prior to transmission. I approved that tele-

gram. You see I first introduced this firm to our

company. Cancelling that contract with the black

list firm was absolutely consistent with Mr. Taka-

hashi 's policy. I made other efforts to sell the

[139]

three steel tanks in question. Prior to leaving for

Mexico I had communicated with the Standard Oil

Company, the Shell Oil Company, Portland Gas

and Coke Company, I believe the Clipper Gasoline
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Company, to see whether or not they could utilize

this type of new steel tank. They were not able

so to do. These tanks were riveted tanks and the

large gas companies preferred welded tanks.

(Group of letters consisting of nine pages

marked for identification as defendants' Ex-

hibit ^'A-ll")

This correspondence has to do with efforts to sell

the three tanks in question to the Equipment Cor-

poration of America.

Exhibit A-11 offered and refused, to which an ex-

ception was taken by Mr. Crandell.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Griffin:

The relationship between me and C. T. Takahashi

& Company was an independent contractor and

never that as a salaried employee. I mean by that

that in addition to the work I had been doing for

Mr. Takahashi that I did other work on my own

behalf. Just previous to my meeting with Mr.

Osawa in Washington a restriction had been im-

posed upon the exportation of scrap steel of certain

qualities from the United States to Japan. I be-

lieve that took place either in September of Oc-

tober, 1940. Previous to that there were no re-

strictions at all to my knowledge upon exportation

of even scrap steel to a foreign country, including

Japan. Prior to the embargo there was a great

amount of scrap shipped to Japan. We were but a

very small operator in the field. The fii*st restric-
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tions merely curtailed the shipment of No. 1 lieavy

melting scrap which is a certain trade name classi-

fication. Thereafter a new ruling came out pro-

hibiting [140] the shipment of any type of scrap.

Then came a ruling two or three months later pro-

hibiting the shipment of new steel. Prior to Oc-

tober Takahashi had orders for and was shipping

used steel tanks to Japan. In December, 1940, the

three new tanks had been ordered from Sonken

Galamba Supply Corporation. I don't know
whether they were in process of manufacture.

After that order was placed and we had been ad-

vised that a license was not required for used ste^l

a new regulation came out from the Government,

dated February 8, 1941. The application is shoT\Ti

in Exhibit #29, part 3. That application was held

by Mr. Ewers until the 15th of February, or there-

abouts, when it was filed. Then about a month

afterward it was returned to us with the statement

that certain parts of it were inadequate. The ob-

jection was to the form, not the substance. Then

I went back to Washington and secured the serv-

ices of Mr. Ewers again to determine the proper

type of form to be used and had the new form of

application filed. That new form is shown in Ex-

hibit #29, part 2. That is the second one that was

filed. Government's Exhibit #19 is the original of

Exhibit #29, part 3. And upon that renewal ap-

plication, started on February 8, the license was

rejected on #19 and #29, and on that an appeal

was taken. At that time I gained a definite impres-
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sion that most of the applications for steel to the

Orient would be rejected. I was advised by the

Division of Controls that th(5 Government was

granting a few special licenses to competing New

York concerns shipping direct to Japan. I dis-

cussed with Lieutenant Colonel or Major Scott the

possibility of disposing of these tanks to the United

States government. I was unable to dispose of them

to the Government.

Recess.

ByMr. Grif&n:[141]

The British Buying Commission had offices in

both Washington and New York and I contacted

both offices to ascertain if I could dispose of the

tanks to the British Buying Commission. Then I

contacted various oil companies in the United States

to see if they could use the tanks.

Q. If you did not think the application would

be granted what was the reason for the appeal

!

A. The reason was the fact that the materials in

question were already fabricated and manufactured

and had been sold bona flde before any embargo was

announced, and it was our thought at the time that

there was a possibility that they would permit the

shipment because they had been made and com-

pleted while it was legal to do so. That was the

basis upon which our attorney in Washington was

proceeding. After the denial of the appeal, and our

inability to dispose of the tanks and on my return

to Seattle and before I went to Mexico I negotiated
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with James Sullivan, General Manager of the

Equipment Storage Company in Chicago, Illinois,

for the physical storage of the tanks.

Referring to sheet 1 of Exhibit A-11, I was

handed that sheet in the office of the Takahashi

Company in Seattle. Last night I examined such

files as Mr. Takahashi now has and found and

brought to court the various documents covering

the Sullivan-Equipment Company transaction on

storage. I made arrangements with the Equip-

ment Storage Company for the physical storage of

the three tanks in question. I tried to sell them

to them in April, 1941, when I first negotiated the

storage. Eventually one of the three tanks was

sold to the Equipment Corporation of America. I

sold one of the other tanks to the Portland Gas and

Coke Company of Portland, Oregon. I sold the

other one to the Shell Oil Company and it went

to some location in California. [142]

Cross Examination

By Mr. Dennis

:

Q. I want to try to get these dates straightened

out.

A. In January, 1941, 1 was in Portland, Oregon,

or Seattle and possibly for one or two days during

that month in San Francisco. I left for Wash-

ington on the night of the 5th of February and was

there about five or six days. From there I came

back to Denver. I went back to Kansas City and

then to Denver, Denver into Portland and then to
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Seattle. A great deal of it was by air. I was a

couple of days on the route back. It might have

been three or four. I was down in San Francisco

part of the time in February, 1941. I might have

spent a day in Vancouver. I was jjerhaps five or

six half days in Seattle in February, 1941. I was

in Portland all of the year 1941 that I wasn't

traveling. I would say perhaps I was ten to

twelve days in Portland dui'ing February, 1941. In

March, 1941, I was in Portland or Seattle or San

Francisco. During the month of March we were

shipping commodities out of San Francisco and

out of Portland and out of Seattle. I had charge

of the purchasing of those commodities. So my at-

tention would be directed to whichever town re-

quired by time and attention. The last part of the

month is when I left for Washington, somewhere

around the 20th. I stayed in Washington two

weeks or more. I was in Washington until after

the application was filed, I think the 16th of April.

I left the day the application was filed. From there

I went to New York City and spent a day. From
there I flew to Chicago; that was about the 18th

or 19th of April. I was in Chicago not to exceed

two days and a half. From Chicago I went back

to Seattle. I was in Seattle the latter part of the

month of April and stayed in Seattle and Portland

during the rest of that month of April, except that

I went to Vancouver [143] for a day or two. Then

I left for Mexico, that is, in the latter part of April

or early May. I was there, to the best of my recol-
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lection, until the middle of June. I think I left

Mexico the last week of June. From Mexico I went

to Texas by plane. I spent a few days in Houston

and a few days in Dallas and Corpus Christi; per-

haps a week or so in Texas. From Texas I went

to Denver, Colorado and spent two or three days;

from there up to Casper and from Casper, Wyom-
ing, back to Portland. I stayed in Portland prac-

tically all the time except for flying up to Seattle,

then returned to Portland and stayed until some

time in September or October, when I went back

to Chicago. From about the middle of July I was

in Seattle, Vancouver, or Portland, except for one

or two occasions when I went down to San Fran-

cisco to try to sell these tanks to the oil companies.

All the while I communicated with Mr. Takahashi

by letter and telephone. There might have been

some telegrams. Mr. Takahashi did not tell me any-

thing in regard to any sale in China. There was

no mention to me of the Hua Hsin Company dur-

ing that time. I never heard of that company until

the previous trial of this case. Wlien the embargo

went on the sales price of scrap steel was more

affected than steel plates, because there was no

outside demand and the local mills reduced their

prices immediately. It is not true that this ship-

ment to the Preveedora Company was cancelled

due to the fact that it could be sold for just as much

here as it could down there in Mexico.

Q. You could take and sell that plate, pay the
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freight on it to Mexico and get more money in

Mexico than you could in the United States'?

A. At that time this firm was paying more for

this type of plate, because they were getting the

cream of the plate, whereas if they came to this

comitry to buy they would have to [144] buy all of

it. The phxte referred to had nothing to do with the

three new steel plate tanks. The only person whose

name I recall at this time to whom I spoke in

Washington, D.C. in regard to the sale of these

three new steel tanks is Colonel Scott before men-

tioned. I spent about half an hour with him. In New
York City I spent about thirty minutes, until I got

to the man I was told who could discuss the mattei'

intelligently, and then I was told that they had no

market. I spent about ten minutes with the latter,

but he recommended that I take it up with the Ca-

nadian authorities. I didn't personally talk with

the Canadian authorities, but I got our Manager

in Vancouver to take it up with them. I person-

ally talked with the Shell Oil Company, but I do

not know the name of the individual I spoke to,

but he bought the tanks and we were paid for

them. The sale was made in October, 1941. In

March he didn't care for the tank, but in October

he bought it. There was no difference in the market

between April and October. The reason for the

delay was that they were trying to get a welded

tank which they thought they could get delivery on,

but when the delay in deliveries came up, from the

mills, they resigned themselves to using a riveted
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tank in lieu of a welded tank and bought what we

had on hand for spot delivery. The next company

I tried was the Standard Oil Company. I talked

with a personal friend of mine who was Manager

of the Portland office, a Mr. Burns. The next was

the Portland Gas and Coke Company. I now know

the name of the person in that company that I

talked with, because I have been doing a lot of

business with them, but at the time of the last

trial I did not.

I practiced law at one time.

The form shown by plaintiff's Exhibit #29, part

3, was not the proper form, and the next one, dated

April 16, was used. [145] The difference was that

certain information had to be attached that was not

on the original. I did not tell Mr. Ewers that the

name of the purchaser was the Japanese govern-

ment. I did not know then that the Government

of Japan was the actual purchaser and do not

know that at this time.

THOMAS MASUDA,

called as a witness on behalf of the defendants, be-

ing first duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Bassett

:

My name is Thomas Masuda. I was born in Seat-

tle and have lived here all my life imtil recently.

I attended the fourth or fifth grade school, then I
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finished the rest of my elementary high school at

Ellensburg, Washington, and my university educa-

tion at the University of Washington, from which

I am a graduate. I was admitted to practice at the

Bar of the State of Washington in 1929, and was

practicing here until the time of my evacuation. I

am now located at Poston, Arizona, which is the

W.R.A. Relocation Center for Japanese.

I am acquainted with Mr. Takahaslii and Mr.

Osawa, the defendants in this case. During my
practice I acted as Mr. Takahashi's attorney. Mr.

Takahashi called on me some time about the 3rd

day of November, 1941, in connection with some

request that had been made upon him by the Cus-

toms Department or agents of the Customs Depart-

ment of the United States. I think it was the 2nd,

rather than November 3rd, anyway it was a Sunday.

He had some difficulty in reference to Mr. Osawa 's

entrance into this country when he returned on

November 2. The Customs had questioned both

Mr. Takahashi and Mr. Osawa and he wanted me
to find out what the whole situation was about. He
asked for advice about certain papers that the

agents wanted. He was [146] willing to deliver

the papers and I advised him to do so and cooperate

fully with the Government and assist them in their

investigation. So far as I know he made available

to the agents everything that they wanted in the

way of papers and documents.
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Cross Examination

By Mr. Griffin:

I was not able to find out from conferences with.

Mr. Atherton or the Government officers what they

were looking for or what they were investigating

for.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Bassett

:

I did not know what Mr. Takahashi had been

arrested for.

Witness excused.

Mr. Bassett: We would like to recall Mr. Taka-

hashi.

The Court: Mr. Takahashi may take the stand.

CHARLES T. TAKAHASHI

Recalled as a witness on behalf of the defendants,

having been previously sworn, resumed the stand

and further testified as follows:

Direct Examination

Mr. Dennis: Of course, I will reserve the right

to cross examine him, not only on this but on other

matters.

Q. (By Mr. Bassett) Before we adjourned

Friday "A-10" was incomplete and smce that time

a letter has become a part of that exhibit which the

jury has not had an opportunity of hearing. I will

ask you to state whether or not that is a letter writ-

ten by you in connection with this application?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that the jury may know wliat we are

talking about, I wish you would tell them what

application that is.

A. That is the application for eighteen old tanks

which the [147] State Department returned to us

^'no license required".

Q. This is a letter which you wrote in connection

with that application?

A. Yes, sir. And the photostatic copy of a let-

ter on top is the answer of Mr. Ballinger, the as-

sistant collector, to my letter.

Mr. Bassett: At this time I would like to read

that letter to the jury, your Honor. It wasn't read

before.

Members of the jury, the letter of Mr. Ballinger

was read to you but at that time this letter wasn't

a part of the exhibit. It wasn't available, but since

has been made a part of the exhibit.

This is dated ''December 16, 1940", addressed

to Mr. O. W. Dam, Deputy Collector of Customs,

Federal Building, Seattle, Washington.

(Letter read to the jury)

Referring to defendants' *'A-11" for identifica-

tion, which purports to be a group of letters, that

is, correspondence carried on by my company with

the Equipment Storage Corporation. One of these

papers is a wire signed by me as President of this

Company which we sent. The yellow sheets are

copies of letters we sent to the company. The let-

ters addressed to our company were received by me
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at the time mentioned in each Iteter. The corre-

spondence refers to the three new tanks which are

involved in this prosecution.

Mr. Bassett: We now offer in evidence defend-

ants' A-11.

The Court: The court will admit the Exhibit

A-11, upon the ground that by numerous questions

they .have already been put before the jury.

Group of letters, previously marked "A-11"

i .; for identification, received in evidence. [148]

(Whereupon Mr. Bassett read Exhibit A-11 to

the jury)

, Q, (By Mr. Bassett) Mr. Sullivan's first letter

speaks of not letting certain people find out from

them where these tanks came from or where they

were manufactured. What was the reason for

that?

A. The main reason of that was in our business,

our whole import and export business, we always

try to keep the source of our supply from our com-

petitors. In other words, the tanks are made by

the Graver Tank people and we don't want our

competitors to know who is the maker of our com-

modity. We are the owners and if they want to

buy a commodity we sell it and it is our own busi-

ness who makes it.

Mr. Bassett : At this time the defendant Takaha-

shi rests.

Mr. Griffin: The defendant Osawa rests..

The Court: Is there any rebuttal?
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Mr. Dennis: No rebuttal, your Honor. The

Government rests.

Jury excused until 9:30 the following morning.

The Court : The jury is gone. All right you may

proceed.

Mr. Griffin: The defendant Osawa, at this

time, the case being closed, moves for a directed

verdict of Not Guilty in behalf of that defendant,

separately as to each and every count of the in-

dictment, on the grounds and for the reasons stated

at the time the motion was made at the close of the

case for the Government and now, since the evi-

dence has developed beyond any question, that to

submit any issue in this case to the jury, so far as

the defendant Osawa is concerned, would be to per-

mit the jury to speculate, and to base an inference

upon speculation and suspicion without any govern-

ing basic fact upon which it is warranted or could

be warranted in finding a verdict of guilty.

That applies with reference, the motion, with

reference [149] to the conspiracy count because

there was no evidence in this case, either written or

oral, of the existence of any conspiracy as between

the defendant Osawa and any co-defendant at all.

At most, it would be inference based upon inference

and speculation based upon speculation, and pre-

sumption founded upon presumption, and each pre-

sumption omitting the primary presumption that all

men are supposed to be honest in their dealings.

It is the position of this defendant that there is

nothing in the record in this case that the govern-

ment has made, nor in the case that the defendant
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has made, without rebuttal, that in any wise war-

rants submitting the matter of conspiracy on the

part of the defendant Osawa to the jury. That is

Count 1 of the indictment.

As far as Count 2 is concerned, and the same is

true of Comit 3, they are not based upon conspiracy

but upon a physical act committed.

The evidence in this case shows, without any

dispute, that Osawa had nothing to do with any

physical act insofar as a crime is charged in Count

2 or Count 3. Actually at the time of the claimed

charge that a physical act was committed within the

jurisdiction of this court, and particularly within

the District of Columbia, Washington, D. C, or in

Seattle, Washington, he was without the jurisdiction

of the Court and not physically a party to the

discussion of Exhibit A, the application attached

to the indictment, had absolutely no connection

with it nor anything to do with it.

And the same is true of Count 3.

In addition to that the defendant moves to be

withdrawn from the evidence in this cause and

from consideration by the jury of all the documents

against which the basic motion has been made that

they were wrongfully seized and permitted for

[150] use, and introduced in evidence in this cause.

Mr. Bassett : At this time the defendant Takaha-

shi renews the motion, as it involves the evidence,

which he made at the close of the Grovernment's

case.

And at this time he moves for a directed verdict

of Not Guilty as to each of the three counts, for the
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reasons stated at the close of the Government's case,

at which time I think Your Honor indicated that

you did not desire to hear any further argument,

that you had considered it all at the previous trial.

The Court: I didn't wish to hear any argument

unless it was new argument that I hadn 't heard.

Mr. Bassctt: We have nothing new to offer,

Your Honor, in addition to what we have already

presented in the way of argument.

The Court : The motions interposed on behalf of

the defendant Osawa and each of them are denied

and overruled; and exception is allowed.

The motions and each of them interposed on be-

half of the defendant Takahashi are denied and

overruled and exception allowed.

(Whereupon at 4:40 o'clock p. m., a recess

was taken until 9:30 o'clock a. m., October 7,

1942.)

Seattle, Washington

October 7, 1942

9:30O'Clock A. M.

(The jury resumed their seats in the jury box and

the following proceedings were had and done in

their presence and hearing.)

(Whereupon counsel for the Government and

counsel for the defendants argued the case to the

jury, after which the Court instructed the jury as

follows:) [151]

The Court: Members of the Jury, you have had

this case somewhat longer than was expected. Those
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of you who have served on juries before know that

frequently cases last longer than they are ex-

pected to.

The Court appreciates the attention that you have

given to this case. The Court knows that you are

going to consider this case seriously as an impor-

tant case ; that you are going to determine the issue

upon the evidence as it has been received under

the instructions of the Court as to the law touching

this case.

In Federal Court, different from state court, the

rule as to instructions is that the Federal Judge

instructs the jury after the argument and not

before. And there is a reason for this rule in the

Federal Court. There is another distinction between

instructions in Federal Court and in state court

concerning whicn you will be later advised.

You have heard the evidence in this case. You

have heard the arguments of the counsel upon both

sides. Jurors realize that they do not sit in a box to

listen to the argument of counsel as though they

were hearing a debating team, to determine the issue

upon that side which makes the best speech. The

jury has the same obligation that a Judge has when

a Judge hears a case without a jury. And the

Jury 's obligation, like that of the Judge, is—regard-

less of the argument of counsel or regardless of

which argument they think is the better, as an argu-

ment,—the Jury and the Judge should search the

evidence to determine what the real fact is; and

that is your duty.
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It now becomes your further duty to listen to the

instructions of the Court and then remember them.

You will [152] receive no copy of these instructions.

And when you retire to the jury room, you can only

take with you your recollection of what the judge

has said.

In this case there are two defendants on trial on

three counts of the indictment. In each of these

counts the defendants have entered a plea of not

guilty, which places uj)on the prosecution the bur-

den of showing beyond a reasonable doubt, as that

doubt will be hereinafter explained to you, the truth

of every material allegation of the indictment, be-

yond a reasonable doubt. You will later also have

explained to you what is meant by "every material

allegation of the indictment."

And you may be advised now—as the Court Avill

later tell you—that an indictment is not a blueprint.

An indictment is the method by which a grand jury,

in behalf of the People of the United States, charges

persons so that they may be advised of what they

are charged with.

And if there be some immaterial matters in the

indictment, the failure of the prosecution to prove

those immaterial matters shall not be an excuse to

any jury to free any guilty man or guilty men,

shown by the evidence beyond a reasonable doubt

to be guilty.

It is not the purpose of courts that if the prosecu-

tion proves the material parts of an allegation be-

yond a reasonable doubt that anv defendant should
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be released because some immaterial allegations have

not been established.

In this case you will consider each count of the

indictment separately and will vote as to each count

[153] separately as to each defendant. The indict-

ment against the defendants Charles T. Takahashi

and Edward Y. Osawa, as I have stated to you,

consists of three counts. You will later be given a

copy of the indictments and later in these instruc-

tions I will more particularly describe the charges

on each of the three counts. At this time a sum-

mary of the three counts will suffice.

The first count charges a conspiracy to violate the

law and Presidential Executive Order concerning

three steel storage tanks and accessories.

The second count, in brief, charges that these two

defendants on trial and others not under arrest

violated a certain executive order by designating

China as the country of ultimate or final destination

instead of Japan ; it being charged that the defend-

ants knew that Japan was intended as the actual

country of ultimate or final destination.

The third count, in brief, charges these two de-

fendants and other persons not under arrest with

making false or fraudulent statements in connection

with an application for a license to export the same

three storage tanks and accessories, in violation of

another Federal Statute which makes it a crime to

make or cause to be made any false or fraudulent

statements or representations in such application

within the jurisdiction of any department or agency

of the United States.
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You are instructed that to find any defendant

guilty of the offenses charged in the three counts or

[154] any of them of the indictment, it is not neces-

sary to find that each defendant personally commit-

ted all of the acts charged in such count or counts.

If you find that any defendant aided or abetted or

counseled or commanded or advised or induced or

procured the commission of the crime charged in

any counts or count, then that defendant is just as

guilty as to that count as if he individually perpe-

trated the entire crime himself; and 3^ou must find

him guilty as charged.

The issue to be determined in this case is of im-

portance to the government and to the defendants

and requires your careful thoughtful and honest

consideration. It is your duty, and I am confident

you will do your duty as jurors under the oath that

you have taken to conscientiously, seriously, and

free from prejudice and free from sympathy, return

a true verdict under the evidence and these instruc-

tions as to each defendant and as to each count.

You can readily understand that the government

can only be maintained by the endorsement of the

law. You as jurors are not concerned with whether

or not the law herein involved or the presidential

orders or proclamations involved ought to have

been enacted or issued or declared, nor are you

concerned at all with any pimishment that may be

imposed under the statutes in this case in the event

a verdict of guilty may be returned.

If congress, the law-making body, and if the

president under the authority given him by con-
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gress makes a law with relation to a particular

policy or [155] rule of conduct or issues an executive

order pursuant to any such law, it is necessary that

the people should fairly and honestly live up to

such law and such executive order. And it is neces-

sary that the public officials, and jurors are public

officials, should fairly and honestly enforce such

laws and such orders.

You are instructed that it is not the policy of the

law that a verdict of guilty should be returned

against anyone on trial for any crime unless such

verdict is supported by the evidence beyond a rea-

sonable doubt; but it likewise is against public

policy that any guilty persons or person should

escape, if the evidence shows beyond a reasonable

doubt that such person or persons are or is guilty.

It is the duty of the court to instruct you as to

the law governing the case and it is your duty to

take the law from the court and accept that to be

the law as stated to you by the court, notwithstand-

ing any statement or contention of any attorney as

to what the law is or ought to be; and despite any

opinion of your own that the law is different or

ought to be different than the court states it to be.

The mere fact that you may not have favor for any

particular law or for any particular executive order

can not rightfully be by you permitted to excuse any

violation thereof.

And likewise, any opinion that may have been

asserted that any law or any executive order should

have been passed or issued before it was can not

excuse any violation at all thereof after same be-
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came effective. Even if it might have been better,

if any [156] executive order had been issued before

it was issued, such can not be any excuse for anyone

violating same after it was issued.

You are instructed that the law presumes every

defendant in each and every case charged with any

violation of any law to be innocent until he is proven

guilty by the evidence beyond a reasonable doubt.

This i^resumption continues throughout the entire

trial and until the jury has found that this presump-

tion has been overcome by the evidence beyond a

reasonable doubt.

The indictment returned herein is merely the

method provided by law whereby the United States,

through a grand jury and on behalf of the people,

shall accuse one or more persons of violation of the

law, and whereby the one or ones accused shall he

advised of the accusations against them or him so

that they or he may defend against such. The fact

of an indictment having been found and returned

by the grand jury against anyone gives rise to no

inference that the one accused is guilty of any

offense. The matter of guilt is the matter of proof.

The indictment is the charge or the method of

placing the defendants on trial.

The instructions that I give you are the method

provided by law whereby the court shall advise a

jury of the law applicable to the particular case and

which must guide the jury in consideration of the

evidence, and which must guide the jury in de-

termination of what the jury's verdict shall be.

These instructions are to be understood, interpreted
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and applied by you as a connected body, and as an

entirety. [157]

You will disregard any statement made by counsel

on either side of this case as to what any testimony

has been unless born out by your final recollection

thereof. You are likewise to disregard any testi-

mony which may have been stricken out by the court.

You must likewise disregard any question or answer

thereto to which the court has sustained an objec-

tion.

You have already heard me use the term, "reason-

able doubt" and you undoubtedly are interested in

knowing just what that means in law and just how

strong the evidence must be to be said to be sufficient

to convict. You are instructed that proof beyond a

reasonable doubt does not mean the evidence shall

establish the guilt of the defendants or either of

them beyond all possible doubt. The law does not

require absolute certainty of guilt before there can

be a verdict of guilty at your hands.

The expression, "a reasonable doubt" means in

law just what the words imply, a doubt founded

upon some good reason. A reasonable doubt must

arise from the evidence or lack of evidence. A rea-

sonable doubt must not arise from sympathy. A
reasonable doubt must not arise from a desire to

avoid performing a disagreeable duty. A mere mis-

giving founded upon mere possibility does not con-

stitute a reasonable doubt. Only such doubt as a

sensible, honest-minded man or woman would rea-

sonably entertain in an honest and impartial investi-

gation to ascertain the truth about a matter of life
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as serious as the one involved here would constitute

a reasonable doubt. [158]

In order to warrant conviction of the defendants,

or either of them, as to the charge against the de-

fendants, the evidence need not be so strong as to

exclude all doubt or possibility of error. But the

evidence must be strong enough to exclude all rea-

sonable doubt.

If after considering all of the evidence in this

case, you can say that such leaves in your mind a

firm and abiding conviction of the guilt of the

defendants, or either of them, of the charges in the

three counts of the indictment, or any of them, then

you are convinced beyond a reasonable doubt as to

such defendants, or defendant, as to such counts or

count, and then it would be your duty to find the

defendants, or such defendant, guilty of such count

or counts. If not,—that is, if you do not have a

firm and abiding conviction of the guilt of the

defendants, or either of them, as to any count or

counts, then you have a reasonable doubt and you

should find the defendants, or that one, not guilty

as to such counts or count.

It has sometimes been said that imless you are

convinced of the guilt of a defendant to a moral

certainty that you have a reasonable doubt. It is

unnecessary, however, that the evidence prove either

of the defendants guilty beyond every doubt because

there are few, if any, things in the domain of human

knowledge that can be established by such positive

proof.
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You are instructed tliat what punishment the

defendants, or either of them, may receive in case

they or either of them may be convicted is not to be

considered by you in any respect or for any purpose

in arriving at [159] your verdict. The matter of

punishment is for the court alone as provided by

law; and such can not in any wise properly be con-

sidered by you at all in arriving at the guilt or inno-

cence of the defendants or either of them.

It has, however, been suggested in argument in

this case that if the defendants are found guilty that

they will be sentenced to the penitentiary. You are

not to consider whether they will be or not. The

court, however, in view of such argument, will tell

you that the court is not required to compel either

of the defendants, in the event they are found

guilty, to serve any time whatsoever in any peniten-

tiary ; although the court can impose such a sentence

if the court deems proper, in the light of the infor-

mation it would have at the time of sentence, in

addition to what information it might have now; or

the court could impose a county jail sentence or

merely a fine. But whether the court would give

the defendants a substantial sentence or one not

substantial is for the conscience and the judgment

of the court alone.

There are two kinds of evidence,—the direct and

circumstantial. Direct evidence is that which a per-

son observes or sees or which is susceptible of dem-

onstration by the senses. And circumstantial evi-

dence is proof of such facts and circumstances con-

cerning the conduct of the parties which concludes
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or leads to a certain inevitable conclusion. Circum-

stantial evidence is legal and competent as a means
of proving guilt in a criminal case. [160]

As a matter of fact, in conspiracy cases it would

be impossible to convict in many instances unless

circumstantial evidence could be introduced and re-

lied upon by the jury. But the circumstances must
be consistent with each other, consistent with the

guilt of the parties charged, and inconsistent wdth

their innocence and inconsistent with every other

reasonable hypothesis except that of guilt. When
circumstantial evidence is of that character, cir-

cumstantial evidence along without any direct evi-

dence whatever is sufficient to convict.

Likewise, if a combination of direct and circum-

stantial evidence is of the character I have just

mentioned where it convinces the jury beyond a rea-

sonable doubt, that is also sufficient for conviction.

You should decide the case wholly upon the testi-

mony and evidence introduced at the trial, and

under these instructions of the court.

No person, regardless of ancestry, should be con-

victed unless the evidence establishes his guilt be-

yond a reasonable doubt as such reasonable doubt

has already been defined to you. But no person,

regardless of ancestry, is privileged to violate the

law.

In this case as in all cases, regardless of the

charge, you are only permitted to render a verdict

of guilty if the evidence so convinces you beyond

a reasonable doubt. Prejudice can not be substi-

tuted for evidence. But if vou are convinced of
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the guilt of the defendants or either of them be-

yond a reasonable doubt by the evidence, then it is

your duty to convict and [161] you have no right

whatsoever to vote for acquittal for the purpose of

proving to someone that you are not prejudiced. In

other words, if you are convinced beyond a reason-

able doubt from the evidence and the reasonable in-

ferences therefrom that the defendants are guilty, it

would be a violation of your oath to lean backwards

and vote not guilty.

It is psychologically impossible for you to enter

into the minds of the defendants and determine the

intent with which they operated. You must, there-

fore, determine the motives, purposes and intents

from the testimony, including the exhibits which

are in evidence and you will consider all of the

circumstances disclosed by the evidence and the

witnesses, bearing in mind that the law presumes

that every man intends the legitimate consequences

of his own acts.

The first count of the indictment charges Charles

T. Takahashi and Edward Y. Osawa with having

entered into a conspiracy with one, M. Ikuta, Kono

alias Willie Chang, and M. H. Kiang. In brief, it

is charged that the defendants, Takahashi, Osawa,

Kono alias Chang, and Kiang, within one year

prior to the second day of November, 1941, and

continuing to and including November 2, 1941, at

Seattle, Washington, at Washington, D. C, at To-

kio, Japan, at Shanghai, China, and other places

to the grand jurors unknown, did then and there

knowingly, wilfully, unlawfully and feloniously

combine and conspire, confederate and agree to-
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getlier and with each other and with other persons,

to the grand jurors unknown, to violate that cer-

tain i^aragraph of the [162] executive order effec-

tive April 15, 1941, providing as follows: "6. The

country designated on the application for license

as the country of destination shall in each case be

the country of ultimate destination. If the goods

to be exported are consigned to one country, with

the knowledge that they are intended for transship-

ment thence to another country, the latter country

shall be named as the country of destination."

Which executive order was authorized by an Act

of Congress.

And also that they did further conspire to violate

the provisions of Section 80 of Title 50 of the

United States Code, it being charged that it was

the purpose of said conspiracy and the intention

of the said persons so conspiring together to know-

ingly, willingly, unlawfully and feloniously export

three steel, dismantled, storage tanks by causing

China to be designated on an application for li-

cense, for the export of such three tanks, as the

country of destination when, in fact, the country

of ultimate destination was Japan, as they, and

each of them, well knew.

It is also charged in the first count that it was

the object of the conspiracy and the object of the

persons so conspiring together to violate Section 80,

Title 18 of the U. S. Code, they knowingly and wil-

fully, to make and cause to be made fraudulent

explanations in an attempt to export the said three

tanks.
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Count one further charges that the defendants,

inckiding the two now on trial and the three others

who have not been arrested, with having committed

certain overt acts; that is, affirmative acts in fur-

therance of [163] the conspiracy. It is not neces-

sary for the government to prove all of the 20 or

22 overt acts set forth in the indictment. It is suf-

ficient if only some of them be proved. Actually,

only one of the 22 need be proved. But at least one

of the overt acts must be proved to have occurred

in Seattle, Washington, after April 15, 1940, and

before the defendants left the dock on November

2, 1941.

If one overt act is proved to have been done in

Seattle after April 15, 1940, that is sufficient as far

as the proof of the overt acts is concerned. There

may be proof of more than one but it is not required

that the others be shown to have been committed

at Seattle. But any of them may be proved to have

been committed at Seattle.

Count 2 of the indictment charges that the de-

fendants Takahashi and Osawa, Ikuta, Kono alias

Chang and M. H. Kiang, the last three not being

on trial, on or about the 16th day of Juty, 1941, at

Seattle, Washington, knowingly, wilfully, unlaw-

fully and feloniously violated the provisions of the

executive order I have already mentioned, in that

it is charged that the defendants in an application

dated July 16, 1941, for a license to export the same

three steel storage tanks, did designate China as

the country of ultimate destination instead of Ja-

pan, the true destination.
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As a matter of law, steel storage tanks are in-

cluded in the export control schedule number one,

duh^ issued March 15, 1941, to take effect on April

15, 1941, making it a requirement specifically to

obtain a license to [164] export such articles. Ulti-

mate destination means the last or final destina-

tion.

Count 3 of the indictment charges that the two

defendants on trial, and the same three other per-

sons, on or about the 16th day of July, 1941, at

Seattle, did knowingly, wilfully, unlawfully and

feloniously make and cause to be made fahe and

fraudulent statements and representations in an ap-

plication for a license to export the same three

steel storage tanks; it being charged that the false

and fraudulent statements consisted of statements

that China was the country of ultimate destination.

This count 3 is brought pursuant to the statute

w^hich says that it is a violation for anyone to make

or cause to be made any false or fraudulent state-

ment or representation in any manner within the

jurisdiction of any department or agency of the

United States. Wilfully means intentionally. The

word false means knowingly untrue or knowingly

incorrect. Fraudulent means untrue and made with

a design to influence action by another who relies

thereon.

In this case it is not necessary for the goyern-

ment, with respect to count 3, to proye that the

statements in the application were both false and

fraudulent: either is sufficient. Although the count

charges that they were false and fraudulent, under
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tile law all tliat is necessary is that the evidence

prove that they were false or fraudulent.

You are instructed that a crime may consist of

many parts but each person consenting to the com-

mission [165] of the offense and doing some part in

connection therewith which is either an ingredient

of the crime or immediately connected with or lead-

ing to its commission is as much a principal as if

he had with his own hand committed the whole of-

fense.

And if in law one aids, counsels, procures or

assists another to do an act in violation of law% even

if the one so aiding, counseling, advising, procur-

ing, inducing or assisting in its commission is far

away, or even across the ocean, and regardless of

whether the one who actually does the act knows

that he is violating the law, the one so aiding,

counseling or assisting in the commission of the

crime, no matter how far distant, is guilty as a prin-

cipal and is held to be constructively present where

the crime w^as committed.

A conspiracy may be defined as a combination

or partnership or understanding between two or

more persons to do an unlawful act or acts or to do

a lawful act or acts by unlawful means ; and the do-

ing of some act or acts by some one or more of them

for the purpose of carrying the conspiracy into

effect.

It is not necessary for all of those who conspire

to do any act at all. If two or more conspire and

one does some affirmative act to further the con-

spiracy, then all of them are liable; the partner-

ship is liable.
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It is not necessary that the act or acts done

should actually accomplish the purpose of the con-

spiracy. It is only necessary that such acts be done

for the jnupose of carrying the conspiracy into

effect, regardless of whether the conspiracy is ac-

tually finally [166] accomi^lished or not. In other

words, the fact that none of the three tanks were

shipped out of the United States does not defeat

the charge. In considering your verdict as to the

defendants, Charles T. Takahashi and Edward Y.

Osawa, with respect to count one you will first con-

sider whether or not a combination or understand-

ino- to do the unlawful acts existed at any time as

charged in the indictment; that is, existed at any

time after April 15, 1941 and up to November

2, 1941. And if you find from the evidence beyond

a reasonable doubt that such a combination or un-

derstanding or partnership did exist, even if only

for a few days, or if only for one day, you will

then consider whether the defendants Takahashi

and Osawa, or either, at any time during the life

of such conspiracy became parties to the under-

standing which could be either a written or oral

understanding or agreement or even merely an im-

plied or tacit understanding.

If you find from the evidence beyond a reason-

able doubt that such a conspiracy was entered into

by two or more persons and that some one or more

of the persons to the conspiracy did some one or

more of the overt acts charged in the indictment,

one of which must be at Seattle, after April 15.

1941, as I previously stated, for the purpose of

aiding or assisting in the forwarding of the con-
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spiracy and that any such act was done not later

than November 2, 1941, before the defendants left

the dock, then each of the defendants who entered

into such consjiiracy, or who became a party to it

at any time after its formation, at any time before

the [167] doing of the last overt act, whether or

not he actually did anything other than join the

conspiracy, would be just as guilty as the one who
planned the conspiracy or who performed the overt

acts. It is not necessary that the government estab-

lish the exact time of the formation of the con-

spiracy. If the conspirac}^ existed, it ended No-

vember 2, 1941, upon the search of the defendants

on trial at the dock. Mere relationship between the

parties, so they could perform certain acts which

may tend to a general plan, is alone not sufficient.

There must, in addition to any such relationship

also be knowledge and conscious participation in

an unlawful enterprise. If there were such, then

it is immaterial what the party did, how little the

service was that they performed, what profit, if any,

they were to receive. It is immaterial whether or

not they received or were to receive any profit at

all.

And where two or more persons are proved to

have joined together for the same illegal purpose,

any act done by one of the parties, any statement

made by one of the parties, any communication

by word of mouth, by telephone, by telegraph, by

letter, in furtherance of the original, concerted

plan and with reference to the common object dur-

ing the existence of the conspiracy,—in this case

not later than November 2, 1941 as aforesaid,—is
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in the contemplation of law the act and word of

each of them.

There is no need at all to the parties of the con-

spiracy knowing what each of the others did or

what each of the others was to do. Any act or

coimnunication [168] or declaration made or said

by any member of the conspiracy in furtherance

thereof is competent proof against any other mem-
ber during the time the other member is a party.

If they are one of the partners in the conspiracy

duiing the life thereof, each partner who is a party

in the conspiracy acts for every one and all act for

each.

It is charged in the conspiracy count of the in-

dictment that the defendants conspired to violate

two different statutes of the United States. It is

not necessary that the evidence prove a conspiracy

to violate both of the statutes. It is sufficient if

a conspiracy be proved by the evidence beyond a

reasonable doubt to violate either one or both of

the statutes as charged in the indictment; and that

one or more affirmative acts was done as I have

stated above for the purpose of furthering such

conspiracy.

Any overt acts which happened before April 15,

1941, shall only be considered as history for the

purpose of aiding the jury in understanding the re-

lation of the parties and what knowledge they had

after April 15, 1941.

It is not necessary at all that either of these

two defendants were members of the conspiracy at

the inception. It is not necessary that these two
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joined at the same time. If there was a conspiracy,

as charged in count one of the indictment, and if

thereafter the two defendants on trial or either of

them at any time before November 2, 1941, joined

the conspiracy, knowing of its unlawful purpose,

the defendants or such one who so joined would be-

come liable for the acts of [169] each of the con-

spirators during the period of their participation,

whether he knew of such specific acts or not. In

other words, that is the risk of one who joins a

criminal partnership.

It is not necessary that it be proved that the de-

fendants agreed either orally or in writing to com-

mit the crime charged. It is sufficient if the evi-

dence shows that there was a conscious participa-

tion knowingly in a criminal conspiracy as charged

in the indictment.

If, for instance, M. Ikuta and Mr. Kono of Ja-

pan had a plan to violate these laws and executive

order of the United States, to get these three tanks

into Japan by way of China or under the pretense

that they were going to China. And if days or

weeks or months after they so decided it is proved

beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendants or

either of them finally learned of such unlawful de-

sign, and participated even to a small degree in

furtherance of such design, such defendant would

be guilty.

It is not necessary at all that the evidence prove

that this conspiracy was started at any time in 1940.

If the evidence convinces j^ou beyond a reasonable

doubt that it was formed on the 27th day of June,
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1941, when the telegram was sent by ^Mieoni Shoko

Company to Mr. Takahashi, that would be sufficient,

providing that the evidence shows that the defend-

ants joined it or one of them joined it sometime,

knowing of its unlawful design, before the doing of

at least the last affirmative act, which would need

to be committed in Seattle.

If you are convinced by the evidence beyond a

[170] reasonable doubt that the defendant, Edward

Y. Osawa, aided in or counseled or advised or pro-

cured or induced or assisted in the commission of

the crimes charged in counts 1, 2 and 3 or any of

them, then in law the said defendant Osawa would

have been held to have been constructively present

where the crime was committed even though in

body he was thousands of miles away.

It is not necessary that you be convinced by the

evidence beyond a reasonable doubt from evidence

produced by government witnesses. It is only neces-

sary that the evidence produced at the trial, regard-

less of when it was introduced or who so intro-

duced it, so convinces you.

The indictments in each of the counts are long

and technical. To a large degree they are directed

to the court. And the Court instructs you that each

such indictment and each of the three counts is

legally sufficient, regardless of anything that may

have been told to you in argument in this case.

You are the sole and exclusive judges of the

weiffht and credibility to be allowed the testimony

of the witnesses, both for the government and for

the defendants. In weighing the testimony of the
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various witnesses it is your duty to determine ivlio

testimony is most worthy of belief from tiie ap-

pearance and demeanor of the witnesses, their man-
ner of testifying, their apparent frankness or lack

of frankness, their bias or prejudice if any is shown,

their apparent intelligence or lack of it, their in-

terest in the result of the case if any, the reason-

ableness or [171] unreasonableness of their testi-

mony, and to give credit accordingly.

You are further instructed that if you believe

that any witness, who has testified in this case, has

knowingly sworn falsely as to any matter or cir-

cumstance material to the issues in this case, then

you are at liberty to disregard the entire testimony

of such witness except in so far as it is corrobo-

rated by the testimony of another deemed by you

worthy of belief or by the facts and circumstances

proven on the trial.

Those rules apply to each of the defendants on

trial as well as to each and every other person who

has testified as a witness. When a defendant tes-

tifies in his own behalf, you may consider what in-

terest he has in the outcome of the case, and whether

that interest has been sufficient to lead him to deny

things that really are true or to testify to things

that are not true. You will weigh the testimony of

each defendant in the same manner you would weigh

the testimony of anyone else, considering his po-

sition.

You are required to take the law from the court

as a matter of duty, under your oath as jurors.

But as to the facts, what the evidence proves, what
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weight you are to give the testimony of the various

witnesses, and what inferences you should draw

from the facts and circumstances proved, such are

exclusively your function. And in respect to that

you are independent and controlled neither hy any

opinion of the court or by the arguments of counsel.

No opinion that the court may have nor that you

may [172] think the court may have as to the guilt

or innocence of the defendants or the credibility to

be accorded the testimony of any witnesses or as to

the inferences to be drawn from any circumstances

proven is controlling or binding upon you. It is

for you to determine the facts in this case. The

responsibility as to the verdict as to each defend-

ant as to each of the three counts is upon you.

That responsibility remains with you. It is a duty

which you can perform only by honest determina-

tion and by your best judgment, reached after de-

liberating among yourselves, from a common sense

standpoint and a reasonable viewpoint taken by you

all.

When you retire to the jury room to deliberate

upon your verdict, you will first select one of your

number as foreman. And when all of you have

agreed upon your verdict as to each of the defend-

ants as to each of the three counts, your foreman

will sign such verdict and you will then return with

such verdict into court.

You will take to the jury room the indictment,

the form of verdict and the exhibits which have

been introduced in evidence. In the verdict you

will find blanks as to each defendant as to each

count. I will read a portion of the verdict to you.
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"We the jury in the above entitled cause find the

defendant Charles T. Takahashi blank guilty, as to

count one of the indictment filed herein." Before

"guilty" you will fill in the word "is" or the word

"not" in the blank, as the case may be. You will

do the same as to counts 2 and 3.

And then the verdict goes on to read, "and we

[173] further find the defendant Edward Y. Osawa

blank guilty as charged in indictment one herein."

And as to each count, with respect to Edward Y.

Osawa, you will likewise fill in the word "is" or the

word "not" as you find him guilty or not guilty as

to each such count.

Summarizing the indictment, count two thereof

charges that the defendants violated the executive

order issued pursuant to congressional act. Count

three thereof charges that the defendants violated

an entirely different act which prohibits any false

or fraudulent statement in any application. While

count one charges that the defendants conspired to-

gether with the plan and purpose of violating such

executive order and such law named in counts two

and three; and that in attempting to make their

conspiracy successful they did certain overt,—that

is, affirmative acts. That is, counts two and three

charge actual violations of an executive order and

an independent law respectively, while count one

charges an unlawful association with the intention

of violating the same.

The fact that you may think that less counts

than three would have been sufficient is no excuse
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wlmtsoever for you not finding each defendant

guilty as to all three counts, if you are convinced

beyond a reasonable doubt that they are guilty.

You are further advised that if you find the de-

fendants or either of them guilty of either count

two or three that necessarily you must find them

guilty of the other of counts two and three because

if a defendant is guilty of one of those two counts

of necessity he [174] is guilty of the other of said

two counts.

And you are further advised that if you are con-

vinced by the evidence beyond a reasonable doubt

that the defendants or either of them are guilty of

either counts two or three, and violated the law in

respect to said counts or either of them, with the

purpose of assisting someone in Japan in further-

ance of the conspiracy charged, then you must of

necessity find them not only guilty of counts two

and three, but also of count one.

Upon the other hand, if you come to the conclu-

sion that any defendant did not know of the illegal

purpose charged in the indictment in count one un-

til after the 16th of July, 1941, but that sometime

thereafter su<'h defendant did learn of the unlaw-

ful purpose and then cooperated in furthering such

purpose and that thereafter and by November 2,

1941, some overt act was done, then you can find

such defendant or defendants guilty as to count

one, although that particular defendant might not

be guilty as to counts two and three.

In federal court, unlike the superior court, the

judge is entitled to comment on the evidence. He
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is entitled to express his opinion to the jury of

whether or not he believes certain witnesses ; and in

some cases even to tell the jury what his verdict

would be if he were on the jury. I am not going

to tell you what my verdict would be if I were on

this jury. That is your responsibility. But if I

did tell you, or what I may say as to the evidence

does not bind or control you at all. It would be

your privilege to differ absolutely [175] from me
or to agree with me if you independently so decided.

Any comment I may make is not for the purpose

of binding or controlling you but is for the purpose

of aiding you in understanding the instructions, and

in illustrating the application of the instructions.

If I happen to mention any particular individual

or any particular exhibit or part thereof or evi-

dence, I wish you to know that you are to consider

all of the evidence, all of the testimony, of all of the

witnesses, and all of the exhibits, and every part of

every exhibit whether I mention it or not, and that

you are to return your verdict after thorough con-

sideration of all of the evidence.

If at any time I may give a statement as to my
recollection as to what any evidence is, if my recol-

lection of the evidence differs from your recollec-

tion, you are to follow your recollection, just the

same as you are to follow your recollection as

against the statement of any counsel. You are the

judges of the facts.

In considering all of the evidence in the case it

is not sufficient for you to find merely that the evi-

dence was consistent with the theory of the defend-
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ants guilt. Before you may find the defendants or

either of them guilty, you must be convinced beyond

a reasonable doubt that the evidence is inconsis-

tent with their innocence and inconsistent with

every reasonable hypothesis except that of guilt.

You are not bound or controlled at all by any

bold [176] statement any witness may make. And
you are not bound or controlled at all by and bold

statement any defendant may have made.

You have a right to consider every statement

made by every witness in the light of evidence and

in the light of the reasonable inference which you,

in the exercise of your common sense, reasonably

draw from the circumstantial and other evidence in

the case. And if any witness, whether defendant

or not, makes any statement which you find to be

unreasonable in the light of the testimony and in

the light of the reasonable inferences to be drawn

from the testimony, then you may disregard such

statements, even though there is no other witness

who is able to testify to the contrary.

In this case it is my recollection that Mr. Osawa

testified that while he was in Tokio, Japan, ex-

hibit 9,—which he says he brought with him from

Tokio, Japan, to Seattle on November 2nd—was

handed to him by someone, from Mikuni-Shoko

Company Limited of Tokio, Japan. He says that

he received that letter, as I remember it. That let-

ter recites from the beginning, quote,—it is ad-

dressed to "Messrs. China Import and Export Com-
pany. As a consequence of our long business dis-

cussion with your representative, Mr. W. L. Chang,
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we wish ." Now, in the light of all of the evi-

dence of this ease, if you believe that Mr. Osawa

honestly believed that Mr. W. L. Chang was the

business representative of the China Import and

Export Company ; in the light of all of the evidence

that you have heard, do you believe that Mr. Osawa

believed the statement in [177] the last of that let-

ter that the tanks were imported for local storage

purposes in Shanghai'?

In connection with that letter and in connection

with all of the evidence in the case, if Mr. Osawa

believed that the letter of July 4, 1941, signed by

Hua Hsin Company was an honest order for the

shipment of these tanks to Shanghai, do you reason-

ably think that he would have written on July 15

to Mr. Takahashi to this effect: ''We sure are on a

spot on the three tanks. I doubt if a day goes by

that they don't call us or say something about them.

If we could only get those three tanks out it would

be a life saver and they would do almost anything

for us.

"

And you are entitled in the light of your exper-

ience and your common sense to determine if Mr.

Osawa honestly believed that the Hua Hsin Com-
pany was purchasing these tanks, if he wouldn't

have made a statement in this communication to

Mr. Takahashi to the effect that he was not willing

to approve the credit account of $71,700 claimed

in the Hua Hsin Company.

And you have a right in the light of all of the

testimony to determine whether or not Mr. Osawa
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thought any portion of that letter of July 14, 1941,

was an honest letter.

As I remember the testimony, Mr. Osawa testi-

fied that while this plaintiff's exhibit 9 was brought

to him by someone from the Miconi Shoko Com-

pany, that he never saw either of the letters—

I

would like to find exhibit 17—dated July 16, 1941,

addressed by Miconi Shoko Company Limited of

Tokio, Japan, also to Seattle, [178] Washington,

but to the name Takahashi, instead of Chinese Im-

port Company.

In the light of all of the evidence that you have

heard in this case and of the exhibits, do you be-

lieve that if the Mikuni-Shoko Company would take

to Mr. Osawa this exhibit 9, instead of mailing it

to the China Import Company at Seattle, that they

wouldn't also take to Mr. Osawa exhibits 17 and

18? If you read exhibits 17 and 18, as I know you

will, it will be for you to determine whether or not

those two letters do not show that it was the plan

of the Mikuni-Shoko Company Limited or of Mr.

Ikuta, its director, to merely use the Hua Hsin

Company as a pretense.

It will be for you to determine if the Mikuni-

Shoko Company wished Mr. Osawa to have the one

letter, why they wouldn't want him to have the

other two letters.

It is also for you to consider in the evidence—

I

would like to see the telegraph exhibits 10 to 13,

inclusive—it is also for you to consider, in the light

of all of the evidence, whether a business man of

the experience of Mr. Takahashi, recei^nng these
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telegrams, under date of June 27tli in code duo

and private, under date of June 28th in code duo,

and under date of July 5th under code duo, code

inverted, and under date of July 8, 1941, under code

duo, without realizing what the purjDose of Mikuni-

Shoko Company was, as you find from the evidence

in the light of exhibits 17 and 18.

Do you think it is reasonable that if a man with

the experience of Mr. Takahashi, under date of

June 27th, [179] received a telegram from a com-

pany in Tokio, which included this language, "Do

utmost to arrange earliest possible shipment by

every possible means oil tanks and tubes. Our cus-

tomers desire additional oil tanks. Telegraph pros-

pect." And if on or about the next date, by a tele-

gram from the same Tokio Company, dated June

28, 1941, he was advised as follows: "Decided to-

day name of firm is Hua Hsin Company, address

320 Road, Shanghai, China." whether or not he

would thmk that that was an honest sale to the Hua
Hsin Company in Shanghai, China, or whether

those telegrams would give any possible inference

except that Mr. Takahashi was advised that the

Mikuni-Shoko Company was telling him that they

had decided to use the name of Hua Hsin Com-

pany?

In the light of your experience do you think that

if this was an honest sale that the Mikuni-Shoko

Company would not have used the words, "Tanks
have been sold to the Hua Hsin Company" instead

of telegraphing Mr. Takahashi, "Decided todav
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name of firm is Hua Hsin Company" and the other

language set forth in tliis telegram?

My recollection of the evidence in this case is

that Mr. Takahashi admitted that he had these four

telegrams before he handed Mr. Leo Nye Sing the

application of July 16, 1941. From the light of

your experience and from the light of what Mr. Leo

Nye Sing did in connection with this transaction

with Hua Hsin Company, do you think that if Mr.

Takahashi had deemed that that transaction was
honest, that he would have [180] agreed to pay
three percent or any percent for someone to sign

his name?

It is for you to determine in the light of your

experience whether, if Mr. Takahashi was endeav-

oring to sell these three tanks other than in the

Orient at times when he understood he would be

unable to ship them to the Orient, if that were any
different than anyone would do; whether they were
honest or dishonest, if they were not able to have
tanks shipped to the Orient, when they had been

odered from that location.

Under the evidence, as I remember it, the Mexico
transaction, as far as the contract is concerned, in-

volved used plats, used steel plates.

Under the evidence, as I remember it, the Mexico
company executed an affidavit before a Mexican no-

tary public and someone as a vice consul signed a

certificate to the effect that such Mexican notary
public was a notary public. It is for you to deter-

mine in the light of all of the evidence whether ac-

tually that affidavit was true.
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That evidence has been introduced by the defend-

ants upon the ground that it shows such good faith

on the part of the defendants that they wouldn't be

willing to violate any other law in the light of their

action in that connection. You have a right in con-

nection with the Mexican transaction to read and

consider what Mr. Takahashi wrote as to the Mexi-

can situation.

It is also for you to determine whether or not

the Mexican transaction shows such good faith that

anyone acting as Mr. Takahashi did would not vio-

late any other [181] law or whether it shows, or

whether you may reasonably infer that it shows

that when the blacklisted firm was unable to re-

ceive any more steel plates, for whatever purpose

it wished to receive them, that Mr. Takahashi con-

celled the contract after it had been suspended by

the Mexico company.

The jury may be advised that the Court sees

nothing against the defendants or either of them

in the act that Mr. Osawa used some other method

than a passport to go to Japan. It was perfectly

legal and indicates in no wise any guilty knowledge

or any guilty purpose.

The jury has already been advised and will be

advised again that there is no unlawful act charged

against any defendant which is supported by the

evidence prior to April 15, 1941, and anything that

the defendants or either of them may have done

before that time, as far as this charge is concerned,

is to be considered as history for the purpose of

helping you know what the defendants knew or
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should have known when they saw such communica-

tions as they did see and received such telegrams

as they did receive.

You are entitled to view all of the evidence and

to draw all of the reasonable inferences which you

as men and women would, in your common sense,

draw if you were making an honest investigation to

determine what actually happened in this case.

It is for you to determine, in the light of the use

of fast messages of communication, of cable, long

distance telephone, airplane, whether or not—with

ships carrying mail as infrequently as has been tes-

tified [182] in this case they did, in 1940 from

Japan—as to w^hether or not it is reasonably likely

that with the amounts involved and the business be-

ing transacted there, the slow method and infre-

quent method of ships was used or whether the fast-

est method for carrying mails as shown by the evi-

dence was utilized.

In testing the evidence of the case, you have a

right and should consider all of the statements and

all of the exhibits 19, and 21 and 29, relative to

these tanks. You have a right to determine whether

the defendant Takahashi or the defendant Osaw^a

was honest in stating the specific purpose of the

article and the address of the ultimate consumer

in a foreign country.

In the light of all of the evidence, do you be-

lieve that in exhibit 21, the application of July 16,

1941, that Mr. Takahashi believed that the specific

purpose and the address of the ultimate consumer
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for storage purposes was Hue Hsin Company,

Shanghai, China'?

With respect to exhibit 19, the application of

April 16, 1941, it is for you to determine whether

or not it was honestly believed by Mr. Takahashi

the purpose of the articles and the name of the ul-

timate consumer for storage purposes by Miconi

Shoko Company. In that connection you may con-

sider that in exhibit 20 signed by Mr. Leo Nye Sing

it was stated that the consignee was Koman Com-

pany, Mukden, China. And that the purpose was

to be used on horse-drawn cooley wagons and carts,

$25,000, 50,000 pieces of automobile roller bearings.

The Kono and Company was the "ultimate consum-

er to be sold to the trade as above explained." In

[183] the light of that statement that those articles

were to be sold to the trade as above explained, it

is for you to determine whether or not the defend-

ant Takahashi was frank and open with the gov-

ernment in not stating, instead of the purpose of

the ultimate consumer being storage purposes by

Miconi Shiko Company,—for sale by Miconi Shoko
Company to the Japanese Army or Navy.

As I have advised you, any statements that I call

to your attention are to be tested by you under the

understanding that you are the final and supreme
judges of the facts. You are obligated to follow

my instructions as to the law. You are to draw
those reasonable inferences as you honestly feel are

the reasonable inferences to be drawn from the evi-

dence and from each of the exhibits.
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You are instructed that it is not necessary for the

government to prove that all of the business car-

ried on by the defendants was contrary to the

United States law or that any other business than

the particular business of the three tanks was con-

trary to the law.

There has been evidence introduced in this case

as to the good reputation,—that is, what i)eop]e say

as to the honesty or integrity of the defendants,

—

and you shall give such testimony that weight as

you believe it entitled to receive in determining

whether or not the defendants are guilty as charged.

But the jury will recognize that many men have

hor7i good reputations, sometimes over many years,

and have later been convicted of an oifense which

has existed for the same many years during which

everyone thought they had a good reputation. [184]

And in this case, if you are convinced beyond a rea-

sonable doubt that the defendants or either of

them, by the evidence, are guilty of the three counts

or any of them, it is your duty and obligation to

find said defendants or such one guilty, regardless

of how good their reputation may have been.

While the indictment is to be taken by you, that

is for the purpose of letting you better understand

the evidence and the instructions. And you are to

follow the law as given to you by the Court, touch-

ing the indictment. The indictment is not evidence

;

it is just the method of placing the defendants on
trial.

You may now retire temporarily. There must be
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no dis-cussion or expression of opinion by any of

you.

(Jury retires temporarily.)

Thereupon Mr. Griffin excepted to certain charges

of the Court, among others the following:

The Court then advised the jury, in effect, that

he was permitted to comment upon the evidence,

and the Court did comment upon the evidence, but

the comment of the Court, to which the defendant

Osawa excepts, was not unbiased, was not fair, was

not met by the Court with any favorable comment

of any kind in behalf of the defendant Osawa, but

the comment was unfair, biased, prejudicial, with-

out any endeavor at all to equalize the force of the

comment, but made directly and with emphasis for

the purpose of advising the jury that the Court, ir-

respective of what the Court said in the general in-

struction, that they should take nothing from it,

to advise the jury that the Court desired a verdict

of guilty in this case. Considering the comment

made by the Court upon the evidence, an exception

is taken to each and every comment made by the

Court in that [185] particular. I desire to point

out that having so commented, the defendants were

entitled to have an equal fair comment in so far

as their rights were concerned, to suggest to the

Court this: While the Court by its comment has

sought a conviction, because the defendants are

charged with desiring to transship three tanks, from
Shanghai, China, to Japan, the jury were entitled

to be told that they also should consider this—there
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is no evidence in the case that Japan required these

three tanks in Japan. The evidence is that at the

time in question Japan controlled not only the port

of Shanghai but all the ports of China. The evi-

dence is with that situation existing, the United

States government denied the application, that the

jury has an absolute right to infer, even if the ship-

ments were direct to the Japanese Army, that those

storage tanks might be and would be as useful in

Shanghai, China, where its armies were employed,

as it would be to ship them to Japan and transport

oil from Japan, 1500 miles to Shanghai.

Also, the Court went further and, by his instru.c-

tions, wiped out all of the law of good reputation

and honor, so far as the defendants are eoncerned,

hy his instruction that the jury could consider the

reputation for what it is worth, but—as the jury

knows, said the Court—peoj^le with good reputa-

tions are guilty and in this case so and so aud so

and so.

The Court: It is understood and the Court rules

that each exception taken by Mr. Griffin on behalf

of Mr. Osawa shall be deemed taken by Mr. Bassett

in behalf of Mr. Takahashi.

Mr. Bassett: Thank you. In addition to w^hat

counsel has said in taking an exception to the

Court's commenting on the evidence, I wish to add

that the comments were not only biased and preju-

dicial and unfair, and one-sided, but they were ar-

gumentative as well. [186]

The Court: I imagine that you would like all

of the exceptions which Mr. Bassett has takeu '?
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Mr. Griffin: Yes. I was just going to suggest

that would round it out, then.

The Court : You may.

The Court: I am going to give some additional

Instructions, in the light of the exceptions you have

taken, and if 3^ou wish, it may be understood you

will have the right of exception to each one with-

out the necessity of expressly taking them. Is that

satisfactory ?

Mr. Griffin: Yes.

Mr. Crandell: Yes.

Mr. Bassett: Yes.

(Whereupon the jury returned to the court-

room and was seated in the jury box.)

The Court: Members of the jury, supplement-

ing the instructions on the law, that you must ac-

cept as the law, I wish to say this to you : In addi-

tion to what I have said with respect to the testi-

mony in the case regarding the reputation of the

defendants or either of them, the jury are in-

structed that if, in the light of all of the testimony

and in the light of the reputation testimony, they

believe the defendants or either of them are not

guilty, they have a right to base that verdict upon
their interpretation of the testimony, together with

reputation testimony, if in the jury's opinion such

satisfies them that the defendants are not guilty.

The jury are further instructed that they cannot

find a defendant in any criminal action guilty upon
mere suspicion, conjecture or surmise. The jury,

however, is instructed that a reasonable inference

from circumstantial evidence or a reason- [187] able
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inference from direct evidence or a reasonable in-

ference from circumstantial and direct evidence is

not and are not mere suspicion, conjecture or sur-

mise or mere suspicions, conjectures or surmises.

Tlie jury does have a right to bring in a verdict

of guilty if convinced by the evidence, including the

reasonable inferences which the jury draws from

some evidence of the guilt of the defendants beyond

all reasonable doubt.

Would you read that to me, Mr. Reporter.

(Whereupon the passage referred to was

read by the reporter.)

The Court : But if not convinced by the evidence

and the reasona])le inferences of the evidence be-

yond all reasonable doubt of the guilt of the de-

fendants, the jury cannot convict the defendants or

either of them upon suspicion, conjecture or sur-

mise or prejudice.

With respect to certain comment I made on cer-

tain evidence, I wish to remind you again that you

are not bound or controlled by any comment at all

I make on the facts. You have the right absolutely

and entirely to disregard whatever I say. But with

respect to Exhibit 20 the Court wishes the jury to

understand that there is no inference to be dra\^^l

against the defendants or either of them upon the

ground that bearings were improper to be sent to

Mukden. It was the Court's intention to have the

jury consider whether or not, in the light of Exhi-

bit 20, having recited that the consignee had such

bearings for ultimate sale to the trade, if the de-

fendants should not have advised the Government
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in applications relative to the three tanks that

Miconi Shoko Company was to sell said tanks or

furnish them to the army or navy as the evidence

may convince you was the actual fact. [188]

The jur}^ has heard the evidence on the argmnent

and instructions of the Court. When the jury re-

tires, to consider their verdict, it will be the respon-

sibility of the jury, under their oath and their

conscience.

The bailiffs may be sworn.

(Whereupon the bailiffs were sworn.)

The Court: When the jury unanimously agrees

upon each of the three verdicts as to each of the

three defendants and the entries have been made,

as I have already directed, the foreman will sign

and date the verdict.

Ladies and gentlemen, the decision is now for

you. You may retire.

(Whereupon the jury left the jury box and

the courtroom.)

The Court: Do you wish to note any exceptions

—though I have in mind what has been said—do

you wish to except to each and every thing that I

have said to the jury at this time?

Mr. Griffin: I so understood.

Mr. Bassett: Yes.

Mr. Crandell: Yes.

(The jury retires to consider of its ver-

dict.) [189]
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CERTIFICATE

State of Washington,

County of King—ss.

I, Lloyd L. Black, Judge of the District Court

of the United States for the Western District of

Washington, Northern Division, and Judge before

whom the foregoing cause, entitled "United States

of America, Plaintiff, v. Charles T. Takahashi,

Edward Y. Osawa, et al, Defendants", was heard

and tried, do hereby certify that the matters and

proceedings embodied in the foregoing Bill of Ex-

ceptions are matters and proceedings occurring in

the said cause, and that the same are hereby made

a part of the record herein; and I further certify

that the said Bill of Exceptions together with all

the exhibits and other written evidence on file with

the amendments ordered in the said cause and at-

tached to said Bill of Exceptions contains all the

material facts, matters, things, proceedings, rulings

and exceptions thereto, occurring in said cause and

not heretofore a part of the record herein, includ-

ing all the evidence adduced at the trial of said

cause; and I further certify that the exhibits set

forth or referred to, or both, in the foregoing Bill

of Exceptions constitute all of the exhibits offered

in evidence at the said trial, and I hereby make all

of said exhibits a part of the foregoing Bill of Ex-

ceptions; and I hereby settle and allow the fore-

going Bill of Exceptions as a full, true and correct

Bill of Exceptions in this cause and order the same

filed as part of the record herein, and further order

the Clerk of this Court to attach to the said Bill



286 Charles T. Takaliaslii, et al

of Exceptions all of the said exhibits and to trans-

mit said entire Bill of Exceptions, including all

exhibits whatsoever to the Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit. I further certify that

the minute entry of the Clerk, transmitted with

the record, contains all orders made by me fixing

and extending the time for the presentation, settling

[190] and filing of the Bill of Exceptions, and that

the foregoing Bill of Exceptions is presented, set-

tled and allowed within the time prescribed for that

purpose.

Dated this 7th day of Sept., 1943.

LLOYD L. BLACK,
United States District Judge for the Western Dis-

trict of Washington, Northern Division.

The foregoing certificate is true, and is approved.

TRACY GRIFFIN,
SAMUEL B. BASSETT,

Attorneys for Appellants.

Received copy of the within Bill of Exceptions

this day of August, 1943.

U. S. Attorney.

Attorney for Appellee.

Attorneys for Appellants.

[191]



vs. United States of America 287

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO BILL OF
EXCEPTIONS

Comes now the plaintiff in the above entitled

cause and moves that the following amendments

be added to the Bill of Exceptions:

I.

That to the cross examination of Osawa the fol-

lowing be added:

Referring to Exhibit No. 17, the first time I saw

that letter was just prior to the previous trial. I

never saw^ it in Japan.

Q. Did you ever talk with Mikuni-Shoki Com-

pany at all in regard to that letter while you were

in Japan, or the details connected therewith?

A. Not in particular to this letter.

Q. But the facts mentioned in the letter, you

did talk of them didn't you'?

A. The only thing in this letter that I talked

over with them was that they have arranged these

two companies listed here.

Q. Well, you talked to them about "three new

tanks, 80 's, and accessories which we ordered from

you last year", you talked that over with them,

didn't you?

A. The only information I gave on that was that

I told them why not offer these tanks which we

have as a starter for our connection with Shoki.

Q. The military authorities were hounding you

every day, were they not, to get these three tanks?
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A. They were not hounding me, but they were

hounding Mikuni.

Q. Were you there?

A. I was not with Mikuni when they were

hounding him.

Q. Well, they were hounding you weren't they

every day?

A. No, the military authorities were asking Mi-

kuni about these tanks, when they were coming, why
can't they get them through, etc., and Mikuni, in

turn, would relate that information to me.

I wrote that we were on the spot on these tanks,

and it is a fact that we were. The military authori-

ties were asking Mikuni all of the time, and they

were relaying that information to us.

Q. The Tonway Trading Company and the Hua
Hsin Company are the same companies mentioned

in my letter to Takahashi.

I never saw plaintiff's Exhibit No. 18 prior to

the last trial. I talked with them about the tanks.

They asked me if I could get them an R.C.A. Re-

ceiver. I told them to get in touch with the Seattle

office. They told me afterwards that they sent a

cable and that a cable came back from Takahashi.

I presume the dates were July 2nd, July 10th and

July 15th, or thereabouts. (R. 436-439).

II.

That all of the Exhibits in the case or copies

thereof be attached to the Bill of Exceptions prior

to the Bill being certified.
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III.

That, there be added to the Bill of Excex)tions

the following:

That when the motion was first argued, counsel

for defendants, Takahashi and Osawa, urged to the

Court that Mr. Takahashi had a right to ])e in the

enclosure because he had gone upon the ^'essel with

a permit and had left the vessel with certain cus-

tom officials, which constituted an implied consent.

Later, and before final decision, the Court in the

presence of the defendants indicated in his ruling

that when Mr. Takahashi left this vessel from Ja-

pan on which Mr. Osawa had come, going in the

Customs enclosure where the public had no right

to be, that he put himself in the position of a pas-

senger, and was subject to the same search as the

authorities had a right to make of Osawa ; the point

the Court was stressing being namely, if the au-

thorities could search Mr. Osawa, and could not

search Takahashi, then that anyone who wanted to

bring something they had no right to have from

Japan, could have an accommodating friend go on

the boat and give them the things they wished kept

secret, and thereby effect the stalemate of the of-

ficers.

The next day, despite the fact that i\[r. Taka-

hashi had sat there complacently while counsel made

the argument of his having been on the boat, the

Court was presented with another affidavit in ref-

erence to the first one, solemnly swearing Mr. Taka-

hashi never had been on the boat at all, and had

never left it.
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The Court was, repeatedly, informed by coun-

sel, even as late as the motion for a new trial, that

Mr. Takaliashi had a written permit to go into the

enclosure. The only permit was Exhibit No. I, pre-

sented to the Court on May 4th at this preliminary

hearing, bearing Mr. Takahashi's picture, bearing

his signature and reading as follows:

"United States Customs Service, Office of the Col-

lector, Port of Seattle, July 1, 1940.

Admit within the Customs Lines of incoming ves-

sels at the Port of Puget Sound, Mr. C. T. Taka-

hashi, 212 5th Ave. S., Seattle. Boarding any ves-

sels, after customs boarding, but not entering cus-

toms enclosure".

Signed by Roy L. Ballinger, Assistant Collec-

tor" and bearing the notation "Extended to Dec.

31, 1941."

Since Mr. Takahashi only had a permit to go on

the vessel, and since his first affidavit was that he

went on the vessel and then went in the enclosure,

the Court finds that Mr. Takahashi boarded the

vessel and left the vessel for the enclosure w^here

he had no written permit to be.

J. CHARLES DENNIS,
U. S. Attorney.

Received a copy of the within Proposed Amds.

to B. of E. this 28th day of Aug., 1943.

VANDERVEER, BASSETT &

GEISNESS,
Attorneys for Defendants.
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Received a copy of the within Proposed Amend-

ment, this 28th day of Aug., 1943.

TRACEY E. GRIFFIN,
By [Illegible]

Attorney for Defendants.

[Endorsed] : Filed Sept. 3, 1943.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER

This matter coming on for hearing this day on

the plaintiif's motion for allowance of proposed

amendments to the bill of exceptions, and the Court

having heard and considered the arguments of

coimsel, it is therefore

Ordered and Adjudged that said proposed amend-

ments to the bill of exceptions be and the same are

hereby allowed and are hereby incorporated as a

part of the bill of exceptions.

Done in open court this 7th day of September,

1943.

LLOYD L. BLACK,
United States District Judge.

Approved

:

TRACEY GRIFFIN,
SAMUEL B. BASSETT,

Attorneys for defendants.

Presented by:

J. CHARLES DENNIS,
United States Attorney.

[Endorsed] : Filed Sept. 7, 1943.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 9

[Foreign Characters]

[Pencil Notations] E-Y. O. B. C. 11/2/41. A. D.

E.

Hua Hsin Company
Telephone: 15914 320 Szechuen Road

Shanghai, July 4th, 1941.

Messrs. China Import & Export Company
212 5th Ave. So.

Seattle, Washington,

U. S. A.

Gentlemen

:

As a consequence of our long business discussion

with your representative, Mr. W. L. Chang, we wish

to open our most cordial business relation with your

goodselves by our placing an order with you for

three new storage tanks, which we have heard that

you have in your hands as available stock, and we

beg to confirm our today's telegraphic order as

follows, which we trust, would have been receiving

your most careful attention at your end.

Article: New storage Tanks, capacity 80,000 Bbls.

ea. Specifications and Blue-Prints as handed

by Mr. Chang.

Quantity: 3 (three) complete sets with complete ac-

cessories and construction materials, such as

welding rods and flux.

Price: CIF Shanghai U. S. $29,500.—per com-

plete set.
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Amount : U. S. $88,500.—

Payment: Deduct U. S. $71,700 from our credit ac-

count. Balance shall be remitted shortly. All

particulars as per Mr. Chang's letter.

Packing: Usual Export Custom.

Shipment: From Pacific Coast July/August 1941.

Destination: Shanghai, China.

For your information, we might as well add here

that these tanks are to be imported for the local

storage purpose and will not be re-exported to any

country with whom you are not on friendly terms.

Thanking you in anticipation for your kind at-

tention to the above, we beg to remain, Gentlemen,

Yours faithfully,

HUA HSIN COMPANY.
M. H. KIANG,

Manager.

[Endorsed]: Filed May 15, 1942.

[Pencil Notation]: 10-6-42.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 10

Confirmation of Telegram

Mikimi-Shoko Co. Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan.

Cable Address: "XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes Used:

Bentley's 2nd Phrase,

Acme and Private

To NEWYR C. T. Takahashi & Co. Seattle,

Wash. U. S. A.

Date Sent June 27, 1941.

Code Used Duo & Private.

[Notation in ink: C T T 11/2/41 ADR (Illegible)]

Code Translation

D I C E V Duo Code

A W S U E as arranged

S Z L I K Refer to your letter of April 5th

X B U V L are endeavoring to learn name of

A G D U D composition of

P G T I M 12

G U S W Tubes

B S Y G even

A Z H U A approximately

Y F B I V such as

B U M A M Nickel

B U Y C D Chrome

P V S U N or

N K A T W Tungsten

N D R O U Steel

G G I X V at what temperature

H C U M U can stand

E O R V V Please telegraph promptly

1 A C what are owners ideas

U I D D V stop

D I H T Do utmost to arrange earliest possible ship-

ment

I F A I L by every possible means
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Code Translation

B P V Oil Tanks

F G Y R A and

G U S W Tubes

J W A L E our customers desires

P R Y E N additional offers

B P V Oil Tanks

Z V B P telegraph prospect

[Endorsed] : Filed May 15, 1942.

[Pencil Notation] : 9-30-42.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 11

Confirmation of Telegram

Mikuni-Shoko Co. Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan.

Cable Address: ''XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes Used:

Bentley's 2nd Phrase,

Acme and Private

To NEWYR Seattle (Wash. U. S. A.)

Date Sent Jime 28, 1941.

Code Used Duo.

[Notation in ink: C T T 11/2/41 ADE (Illegible)]

Code Translation

R K K E Decided

B H V E W Today

H K U S H Name of firm (is)

A U H hiia

N I S H hsin

C J Z D Company (See Names)

N Z Y G A Address (es)

J B A O M 320
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Code Translation

NEUHCEZS szechuen

A U S J S Road (s)

Y U P G T Shanghai (China)

L D X U V Con firm by telegraph

M F C O L In order to prevent any misunderstanding

STOP stop

C G Z Y J Without knowing

A G D U D composition (of)

O G U S W Tube (s)

K X Y L Negotiations distiontinued for the present

F B E H F What shall we do, must have immediate reply

[Endorsed]: Filed May 15, 1942.

[Pencil Notation] : 9-30-42.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No, 12

Confirmation of Telegram

Mikimi-Shoko Co. Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan.

Cable Address: ^'XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes Used:

Bentley's 2nd Phrase,

Acme and Private

To NEWYR Seattle.

Date Sent July 5, 1941.

Code Used Duo Code Inverted.

[Notation in ink : C T T 11/2/41 ADR (Illegible) ]

Code Translation

P L A R With reference to

A P R W Trucks(s)

R H Y M L Mining machinery

T E I H R you may receive
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Code Translation

R G V U V telegram (s) from

Y AW N O T Ton way
M S Y P D Trading company

C B E L M 129

Y N X J I Hamil-ton

YDVSI House(s)

I E C M M 170

E S G N A I K Kiangse

A U S J S Road(s)

Y U P G T Shanghai (China)

S P A F J instead of

G N A H C Chang
STOP stop

G N A H C Chang
E I L lV W Willie

X G Y S J is

N H K Kohno
T K G A S Representative of your

O C E I C China Import & Export Co.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 15, 1942.

[Pencil Notation]: 9-30-42.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 13

Confirmation of Telegram

Mikuni-Shoko Co. Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan.

Cable address '^XYM AS" Tokyo

Codes Used:

Bentley's 2nd Phrase

and Private

To NEWYR Seattle.

Date Sent July Sth, 1941.

Code Used Duo.
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[Notation in ink: C T T 11/2/41 ADR (Illegible)]

Code Translation

U F I H R You will receive

R G V U V telegram from

C A U H HUA HSIN & CO.

O G U S W tube

B G Y U H for

U M Y J K licence

E Y W N S please rush

L I U R A analysis

[Endorsed] : Filed May 15, 1942.

[Pencil Notation] : 9-30-42.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 14

C. T. T. 11/2/41 ADR.
July 5, 1941

Dear Ted:

I cannot forgive myself for forgetting that yes-

terday was fourth of July and I worked. Should

have declared a holiday and taken the day off like

aU patriotic Americans do. Its hotter than hell

right now, Nubai just being over.

Getting down to serious business, I just received

your letter No. 20. Was quite interested in the ac-

tivity in Mexico and you can rest assured that I will

do all possible to put it over over here. Have already

diccussed the situation with Ikuta and upon receipt

that you can ship the machinery out, will go into

real action. Have explained to him regarding pay-

ment and I think they imderstand. Too bad that
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everytime we use Shenker, it proves expensive. I

guess its in the system and can't be gotten rid of.

Anyway I hope to put something over so that we

can get it back.

The trouble with rails, mercury and tin plate is

that the gunbu has no direct interest in it and the

association is handling all imports of these articles.

Sometime in a pinch they go to the gunbu and

ask for their help in order to get space. That is

one reoson the gmibu told us we better handle other

things that is not formed into association. It is pos-

sible they gave us a lower price just to get rid of

us so they can favor Mitui mitsubishi etc. who are

already handling for the asociation and they are

afraid that if we step in now, we will only raise

the price. The space will be very difficult to get as

we cannot use the gunbu for things that they are

not directly connected with. The only other way
to get around this is to go see Ikeda in Osaka and

if I can get away for a couple of days, I may do

this as I want to settle accounts with him anyway.

The last time he was here, I asked him about the

axles and wheels, and he said that the wheels are

still stuck in the custom warehouse as they will not

give him permit and he thinks he got that straight-

ened out but they have a price set on all these

stuff so he is afraid they will be able to sell unless

at loss. Have checked upon the price set question

and fomid that this is true. However, I did not

get what that top price is so will soon tind out thru

other channels.
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Marmon: Have already instructed Kohno to wire

order for 150 sets of Marmon so you can get permit.

Next time you wire them you better tell them that

it is only to get permit as they thought that you

wanted a definite form until I explained to them

why you wanted it. I hope I am right. I told them

to work on 150 sets and in the meantime you will

try to get a permit and when you do get it we can

ship it as soon as the factory can get them out

provided they get the order. If no order then no

business of course.

Shanghai office: The reason I was unable to send

you the name of the Shanghai office is that it was

not until shortly that Ikuta came to terms with the

people over there. Seems they wanted too much

commission. In order to make it easier for you in

making application you can now say your represen-

tative is Willie Chang who is Schnicklefritz. The

firm of Chang, you better not use. Hereafter you

better use the two firms, namely, Hua Hsin Co. 320

Szechuen Road, Shanghai, and Tonway Trading

Co., Hamilton House 129, 170 Kiangse Rd. Shang-

hai. These two firms are the ones that Mikuni has

made definite connection with in Shanghai.

Wood Oil: This is going to be a tremendous busi-

ness. Schnicklefritz was a little quick on the trig-

ger and talked of five thousand tons thinking he

could easily get this much. However, this is an

enormous quantity and almost impossible to get on

short notice. Mr. Ikuta went to Shanghai, and

checked and found out that the wood oil at present
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is handled thru Showa Tsusho, Mitsubishi etc. so

he negotiated to get this thru the back door. The

arrangement is a difficult one to explain here but

will do my best. Wood oil that came and is coming

into Shanghai is held by gunbu. They have con-

trol of all the stock. The material may cost only 10c

in the front but when it comes to Shanghai, its

worth a dollar. The government is up against it

because everything that comes into Shanghai like

nickle is way high in price, so they raise the price

of export of wood oil to cover for the difference in

price in imports. In this way they try to maintain

the balance of trade. Mr. Ikuta has made very

good arrangements to get the wood oil so for the

time being you better work on the small lots of two

or three hundred tons at a time. Your information

regarding Chungking handling of oil was very much

appreciated by Ikuta and the gunbu so if you can

furnish any other true information, they would ap-

preciate it very much and would put us in very

good favor.

Mangyo

:

Thru Assistance of Mr. Ikuta and his attorney,

we are sending a letter to Mansan. The gist of the

letter is that I have talked it over with Seattle

and Seattle insist that the responsible for the break-

age is Manson fault, based on the argument that

they did not sent an inspector to check the shipment

as per contract and if they had the ins^jector would

have objected because of no packing and wt would

have taken care of it and there would have been

no trouble. The contract definitely stated we will
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pack. Secondly when I made them a proposition

that we will accept three hundred fifty thousand

yen and give them the copper wire, I was too easy

but since I made the proposition, we will abide

by it provided they accept immediately. However

if they still refuse to accept, I cannot stay here

any longer so will leave it in the hands of the at-

torneys and all propositions that I made is hereby

cancelled and we will claim for the full payment

less nothing. Our weak point is that the contract

calls for packing. Also one point is that it also

stated that all repair for account of us. This tbey

understand that before loading but the way the con-

tract reads, it is possible that it could be interpreted

as at arrival. Third, when Togo made the switch

from the big payment to the small payment, he

made an agreement in writing that we will wait

until the inspection is over before we will take the

second payment. On the other hand our strong

point is that Mangy cannot stand a suit. Also their

not sending a representative to check the loading.

Have this letter already written up and we having

the lawyer check it over once more. This lawyer

will be no chiseler as he is Ikuta's good friend and

Ms lawyer.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 15, 1942.

[Pencil Notation] 9-30-42.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 15

C.T.T. 11/2/41 ADR.
July 12, 1941.

Dear Ted:

Shanghai: Its been a Ions; time since Kohno and

finally Ikuta went to Shanghai and was finally able

to make arrangements. They have a very good set

up and have a sort of an office there. In order to

make work progress better it is better that we have

our own name registered there to under Cieco so

Ikuta is including our name in the office to and

Kohno will be our representative there. He is

known as Willie Chang, representative of Cieco.

This is the only way that we will be able to work

a lot of things over there that other firms can't.

For instance, wood oil, is under control of the gunbu

and in connection with a sort of Okurasho, they are

letting Showa Tsusho and Mitsubishi handle the

export of it but we are going to take it away alto-

gether provided you can handle it on your side. All

orders that Kohno cable you from Shanghai is for

you to apply for license only and it is not firm.

However, if you get the license. Business will no

doubt be consumated. Ikuta will push it thru some-

way. No business closed thru Shanghai is definitely

closed unless confirmed by Mikuni here.

Vladivostok and Netherland East Indies is abso-

lutely out. Even if you get permit and ship there,

it is no good because you cannot tranship from

there. The government will seize it for their own use

and as the gunbu has no control there, they cannot

do anything.
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Kohno requests you to send him by first possible

steamer, one Zenitli portable radio. The kind he

says when you open the lid music or something

comes out. Understand this is for some member of

the gunbu in Shanghai.

Quicksilver: We have been working hard in

order to put this thru. First we tried here and it

seemed impossible as the price but since Ikuta came

back we have been working and pushing gunbu on

this. Then we tried Shanghai but they said it was

better we work it here so once again we pushed

gunbu. The price they say is still high and we

are wondering if it isn't because of the price of

the container. It is usual that they buy mercury

on basis that they return the flask. This would

make a ditference of around ten to fifteen yen. We
do not know whether we will have to go thru the

association or not yet. At present we are trying

to get it thru directly thru gunbu. I hope you guys

got this definitely in spite of your offer being on

basis of with firm offer in hand because you cannot

approch gunbu with this kind of term. If they de-

cide to buy, you better have it or else our rep will

be ruined.

[Endorsed]: Filed May 15, 1942.

[Pencil Notation]: 9-30-42.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 16

C. T. T. 11/2/41 ADR.

July 15, 1941

Dear Ted:

Since writing previous letters on Quicksilver, I

am sending the letters just the same, so that you

can see the trend of action we have been making.

The gunbu told us to go to the association which we

did but the association talked of such cheap price

that we gave up for a time. When you came back

again with firm offer in hand, we once again ap-

proached gunbu and they started to go into action

and told us to go once more to the association. Tlien

the Association said that they have a contract with

Mexico thru the embassy, for $210.00 per flask C&F.

This price includes the price of the flask. We ap-

proached the gunbu again when I talked with you

on the phone and when you sounded doubtful of get-

ting the quick, I immediately started to take steps

to backwater. Gunbu said to wait awhile as they

will check with the association, themselves. On the

other hand Shoko sho said that even if our price

was a little higher, it should be brought in, as they

know that in spite of the contract existing until de-

cember for a thousand flask a month at 210.00 they

are not coming in. Sometime some of it is coming

but the contract is not being fulfilled. As a back-

water I said that we are able to get it now but if

they wait, as the gunbu suggest, vre may not be able

to get it even if we pay more than 220.00. I told them

that if they come back later and say they want it,

we will have to go thru the entire process of obtain-
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ing it and negotiatew on price all over again. This

is my only out. Hereafter on anything with gunbu,

it is very bad policy to quote on basis of with firm

offer in hand. They have to move so many machin-

eries and force the buyers and the shokosho to issue

permit that they must have everything concrete.

They cannot tell the users to buy and then have us

tell them that the price is higher nor the stuff is

unavailable. When you talk to gunbu its quite dif-

ferent from when you talk to ordinary business

houses. If they decide to push anything for us, they

want it to be just so. Of course, they will overlook

if we camiot ship because of definite embargo like

our tanks but even on tanks they are hounding us

every day. We sure are on a spot on the three

tanks. I doubt if a day goies by that they don't

call us or say someth'ng about them. If we could

only get those three tanks out, it would be a life

saver and they would do almost anything for us.

Before you get this letter we may get more action

on the quicksilver. Be sure that Mexico can sup-

ply before we make a firm offer. Mexicans think

nothing of cancelling contracts or of fall downs

so we must be doubly careful to make sure that

whoever we are dealing with down there are re-

sponsible and really have the stuff.

[Endorsed]: Filed May 15, 1942.

[Pencil Notation] : 9-30-42.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 17

Cable Address: "XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes: Bentley's 2nd Phrase and Private

Phone: Shitaya (83) 5260. 5423. 9129

C. T. T. 11/2/41 ADR.

Mikuni Shoko Company Limited

(Mikuni Commerce & Industry Co. Ltd.)

No. 4, Gokencho, Kanda.

Tokyo, Japan.

Import Dept.

Our letter No. 29.

July 16, 1941.

Messrs. C. T. Takahashi & Co.,

212 5th Ave., So.,,

Seattle, Wash.,

U. S. A.

Re: Shanghai:

Gentlemen

:

As informed you previously by phone and tele-

grams, our Mr. Kohno has been working very hard

everyday in Shanghai mider the present difficult

conditions as stated in our last respects No. 28 and

as known well by your Mr. Osawa, and at last we

have decided as follows:

1) HUA HSIN COMPANY, 320 Szeehiien Road

Shanghai, Cable Add. HUACO . Phone:

15914.

This firm has been recommended by the Military

people there, being their financial standing consid-

ered as very good, and after having made various
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discussions and talkings about this firm at Shang-

hai, this company has been considered as most suit-

able for our purpose, which they agreed to co-oper-

ate with you and us. Good arrangement and better

understanding have been secured. You therefore,

intending to export to them the following goods,

can now apply for the export license which we hope,

you will surely succeed in securing from your gov-

ernment.

3. New Tanks 80s and its necessary accessories,

which we ordered from you last year.

12. Reaction Vessels (Tubes) as per Blue Print

and specification No. 1003 sent to us formerly.

With reference to the advance money paid by us

to you already, it would become necessary to pre-

pare some evidence that all the payment against the

3 new tanks have been made to you by HUA HSIN
CO. in place of our firm, which i3lease take note. We
trust, by thus, we can present our business from

being detected by any body else and can get the

delivery of 3 tanks safely.

2) TONWAY TRADING COMPANY: Hamilton

House 129, 170 Kiangse Road Shanghai,

Cable Add. TONWAY.

This company is also creditable firm and recom-

mended by Mil. people there and they came to ac-

cept their position to co-operate with us in the

matter and we have decided to use their name in

addition to the said HUA HSIN COMPANY. This

is because that if you should have to receive so
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much big orders at a time (in short period) from

only one firm and you should have to apply for the

license so many times under the same name and

thus is likely to cause something doubt at your end

when severe inspection has been put over on your ap-

plications. We trust, to have two firms in Shanghai,

would be very effective in every respect to get our

final success.

From this view aforesaid, the following goods

has been ordered from you in the name of Tonway

Trading Co. to let you apply the export license.

1 set of Mining Machinery (Indian Mine)

150 Marmon Herrington Trucks.

6 Locomotives (Pacific Coast)

We also trust you would have done every neces-

sary steps to get the export license at your end.

3) W.L.CHANG: This is the Chinese name of

Mr. Kohno, as the representative of your China Im-

port & Export Co. so that he may be able to make

proper arrangement or evidence in the matter.

Hua Hsin Co. and Tomway Trading Co. can easily

fix any contract with Mr. Chang in place of you,

even as nominally and thus can be able to protect

our plan being detected by any body else.

GENERAL : As a large number of important

articles to be intended for Japan have been jDut on

embargo, it has become now most important for

you and us to obtain the export license from your

Governmental Authorities and if you secceed in se-

curing same, it will be safe for us to state that we
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can fix the business at our side. We strongly ask

you to obtain export license for any prospective

articles.

Please bear in mind that all orders, except 3

Tanks placed with you through Shanghai firms,

were only to have you apply for export license and

should be subject to our final confirmation by wire

or phone by ourselves in TOKIO.

4) Mining Machinery

:

This item must be talked

in North China instead of Shanghai and we wished

to let him rush to North soonest as possible, but as

we had very many things to do in Shanghai for

our GUNBU, we were obliged to stay him there

for long time beyond our expectation. However,

we will soon instruct him to go up to North in a few

days to fix the Mining Machinery business there.

Hoping to hear from you a good news at the soon-

est possible ti time and also hoping anything trouble

will not be occurred in our tactics, We are.

Yours faithfully,

FOR MIKUNI-SHOKO CO. LTD.
M. IKUTA

Director

MI/TH:

[Endorsed] : Filed May 15, 1942.

[Pencil Notation]: 9-30-42.



vs. United States of America 311

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 18

Cable Address: "XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes: Bentley's 2nd Phrase and Private

Phone: Shitaya (83) 5260. 5423. 9129

C.T.T. 11/2/41 A.D.R.

Mikuni Shoko Company Limited

(Mikuni Commerce & Industry Co. Ltd.)

No. 4 Gokencho, Kanda,

Tokyo, Japan.

IMPORT DEPT:

Our letter No. 30. July 16, 1941.

Messrs. C. T. Takahashi & Co.

Seattle, Wash.

U. S. A.

Dear Sirs,

Reaction Vessel: We are looking forward for

your information about this item as stated in our

last respects. Please refer to No. 28. Up to this

writing, the vessel offered by you could not be able

to meet with our customers ' requirement but under

the conditions at the present, we think, if you

could obtain export license, we could also obtain the

order from them.

3 New Tanks: Should we fail in securing other

various goods due to the reasons beyond our con-

trol, yet we are hopping to secure this item, first

of all, because we shall have nothing to reward for

our GUNBU's patronage. The Gunbu people are

enthusiastically desiring to get the delivery of this
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item and are encouraging us at all times. They are

trusting us for our abilities as well as your own.

Mercury: The import of this item has been

controlled by the Ministry of Com. & Industry and

the associations of Japanese Mercury factory. Our

effort to push the sale of Mexican mercury has

made the Auth. and Association to approach us and

we are going to wire you to get new offer from you,

but this very day, Mr. Osawa has kindly informed

us that he received a telegram from you to the effect

that Mexican mercury has been put on embargo and

nothing to do now. Anyhow, as we have got some

good connection with the Military Auth. as well as

Min. of Com. & Ind., please let us have every news

if conditions turn better.

R. C. A. Receiver : This item was required by

the Japanese Mil. Authorities in Shanghai and we
telegraphed you to ask for your firm offer for this

item. We thank you very much for your kind at-

tention paid for this matter. This receiver would

be used to steal out the special waves and the GUN-
BU people told that RCA No. 234 model would be

suitable better than No. 117 model.

The frequency is at maximum 300,000 and at first

550 kilo cycles or below. Output of power required,

is 3 watt or over. This information has been trans-

ferred to you and received from you a telegram of

11th inst. requesting us to know weight, size and
operating current also frequency in kilo cycles, num-
ber of band and asked us if we desire transmitter.
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We therefore transferred the message to Mr. Kohno

who replied that "RCA size 24"xl2xl2 20 kilo 60

cycles band same as frequency (300,000) applicable

to 110 volt AC current, 220 volt AC Current, 110 DC
current and 220 volt DC current. We think the

above specification will be clear to you and you can

arrange with the makers for production at your side,

but to make the matter easier for you, we will consult

with the electri engineer and let you know by tele-

gram in a few days.

Nickel Copper Iron Ingot: We thank you for

your so kind attention given to the matter, but

carefully considering this item with Mr. Osawa, we

have decided to give it up.

Record Loutit Process: Sample Oil has been pre-

sented to the Nenryosho (Mil. Fuel Dept.), where

the Liet, Masuda's Report has been transferred,

and the sample oil has been under inspection there

now. We shall not lose any time to watch the re-

sult. We think in near future theie inspection will

be over, when we rush again in this matter.

Assuring you of our always attention to our busi-
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ness with you and thanking you in advance for your

co-operation with us, we are,

Yours faithfully,

FOR MIKUNI-SHOKO CO.

LTD.

M. IKUTA,
Director

MI/TH:

[Endorsed] : Filed May 15, 1942.

[Pencil Notation] : 9-30-42.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 19

Department of State

[Stamped] Division of Controls, Apr. 18, 1941.

Department of State.

United States of America

Application for License to Export Articles and Ma-
terials (Other Than Arms, Ammunition and

Implements of War and Tin-Plate Scrap) Des-

ignated b}^ the President as Necessary to the

National Defense Pursuant to Section 6 of the

Act of Congress Approved July 2, 1940

(Application to be made in triplicate)

Original

Japan (Pencil Notation: China)

(Insert here name of country of destination

License No
(For official use only)



vs. United States of America 315

General Instructions

(a) One triplicate application should be made for

each complete shipment to any one consignee,

and it may not include more than one commod-

ity nor shipments to more than one country.

(b) Applications should be typewritten, with the

exception of signature, but will be considered

if written legibly in ink.

(c) Articles and materials appearing under (7) be-

low should be designated clearly and specifi-

cally, the type and model designation being in-

cluded whenever applicable.

(d) Values listed should represent the selling

price only of the articles exported, and should

not include such supplementary costs as pack-

ing, freight, etc.

(e) Specify under paragraph (9) the name and

address of the producer or manufacturer in

the United States of each article and material

to be exported or, if obtained outside of the

United States, the name and address of the

person from whom procured.

(f) Unsigned applications or applications which

omit essential information called for in the

numbered spaces will be returned.

(g) When countersigned and impressed with tne

seal of the Department of State, this applica-

tion becomes a license.

(h) Any attempt to export a commodity differing

in any way from that licensed, or any altera-

tion of a license, except by a duly authorized

officer of the Government, is punishable under
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appropriate acts of Congress. Changes in tlie

information set forth in licenses which have

been issued under the seal of the Secretary of

State can be effected by amendments which

can be made only by the Department of State,

or by collectors of customs or postmasters act-

ing under the specific instructions of the De-

partment of State.

Department of State,

Washington, D. C.

(1) Date of application April 16, 1941.

(2) Applicant's reference No
The undersigned hereby applies for license to ex-

port the commodity described below and warrants

the truth of all statements and answers herewith

made regarding it.

[Pencil Notation] China Imp.

(3) Name of applicant C. T. Takahashi & Company

By IRA L. EWERS.
(To be signed in ink)

(4) Consignee in foreign country

Name.

Mikuni Shoko Company
[In pencil] : Chinese Co.

Nationality Japanese

[In pencil] : Chinese.

Address

Street No. 4, Gokencho, Kanda
City Tokyo, Japan

State or province

Country Japan.
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(5) Purchaser in foreign country

Name Mikuni Shoko Company

Nationality Japanese

Address

Street No. 4, Gokencho, Kanda

City Tokyo, Japan

State or province

Countr}^ Japan

(6) Number of units or

weight (whichever is

applicable). If weight (7) Description of articles or ma- (8) Approximate

is given in tons, spe- terials to be exported net value

cify whether long or

short tons.

3

(each tank weighs Complete New Steel Dis- $22,500.00 f.o.b.

about 270 long mantled Storage Tanks Seattle per tank

tons) and accessories for re-

erection purposes.

[Stamped] Division of Controls, Apr. 16, 1941.

Department of State.

[Stamped] Application Rejected. The Adminis-

trator of Export Control has determined that the

proposed exportation would be contrary to the in-

terest of the National Defense. Rejection No. H T-

4-R.

May 14, 1941.

(9) Source of material to be exported (see para-

graph (e) above)

:

Graver Tank Company, East Chicago, Indi-

(Name) (Address)

ana/Galamba Supply Company, Kansas City,

Kansas.

[Pencil Note]: Leave out Sanken Galamba.

purchased through Sonken
(10) State the specific purpose for which the arti-
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cles or materials are required and the name

and address of the ultimate consumer in the

foreign country:

[Pencil Note] : Leave out.

Storage purposes (by Mikuni Shoko Com-

pany.)

(11) License to be sent to— (type or print plainly)

Name C. T. Takahashi & Company

[Pencil Note] : China Imp.

Street 212 Fifth Avenue South

City and State Seattle, Washington

(12) Consignor in United States

[Pencil Note] : China Imp.

Name C. T. Takahashi & Co.

Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212 5th Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

(13) Seller in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Company

Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212 Fifth Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

Nature of l)usiness Importers & ex-

porters

(14) Port of exit in the United States from which

it is proposed to exjDort the shipment

License is hereby granted to the applicant men-

tioned herein to export from the United States of

America to Japan the articles or materials described
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and in the quantity given, on the following terms

and conditions:

This license is not transferable and is subject to

revocation v^ithout notice.

Shipment must be made from port of exit within

1 year from date of this license as given below

under the seal of the Department.

Export licenses must be filed with the collector of

customs at the port from which the shipment is de-

parting from the United States prior to the pro-

posed departure.

For Collectors of Customs and Postmasters

This license should be returned to the Secretary

of State at the end of the month during which the

last article of the shipment described therein was

exported, or during which notice has been given

that the remaining balance will not be shipped, or

during which the license has been revoked or has

expired. When the entire shipment has been ex-

ported, the license should be marked "Completed";

otherwise the returned license should bear a nota-

tion stating the reason for its return and the quan-

tity and value of the articles actually shipped.

Collectors of customs or postmasters will endorse

in the following spaces information concerning ship-

ments made under this license:

[Blank form not filled in.]

Date of license

(For official use only)

For the Secretary of State

:

By
(For official use only).
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(Wlien countersigned and impressed with the seal

of the Department of State, this application becomes

a license.)

[Endorsed] : Filed May 15, 19-

[Pencil Note] : 9-30-42.

io

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 20

Department of State

[Stamped] Eeceived Department of State 1941

Ma}^ 8 AM 10:01. Division of Communications and

Records.

[Stamped] Division of Controls May 9 9:51 AM
'41. Department of State.

United States of America

Application for License to Export Articles and Ma-

terials (Other Than Arms, Ammunition and

Implements of War and Tin-Plate Scrap) Des-

ignated by the President as Necessary to the

National Defense Pursuant to Section 6 of the

Act of Congress Approved July 2, 1940

(Application to be made in triplicate)

Original

China

(Insert here name of country of destination)

License No
(For official use only)

General Instructions

(a) One triplicate application should be made for

each complete shipment to any one consignee,
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and it may not include more than one commod-

ity nor shipments to more than one country.

(b) Applications should be typewritten, with the

exception of signature, but will be considered

if written legibly in ink.

(c) Articles and materials appearing under (7) be-

low should be designated clearly and specifi-

cally, the type and model designation being in-

cluded whenever applicable.

(d) Values listed should represent the selling

price only of the articles exported, and should

not include such supplementary costs as pack-

ing, freight, etc.

(e) Specify under paragraph (9) the name and

address of the producer or manufacturer in

the United States of each article and material

to be exported or, if obtained outside of the

United States, the name and address of the

person from whom procured.

(f) Unsigned applications or applications which

omit essential information called for in the

numbered spaces will be returned.

(g) When countersigned and impressed with tne

seal of the Department of State, this applica-

tion becomes a license.

(h) Any attempt to export a commodity differing

in any way from that licensed, or any altera-

tion of a license, except by a duly authorized

officer of the Government, is punishable under

appropriate acts of Congress. Changes in the

information set forth in licenses which have

been issued under the seal of the Secretary of



322 Charles T. Takahashi, et al

State can be effected by amendments wMcb
can be made only by the Department of State,

or by collectors of customs or postmasters act-

ing under the specific instructions of the De-

partment of State.

Department of State,

Washington, D. C.

(1) Date of application May 5, 1941.

(2) Applicant's reference No.

The undersigned hereby applies for license to ex-

port the commodity described below and warrants

the truth of all statements and answers herewith

made regarding it.

Nationality Manchurian.

(3) Name of applicant China Import & Export

Company

By LEO NYE SING.

(To be signed in ink)

(4) Consignee in foreign country

Name Koman Company
Nationality Manchurian

Address

2-Dan Kyowagai,

Street Yamato-ku

City Mukden
State or province

Country China
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(5) Purchaser in foreign country

Name Koman Company

Nationality Manchurian.

Address

2-Dan Kyowagai,

Street Yamato-ku

City Mukden
State or province

Country China

(6) Number of units or

weight (whichever is

applicable). If weight (7) Description of articles or ma- (8) Approximate
is given in tons, spe- terials to be exported net value

cify whether long or

short tons.

50,000 pieces Automobile Roller Bearings $25,000.00

[Stamped] Application Rejected. The Adminis-

trator of Export Control has determined that this

proposed exportation would be contrary to the in-

terest of the National Defense, s Rejection No. DI-

11-R. May 23, 1941.

(9) Source of material to be exported (see para-

graph (e) above)

:

Various wreckers (automobile) & wholesale

bearing dealers.

(Name) (Address)

(10) State the specific purpose for which the arti-

cles or materials are required and the name

and address of the ultimate consumer in the

foreign country:

To be used on horse-dravna coolie wagons and

carts.

Koman Company, 2-Dan Kyowagai, Yamato-

ku, Mukden, is the ultim to be sold to the

trade as above explained.
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(11) License to be sent to—(type or print plainly)

Name China Import & Export Company
Street 212 Fifth Avenue South

City and State Seattle, Washington

(12) Consignor in United States

Name China Import & Export Company
Nationality American

Address

:

Street 212 Fifth Aye. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

(13) Seller in United States

Name China Import & Export Company
Nationality American

Address

:

Street 212 Fifth Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

Nature of business Import & Export

business

(14) Port of exit in the United States from which

it is proposed to export the shipment Pacific Coast

ports

License is hereby granted to the applicant men-

tioned herein to export from the United States of

America to China the articles or materials described

and in the quantity given, on the following terms

and conditions:

This license is not transferable and is subject to

revocation without notice.

Shipment must be made from port of exit within
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1 year from date of this license as given below

under the seal of the Department.

Export licenses must be filed with the collector of

customs at the port from which the shipment is de-

parting from the United States prior to the pro-

posed departure.

For Collectors of Customs and Postmasters

This license should be returned to the Secretary

of State at the end of the month during which the

last article of the shij^ment described therein was

exported, or during which notice has been given

that the remaining balance will not be shipped, or

during which the license has been revoked or has

expired. When the entire shipment has been ex-

ported, the license should be marked "Completed";

otherwise the returned license should bear a nota-

tion stating the reason for its return and the quan-

tity and value of the articles actually shipped.

Collectors of customs or postmasters wdll endorse

in the following spaces information concerning ship-

ments made under this license:

[Blank form not filled in.]

Date of license —

-

(For official use only)

For the Secretary of State

:

By
(For Official Use Only)

(When countersigned and impressed with the seal

of the Department of State, this application becomes

a license.)

[Stamped] Illegible.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 19, 1942.

[PencH Note] : 9-30-42.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 21

Department of State

[Stamped] Division of Controls. Jul. 23 4:30

PM '41. Department of State.

[Stamped] Division of Controls. Jul. 22, 1941.

Department of State.

United States of America

Application for License to Export Articles and Ma-

terials (Other Than Arms, Ammunition and

Implements of War and Tin-Plate Scrap) Des-

ignated by the President as Necessary to the

National Defense Pursuant to Section 6 of the

Act of Congress Approved July 2, 1940

(Application to be made in triplicate)

Original

China

(Insert here name of country of destination

License No
(For official use only)

General Instructions

(a) One triplicate application should be made for

each complete shipment to any one consignee,

and it may not include more than one commod-

ity nor shipments to more than one country.

(b) Applications should be typewritten, with the

exception of signature, but will be considered

if written legibly in ink.

(c) Articles and materials appearing under (7) be-

low should be designated clearly and specifi-

cally, the type and model designation being in-

cluded whenever applicable.
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Values listed should represent the selling

price only of the articles exported, and should

not include such supplementary costs as pack-

ing, freight, etc.

(e) Specify under paragraph (9) the name and

address of the producer or manufacturer in

the United States of each article and material

to be exported or, if obtained outside of the

United States, the name and address of the

person from whom procured.

(f) Unsigned applications or applications which

omit essential information called for in the

numbered spaces will be returned.

(g) When countersigned and impressed with the

seal of the Department of State, this applica-

tion becomes a license.

(h) Any attempt to export a commodity differing

in any way from that licensed, or any altera-

tion of a license, except by a duly authorized

officer of the Government, is pmiisha])le under

appropriate acts of Congress. Changes in the

information set forth in licenses which have

been issued under the seal of the Secretary of

State can be effected by amendments which

can be made only by the Department of State,

or by collectors of customs or postmasters act-

ing under the specific instructions of the De-

partment of State.

Department of State,

Washington, D. C.

(1) Date of application July 16, IQ-tl.
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(2) Applicant's reference No.

The undersigned hereby applies for license to ex-

port the commodity described below and warrants

the truth of all statements and answers herewith

made regarding it.

(3) Name of applicant China Import & Export

ComJ)any

By LEO NYE SING.

(To be signed in ink)

(4) Consignee in foreign country

Name Hua Hsin Company

Nationality Chinese

Address

Street 320 Szechuen Eoad

City Shanghai

State or province

Country China

(5) Purchaser in foreign country

Name Hua Hsin Company

Nationality Chinese

Address

Street 320 Szechuen Eoad

City Shanghai

State or province

Country China

(6) Number of units or

weiglit (v.'hichever is

applicable). If weight (7) Description of articles or ma- (8) Approximate
is given In tons, spe- terials to be exported net value
cify whether long or

short tons.

3

(each tank weighs Complete New Steel Dis- $29,500.00 f.o.b.

about 270 long mantled Storage Tanks Seattle per tank

tons) and accessories for erec-

tion purposes.
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[Stamped] Application Rejected. The Adminis-

trator of Export Control has determined that this

proposed exportation would be contrary to the in-

terest of the National Defense. Rejection No. H T-

26-R. Aug. 1, 1941.

(9) Source of material to be exported (see i:)ara-

graph (e) above)

:

Graver Tank Company, East Chicago, In-

diana.

(Name) (Address)

(10) State the specific purpose for which the arti-

cles or materials are required and the name

and address of the ultimate consumer in the

foreign country:

Storage purposes.

Hua Hsin Company, 320 Szechuen Road,

Shanghai, China.

(11) License to be sent to—(type or print plainly)

Name China Import & Export Company

Street 212 Fifth Ave. So.

City and State Seattle, Wash.

(12) Consignor in United States

Name China Import & Export Company

Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212 Fifth Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington
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(13) Seller in United States

Name China ImjDort & Export Company
Nationality United States

Address

:

Street

212 Fifth Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

Nature of business Importers & ex-

porters

(14) Port of exit in the United States from which

it is proposed to export the shipment Seattle, Wash.

License is hereby granted to the applicant men-

tioned herein to export from the United States of

America to Shanghai, China the articles or mate-

rials described and in the quantity given, on the fol-

lowing terms and conditions

:

This license is not transferable and is subject to

revocation without notice.

Shipment must be made from port of exit within

1 year from date of this license as given below

under the seal of the Department.

Export licenses must be filed with the collector of

customs at the port from which the shipment is de-

parting from the United States prior to the pro-

posed departure.

For Collectors of Customs and Postmasters

This license should be returned to the Secretary

of State at the end of the month during which the

last article of the shipment described therein was

exported, or during which notice has been given

that the remaining balance will not be shipped, or

during which the license has been revoked or has
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expired. When the entire shipment has been ex-

ported, the license should be marked "Completed";

otherwise the returned license should ])ear a nota-

tion stating the reason for its return and the quan-

tity and value of the articles actually shipped.

Collectors of customs or postmasters will endorse

in the following spaces information concerning ship-

ments made under this license:

[Blank form not filled in.]

Date of license —

-

(For official use only)

For the Secretary of State

:

By
(For Official Use Only)

(When countersigned and impressed with the seal

of the Department of State, this application becomes

a license.)

[Endorsed] : Filed May 15, 1942.

[Pencil Note] : 9-30-42.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 22

Name C. T. Takahashi & Co. NEWYE.
Address 212 5th Ave. So.

(Tel. No. If Delivery to Be Made by Telephone)

AFTER-HOUR INSTRUCTIONS—If Any

Disposition To Be Made of Ur-
gent Messages Received During

Office Hours Closed Hours

Week Day
Saturday

Sunday and

Holiday

Mto
Mto

Mto

M
M

M

BW209
Eemarks 8-7-41

B W167 8- 7-42

. Date 19

Peraianent Address and After-Hour Instructions

2747A

[Endorsed] : Filed May 19, 1942.

[Pencil Note] : 9-30-42.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 23

10

Name China Import & Exp. Co. ''Cieco"

Address 212 Fifth Ave. So.—Tel E] 5868 .

El 5166
(Tel. No. If Delivery to Be Made by Telephone)

Permanent Address Record

of Names Not Contained in Directories

Remarks

W444 10-13-27 WIO 19-13-32 W304
W443 10-13-28 W443 10-13-33 10-13-37

W104 10-13-28 P138 10-13-34 W277
W513 10-13-30 W306 10-13-35 10-13-38

W636 10-13-31 W296 10-13-36 W349
Nites: Takehashi Pr 3344 10-13-39

Check all cards against new issues of Telephone

and city directories, and destroy unnecessary cards.

Get reed, on all msgs. did.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 19, 1942.

[Pencil Note] : 9-30-42.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 24

Indicate by (V ) Each Instruction to be Observed

Originating

V Received Messages V Received Messages V Messages

Special Routing Cash on Rec'd Col- Charge Ac-

Get Receipt (Except lects count

E. M. D.)

Do Not Drop Do Not Telephone Answer

(E. M. D. Only) Phrase

Drop When Closed Deliver by Telephone Authority

All Hours No Advertising

Drop During Busi- Matter CR
ness Hours

Rate Received Col- Ofc Fone EL 5166 TA Spx

lects 3/8/^M6-22-38

After-Hour Instructions, Etc.

X ^ China Importing Co. Call Box No.

by msgr. Sunday Hours

Dont fone aft lOp DWR before 7a. 'nite Saturday Hours

6 8-1

Takahashi Aid 1708 Week-Day

Call ofc first Hours

C. T. Takahashi Co. 212 Fifth Ave. So. 8 '-6

Instructions

Instructions not covered in itemized list should

be written on a blank line, above after-hour instruc-

tions. Also use a blank line to supplement any gf

the itemized isntructions. This card may also be

used for permanent addresses and forwarding in-

structions.
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To facilitate reference to the record, the follow-

ing color signals should be used:
Remington Fland

Purpose Color catalogue No.

Get Receipt Green 0374

After-hour Instructions ) ti i aoto
r^ T T • V Purple 0373
b orwarding Instructions \

[Endorsed] : Filed May 19, 1942.

[Pencil Note] : 9-30-42.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 29—Part 1

Department of State

[Stamped] Division of Controls, Jul. 25, 5:30 PM
'41. Department of State.

[Stamped] Division of Controls. Jul. 23, 2:26

PM '41, Department of State.

United States of America

Application for License to Export Articles and Ma-

terials (Other Than Arms, Ammunition and

Implements of War and Tin-Plate Scrap) Des-

ignated by the President as Necessary to the

National Defense Pursuant to Section 6 of the

Act of Congress Approved July 2, 1940

(Application to be made in triplicate)

[Pencil Note] C. T. Takahashi, et al.

[Pencil Note] Edw. Osawa.

Duplicate

China

(Insert here name of country of destination
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License No.

(For official use only)

General Instructions

(a) One triplicate application should be made for

each complete shipment to any one consignee,

and it may not include more than one commod-

ity nor shipments to more than one country.

(b) Applications should be typewritten, with the

exception of signature, but will be considered

if written legibly in ink.

(c) Articles and materials appearing under (7) be-

low should be designated clearly and specifi-

cally, the type and model designation being in-

cluded whenever applicable.

(d) Values listed should represent the selling

price only of the articles exported, and should

not include such supplementary costs as pack-

ing, freight, etc.

(e) Specify under paragraph (9) the name and

address of the producer or manufacturer in

the United States of each article and material

to be exported or, if obtained outside of the

United States, the name and address of the

person from whom procured.

(f) Unsigned applications or applications which

omit essential information called for in the

numbered spaces will be returned.

1(g) When countersigned and impressed with the

seal of the Department of State, this applica-

tion becomes a license.
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(h) Any attempt to export a commodity difLering

in any way from that licensed, or any altera-

tion of a license, except by a duly authorized

officer of the Government, is punishable under

appropriate acts of Congress. Changes in the

information set forth in licenses which have

been issued under the seal of the Secretary of

State can be effected by amendments which

can be made only by the Department of State,

or by collectors of customs or postmasters act-

ing under the specific instructions of the De-

partment of State.

Department of State,

Washington, D. C.

(1) Date of application July 16, 1941.

(2) Applicant's reference No

The undersigned hereby applies for license to ex-

port the commodity described below and wairants

the truth of all statements and answers herewith

made regarding it.

(3) Name of applicant China Import & Export

Company
By LEO NYE SING.

(To be signed in ink)

(4) Consignee in foreign country

Name Hua Hsin Company

Nationality Chinese

Address

Street 320 Szechuen Road

City Shanghai

State or province

Country China
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(5) Purchaser in foreign country

Name Hua Hsin ComiDany

Nationality Chinese

Address

Street 320 Szechuen Road

City Shanghai

State or province

Country China

(6) Number of units or

weight (whichever is

applicable). If weight (7) Description of articles or ma- (8) Approximate
is given in tons, spe- terials to be exported net value

cify whether long or

short tons.

3

(each tank weighs Complete New Steel Dis- $29,500.00 f.o.b.

about 270 long mantled Storage Tanks Seattle per tank

tons) and accessories for erec- [In Pencil]

:

tion purposes. 3

88,500

FSH
[Stamped] Office of Administrator of Export

Control. Jul. 25, 1941. Disapproved. By J. W.
Aug. 1, 1941.

[Stamped] Application Rejected. The Adminis-

trator of Export Control has determined that this

proposed exportation would be contrary to the in-

terest of the National Defense. Rejection No. H T-

26-R.

[Stamped] Received Jul. 24, 1941. Department

of Export Control.

(9) Source of material to be exported (see para-

graph (e) above)

:

Graver Tank Company, East Chicago, In-

\ diana.

(Name) (Address)
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(10) State the, specific purpose for which the arti-

cles or materials are required and the name
and address of the ultimate consumer in the

foreign country

:

Storage purposes.

Hua PIsin Company, 320 Szechuen Road,

Shanghai, China.

(11) License to be sent to— (type, or print plainly)

Name China Import & Export Company
Street 212 Fifth Ave. So.

City and State Seattle, Wash.

(12) Consignor in United States

Name China Import & Export Company
Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212 Fifth Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

(13) Seller in United States

Name China Import & Export Company
Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212 Fifth Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

Nature of business Importers & ex-

porters

(14) Port of exit in the United States from which

it is proposed to export the shipment Seattle, Wash.

License is hereby granted to the applicant men-

tioned herein to export from the United States of

America to Shanghai, China the articles or mate-
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rials described and in the quantity given, on the fol-

lowing terms and conditions:

This license is not transferable and is subject to

revocation without notice.

Shipment must be made from port of exit within

1 year from date of this license as given below

under the seal of the Department.

Export licenses must be filed with the collector of

customs at the port from which the shipment is de-

parting from the United States prior to the pro-

posed departure.

For Collectors of Customs and Postmasters

This license should be returned to the Secretary

of State at the end of the month during which the

last article of the shipment described therein was

exported, or during which notice has been given

that the remaining balance will not be shipped, or

during which the license has been revoked or has

expired. When the entire shipment has been ex-

ported, the license should be marked "Completed";

otherwise the returned license should bear a nota-

tion stating the reason for its return and the quan-

tity and value of the articles actually shipped.

Collectors of customs or postmasters will endorse

in the following spaces information concerning ship-

ments made under this license:

[Blank form not filled in.]

Date of license -—

(For official use only)

For the Secretary of State

:

By
(For official use only)
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(When countersigned and impressed with the seal

of the Department of State, this application becomes

a license.)

[Endorsed] : Filed May 19, 1942.

[Pencil Note] : 9-30-42.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 29—Part 2

Department of State

[Stamped] Division of Controls. Apr. 18, 1941.

Department of State.

[Stamped] Division of Controls, May 8, 1941.

Department of State.

Appeal

United States of America

Application for License to Export Articles and Ma-

terials (Other Than Arms, Ammunition and

Implements of War and Tin-Plate Scrap) Des-

ignated by the President as Necessary to the

National Defense Pursuant to Section 6 of the

Act of Congress Approved July 2, 1940

(Application to be made in triplicate)

HT
Duplicate

Japan

(Insert here name of country of destination)
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License No
(For official use only)

General Instructions

(a) One triplicate application should be made for

each complete shipment to am^ one consignee,

and it may not include more than one commod-

ity nor shipments to more than one country.

(b) Applications should be typewritten, with the

exception of signature, but will be considered

if written legibly in ink.

(c) Articles and materials appearing under (7) be-

low should be designated clearly and specifi-

cally, the type and model designation being in-

cluded whenever applicable.

(d) Values listed should represent the selling

price only of the articles exported, and should

not include such supplementary costs as pack-

ing, freight, etc.

(e) Specify under paragraph (9) the name and

address of the producer or manufacturer in

the United States of each article and material

to be exported or, if obtained outside of the

United States, the name and address of the

person from whom procured.

(f) Unsigned applications or applications which

omit essential information called for in the

numbered spaces will be returned.

(g) When countersigned and impressed with the

seal of the Department of State, this applica-

tion becomes a license.



vs. United States of America 343

(h) Any attempt to export a commodity differing

in any way from that licensed, or any altera-

tion of a license, except by a duly authorized

officer of the Government, is punishable under

appropriate acts of Congress. Changes in the

information set forth in licenses which have

been issued under the seal of the Secretary of

State can Be effected by amendments which

can be made only by the Department of State,

or by collectors of customs or postmasters act-

ing under the specific instructions of the De-

partment of State.

Department of State,

Washington, D. C.

(1) Date of application April 16, 1941.

(2) Applicant's reference No.

The undersigned hereby applies for license to ex-

port the commodity described below and warrants

the truth of all statements and answers herewith

made regarding it.

(3) Name of applicant C. T. Takahashi & Com-

pany

By IRA L. EWERS.
(To be signed in ink)

(4) Consignee in foreign country

Name Mikuni Shoko Company

Nationality Japanese

Address

Street No. 4, Gokencho, Kanda

City Tokyo, Japan

State or province

Country Japan



344 Charles T. Takahashi, et al

(5) Purchaser in foreign country

Name Mikuni Slioko Company
Nationality Japanese

Address

Street No. 4, Gokenclio, Kanda

City Tokyo, Japan

State or province

Country Japan

(6) Number of units or

weight (whichever is

applicable). If weight (7) Description of articles or ma- (8) Approximate
is given in tons, spe- terials to be exported net value
cify whether long or
short tons.

3

(each tank weighs Complete New Steel Dis- Seattle per tank

about 270 long mantled Storage Tanks $22,500.00 f.o.b.

tons) and accessories for re- [In Pencil] :

erection purposes. 67,500

[Stamped] Division of Controls, Apr. 16, 1941.

Department of State.

[Stamped] Received, Apr. 24, 1941. Office of Ad-

ministrator of Export Control.

[Stamped] Administrator Export Control. Ap-

peal Disapproved Apr. 29, 1941. By
[Stamped] Application Rejected. The Adminis-

trator of Export Control has determined that this

proposed exportation would be contrary to the in-

terest of the National Defense. Rejection No. H T-

4-R May 14, 1941.

[Pencil Note] 13091C.

[Stamped] 02309.
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(9) Source of material to be exported (see para-

graph (e) above)

:

Graver Tank Company, East Chicago, In-

diana/Galamba Supply Company, Kansas

City, Kansas.

purchased through Sonken
(Name) (Address)

(10) State the specific purpose for which the arti-

cles or materials are required and the name
and address of the ultimate consumer in the

foreign country:

Storage purposes by Mikuni Shoko Company.

(11) License to be sent to— (type or print plainly)

Name C. T. Takahashi & Company

Street 212 Fifth Avenue South

City and State Seattle, Washington

(12) Consignor in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Co.

Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212-5th Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

(13) Seller in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Company

Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212-Fifth Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

Nature of business Importers & ex-

porters
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(14) Port of exit in the United States from which

it is proposed to export the shipment

License is hereby granted to the applicant men-
tioned herein to export from the United States of

America to Japan the articles or materials described

and in the quantity given, on the following terms

and conditions:

This license is not transferable and is subject to

revocation without notice.

Shipment must be made from port of exit within

1 year from date of this license as given below

under the seal of the Department.

Export licenses must be filed v^th the collector of

customs at the port from which the shipment is de-

parting from the United States prior to the pro-

posed departure.

For Collectors of Customs and Postmasters

This license should be returned to the Secretary

of State at the end of the month during which the

last article of the shipment described therein was

exported, or during which notice has been given

that the remaining balance will not be shipped, or

during which the license has been revoked or has

expired. When the entire shipment has been ex-

ported, the license should be marked "Completed";

otherwise the returned license should bear a nota-

tion stating the reason for its return and the quan-

tity and value of the articles actually shipped.

Collectors of customs or postmasters will endorse

in the following spaces information concerning ship-

ments made under this license:

[Blank form not filled m'\
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Date of license

(For official use only)

For the Secretary of State

:

By
(For official use only)

(When countersigned and impressed with the seal

of the Department of State, this application becomes

a license.)

[Endorsed] : Filed May 19, 1942.

[Pencil Note] : 9-30-42.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 29—Part 3

Department of State

[Stamped] Division of Controls, 71064, Feb. 10,

1941. Department of State.

United States of America

Application for License to Export Articles and Ma-

terials (Other Than Arms, Ammunition and

Implements of War and Tin-Plate Scrap) Des-

ignated by the President as Necessary to the

National Defense Pursuant to Section 6 of the

Act of Congress Approved July 2, 1940

(Application to be made in triplicate)

Duplicate

Japan

(Insert here name of country of destination

License No
(For official use only)
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General Instructions

(a) One triplicate application should be made for

each complete shipment to any one consignee,

and it may not include more than one commod-

ity nor shipments to more than one country.

(b) Applications should be typewritten, with the

exception of signature, but will be considered

if written legibly in ink.

(c) Articles and materials appearing under (7) be-

low should be designated clearly and specifi-

cally, the type and model desigiiation being in-

cluded whenever applicable.

(d) Values listed should represent the selling

price only of the articles exported, and should

not include such supplementary costs as pack^

ing, freight, etc.

(e) Specify under paragraph (9) the name and

address of the producer or manufacturer in

the United States of each article and material

to be exported or, if obtained outside of the

United States, the name and address of the

person from whom procured.

(f) Unsigned applications or applications which

omit essential information called for in the

numbered spaces will be returned.

(g) When countersigned and impressed with the

seal of the Department of State, this applica-

tion becomes a license.
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(h) Any attempt to export a commodity differing

in any way from that licensed, or any altera-

tion of a license, except by a duly authorized

officer of the Government, is punishable under

appropriate acts of Congress. Changes in the

information set forth in licenses which have

been issued under the seal of the Secretary of

State can be effected by amendments which

can be made only by the Department of State,

or by collectors of customs or postmasters act-

ing under the specific instructions of the De-

partment of State.

Department of State,

Washington, D. C.

(1) Date of application February 8, 1941.

(2) Applicant's reference No

The undersigned hereby applies for license to ex-

port the commodity described below and warrants

the truth of all statements and answers herewith

made regarding it.

(3) Name of applicant C. T. Takahashi & Com-

pany

By EDW. Y. OSAWA.
(To be signed in ink)

(4) Consignee in foreign country

Name Mikuni Shoko Company

Nationality Japanese

Address

Street No. 4, Gokencho, Kanda

City Tokyo, Japan

State or Province

Country Japan
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(5) Purchaser in foreign country

Name Mikuni Shoko Company
Nationality Japanese

Address

Street No. 4, Gokencho, Kanda

City Tokyo, Japan

State or Province

Country Japan

<6) Number of units or

weig-ht (whichever is

applicable). If weight (7) Description of articles or ma-
is given in tons, spe- terials to be exported

eify whether long or

short tons.

(8) Approximate
net value

(each tank weighs Complete New Steel Dis- $22,500.00 f.o.b.

about 270 long mantled Storage Tanks Seattle per tank

tons) and accessories for re- [In Pencil] :

erection purposes. $67,500 total

[In Pencil] : 810 long tons.

(See letter attached)

[Stamped] Received Mar. 8, 1941. Office of Ad-

ministrator of Export Control.

[Stamped] Received, Feb. 17, 1941. Office of Ad-

ministrator of Export Control.

[Stamped] Division of Controls, Mar. 12, 1941.

Department of State.

[Stamped] Office of Administrator of Export

Control, Mar. 25, 1941. Disapproved. By R. S. C.

[Pencil Note] 13091C.

[Stamped] Application Rejected. The Adminis-

trator of Export Control has determined that this

proposed exportation would be contrary to the in-

terest of the National Defense. Rejection No. H T-

4-R. Mar. 31, 1941.
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(9) Source of material to be exported (see para-

graph (e) above)

:

Graver Tank Company, East Chicago, In-

diana, purchased through Sonken Galamba

Supply Company, Kansas City, Kansas.

^Name) (Address)

(10) State the specific purpose for which the arti-

cles or materials are required and the name

and address of the ultimate consumer in the

foreign country:

Storage purposes by Mikuni Shoko Company.

(11) License to be sent to— (ty])e, or print plainly)

Name C. T. Takahashi & Company

Street 212 Fifth Avenue South

City and State Seattle, Washington

(12) Consignor in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Co.

Nationality United States

Address

:

212-5th Ave. So,

City Seattle

State Washington

(13) Seller in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Company

Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212 Fifth Ave. So.

City Seattle,

State Washington

Nature of business Importers and

exporters
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(14) Port of exit in the United States from which

it is proposed to export the shipment

License is hereby granted to the applicant men-

tioned herein to export from the United States of

America to Japan the articles or materials described

and in the quantity given, on the following terms

and conditions:

This license is not transferable and is subject to

revocation without notice.

Shipment must be made from port of exit within

1 year from date of this license as given below

under the seal of the Department.

Export licenses must be filed with the collector of

customs at the port from which the shipment is de-

parting from the United States prior to the pro-

posed departure.

For Collectors of Customs and Postmasters

This license should be returned to the Secretary

of State at the end of the month during which the

last article of the shipment described therein was

exported, or during which notice has been given

that the remaining balance will not be shipped, or

during which the license has been revoked or has

expired. When the entire shipment has been ex-

ported, the license should be marked "Completed";

otherwise the returned license should bear a nota-

tion stating the reason for its return and the quan-

tity and value of the articles actually shipped.

Collectors of customs or postmasters will endorse

in the following spaces information concerning ship-

ments made under this license:

[Blank form not filled in.]
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Date of license

(For official use only)

For the Secretary of State

:

By
(For official use only)

(When countersigned and impressed with the seal

of the Department of State, this application becomes

a license.)

[Endorsed] : Filed May 19, 1942.

[Pencil Note] : 9-30-42.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 29—Part 4

(Rejected)

Department of State

[Stamped] Division of Control, Apr. 18, 1941.

Department of State.

[Stamped] Division of Controls, May 8, 1941.

Department of State.

Appeal

[Written in pencil] Appeal.

United States of America

Application for License to Export Articles and Ma-

terials (Other Than Arms, Ammunition and

Implements of War and Tin-Plate Scrap) Des-

ignated by the President as Necessary to the

National Defense Pursuant to Section 6 of the

Act of Congress Approved July 2, 1940

(Application to be made in triplicate)

H T
Duplicate

Japan

(Insert here name of country of destination
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License No
(For official use only)

General Instructions

(a) One triplicate ap^jlication should be made for

each complete shipment to any one consignee,

and it may not include more than one commod-

ity nor shipments to more than one country.

(b) Applications should be typewritten, with the

exception of signature, but will be considered

if written legibly in ink.

(c) Articles and materials appearing under (7) be-

low should be designated clearly and specifi-

cally, the type and model designation being in-

cluded whenever applicable.

(d) Values listed should represent the selling

price only of the articles exported, and should

not include such supplementary costs as pack-

ing, freight, etc.

(e) Specify under paragraph (9) the name and

address of the producer or manufacturer in

the United States of each article and material

to be exported or, if obtained outside of the

United States, the name and address of the

person from whom procured.

(f) Unsigned applications or applications which

omit essential information called for in the

numbered spaces will be returned.

(g) When countersigned and impressed with the

seal of the Department of State, this applica-

tion becomes a license.
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(li) Any attempt to export a commodity differing

in any way from that licensed, or any altera-

tion of a license, except by a duly authorized

officer of the Government, is punishable under

appropriate acts of Congress. Changes in the

information set forth in licenses which have

been issued under the seal of the Secretary of

State can be effected by amendments which

can be made only by the Department of State,

or by collectors of customs or postmasters act-

ing under the specific instructions of the De-

partment of State.

Department of State,

Washington, D. C.

(1) Date of application April 16, 1941.

(2) Applicant's reference No
The undersigned hereby applies for license to ex-

port the commodity described below and warrants

the truth of all statements and answers herewith

made regarding it.

(3) Name of applicant C. T. Takahashi & Co.

By IRA L. EWERS.
(To be signed in ink)

(4) Consignee in foreign country

Name Mikuni Shoko Company
Nationality Japanese

Address

Street No. 4, Gokencho, Kanda

City Tokyo, Japan

State or Province -

Country Japan
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(5) Purchaser in foreign country

Name Mikuni Shoko Company

Nationality Japanese

Address

Street No. 4, Gokencho, Kanda

City Tokyo, Japan

State or Province

Country Japan

(6) Number of units or

weight (whichever is

applicable). If weight (7) Description of articles or ma- (8) Approximate
is given in tons, spe- terials to be exported net value
eify whether long or

short tons.

6

(each tank weighs Complete used steel dis- $17,500 f.o.b.

about 270 long mantled storage tanks Seattle per tank

tons) and accessories for re- [In Pencil] :

erection purposes. 105,000

(See letter attached)

[Stamped] Division of Controls, Apr. 16, 1941»

Department of State.

[Stamped] Received Apr. 24, 1941. Office of Ad-

ministrator of Export Control.

[Pencil Note] 13092C.

[Stamped] 02308.

[Stamped] Administrator Export Control. Ap-

peal Disapproved, Apr. 29, 1941. By
[Stamped] Application Rejected. The Adminis-

trator of Export Control has determined that this

proposed exportation would be contrary to the in-

terest of the National Defense. Rejection No. H T-

3-R. May 14, 1941.
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(9) Source of material to be exported (sec para-

graph (e) above)

:

Pepper Tank & Pipe Company, Denver,

Colorado Tanks from Casper, Wyoming.

(Name) (Address)

(10) State the specific purpose for which the arti-

cles or materials are required and the name

and address of the ultimate consumer in the

foreign country:

Storage purposes by Mikuni Shoko Company.

(11) License to be sent to— (type, or print plainly)

Name C. T. Takahashi & Company

Street 212 Fifth Avenue South

City and State Seattle, Washington

(12) Consignor in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Co.

Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212-5th Ave. S.

City Seattle

State Washington

(13) Seller in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Co.

Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212-5th Ave.

City Seattle

State Washingion

Nature of business Importers and

exporters

(14) Port of exit in the United States from which

it is proposed to export the shipment Seattle, Port-

land & Tacoma.
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License is hereby granted to the applicant men-
tioned herein to export from the United States of

America to Japan the articles or materials described

and in the quantity given, on the following terms

and conditions:

This license is not transferable and is subject to

revocation without notice.

Shipment must be made from port of exit within

1 year from date of this license as given below

under the seal of the Department.

Export licenses must be tiled with the collector of

customs at the port from which the shipment is de-

parting from the United States prior to the pro-

posed departure.

For Collectors of Customs and Postmasters

This license should be returned to the Secretary

of State at the end of the month during which the

last article of the shipment described therein was

exported, or during which notice has been given

that the remaining balance will not be shipped, or

during which the license has been revoked or has

expired. When the entire shipment has been ex-

ported, the license should be marked "Completed";

otherwise the returned license should bear a nota-

tion stating the reason for its return and the quan-

tity and value of the articles actually shipped.

Collectors of customs or postmasters will endorse

in the following spaces information concerning ship-

ments made under this license

:

[Blank form not filled in.]

Date of license —

-

(For official use only)
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For the Secretary of State

:

By
(For oificial use only)

(When countersigned and impressed with the seal

of the Department of State, this application becomes

a license.)

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 29—Part 5

(Rejected)

Department of State

United States of America

Application for License to Export Articles and Ma-

terials (Other Than Arms, Ammunition and

Implements of War and Tin-Plate Scrap) Des-

ignated by the President as Necessary to the

National Defense Pursuant to Section 6 of tlie

Act of Congress Approved July 2, 1940

(Application to be made in triplicate)

Duplicate

Japan

(Insert here name of country of destination

License No
(For official use only)

General Instructions

(a) One triplicate application should be made for

each complete shipment to any one consignee,

and it may not include more than one commod-

ity nor shipments to more than one country.

(b) Applications should be typewritten, with the

exception of signature, but will be considered

if written legibly in ink.
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(c) Articles and materials appearing under (7) be-

low should be designated clearly and specifi-

cally, the type and model designation being in-

cluded whenever applicable.

(d) Values listed should represent the selling

price only of the articles exported, and should

not include such supplementary costs as pack-

ing, freight, etc.

(e) Specify under paragraph (9) the name and

address of the producer or manufacturer in

the United States of each article and material

to be exported or, if obtained outside of the

United States, the name and address of the

person from whom procured.

(f) Unsigned applications or applications which

omit essential information called for in the

numbered spaces will be returned.

(g) When countersigned and impressed with the

seal of the Department of State, this applica-

tion becomes a license.

(h) Any attempt to export a commodity differing

in any way from that licensed, or any altera-

tion of a license, except by a duly authorized

officer of the Government, is punishable under

appropriate acts of Congress. Changes in the

information set forth in licenses which have

been issued under the seal of the Secretary of

State can be effected by amendments which

can be made only by the Department of State,

or by collectors of customs or postmasters act-

ing under the specific instructions of the De-

partment of State.
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Depaitment of State,

Washington, D. C.

(1) Date of application February 7, 1941.

(2) Applicant's reference No.

The undersigned hereby applies for license to ex-

port the commodity described below and warrants

the truth of all statements and answers herewith

made regarding it.

(3) Name of applicant C. T. Takahashi & Co.

By EDW. Y. OSAWA
(To be signed in ink)

(4) Consignee in foreign country

Name Mikuni Shoko Company

Nationality Japanese

Address

Street No. 4, Gokencho, Kanda

City Tokyo, Japan

State or Province

Country Japan

(5) Purchaser in foreign country

Name Mikuni Shoko Company

Nationality Japanese

Address

Street No. 4, Gokencho, Kanda

City Tokyo, Japan

State or Province

Country Japan
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(6) Number of units or

weight (whichever is

applicable). If weight (7) Description of articles or ma- (8) Approximate
is given in tons, spe- terials to be exported net value
cify whether long or

short tons.

6

(each tank weighs Complete Used steel dis- $17,500 f.o.b.

about 270 long mantled storage tanks Seattle per tank

tons) and accessories for re- [In Pencil] :

[In Pencil] : erection purposes. $105,000

1620 long tons

(See letter attached)

[Stamped] Received IVEar. 18, 1941. Office of Ad-

ministrator of Export Control.

[Stamped] Received Feb. 17, 1941. Office of Ad-

ministrator of Export Control.

[Stamped] 13092C.

[Stamped] Application Rejected. The Adminis-

trator of Export Control has determined that this

proposed exportation would be contrary to the in-

terest of the National Defense. Rejection No. H T-

3-R. JMar. 31, 1941.

[Stamped] Office of Administrator of Export

Control. Mar. 25, 1941. Disapproved. By R. S. C.

[Stamped] Division of Controls, 71065, Feb. 10,

1941. Department of State.

[Stamped] Division of Controls, Mar. 12, 1941.

Department of State.

(9) Source of material to be exported (see para-

graph (e) above)

:

Pepper Tank & Pipe Company, Denver,,

Colorado Tanks from Casper, Wyoming.

(Name) (Address)
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(10) State the specific purpose for which the arti-

cles or materials are required and the name

and address of the ultimate consumer in the

foreign country:

Storage purposes by Mikuni Shoko Company.

(11) License to be sent to— (type or print plainly)

Name C. T. Takahashi & Company

Street 212 Fifth Avenue South

City and State Seattle, Washington

(12) Consignor in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Co.

Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212-5th Ave. S.

City Seattle

State Washington

(13) Seller in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Company

Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212 Fifth Ave. S.

City Seattle

State Washington

Nature of business Importers & Ex-

porters

(14) Port of exit in the United States from which

it is proposed to export the shipment Seattle, Port-

land & Tacoma.

License is hereby granted to the applicant men-

tioned herein to export from the United States of

America to Japan the articles or materials described

and in the quantity given, on the following terms

and conditions:
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This license is not transferable and is subject to

revocation without notice.

Shipment must be made from port of exit within

1 year from date of this license as given below

under the seal of the Department.

Export licenses must be filed with the collector of

customs at the port from which the shipment is de-

parting from the United States prior to the pro-

posed departure.

For Collectors of Customs and Postmasters

This license should be returned to the Secretary

of State at the end of the month during which the

last article of the shipment described therein was

exported, or during which notice has been given

that the remaining balance will not be shipped, or

during which the license has been revoked or has

expired. When the entire shipment has been ex-

ported, the license should be marked "Completed";

otherwise the returned license should bear a nota-

tion stating the reason for its return and the quan-

tity and value of the articles actually shipped.

Collectors of customs or postmasters will endorse

in the following spaces information concerning ship-

ments made under this license:

[Blank form not filled in.]

Date of license —
(For official use only)

For the Secretary of State

:

By
(For official use only)

(When countersigned and impressed with the seal

of the Department of State, this application becomes

a license.)
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT No. 34

November 12, 1940

Messrs. Mikuno Shoko Company, Limited

Tokyo, Japan

Gentlemen

:

Confirming our Japanese telephone conversation

with you on November 9th, relative to obtaining

our export declaration permits for the two tanks

on the steamer "Capillo" from Texas and the three

from Seattle on the steamer ''Aratama Maru"

and/or the "Cuba Maru".

This completes our order for the Rikugun and

we wish to tell you that we are certainly pleased

that we are able to make this arrangement. We
actually have bought eleven additional old tanks

for the Kaigun order, of which, we have given you

shipi)ing instructions on ten, namely, three on the

"Aratama Maru" and the three on the '^Tosei

Maru" and four on the "Florida Maru" during De-

cember.

Inasmuch as this is a large purchase and we have

not yet received your letter of credit and we our-

selves have already placed our deposit on our pur-

chase for these last old tanks, we will use your

credit funds here with ours until we finish shipping

these tanks to Japan. In the meanwhile, we trust

that you will rush the letters of credit as quickly

as possible as it is very important not to lose even

a day.
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We know the difficulties at the present moment

in Japan and at the same time, we wish to thank

you for the sincere and fast cooperation you have

given us to date on this matter.

New Tanks: We trust that you will exert your

full efforts for new tanl^s because as stated in our

cables to you, the situation of old tanks being un-

der the question of embargo is very great and this

was all officially caused by our competitors w^ho did

not buy old tanks before but now, who have en-

tered the market and caused a great commotion in

California.

In Los Angeles alone, they raised the market

price with their random inquiry, that is, they went

everywhere trying to buy old tanks because they

were successful last month to ship some out and

just lately caused so much trouble about shipping

old tank that the customs officers at Los Angeles

started sending wires to Washington, D.C. to ad-

vise them of the large future movement of old

tanks to Japan. This brought about a special meet-

ing in the State Department of the National De-

fense Board and they automatically placed the old

tank business under license system, we believe,

about the 5th or 6th of this Month.

The license division will automatically, we be-

lieve, reject any license application for old tanks.

Everyone at the present moment has put in their

applications for shipping old tanks. We know Mit-

sui & Company has put in application for many
and also Mitsubishi for three out of Texas alone

that we know^ of.
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This is a very unfortunate thing because we were

doing these old tank business on a very careful and

quiet system. We were handling out tank business

in cooperation with another very large domestic

firm and billing it to ourselves here at Seattle and

shipping it quietly from here and Portland.

The Customs people here are very friendly, hon-

est and sincere and were not perturbed at all about

this movement as we have been doing this business

even before the embargo. These other new people

were over-anxious and have caused a serious con-

dition.

It is unfortunate that the Japanese government,

Department of Commerce and Industry do not un-

derstand and realize the situation in America to-

day. We, therefore, believe that a definite under-

standing of embargo will be established on these

tanks shortly through really no fault of ours but

purely and simply through the fault of our com-

petitors, Messrs. Mitsui & Company, Mitsubishi

Sheji Kaisha, Asano Bussan Company and other

Japanese firms, who tried to buy these old tanks

for shipment to Japan.

Please understand clearly that we are not com-

plaining about their raising prices or disturbing the

whole market but the fact that they caused an em-

bargo and this is a serious blow not only to us but

for the sake of getting,- the material, which is to

be used for peaceful purposes brought to the at-

tention of the Defense Commission and raising a

matter of doubt in their minds, the purpose of these

tanks after they arrive in the Orient.
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On these above grounds, we sincerely believe that

we are entitled to handle new tanks for Japan ex-

•clusively or at least the Japanese Government

should allow us to make purchases for them inas-

much as we may suffer a great loss on these old

tank business through no fault of ours but through

competitors who are thinking only of making a

X)rofit in selling tanks.

We also are left with fourteen old tanks in Wyo-
ming and two old tanks that we brought all the way

up from Texas to Portland. These tanks belong

to us and we are stuck and at the same time be-

ing pressed very strongly by the suppliers who sold

ns these tanks and who demand full payment im-

mediately for all of the tanks or they desire to take

away our deposit.

If you will recall, in our early cables exchanged

between ourselves this spring, we stated that it is

impossible in this country today to do any business

subject to an embargo, therefore, we ourselves today

have no backward road but must take the conse-

quences.

When we buy new tanks for your orders, we are

very careful and will not disturb the market on

this side in any way. Our supplier of tanks is not

the Chicago Bridge and Iron Company people, but

they are the Graver Tank Manufacturing Company,

a firm which is practically ten times larger than the

Chicago Bridge and Iron Company.

We also would be buying these from a very do-

mestic firm, our friends, Sonken Galamba Supply
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Company, and these tanks will be delivered from

Chicago to Seattle and/or Portland, from which

port we intend to ship out to Japan quietly. Also,

there are several companies here, namely, Messrs.

Woodbury & Company of Portland, who will con-

tact the local firms, and we can make our purchase

through them locally so no one will know or <^ause

any misunderstanding in this market. We are now
only hoping that you will be able to proceed and

get us some orders for new tanks and get us started

in the new tank business.

We understand in one of our conversation with

you that the Navy desires large-sized tanks. Please

approach them and find out how large a size they

desire, and we wish to advise that upon receipt of

this letter, you will cable us immediately because we
can get any sized tanks that they desire, A.P.I.

tank or the Chicago Bridge and Iron Company
specification tanks.

Awaiting your cable reply, we remain.

Yours faithfully,

G. T. TAKAHASHI & COM-
PANY

President.

CTT :sk

[Endorsed] : Filed Sept. 30, 1942.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT No. 35

November 24, 1940

Messrs. Mikuni Shoko Company, Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan

Gentlemen

:

We wish to confirm our telephone conversation of

the 23rd, in which you have concluded new tank

business for us on the basis that old tanks will not

he permitted and that you have closed the order for

eleven new tanks.

We are extremely pleased to receive this news

because we have been feeling quite badly since the

Government has now put the old tanks on a li-

cense basis. This new license basis practically means

that they will give us rejection in the event that we

make an application for license permit to ship old

tanks. We hope to let you know by next week

Monday, the 25th or 26th, our time, the definite

shipping dates of the new tanks if possible.

As stated in our phone conversation, we have

shipping instructions from our suppliers from Jan-

uary/February shipment but are trying to get defi-

nite dates from them but we are cabling this infor-

mation to you so you esm get us immediately letter

of credit, as you know, buying these new tanks

mean we must take them without an embargo

clause.

Also, business on new tanks practically insists on

having full payment with order or a large deposit

until necessary bank arrangements are made for

the complete purchase.
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Market conditions: Possibly, you cannot realize

in Japan the existing situation in this country. This

very big National Defense Program will spend bil-

lions of dollars and the steel business in America,

the production capacity is way behind the demand.

When you ask steel mill for delivery of steel, the

earliest you can possibly get it in your hands is

about ninety days to five months.

Each week, there are changes in this country in

the steel business. oEverywhere, there is a great

shortage of materials. Therefore, it is next to im-

possible to get long term ojjtion or do import or

export business any more unless you have letter of

credit on this side almost simultaneously with an

order from Japan.

Therefore, we are writing you this letter with a

view that you will prepare j^ourself for getting fur-

ther new tank business from the Kaigun or from

the Rikugan for shipment during March or A])ril

and upon receipt of this letter, please discuss this

business thoroughly and if there is chance for this

business, please get your order in now so that we

may be assured of shipment at that time.

Awaiting your cable reply and thanking you very

much for the order on the eleven tanks, we remain

Very truly yours,

C. T. TAKAHASHI & COM-
PANY

President

CTT :sk

[Endorsed] : Filed Sept. 30, 1942.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 36

[Pencil Note] : Puling Reserved

Cable Address: "XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes: Bentley's 2nd Phrase and Private

Phone: Shitaya (83) 5260. 5423. 9129.

Mikuni Shoko Company Limited

(Mikuni Commerce & Industry Co. Ltd.)

No. 4, Gokencho, Kanda,

Tokyo, Japan.

October 19, 1941.

Personal

Mr. C. T. Takahashi, President

Messrs. C. T. Takahashi and Company

Seattle, Washington

U. S. A.

Dear Mr. Takahashi,

It is a matter of congratulation that Mr. Osawa

at last grasped the chance of going home at this

occassion which we have been most anxiously wait-

ing for.

We have a great honour in telling you that Mr.

Osawa shared our business and private life with

the greatest friendship and cooperation and we have

been much delighted to have Mr. Osawa as our co-

operator.

As to the details of the business, I trust, Mr.

Osawa will give you the informations as well as

my personal opinions of same and considering the

situations now prevailing at both ends, allow me to

abbreviate same. Only thing I want to emphasize

here at this moment is that we have been working
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with our best possible effort to bring the best re-

sultsfor mutual advantages, as you have done for

us.

Foundamentally, I believe that the best policy as

we can expect for mutual benefits is as repeated oc-

cassionally in my personal letters and the letters

from my secretary, that you will work for us per-

sonally with your best efforts, as protecting and

promoting your own interest and benefit and leaving

all the problems relative which can be handled at

this end to me entirely, and I shall work here for

your interest and benefit as if protecting and pro-

moting my own and leave the entire problems which

can be solved at your end to you. Basing upon this

foundamental idea, I am enclosing herewith my
proposition for our contract of agency, which I

shall be much pleased if you will kindly acknowl-

edge. And thus, we shall have no room where the

misunderstanding can be aroused.

It is a pity that our business has been brought

to a deadlock owing to the sudden change of the

international situations, in spite of our best efforts,

however, please keep in mind that these our efforts

shall be brought up to bear the best fruits when

the chances arrive, to which end our best efforts

are being paid even at this time.

I am looking for the coming peace-time, when

our efforts will be recompensated and I shall repre-

sent you personally with the intentions mentioned

above. Please prepare yourself for the coming days

and do your best.
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Your mother has been visiting me occasionally

and was very glad to be informed that you are get-

ting all-right because of your success in the. local

business. I join her here in praying for your con-

tinuous success in same.

With my best regards and wishes for your suc-

cess and happiness. Mrs. Ikuta joins me in extend-

ing our warmest wishes for you and Mrs. Taka-

hashi.

Yours faithfully,

For Mikuni-Shoko Co. Ltd.

M. GAITA.
Director

End: 2 Copies of Contract Form

MIAk
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 37

Mikuni-Shoko Co. Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan

Confirmation of Telegram

Cable Address: "XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes Used:

Bentley's 2nd Phrase,

Acme and Private

Kohuo

From in Shanghai.

Date Sent July 15, 1941.

Date Received July 15, 1941.

Code Translation

AC R RCA
U Q V E size

L J J U S 24" X

N X I R S 12 X 12

J G I H F 20 Kilos

E Q S A C 60 Cycles

P O U M A Band

E F I A N same as

U I D J E Frequency

U K H I A applicable to

M U I I R 110 volts alternating current

N V I I R 220 volts alternating current

U D J I R 110 volts direct current

Y G J I R 220 volts direct current

Y C W O F referring to your letter of 12th inst

S Z U A cannot

KMUNE have

Y G G O B United States Consul

M M E A F issuo

N E VW A certrficate

W D Y N F as per my letter of 11th inst
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 38

Confirmation of Telegram

Mikuni-Shoko Co. Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan.

Cable Address: *'XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes Used:

Bentley's 2nd Phrase,

and Private

To NEWYR Seattle.

Date Sent July 10, 1941.

Code Used Duo & Private.

Code Translation

ZZ YZH Frequency

REO GL maximum
GPE CN 300,000

VC YSH at first

H Z ]\I Y J 550 Kilo

RIFLE cycle

YD YNB or below

DKXYO power

lUNIM 3

CRGIX watt

lENAO or over
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 39

Anten-Wireless- (Japanese Letters)

Imperial Japanese Telegraphs

R. No. Time sent By Collated by

Office of Destination Class

Charges

16.22

Words Postage stamps

13

Office of Origin No.

Tokyo

Date Time Remarks

July 2, 1941. Anten

NE W YR
Seattle

NIAOP TGPUY MIVVC DOYSL RILAM
RCA MEFRJ MNODW NUSVP LOGDG
ULF EX
1. Make best possible offer

C I F
2. Shanghai

3. 20

4. Communication

5. receivers

6. RCA
7. number
8. 234

9. or

10. latest model

11. telegraph speci-fication for

The address and signature of the sender

No. 4 Gokentyo, Kanda-ku, Tokyo.

Tel.: Sitaya (83) 5260, 5423, 9129.

MIKUNI SHOKO, CO., LTD.
M-9C
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT No. 40

Cable Address ''XYMAS" Tokyo.

Codes: Bentley's 2nd Phrase and Private

Phone: Shitaya (83) 5260. 5423. 9129.

Mikuni Shoko Company Limited

(Mikimi Commerce & Industry Co. Ltd.)

No. 4 Gokencho. Kanda,

Tokyo, Japan.

Import Dept. April 4, 1941.

Letter No. 21.

Mr. C. T. Takahashi, President.

Messrs. C. T. Takahashi & Co.,

Seattle, Wn., IT. S. A.

Dear Mr. Takahashi, Ee : Tractors, Mixers, etc.

The above mentioned construction machinery are

very promising right now, since Lieutenant Col.

Saito who has been in charge of tanks has been

transferred to the staff of the construction section

of the General Staff of the Japanese Expeditionary

Force in China. I have written to him that I shall

visit his place in near future to discuss the various

problems, in which I have included these machin-

ery.

Lieutenant Col. Saito is the officer who placed

the first order for the tanks with us, after six

months' quarrel with me. And when I came home

he was more than pleased and introduced me to the

Council of the Officers, to commemorate our works.

He was the officer who certified the landing of

Mr. Osawa.

As I am arranging the catalogues and prints, I

shall start in a few days for this business, and will

give you my report in near future.
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Assuring us of our best effort at all times, we

are

Yours truly,

For Mikuni-Sboko Co., Ltd.

ILLEGIBLE
Import Dept.

KK
[Pencil Note] : Orig. reed, from T Nov 25 1941

[Initials illegible]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 41

Confirmation of Telegram

ikuni-Shoko Co. Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan

Cable Address: "XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes Used:

Bentley's 2nd Phrase

and Private

To NEWYR Seattle

Date Sent July 10, 1941.

Code Used Duo & Private.

Code Translation

ZZYZH Frequency

R E a L maximum
GPECN 300,000

V C Y S H at first

HZMYJ 550 Kilo

RIFLE cycle

Y D Y N B or below

DKXYO power

lUNIM 3

C R G I X watt

lEN AO or over

[Pencil Note] : Denied 10-6-42.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 42

Confirmation of Telegram

Mikuni-Shoko Co. Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan

Cable Address: ''XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes Used:

Bentley's 2nd Phrase

Acme and Private

From Seattle.

Date Received July 12, 1941.

Translation

Your Telegram Tenth Cannot Understand Spe-

cify Eeceiver Weight Size and Operating Current

Also Frequency in Kilo Cycles Number of Bands

Also Do You Desire Transmitter If So Telegraph

Detailed Specification.

[Pencil Note] : Denied 10-6-42.



vs. United States of America 381

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 43

Confirmation of Telegram

Mikimi-Slioko Co. Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan

Cable Address: "XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes Used:

Bentley's 2nd Phrase

Acme and Private

Kohuo

From in Shanghai.

Date Sent July 15, 1941.

Date Received July 15, 1941.

Code used

Code Translation

ACR RCA
UQ VEO size

LJ JUS 24" X

N X I R S 12 X 12

JGIHF 20 Kilos

EQS AC 60 Cycles

POUM A Band
EF IAN same as

UI D J E Frequency

U K H T A applicable to

M U I I R 110 volts alternating current

N V I I R 220 volts alternating current

UD JIR 110 volts direct current

Y G J IR 220 volts direct current

YC WOF referring to your letter of 12th inst

SOZUA cannot

KMUNE have

YGGOB United States Consul

M M E A F issuo

NE V W A eertrficate

WD YNF as per my letter of 11th inst

[Pencil Note] : Denied 10-6-42.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 44

Confirmation of Telegram

Mikimi-Slioko Co. Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan

Cable Address: "XYMAS" Tokyo

Codes Used:

Bentley's 2nd Phrase

Acme and Private

From NEWYE Seattle Wash.

Date Sent July 7, 1941.

Date Received July 8th, 1941.

Code Used Inverted Acme.

Code Translation

om \ nso Refer to your telegram of 2nd inst

ualko no stock available

ipgaj can possibly

wlahg manufactured here

iyeto telegraph

Liidje frequency

bvuuc desired

jeh^ge for

transmitters Transmitters

pabha also

reoej powers

zicul receiver

vrumso Refer to your telegram of 5th inst

ethia application has been made

oypko stop

edahr vessel

gjeyg in whose name

sofer shall we use

izhia on application

gfyve instruct them

xceqa book order

swauh 12

edahr vessel
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Code Translation

efier

glofe

ityyi(u)

used for

fertilizer /

plant

[Pencil Note] : Denied 10-6-42.

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT No. A-3

Banco Aboumrad, S. A.

Apartado 138

Isabel La Catolica 33

Mexico, D. F.

[Stamped in left-hand margin] : Banco Aboum-

rad, S. A. DLS 20000-00-

Commercial Credit #1141

July 21, 1941.

Copy.

Original Issued.

Union Bank & Trust Co.

Eigth & Hill Sts.

Los Angeles, Cal.

Dear Sir(s)

We request you to open and transmit by mail a

cable

documentary revocable credit in favor of China
Irrevocable

Import & Export Co., Seattle, Washington, for ac-

count of Proveedora Metalica S. A., Motolinia 20,

Mexico, D. F., in an amount not to exceed Twenty

Thousand Dollars, U. S. Currency. Available by

sight drafts drawn on your correspondents in Se-

attle. This credit is to cover shipment of about
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250 Tons of 2,240 lbs. each of Used Steel Plates

in first class condition, 5 ft. by 15 ft. and larger,

3/16 to 5/8 in. thic^kness.

To be shipped in one or more shipments xxxxxxx

f.o.b. Laredo, Texas or El Paso, Texas. Drafts

must be accompanied by the following documents:

Ful set bills of lading in favor of Banco Aboum-
rad, S. A. or order blank endorsed.

Commercial invoice In name of Proveedora Me-

talica S. A.

Consular invoice Showing pajonent of the 5% fee.

Insurance polic}^ Covering ordinary risks only

from shipping point to Mexico D. F.

Bills of lading to be dated on or before Octo-

ber 15, 1941.

We agree that drafts drawn under this credit

will be honored if presented at drawee's address

on or before October 15, 1941.

We are. Dear Sir(s).

Yours faithfully,

BANCO ABOUMEAD, S. A.

(Signature illegible.)

Export license issued by U. S. Government must

be presented with documents.

N. B. Drafts drawn under this credit must state

that they are "drawn under letter of credit

No. 1141. Dated July 21, 1941.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 20, 1942.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 1, 1942.
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DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT No. A-4

China Import & Export Company
Seattle, U. S. A.

Cable Address "Cieco"

All Codes Used

Agencies :-

Dairen

Mukden

Tientsin

Shanghai

Hankow
Hongkong

Kobe

Tokio

Contract. No. B-l-M

Contract of Sale.

—

F.O.B. Terms.

Seller: China Import & Export Company.

Buyer: Proveedora Metalica, S. A., Mexico, D. F.

Commodity: Used steel plates.

Quality or grade : Plates to be 5 x 15 ft. and larger,

but plates to be in good and first class condi-

tion and to permit rivet holes. [Written in ink]

Thickness 3/16 to 5/8".

Quantity: Up to 250 (two hundred and fifty) tons

of 2240 lbs.

Packing: Loose.

Shipment: 250 tons of 2240 lbs.—within 60 days

after receipt of letter of credit and export license.
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Price: $75.00 (seventy five dollars, 0/100) U. S. Cy.

per ton of of 2240 lbs., F.O.B. Laredo, Texas,

U. S. A., or F.O.B. El-Paso, Texas, U S. A.

(Sellers option).

Weights: Railroad's weights to be final.

Payment: Irrevocable confirmed U. S. letter of

credit expiring October 15th., 1941, acceptable

by our bank to be established immediately.

Additional conditions: This contract is subject to

buyers obtaining necessary export license from

The Government of The United States of

America.

Accepted

:

PROVEEDOEA METALICA,
S. A.

GIL ALTSCHULER.
CHINA IMPORT & EXPORT
CO.

S. OKADA.

[Endorsed]: Filed May 20, 1942.

[Endorsed]: Filed Oct. 1, 1942.
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DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT No. A-5

Western Union Telegram

.NA25 36 NL-Mexico City 26

China Import Acd Export Co-

Seattle Wash-

1941 Sep 27 AM 4 14

Refer Yesterday Cable Please Suspend Shipment

Balance Tank Plates as My Firm Has Appeared in

the Black List Due to Mistake Stop Am Already

Trying This Matter With American Embassy and

Soon Will Be Cleared Publicly-

GIL ALTSCHULER.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 20, 1942.

[Endorsed]: Filed Oct. 1, 1942.

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT A-6

WESTERN UNION
Moga
Ta2 Dl Chg Tak Co

Mr Gil Altschuler

Proveedora Metalica S A
Motolinia 20

Mexico City Mexico

Referring Your Wire Twentyseventh Under the

Circumstances We Must Consider Balance of Tank

Plates Cancelled as We Cannot Deal With Any

Firm Blacklisted by the United States Government

as We Only Can Operate According to Our Gov-
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eminent Regulations Stop When and If You Are

Able to Clear Up Your Position With Our Gov-

ernment We Will Be Glad to Entertain Further

Business Proposals From You and If There Is

Anything We Can Do at Present to Assist You
Please xxxxxxx Feel Free to Call on Us as We De-

sire to Cooperate in Any Way Possible.

China Import and Export Company.

[Stamped] : R2 Wu J 945A T.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 20, 1942.

[Endorsed]: Filed Oct. 1, 1942.

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT No. A-7

Proveedora Metalica, S. A.

Gompra Y Venta De Marquinaria Y Toda Clase De

Materiales De Hierro elefonos Ereic. 13 84-13-

Mex J - 56 - 23 Motolina 20 - Despacho 506

Mexico D. F.

July 26, 1941

China Import & Export Co.

Seattle, Wash.

Gentlemen

:

Inclosed you will find the affidavit, properly le-

galized before the United States Consulate in this

city, corresponding to our order for 250 (Two Hun-

dred Fifty) tons of used Steel Plates in—first class

condition in sizes 5 ft. by 15 ft. and larger and 3/16

to 5/8 in. in thickness, that we made through your

Mr. Sig Okada during his stay in this city, asking

you very kindly that upon receipt of this you should
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make the corresponding petition to Washington, D.

C, so as to obtain the export license as briefly as

possible.

Once you have the license you will please advise

us, so that we can mail to you the instructions to

the respective shipments/

With kindest regards to Mr. Shenker and Mr.

Okada, we are please to remain

Yours very truly,

PROVEEDORA METALICA,
S.A.

(Signed) G. ALLTSCHULER.
GA/ma

Proveedora Metalica S.A.

Mexico D.F.

Affidavit

To Whom It May Concern:

I, Gil Altschuler, Jewish, born in Warsaw, Po-

land, since 1923 living in Mexico, since 1932 Mexi-

can Citizen, one of the associates and managers of

the Proveedora Metalica, S. A., Motolinia 20, Mex-

ico, D.F., being duly sworn, depose and say:

The Proveedora Metalica, S.A. are dealers in steel

and iron goods. We have every time imported steel

and iron goods to sell in the Mexican market.

Our order to the China Import & Export Com-

pany, of Seattle,—Washington, consisting of:

250 (two Hundred and Fifty) tons of 2,240 lbs.

each, of used Steel plates in first class condi-

tion, 5 ft. by 15 ft., and larger, 3/16 to 5/8 in.

in thickness,

is to be solelv for domestic use in the Republic
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of Mexico and is not to be reshipped or exported

out of the Republic of Mexico.

Sworn to before me this 25 day of July, 1941.

G. ALTSCHULER.
Mexico, Julio 25 de 1941.—Con esta fecha se firmo

y ratifico ante mi, 11a presente, por el senor Gil

Altschuler—Doy Fe-El Adscrito a la Notaria

Publica No. 13.

Lie. ALVARO MAGANA
PEREZ.

United Mexican States, Mexico,

Eederal District Consulate General of the

United States of America—ss.

I, Louis B. Mazzeo, Vice Consul of the United

States of America at Mexico, Federal District,

United Mexican States, duly commissioned and

qualified, do hereby certify that Alvaro Magana

Perez whose true signature and official seal are, re-

spectively, subscribed and affixed to the annexed

document, was, on the twenty sixth day of July,

1941, the day of his certification thereof, Notary

Public No. 13 in Mexico, D. F., Mexico, to whose

official acts faith and credit are due.

In Witness Whereof I have hereunto set my hand

affixed the seal of the Consulate General at Mexico,

D. F., Mexico, this twenty-sixth day of July, 1941.

Vice Consul of the United States of America.

Service No. 4853.

Fee $2.00 U. S. cy.

Tariff No. 31.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 20, 1942.

[Endorsed]: Filed Oct. 1, 1942.



vs. United States of America 391

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT A-8

Department of State

[Stamped] Received, Department of State, 1941

May 31 AM 10 :00. Division of Communications and

Records.

[Stamped] Air Mail.

[Stamped] Division of Controls, May 31, 11 41,

AM '41. Department of State.

United States of America

Application for License to Export Articles and Ma-

terials (Other Than Arms, Ammunition and

Implements of War and Tin-Plate Scrap) Des-

ignated by the President as Necessary to the

National Defense Pursuant to Section 6 of the

Act of Congress Approved July 2, 1940

(Application to be made in triplicate)

Original

Japan

(Insert here name of country of destination

License No
(For official use only)

General Instructions

(a) One triplicate application should be made for

each complete shipment to any one consignee,

and it may not include more than one commod-

ity nor shipments to more than one country.

(b) Applications should be typewritten, with the

exception of signature, but will be considered

if written legibly in ink.
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(c) Articles and materials appearing under (7) be-

low should be designated clearly and specifi-

cally, the type and model designation being in-

cluded whenever applicable.

(d) Values listed should represent the selling

price only of the articles exported, and should

not include such supplementary costs as pack-

ing, freight, etc.

(e) Specify under paragraph (9) the name and

address of the producer or manufacturer in

the United States of each article and material

to be exported or, if obtained outside of the

United States, the name and address of the

person from whom procured.

(f) Unsigned applications or applications which

omit essential information called for in the

numbered spaces will be returned.

(g) When countersigned and impressed with the

seal of the Department of State, this applica-

tion becomes a license.

(h) Any attempt to export a commodity differing

in any way from that licensed, or any altera-

tion of a license, except by a duly authorized

officer of the Government, is punishable under

appropriate acts of Congress. Changes in the

information set forth in licenses which have

been issued under the seal of the Secretary of

State can be effected by amendments which

can be made only by the Department of State,

or by collectors of customs or postmasters act-

ing under the specific instructions of the De-

partment of State.
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Department of State,

Washington, D. C.

(1) Date of application April 23, 1941.

(2) Applicant's reference No
The undersigned hereby applies for license to ex-

port the commodity described below and warrants

the truth of all statements and answers herewith

made regarding it.

(3) Name of applicant C. T. Takahashi & Com-
pany

By CHARLES T. TAKAHASHI
(To be signed in ink)

(4) Consignee in foreign coimtry

Name Mitsui Bussan Kaisha, Ltd.

Nationality Japanese

Address

Street #3 Kaigan-dori, Kobe-ku

City Kobe, Japan

State or Province —
Country Japan

(5) Purchaser in foreign country

Name Mitsui Bussan Kaisha, Ltd.

National Japanese

Address
i

'

Street #3 Kaigan-dori, Kobe-ku

City Kobe, Japan

State or Province

Country Japan
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(6) Number of units or
weight (whichever is

applicable). If weislit (7) Description of articles or ma- (8) Approximate
is given in tons, spe- terials to be exported net value
cify whether long or

short tons.

100,000 pieces Used Burlap Bags $10,250.00

[Stamped] Application Rejected. This applica-

tion has been rejected because it does not conform

to existing requirements as published in export

control schedules. A new application conforming

to these requirements will be considered.

[Endorsed] Filed May 20, 1942.

[Pencil Notation] Addressed envelope.

(9) Source of material to be exported (see para-

graph (e) above)

:

From various dealers of burlap bags.

(Name) (Address)

{10) State the specific purpose for which the arti-

cles or materials are required and the name

and address of the ultimate consumer in the

foreign country:

For re-use in sacking feeding commodity.

Mitsui Bussan Kaisha, Ltd., #3 Kaigan-dori,

Kobe-ku, Kobe, Japan.

(11) License to be sent to— (type or print plainly)

Name C. T. Takahashi & Company

Street 212 Fifth Avenue South

City and State Seattle, Washington
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(12) Consignor in United States

Name C. T. Takabashi & Company

Nationality American

Address

:

Street 212 Fifth Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

(13) Seller in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Company

Nationality American

Address

:

Street 212 Fifth Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

Nature of business Importers & ex-

porters

(14) Port of exit in the United States from which

it is proposed to export the shipment Pacific Coast

Port.

License is hereby granted to the applicant men-

tioned herein to export from the United States of

America to Japan the articles or materials described

and in the quantity given, on the following terms

and conditions:

This license is not transferable and is subject to

revocation without notice.

Shipment must be made from port of exit within

1 year from date of this license as given below

under the seal of the Department.

Export licenses must be filed with the collector of

customs at the port from which the shipment is de-

parting from the United States prior to the pro-

posed departure.
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For Collectors of Customs and Postmasters

This license should be returned to the Secretary

of State at the end of the month during which the

last article of the shipment described therein was

exported, or during which notice has been given

that the remaining balance will not be shipped, or

during which the license has been revoked or has

expired. When the entire shipment has been ex-

ported, the license should be marked "Completed";

otherwise the returned license should bear a nota-

tion stating the reason for its return and the quan-

tity and value of the articles actually shipped.

Collectors of customs or postmasters will endorse

in the following spaces information concerning ship-

ments made under this license

:

[Blank form not filled in.]

Date of license

(For official use only)

For the Secretary of State

:

By
(For official use only)

(When countersigned and impressed with the seal

of the Department of State, this application becomes

a license.)
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. A-9

China Import & Export Company
Certificate of Firm Name

56166—8796

Know All Men By These Presents:

That I, the undersigned, C. T. Takahashi do

hereby certify that I am conducting a general im-

porting and exporting business under the assumed

name and style of ''China Import & Export Com-

pany", located at 212 Fifth Avenue South, in the

City of Seattle, County of King, State of Wash-

ington; that I am the sole owner of said business;

and I further certify that I shall so conduct my
said busmess as aforesaid under the assumed name

and style of "China Import & Export Company".

That my post office address is as follows: C. T.

Takahashi, 212 Fifth Avenue South, Seattle, King

County, Washington.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set' my
hand this 20th day of January, A. D. 1927.

C. T. TAKAHASHI.
Filed In County Clerk's Office, King County,

Wash., Jan. 20, 1927. Abe N. Olson, Clerk. By

S. R. Battenfield, Deputy.
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In the Superior Court of the State of Washington

for the County of King

State of Washington,

County of King—ss.

No. 56166—8796

In the Matter of the

Certificate of Firm Name of

China Import & Export Company

I, Carroll Carter, County Clerk of King County,

and ex-officio Clerk of the Superior Court of the

State of Washington, for the County of King, do

hereby certify that I have compared the foregoing

copy with the original Certificate of Firm Name.

in the above entitled matter as the same appears on

file and of record in my office, and that the same is

a true and perfect transcript of said original and

of the whole thereof.

In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunder set

my hand and affixed the Seal of said Superior Court

at my office at Seattle this 29th day of September,

1942.

CARROLL CARTER,
Clerk.

By B. H. MOFFETT,
Deputy Clerk.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 1, 1942.
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DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT A-10

In Reply Refer to

File No. 96

Treasury Department

United States Customs Service

Seattle, Wash.

[Cut, Fig. 5.]

Office of the Collector

District No. 30

Address All Communications

for this Office to the Collector

December 21, 1940.

C. T. Takahashi & Co.,

212-5th Ave. So.,

Seattle, Wash.

Sirs

:

Referring to your letter of the 16th instant relat-

ing to the exportation of 18 dismantled storage

tanks and your inquiry as to whether the provisions

of Presidential Proclamation which become effec-

tive at midnight on December 29th next would pro-

hibit the exportation of any of the said dismantled

tanks which were not laden prior to that date, you

are advised the following telegrams were sent to

and received from the Secretary of State relative to

the said matter.

"Referring to application of C T Takahashi and

Company of Seattle requesting license to export

eighteen complete used steel dismantled storage

tanks and accessories for reerection purposes for ex-

portation to Japan it is noted State Department



400 Charles T. Tdkaliaslii, et al

holds no license required for exportation under pro-

visions proclamation July second last stop Said ex-

porters advise tliat special permission has been

granted by State Department for exportation of said

eighteen tanks although some will be loaded subse-

quent to December 29th next when provisions of

new proclamation become effective stop Please con-

firm whether said eighteen tanks may be exported

subsequent to December 29th without further for-

mality." Haas, Collector.

"Your telegram December 16 if eighteen disman-

tled storage tanks are intended for reerection and

permanent installation and can be declared by ex-

porter under commodity No. 6043 of Schedule B
they may be exported without license before or after

December 29 1940 Takahashi has represented to ad-

ministrator of export control that such the case

please report action taken." Cordell Hull Secre-

tary of State.

Your attention is invited to the instructions from

the Secretary of State that the said tanks may be

exported without license before or after December

29, 1940 as your company has represented to the

State Department that the said tanks are intented

for re-erection and permanent installation and can

be declared by the exporter under commodity classi-

fication 6043 of Schedule B of the Department of

Commerce.

Respectfully,

ROY L. BALLINGER,
Assistant Collector.

Department of State
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Branches

:

Phones : EL. 5166

Tokio EL. 5167

Vancouver, B. C. Cable Address

Portland, Ore. "CTTKS"
Oakland, Cal. Bentley's Phrase Code

Agencies: A B C 5th Edition

Osaka Private

Kobe Acme

C. T. Takahashi & Co.

Exporters and Importers

212-216-5th Ave. So.,

Seattle, Wash.

December 16, 1940

Mr. O. W. Dam,

Deputy Collector of Customs

Federal Building

Seattle, Washington

Dear Sir:

Confirming our conversation with you Saturday,

we are pleased to enclose herewith two photostatic

copies of our application which is properly marked

and authority given us. Now, since receiving this

special permission, we have definitely asked the Di-

vision of Control Board our position after Decem-

ber 30th, and we wish to go on record that they re-

plied to us that this is a special permission granted

to us on 18 tanks, only in view of the appeals and

efforts in Washington to date. The latest proclama-

tion does not affect us, but in the event of any addi-

tional tanks, we will be required to apply for license,

and in fact, it is their opinion that we will not be

granted same.
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If there is any doubt in your mind as to our ef-

forts to date, we desire you to wire Washington

immediately. This last Friday and Saturday, we
have been working yevy hard on this point as it is,

you know, most important to us that we are allowed

shipments after the 30th.

Now, everything has been delayed and our own
program was delayed by previous misunderstand-

ing, first of all, and secondly, now we have the ele-

ment of weather where it is practically 10 below in

Wyoming, which now prevents our speeding up cut-

ting down the tanks, and this may cause a delay

for immediate shipment which is really beyond our

control in getting this material out.

I do not want to take any more chances in our

business with the Orient, and on our ad\dce from

our attorney in Washington today, we received fur-

ther instructions as follows:

"Enforcement Division Bureau of Customs

Suggest If the Collector Is Still in Doubt He
Should Telegraph the Division of Controls,

State Department."

Also for your own information, we have taken

this up through our attorneys in Washington, and

my own Managing Director is still in Washington

and in New York until this whole situation gets

cleared u]3, and I can have him do any work you

desire.

We have personally had very lengthy conversa-

tions, discussions, and conversations with Colonel

Trunk, Member of the National Defense Commis-

sion Board and Division of Controls, who has given
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us his personal assurance that our application for

license returned is in one way a kind of a license

giving us authority for the 18 tanks regardless of

this late proclamation, etc., and that we are to have

the license marked on the back each time a ship-

ment is made, until the total 18 tanks are shipped

out.

We trust that we have covered all the points

in our discussion with you the other day, and we

also wish to thank you for the assistance and kind

cooperation you have always given us.

Very truly yours,

C. T. TAKAHASHI & COM-
PANY.

C. T. TAKAHASHI.
President.

CTT:CK
Encl-2

No oral representations or statements of any rep-

resentative of this firm shall be binding unless con-

firmed in writing by this company through its prin-

cipals.
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[Stamped] Received Dec. 16, 1940. Marine Divi-

sion, U. S. Customs, Seattle.

[Stamped] Division of Controls, 11286, Nov. 19,

1940. Department of State.

United States of America

Application for License to Export Articles and Ma-
terials (Other Than Arms, Ammunition and

Implements of War and Tin-Plate Scrap) Des-

ignated by the President as Necessary to the

National Defense Pursuant to Section 6 of the

Act of Congress Approved July 2, 1940

(Applications to be made in duplicate)

Original

Japan

(Insert here name of country of destination

License No
(For official use only)

General Instructions

(a) One triplicate application should be made for

each complete shipment to any one consignee,

and it may not include more than one commod-

ity nor shipments to more than one country.

(b) Applications should be typewritten, with the

exception of signature, but will be considered

if written legibly in ink.

(c) Articles and materials appearing under (7) be-

low should be designated clearly and specifi-

cally, the type and model designation being in-

cluded whenever applicable.
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(d) Values listed should represent the selling

price only of the articles exported, and should

not include such supplementary costs as pack-

ing, freight, etc.

(e) Specify under paragraph (9) the name and

address of the producer or manufacturer in

the United States of each article and material

to be exported or, if obtained outside of the

United States, the name and address of the

person from whom procured.

(f) Unsigned applications or applications which

omit essential information called for in the

numbered spaces will be returned.

(g) When countersigned and impressed with the

seal of the Department of State, this applica-

tion becomes a license.

(h) Any attempt to export a commodity differing

in any way from that licensed, or any altera-

tion of a license, except by a duly authorized

officer of the Government, is punishal)le under

appropriate acts of Congress. Changes in the

information set forth in licenses which have

been issued under the seal of the Secretary of

State can be effected by amendments which

can be made only by the Department of State,

or by collectors of customs or postmasters act-

ing under the specific instructions of the De-

partment of State.
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Department of State,

Washington, D. C.

(1) Date of application November 19, 1940.

(2) Applicant's reference No
The undersigned hereby applies for license to ex-

port the commodity described below and warrants

the truth of all statements and answers herewith

made regarding it.

(3) Name of applicant C. T. Takahashi & Co.

By EDW. Y. OSAWA.
(To be signed in ink)

(4) Consignee in foreign country
'

Name Mikuni Shoko Company
Nationality Japanese

Address

No. 4 Gokencho, Kanda

City Tokyo

State or Province

Country Japan

(5) Purchaser in foreign country

Name Mikuni Shoko Company
Nationality Japanese

Address

Street No. 4 Gokencho, Kanda
City Tokyo

State or Province

Country Japan
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(6) Number of units or

weight (whicliever is

applicable). If weight (7) Description of articles or ma- (8) Approximate
is given in tons, spe- tei ials to be exported net value
cify whether long or
short tons.

18

(each tank weighs Complete used steel dis- $17,500 f.o.b.

about 270 long mantled storage tanks Seattle per tank

tons) and accessories for re-

erection purposes.

(see attached letter)

[Stamped] No License Required for this Ex-

portation Under the Regulations Issued Pursuant

to the President's Proclamation of July 2, 1940.

Source of material to be exported (see paragraph

(e) above) :

(9) 2 Sonken Galamba Supply Co., Kansas

City, Mo. (tanks from Corpus Christi,

Tex.).

14 Pepper Tank & Pipe Co., Denver, Colo,

(tanks from Casper, Wyo.).

2 Keyes Tank & Supply Co., Casper,

Wyo. (tanks from Casper, Wye).
(Name) (Address)

(10) State the specific purpose for which the arti-

cles or materials are required and the name

and address of the ultimate consumer in the

foreign country:

Storage purposes by Mikuni Shoko Company.

(11) License to be sent to— (type or print plainly)

Name Ira L. Ewers

Street 1308 F St., N.W.

City and State Washington, D. C.
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(12) Consignor in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Co.

Nationality United States

Address :

Street 212 5th Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

(13) Seller in United States

Name C. T. Takahashi & Co.

Nationality United States

Address

:

Street 212 5th Ave. So.

City Seattle

State Washington

Nature of business Importers & Ex-

porters

(14) Port of exit in the United States from which

it is proposed to export the shipment Seattle, Port-

land & Tacoma.

License is hereby granted to the applicant men-

tioned herein to export from the United States of

America to Japan the articles or materials described

and in the quantity given, on the following terms

and conditions:

This license is not transferable and is subject to

revocation without notice.

Shipment must be made from port of exit within

1 year from date of this license as given below

under the seal of the Department.

Export licenses must be filed with the collector of

customs at the port from which the shipment is de-

parting from the United States prior to the pro-

posed departure.
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For Collectors of Customs and Postmasters

This license should be returned to the Secretary

of State at the end of the month during which the

last article of the shipment described therein was

exported, or during which notice has been given

that the remaining balance will not be shipped, or

during which the license has been revoked or has

expired. When the entire shipment has been ex-

ported, the license should be marked "Completed";

otherwise the returned license should bear a nota-

tion stating the reason for its return and the quan-

tity and value of the articles actually shipped.

Collectors of customs or postmasters will endorse

in the following spaces information concerning ship-

ments made under this license:

[Blank form not filled in.]

Date of license —

-

(For official use only)

For the Secretary of State

:

By
(For official use only)

(When countersigned and impressed with the seal

of the Department of State, this application becomes

a license.)

[Stamped]: Received Dec. 16, 1940. Marine Di-

vision U. S. Customs, Seattle.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 6, 1942.
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DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT No. A-11

H. M. Capron, J. V. Sullivan

Pres. and Treas. Secretary

Equipment Storage Corporation

Our Specialty

Heavy Machinery and Merchandise Space

Under Crane

Warehouse

7450 South Ashland Avenue

Chicago

Telephones

Office—Nevada 2400

Warehouse—Prospect 4616

Office

1150 South Washtenaw Avenue

Chicago

June 23, 1941

C. T. Takahashi and Co.,

212 5th Ave. So.,

Seattle, Washington

Attention—Mr. C. T. Takahashi

Gentlemen,

We wish to acknowledge receipt of your tele-

gram of June 17th, and you can rest assured that,

if any customers come to our warehouse to inspect

your material, they will never find out from us

where it came from, what the storage charges are

or any arrangements you have made with us. We
shall show them every courtesy and do everything

we can to aid them in their inspection of the ma-

terials, but v>^ill go no further.
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Defendant's Exhibit No. A-11— (Continued)

I am writing you another letter, which I am en-

closing in this same envelope, written on the letter-

head of the Equipment Corporation of America, a

concern we are associated with, and would appre-

ciate hearing from you in the enclosed, postage

paid, envelope,

Yours very truly,

EQUIPMENT STORAGE
CORPORATION

JOS. V. SULLIVAN
Jos. V. Sullivan

JYS :MH

Equipment Corporation Of America

Telephone Nevada 2400

Chicago

Certified Construction Equipment

Reply to Chicago

Offices and Shops

Chicago: 1150 South Washtenaw Avenue

Pittsburgh : Post Office Box 933

Philadeljihia : 1505 Race Street

Cable Address ''E C A" Chicago and

Philadelphia

Codes : A B C of Western Union

June 23, 1941

C. T. Takahashi and Co.,

212 5th Ave. So.,

Seattle, Washington

Attention—Mr. C. T. Takahashi

Gentlemen,

The writer is also associated as Vice-President
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Defendant's Exhibit No. A-11— (Continued)

and General Sales Manager with the above con-

cern. We are one of the largest dealers in new and

used equipment in the Country, and included in the

products we sell are storage tanks of all kinds for

the storage of aggregate, minerals and oil.

We believe we are probably in as good, if not

better, position to dispose of these three tanks for

you, if you desire to sell them, than anybody in the

business, and are wondering if you could give us

a description of these tanks, together with the price

you are asking for same, f.o.b. cars, Chicago; this

price to be net to us, and any profit that we make

to reimburse us for our costs in advertising, selling

and disposing of these for you, to be added on to

this price by ourselves.

If you prefer that our prospective customers do

not know for whom these tanks were manufac-

tured, or by whom they were manufactured, we \sdll

respect your wishes. It would, of course, be neces-

sary for us to guarantee to furnish blue prints for

the erection of same and also guarantee complete-

ness; in fact it might be necessary that we would

have to show them erection drawings before they

would place their order for same, and I would like

to know whether you are in possession of such

drawings, and could loan same to us if we had any-

body ready to purchase same. Our terms of pay-

ment would be cash when loaded.

We understand that these are 80,000 gal. capa-

city each and what we would like to know would

be the diameter, height and whether they have bot-

toms and tops, weight each and in fact the best
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Defendant's Exhibit No. A-11— (Continued)

thing would be a condensed specification of the pro-

posal that you received from the manufacturer.

If you could give us this information by return

mail, in the enclosed, postage paid envelope, we

would be very grateful, as we think we could dis-

pose of these for you in a short while.

Yours very truly,

EQUIPMENT CORPORATION
OF AMERICA

JOS. V. SULLIVAN
Jos. V. Sullivan

General Sales Manager

JVS :MH

Bought Service Rented Sold

(Cut) E C A Rebuilt

Quotations Subject to Change Without Notice. All

the Above Equipment Is Offered Subject to Prior

Sale or Other Disposition.

All Agreements Are Contingent Upon Strikes,

Lockouts, Accidents, Delays of Carriers or Other

Delays Beyond Our Control.

June 27, 1941

Equipment Corporation of America

1150 South Washtenaw Avenue

Chicago, Illinois

Attention: Mr. Jos. V. Sullivan

Gentlemen

:

We are very happy to note that you also have

this company and at the present moment, we are
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Defendant's Exhibit No. A-11— (Continued)

in negotiation with a certain party in Mexico and

another in Los Aiigeles, who has a buyer in your

district for our tanks.

We had been seriously contemplating on holding

on to our tanks for at least $25,000 each or better.

These tanks are all complete and 80,000 barrel ca-

pacity tanks. In fact, it was our intention to sell

them as-is, where-is your warehouse.

We expect a definite reply one way or the other

from the parties with whom we are working these

tanks and we should know outcome within the next

ten days. In the event, we areuunable to dispose

of them to these parties, we shall be very glad to

have you work your territory for us.

We understand there is a very large development

in oils in Illinois and I am sure there should be a

very strong demand for these items inasmuch as it

is almost impossible to buy new tanks and get de-

livery within six months to a year.

We regret that we were not aware of your Equip-

ment Corporation of America till this date. How-
ever, we are very pleased to make this good con-

nection with your firm.

We may ask you to look around for our require-

ments in the future in your district for us.

Trusting that we may be able to get together with

your goodselves on some business in the very near

future, we remain

Very truly j^ours,

C. T. TAKAHASHI & COM-
PANY

By
CTT:sk
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Defendant's Exhibit No. A-11— (Continued)

Airmailgram

Equipment Corporation of America

Certified Construction Equipment

Bought Service Rented Sold

(Cut)—E C A Rebuilt

Reg. Trade Mark

Main Office

Chicago: 1150 So. Washtenaw Ave.

District Offices

Philadelphia: 1505 Race St.

Pittsburgh: P. O. Box 933

Shops and Warehouses

Chicago

Philadelphia

Pittsburgh

Cable Address "E C A" Chicago and

Philadelphia

Codes: A B C or Western Union

Chicago

Telephone Nevada 2400 1150 So. Wastenaw Ave.

July 9, 1941

C. T. Takahashi and Co.,

212 5th Ave. So.,

Seattle, Washington

Attention—Mr. C. T. Takahashi

Gentlemen,

I appreciate your letter of June 27th, and the

fact that we have heard nothing further from you

makes me believe that your deal in Mexico and Los

Angeles for the three tanks has not materialized.
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Defendant's Exhibit No. A-11— (Continued)

I would appreciate your advising me by return

mail if we may go ahead and offer these tanks for

sale. Under present conditions, everything is be-

ing offered subject to prior sale and if you should

get an order for these tanks from somebody else,

before we sell them, there would be no harm done.

In the meantime, if you would make your offering

subject to prior sale and we were to sell them for

you, you could gracefully withdraw your proposi-

tion from any other interested clients.

We have several people we believe might be in-

terested in these tanks, and would appreciate your

advising us if we may quote them on the basis of

paying you $25,000.00 each for them.

We would appreciate hearing from you by return

mail.

We presume that we could secure the loan of the

blue prints and specifications on these to show any

party who was actually interested, and also presume

that complete erection drawings would be available

for anybody who would purchase these tanks.

I recently mailed you one of our latest stock lists

and if you should receive any inquiries for equip-

ment similar to that listed therein, we would be

Tery pleased to hear from you.

Yours very truly.

EQUIPMENT CORPORATION
OF AMERICA

JOS. V. SULLIVAN
Jos. V. Sullivan

General Sales Manager

JVS :MH
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Defendant's Exhibit No. A-11— (Continued)

All the Above Equipment Is Offered Subject to

Prior Sale or Other Disposition. All Agreements

Are Contingent Upon Strikes, Lockouts, Accidents,

iDelays of Carriers or Other Delays Beyond Our

Control. Quotations Subject to Change Without

Notice.

Equipment Corporation Of America

Telephone Nevada 2400
,

, . ..

Chicago

Certified Construction Equipment

Reply to Chicago

Of&ces and Shops

Chicago: 1150 South Washtenaw Avenue '
'

Pittsburgh: Post Office Box 933 ' '

Philadelphia : 1505 Race Street

Cable Address "E C A" Chicago and

Philadelphia '

'

Codes: ABC or Western Union

July 26, 1941

C. T. Takahashi and Co.,

212 5th Ave So.,

Seattle, Washington

Attention—Mr. C. T. Takahashi;- :.

Gentlemen,

We would appreciate your advising sale price on

the three 80,000 bbl. tanks which you have stored

in the EquiiDment Storage Corporation warehouse.

As mentioned in a previous letter, if you could

give us this price, subject to prior sale, and if we

got an order for same and you had other placjes to
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Defendant's Exhibit No. A-11— (Continued)

put them, there would be no harm done. We have

several places that we would like to quote on these

tanks.

Yours very truly,

EQUIPMENT CORPORATION
OF AMERICA

JOS. V. SULLIVAN
Jos. V. Sullivan

General Sales Manager

JVS:MH

Bought Service Rented Sold

(Cut) E C A Rebuilt

Quotations Subject to Change Without Notice. All

the Above Equipment Is Offered Subject to Prior

Sale or Other Disposition.

All Agreements Are Contingent Upon Strikes,

Lockouts, Accidents, Delays of Carriers or Other

Delays Beyond Our Control.

Western Union

8

Jul 2^ 1941

Tal Tws Chg Tak Co

Mr. Joseph V. Sullivan General Sales xxxxxx Man-

ager

Equipment Corporation of America

1150 South Washtenaw Ave

Chicago 111

Re Your Letter Twenty Sixth Would Be Inter-

ested in Selling One Complete Tank Whih XX



vs. United States of America 419

Defendant's Exhibit No. A-11— (Continued)

Which We have in Your Storage As Is Where Is

Twenty Five Thousand Dollars Net to Us Stop

For Your Information in Event of Any Question

We Wish to Advise That We Are One Hundred

Percent American Firm Therefore Not in Any Way
Connected with the Freezing Order of Last Week
Takahashi President C. T. Takahashi & Co.

End TWS
Rl WUJ CHG 3 MINS 951-A TNX

Equipment Corporation of America

Telephone Nevada 2400

Chicago

Certified Construction Equipment

Reply to Chicago

Offices and Shops

Chicago : 1150 South Washtenaw Avenue

Pittsburgh : Post Office Box 933

Philadelphia: 1505 Race Street

Cable Address "E C A" Chicago and Philadelphia

Codes : A B C or Western Union

July 30, 1941

[In Pencil] Repd 8/2/41

C. T. Takahashi and Co.,

212 5th Ave. So.,

Seattle, Washington

Attention—Mr. C. T. Takahashi

Gentlemen,

We wish to acknowledge and thank you for your

telegram of July 29th, and we have quoted on one

of your three tanks on the basis of it costing us
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Defendant's Exhibit No. A-11— (Continued)

We are very pleased to receive the information

in the second part of your telegram that the freez-

ing order of last week did not effect you in any way,

Hoping to be able to do business with you, we are,

Yours very truly,

EQUIPMENT COEPORATION
OF AMERICA

J. V. SULLIVAN
Jos. V. Sullivan

General Sales Manager

JVS:MH

Bought Service Rented Sold

(Cut)—E C A Rebuilt

Quotations Subject to Change Without Notice.

All the Above Equipment Is Offered Subject to

Prior Sale or Other Disposition.

All Agreements Are Contingent Upon Strikes,

Lockouts, Accidents, Delays of Carriers or Other

Delays Beyond Our Control.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct 6, 1942.
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[Endorsed]: No. 10415. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Charles

T. Takahashi and Edward Y. Osawa, Appellants,

vs. United States of America, Appellee. Transcript

of Record Upon Appeal from the District Court of

the United States for the Western District of

Washington, Northern Division.

Filed September 16, 1943.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit

No. 10415

CHARLES T. TAKAHASHI and EDWARD Y.

OSAWA,
Appellants and Defendants,

vs.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Appellee and Plaintiff.

STATEMENT OF POINTS RELIED ON

To the Clerk of the Above Entitled Court and to the

Attorneys for the Appellee:

You, and each of you, will please take notice

that the appellants, and each of them, will rely

on the following points on their appeal herein:
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(1) Denial of the separate iDetitions of appel-

lants for the return of private papers forcibly taken

from their persons, in violation of their rights

under the Fourth and Fifth Amendments to the

Constitution of the United States. The parts of

the record deemed necessary for the consideration

of this point are:

(a) Petitions for return of private papers,

and other property, of each of appellants (Bill

of Exceptions, pages 1 to 6)

;

(b) Affidavits of appellants in suj^port of

said petitions (Bill of Exceptions, pages 51 to

56);

(c) Affidavits in resistance of said petitions

(Bill of Exceptions, pages 8 to 50) ;

(d) Orders denying each of said petitions

(Bill of Exceptions, page 57).

(2) Denial of appellants' motion to quash in-

dictment. This motion was predicated upon the

ground that the private papers so taken from ap-

pellants had been submitted by the United States

District Attorney to the grand jury and had be-

come the basis for the indictment, without which

the District Attorney could not successfully prose-

cute the same. The parts of the record deemed

necessary for the consideration of this point are:

(a) Motion to quash indictment and sup-

porting affidavit of George H. Crandell (Bill

of Exceptions, pages 6 to 8) ;

(b) Affidavits of appellants in support of

said motion (Bill of Exceptions, pages 51 to

57) ;
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(c) Affidavits in resistance of said motion

(Bill of Exceptions, pages 8 to 50)

;

(d) Order denying said motion (Bill of

Exceptions, page 58).

(3) Admission in evidence, over appellants' ob-

jections of private papers and letters forcibly taken

from their persons. Appellants contend that the

use of such evidence by the Government in connec-

tion with their prosecution violated their rights

under the Fourth and Fifth Amendments to the

Constitution of the United States. The parts of the

record deemed essential for the review of this point

are:

(a) The parts of the record designated in

connection with point (1) above;

(b) The entire narrative transcription of

the evidence (Bill of Exceptions, page 58 to

151);

(c) Appellants' objections to the admission

in evidence of private papers and letters forc-

ibly taken from appellants' persons, the trial

court's rulings and exceptions taken by ap-

pellants to such rulings (Bill of Exceptions,

pages 58 to 151).

(4) Denial of motions made by the appellants,

and each of them, to dismiss the indictment at the

end of the Government's case, on the ground that

the evidence was insufficient, as a matter of law,

to sustain any count of the indictment, and the de-

nial of their separate motions made at the close of

all the evidence to dismiss and for direction of ver-
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diets of not guilty on each and every count of the

indictment. The parts of the record deemed essen-

tial for the review of this point are

:

(a) Indictment (Transcript, page 2)

;

(b) The entire narrative transcription of

the evidence and the proceedings of the court,

including motions which appellants interposed

at the close of the Government's case and at

the close of all the evidence, the rulings of

the court on each of said motions and the ex-

ceptions taken to said rulings by the appellants

(Bill of Exceptions, pages 58 to 151).

(5) The trial court's charge to the jury exceeded

the bounds of fair comment and was highly preju-

dicial in that it was a biased, unfair and one-sided

analysis of the evidence, and was argumentative.

The parts of the record deemed essential for the

consideration of this point are

:

(a) The entire narrative transcription of

the evidence (Bill of Exceptions, pages 58 to

151) ;

(b) That part of the charge wherein the

court comments upon the evidence (Bill of Ex-

ceptions, commencing at page 177, line 15, and

ending at page 184, line 7)

;

(c) The exceptions which the appellants,

and each of them, took to that portion of the

charge (Bill of Exceptions, page 185, line 16,

to page 187, line 5).

(6) The instruction which the court gave the

jury concerning the evidence of appellants' good
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character and reputation was contrary to law, be-

cause it failed to tell the jury that if this evidence

raised a reasonable doubt in their minds as to ap-

pellants' guilt they are entitled to the benefit of that

doubt and the jury's verdict should, therefore, be

not guilty. On the contrary, the instruction which

the court gave, by direct statement, iiuiuendo and

suggestion, made good reputation of doubtful value

and probably a positive disadvantage to appel-

lants. The portions of the record essential for the

consideration of this point are

:

(a) The instruction which the court gave

(Bill of Exceptions, page 184, line 21, to page

185, line 6)

;

(b) The exceptions which the appellants

took to this instruction (Bill of Exceptions,

page 186, line 18, to page 187, line 13) ;

(c) The supplemental instruction which the

court gave concerning evidence of good char-

acter and reputation (Bill of Exceptions, page

187, lines 17 to 27 inclusive);

(d) Exceptions noted following the giving

of said supplemental instruction (Bill of Ex-

ceptions, page 189, lines 15 to 20, inclusive).

SAMUEL B. BASSETT,
Attorney for Appellant,

Charles T. Takahashi.

TRACY E. GRIFFIN,
Attorney for Appellant, Ed-

ward Y. Osawa.
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Received a copy of the within Statement of

Points this 14th day of Sept., 1943.

J. CHARLES DENNIS,
Attorney for U. S.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 17, 1943. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

DESIGNATION OF PORTIONS OF RECORD
TO BE PRINTED

Comes now the United States of America, appel-

lee in the above entitled case, and designates the

following portion of the record that it desires to be

printed

:

Instructions of the Court in full.

J. CHARLES DENNIS
Attorney for Appellee.

Comes now the appellant in the above entitled

case, and designates the following portions of the

Bill of Exceptions to be printed:

All exhibits admitted in evidence in the case.

TRACY E. GRIFFIN
SAMUEL B. BASSETT

Attorneys for Appellants.

[Endorsed]: Filed Nov 15 1943. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.


